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EARFERED - RXESBHMIEIN
In this annual report, unless otherwise indicated in the context, the following expressions have the meanings set out
below:

[ERAFRE]
‘AGM”

[#AE =2 4R ]
“Articles of Association”

[BEZZEE ]
“Audit Committee”

[E5g )

“Board” or “Board of Directors”
[{EEER<FAI]

“CG Code”

[ RIBE R& AL P
“CIACCAS”
AVNCIN

“Company” or “our Company”
or “the Company”

e b7

“Conversion and Listing”

[FEEES ]

“CSRC”

[E%]

“Director(s)”

THIRZERZHTIANT :

RRFREHR2024F6 A19H (EH=) BITHRRBFARS
the annual general meeting of the Company to be held on Wednesday,
19 June 2024

RARMEBEIZME - LDRERT
the articles of association of the Company, as amended from time to
time

EEeEkZAe

the audit committee of the Board

Exg

the board of Directors

FHRMIERC1H) AR B (AIRB A _E TR BIM 8%+ 1) B 2B Ia PR
the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix C1 to the
Listing Rules (formerly known as Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules)

HER B REFEACBHER
The Changchun Institute of Applied Chemistry of Chinese Academy of
Sciences

BUR R AERHE (8 R AR AT - 201556 A30 AR EARAME T
MR BRHBRRT - EHRFE S FT Ed (RGOS - 9663)
Sino-Synergy Hydrogen Energy Technology (Jiaxing) Co., Ltd. (BIJ&
BERHR (ZE) R AR AF]), a joint stock company incorporated in the
PRC with limited liability on 30 June 2015, the H Shares of which are
listed on the Stock Exchange (Stock code: 9663)

18 TR E TAERERBHRIW O EHRRE XA ER FTRE
=t

the conversion of certain Domestic Shares held by certain
Shareholders into H shares and the listing of and permission to deal in
such H Shares on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange

TRESEBEERELZES
China Securities Regulatory Commission

KRRIEE

the director(s) of our Company
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B

Definitions
[RERK] | ARNERAFERABARE1.00THEBER - UARBREREE
“Domestic Shares” the ordinary Shares in the share capital of the Company with a
nominal value of RMB1.00 each, which are subscribed for and paid up
in Renminbi
[ETHRETEIT A | BIRFBRTE  MHBFHBELYRRESELE (FRERE) - £ABMBE

LRREARCE (ARAER) HEMBRLRKEAELE (BEREX)
REBFBRZRESELE (ARERE)

“ESOP Platforms” the employee shareholding platforms, namely Gonggingcheng
Hongsheng Fengyuan Investment Partnership (Limited Partnership)
(EEWRREREEGBEE(ARE)), Gonggingcheng Hongsheng
Fengtai Investment Partnership (Limited Partnership) (S5
FIEABLE(BRAEH)), Gonggingcheng Hongsheng Fengying
Investment Partnership (Limited Partnership) (XS HIERLEIREAE
X (BRE)) and Gonggingcheng Zeyuan Investment Partnership
(Limited Partnership) (ASHZ2REEABECE(AREE))

[Z2FBE] & #%79,520,0008HKR - BIEFKEBELREE7,952,000 &8 HAR R & 42 E
[R2271,568,000 K H X
“Global Offering” an offering of 79,520,000 H Shares, comprising a final Hong Kong

public offering of 7,952,000 H Shares and a final international offering
of 71,568,000 H Shares

[ZEA & BRAFREENREHENTEA
“Grantee” grantee of the Pre-IPO Share Option(s)
[R5 T3] il RARREHE AR
“Group”, “the Group”, “our Group”, the Company and its subsidiaries
‘we” or “us”
[HA% & AATRAPGREBARE1.00THRINETINER - BABTRER
BEE - WA LT
“H Share(s)” overseas listed foreign share(s) in the share capital of our Company

with a nominal value of RMB1.00 each, to be subscribed for and
traded in HK dollars and listed on the Stock Exchange

[HAZA% 3R | i HE B A
“H Shareholder(s)” holder(s) of H Shares
[EERAR ][ 8 —HAMKE ] & BRBEQRREEAERAR - —K1N2015F5 421 AEPBEF M
AR BRREMOHE -—HARKRE
“Hongyun Hydrogen Energy” or Guangdong Hongyun Hydrogen Energy Technology Co., Ltd. (EE%
“Single Largest Shareholder” BERRIE AR AT, a company incorporated in the PRC on 21 May

2015 and is our single largest Shareholder

(%l i< BERETERET
“HK$” Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

BEEERENE (ZH) RODABRLE —ZTZ=FF 3



[ & ]
“Hong Kong”

(R

“Huahui Technology”

[ B B M s & =t 2E R
“IFRS Accounting Standards”

[TE

YW

[ERAI
“Listing Rules”

[ ETEEIsT £
“Listing Date” or “Listing”

[R%E<r Al

“Model Code”

[BR 54 |
“Mr. Chen”

[BERZEE ]

“Nomination Committee”

HEARKAMBEESFRITERE
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC

FHILEEMEREABCE (BREHE)  —KN2019F5 421 BET BT
MM EREZEE  FTEREHERE

Foshan Huahui Technology Investment Partnership (Limited
Partnership) (FFILEEREREABRGE(BERAEE)), a limited
partnership incorporated in the PRC on 21 May 2019, which is mainly
engaged in project investment

B S ERR R SR M 2 BRI B EER
International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the
International Accounting Standard Board

TR RESFR-TREHHNEL
Kilowatts, a unit equal to one thousand watts

EEBMARZAERARES LHRR (EIEHERT - WFsie)

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited, as amended, supplemented or otherwise
modified from time to time

202312 A58 - BN AIFAHEE A PA 5 M5 89 B #
5 December 2023, being the date the shares of the Company
commenced trading on the Stock Exchange

B LM AR AMTERC3 (AR LR BIMEE+) ( EMBITAZEFETE
HRHEESTAD

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers as set out in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules (formerly known
as Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules)

PREEGULAE EERBITES
Mr. Chen Xiaomin (FEESX), the chairman of the Board and an
executive Director

EFSRAZERS

the nomination committee of the Board
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[FET ] i
“PRC” or “China”
[ EARE] i

“PRC Company Law”

[BRAMBENRERESETE] 5

“Pre-IPO Share Incentive Scheme”

[BRAREERREERE K i
[ AR = EA#E |

“Pre-IPO Share Option(s)” or
“Option(s)”

[ &7 8RR i

“Previous Period”

[HBRER] i
“Prospectus”

[ 3 | Eis|
“R&D”

[HFHEE® ] i

“Remuneration Committee”

[ R K FR) e

“Reporting Period” or “Year”

[ARY] 15
“RMB”
[EEg i
“SFC”

AERBFEPEARLNE - TREFE  RPSITHRERSE

the People’s Republic of China, for the purpose of this annual report,

excluding the regions of Hong Kong, Macau Special Administrative
Region and Taiwan

(REARAMBRBDE) - LTEHER ~ fFRIIER

the Company Law of the People’s Republic of China (AR £ FE
ATAE)) as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time
to time

RATEFTGHR2022510 A28 B HLE KNS HIRAFE S RE AR
Bt (R ARHER])  HXERFBERN [EFSRE -~ BRAFHEES
Al A 52 AR b =t &1 |

the pre-IPO share incentive scheme of our Company approved and
adopted by our Board on 28 October 2022, as amended from time to
time, a summary of the principal terms of which is set forth in “Report
of the Board of Directors — Pre-IPO Share Incentive Scheme”

REBEERAFEERRMENR IR D RE B

option(s) granted under the Pre-IPO Share Incentive Scheme

HZE20226F12 A1 BILMBEFE
for the financial year ended 31 December 2022

RRFR2023F 11 H27 ABHHBERE B ARBENBRER
the prospectus issued by the Company in connection with the Hong
Kong public offering dated 27 November 2023

fitse L 3%

research and development

RS E b

the remuneration committee of the Board

HZE2023F 12 A31 B I BEE

for the financial year ended 31 December 2023

PEEEEE AR
Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

ERRSIMEEBERZRE

Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong

R SRR () RIDERAR —Z-=FFH 5



[Ez ARG
“SFO”

[ A&7 |
“Share(s)”

[RceR

“Shareholders”

[ B8 52 |
“Stock Exchange”

[EREEE ]
“Strategy Committee”

[Bi=]

“Supervisor(s)”

[EEEg]
“Supervisory Committee’

EYTH¥HE]

“Yunfu Industrial Park”

[%]

woy

BEBEDIFEET1 EEF MEEED
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong)

RARBRAFEREEARE1.00THRG - BIERERKHAR
share(s) in the share capital of our Company, with a nominal value of
RMB1.00 each, comprising our Domestic Shares and our H Shares

EESUESES DN
holder(s) of our Share(s)

EEMARZMERAR  REBRSGNEEMERARNEZENBE AR
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited

EXGHKEEY
the strategy committee of the Board

EAUNS]L:

the supervisor(s) of the Company

EE®

the committee of Supervisors

BREHIL(EF) EXBBEITERRERABEERART  —KRN20145F1716
BEFREFMEIHATR—ZBEERRK
Guangdong Foshan (Yunfu) Industrial Transfer Industrial Park
Investment Development Co., Ltd. (BR@#L(TF)ELEB T EEE
AR AIRATR]), a company incorporated in the PRC on 16 January
2014 and is a substantial Shareholder

Bt
per cent
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BRIz AL A
‘ERBL L

THE BOARD

Executive Directors

Mr. Chen Xiaomin (Chairman of the Board)
Mr. Yang Zeyun
Mr. Ye Jiajie

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Zhan Zhanlin
Mr. Huang Jiao
Dr. Wan Yu

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Liu Xin
Dr. Xing Wei
Ms. Wong Yan Ki, Angel

SUPERVISORS

Ms. Lin Minting (Chairlady)
Mr. Hu Muzhou
Mr. Liao Han

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Ms. Wong Yan Ki, Angel (Chairlady)
Mr. Liu Xin
Dr. Xing Wei

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Liu Xin (Chairman)
Mr. Chen Xiaomin
Ms. Wong Yan Ki, Angel

BB SRR (B RIDERAR —B-=FFHK o7



REZREY
PRBEGUEE (£/)
U375
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BHEES
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BEARARE

FEREE
RAlfazt

REAK

BRERE
REMLL

BB

EORKESTAEBM
(BEEE AR AT LR T 2s B FEZ2IED)

B
RIRA T AE 2212

BRAERER

ECEMSEKAN
B

IR

BRELEIG 15
BFAE
37183701-10%

SHRER
AIRRMEERAT
BHEET
HTITiE1285%
HEEKRE13EBE

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Chen Xiaomin (Chairman)
Mr. Liu Xin
Dr. Xing Wei

STRATEGY COMMITTEE

Mr. Chen Xiaomin (Chairman)
Mr. Liu Xin
Mr. Yang Zeyun

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. Wang Jun
Ms. Leung Ho Yee

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Yang Zeyun
Ms. Leung Ho Yee

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers

(Certified Public Accountants and Registered Public Interest Entity
Auditor)

22/F, Prince’s Building Central

Hong Kong

LEGAL ADVISOR AS TO HONG KONG LAWS

Jun He Law Offices
Suites 3701-10, 37/F
Jardine House

1 Connaught Place
Central

Hong Kong

COMPLIANCE ADVISOR

Innovax Capital Limited
Unit B, 13/F, Neich Tower
128 Gloucester Road
Wanchai, Hong Kong
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WWww.Sinosynergypower.com

NEEH

Corporate Information

H SHARE REGISTRAR

Boardroom Share Registrars (HK) Limited
2103B, 21/F, 148 Electric Road
North Point, Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE AND HEAD OFFICE IN
THE PRC

Room 501-2, Block No. 37
Hangzhou Bay New Economic Park
Port District

Jiaxing City

Zhejiang Province

PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG
KONG REGISTERED UNDER PART 16 OF THE
COMPANIES ORDINANCE

31/F, 148 Electric Road
North Point, Hong Kong

STOCK CODE
9663

PRINCIPAL BANK

China Merchants Bank Foshan Nanhai Branch
First Floor, South Region, Liyayuan

Nanhai Avenue, Guicheng Street

Nanhai District, Foshan City

Guangdong Province

PRC

COMPANY’S WEBSITE

WWww.Sinosynergypower.com
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R EAEERR THNEERE -

BEN—F  RAHRBELRTEZRED
BERUE - —T-=F  HMHERER
BARMAIFRITEMSNLEEY &
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BEAE  KAMBEFRERERRE MR
B AR AREBERNXEZTMHE)
AE RETETENRR - RIAER
WINREE BESZEY  TORTA
X B E A 1E 12 ) B PR SRS AY B A AR AR

2023 is a year of great significance for the Company. The Group, as
a high-tech enterprise with hydrogen fuel cell as its core product,
is dedicated to creating a clean and sustainable world, leading the
way in hydrogen energy, and creating a better future. The Group has
always upheld to the development philosophy of “resilient, innovative,
openness and win-win”, adhered to self-dependent research,
development, and innovation, and seeks for breakthrough and
superiority. The Group has achieved innovative outcomes of hydrogen
fuel cell application. On 5 December 2023, we were successfully
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. This is not only a full
recognition of our past development, but also marks the beginning of
a new chapter of development for the Group.

The Company was confronted with major challenge from the
development of the hydrogen energy industry over the past year.
In 2023, we continued to take advantage of R&D innovation,
technological innovation and as a first-mover in the industry and
market, focused on the facilitation of larger-scale domestic and
overseas commercial application of hydrogen-fueled commercial
vehicles, and reached strategic cooperation among various upstream
and downstream enterprises to jointly research and develop hydrogen
fuel cell vehicles including medium-duty and heavy-duty trucks,

logistics vehicles, buses, rail transit and forklifts, for the purpose of
promoting the development in hydrogen energy industry. We have




MEN  BAREEEREEREBRY
MITEFEN - RIS BRPERR
TEEAEASS (0HABERBRE
R MBEEFRKRDERE BHERZT
fLEA#ER - HHEANNEERELEM
SETERFEUE  HMAE_F_=F
EREHTERRARYE  BHRRIEE
EXERRNER  RAEBERRBERETE
Eh -

RERK - AEEGEEABFER RS
B OREERNEMES BEWENE
o EEMRGER  RBRWFEAIR
MBIl BOMMALERENEE
b EEBENRREREL  HELS
EE2REMBECITENIA - RAE - K
SEBERLBERRE  LETHTE
BEWEE - RERMAIN - Mg e R
BOEMHEEXBEBEERR  HER

fully demonstrated application outcomes and technological forces
of the Company’s products in the field of transportation application
via activities such as domestic and overseas exhibitions and expos
to enhance the impact of the Group’s products on transportation
application. In addition, we have also extended the stationary
application scenario (distributed power generation and standby
supply), researched and developed electrolysis of water hydrogen
production equipment, and strived to work for the development
of diversified applications. Facing challenges from the domestic
and overseas macroeconomic situation and competitions within
the hydrogen energy industry, we have proactively responded to
developments and changes from the industry in 2023, tried to explore
new model of industry development, laying the foundation for the
Group’s development in the future.

Looking forward, the Group will adhere to an innovation-driven
development strategy. With our strong technological strengths,
high-quality and reliable products, and complete service systems,
we believe that we can achieve independent R&D and innovation,
domestic production of core materials and production equipment,
and high-quality and scale intelligent manufacturing, and continue

to enhance our position in the global hydrogen fuel cell industry.
Meanwhile, the Group will expand upstream resource channels
while taking advantage of the growth opportunities of downstream




HEMBEELCER £ PR IRCEM
EREEEFETROEY  URALAEER
HERWF G - RAEESRAFENRE
ERER -

£ &

FAEBRREFS  RORHAKEER
ERETH TENAERAM - RARTE
HMZRAERN 2P  HEBUR
BR—EURNBNZHFBARRHE -

BERRYITEF
RS EE
ERERNE (ZR) ROBRAA

REE ARKEFE - ZH
—E-pPE=A=-+75H

industries. We will also promote technological innovation, empower
green and sustainable development of the value chain of the hydrogen
fuel cell industry, and promote commercial application of the fuel cell
technology in transportation application and stationary application, to
further expand and deepen our business in the entire industry chain,
so as to increase the interests of the Group and its Shareholders, and
ensure sustainable and stable development of the Group.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to extend my sincere appreciation
to the Group’s management and staff for their commitment and
dedication. | would also like to express my deep gratitude to all of our
business partners, customers, suppliers and the Shareholders for their
continuous support.

Mr. Chen Xiaomin
Chairman and Executive Director
Sino-Synergy Hydrogen Energy Technology (Jiaxing) Co., Ltd.

Jiaxing, The People’s Republic of China
26 March 2024
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HZ12A31A0 For the year ended

LHFE 31 December

WA Revenue

EF Gross Profit

BRETISFLATE 18 Loss before income tax

FEFE Loss for the year

AARIRREEFANSRER  Loss per share attributable to
shareholders of the Company
for the year

BEE Total assets

BEBE Total liabilities

RARHRE ANEIEER Equity attributable to owners of the
Company

ReRReEED Cash and Cash equivalents

20224 20214 20204
2022 2021 2020
ARETT ARETT ARETR
RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
748,475 457,138 226,883
158,803 127,528 7,982
(293,679)  (694,947) (224,032)
(280,227)  (703,043) (221,359)
(0.72) (2.23) (1.04)
3,419,912 2,387,843 1,368,972
1,120,914 869,007 727,988
2,303,677 1,516,704 638,885
718,183 711,819 468,384
BEREAER (BE) RHERAT —ZT==FFHK ¢ 13
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RAREXBRRIENX  WMEDHED
HEg@2inmT

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

Business Operations Discussion and Analysis

Hydrogen energy plays a vital role in helping China achieve the
peak carbon dioxide emissions and carbon neutrality goals and
it is also regarded as one of the important sectors for developing
new quality productive forces. Hydrogen energy is increasingly
used in transportation, industrial sector, electricity, energy
storage and other fields, among which the fuel cell vehicle
industry has made great progress. 2023 was an important year
for building on past successes to further advance the cause for
development of the hydrogen energy industry. On the one hand,
China ranked first in the world in terms of the sales of hydrogen
fuel cell vehicles and maintains growth momentum. On the other
hand, the market size of hydrogen energy is still relatively small.
The hydrogen industry development is limited by the upstream’s
manufacturing, storage, transportation and hydrogenation
and the downstream’s demonstration applications. The further
development of the hydrogen fuel cell vehicle industry and the
hydrogen energy industry needs to extend from technological
breakthroughs to model breakthroughs.

Responding actively to the development and changes of the
industry, we have expanded application scenarios and explored
new models for the development of the hydrogen energy industry
throughout 2023. The details of our operations during the
Reporting Period were as follows:

14 o SINO-SYNERGY HYDROGEN ENERGY TECHNOLOGY (JIAXING) CO., LTD. Annual Report 2023
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B E R WD AT
Management Discussion and Analysis

Business development

The hydrogen energy industry in which our Company
operates was still at an early stage of commercialization,
under which the hydrogen fuel cell systems and vehicle
technologies were still undergoing development, and the
infrastructure such as hydrogen facilities and hydrogen
refueling stations were to be enhanced. There were
uncertainties in developing commercialization scenarios for
hydrogen energy which have led to some of the Company’s
customers delayed their orders. Meanwhile, the average
selling price of our hydrogen fuel cell systems was lowered
due to the rapid decline in the cost of hydrogen fuel cells in
China. To sum up, the expected growth in revenue was not
achieved in the Reporting Period. We achieved operating
revenue of approximately RMB700.6 million in 2023,
representing a year-on-year decrease of 6.4%. Our overall
gross profit margin increased by 3.9 percentage points from
21.2% in 2022 to 25.1% in 2023. Among them, the gross
profit margin of selling hydrogen fuel cell systems increased
by 1.1 percentage points from 27.1% in 2022 to 28.2%
in 2023. With the Company’s measures to achieve local
substitution of main raw materials and effective measures to
reduce costs, the Company has achieved steady growth in
the gross profit margin.

Although we did not meet the expected revenue growth,
we were actively expanding our business based on our
products’ characteristics in 2023. In addition to expanding
transportation application scenarios in our advantageous
areas, we also expanded stationary application scenarios
such as distributed power generations and back-up
power generations. Moreover, we developed equipment of
hydrogen made from the electrolysis of water and strived
to achieve diversified application development. For the
Reporting Period, the sales volume of our hydrogen fuel
cell systems was 148,640 kW, representing a year-on-year
increase of approximately 13.2%. At the same time, we were
exploring diverse application scenarios, achieving once
again breakthroughs from applications in multiple fields,
such as: (i) the world’s first hydrogen-powered smart tram,
which we jointly developed and manufactured with CRRC
Zhuzhou Institute Co., Ltd. (FERIMNE NEERTAARL
A]) with our own intellectual property, was officially unveiled
in Malaysia and has commenced trial operation in Kuching,
the capital city of the state of Sarawak in Malaysia; and
(ii) the hydrogen refueling station in Hong Kong, the first
hydrogen power generation demonstration project, which
we jointly built with a leading company in the construction
industry in Hong Kong and Sinopec (Hong Kong) Limited.

BEEERENE (ZR) RODARLE —ZTZ=FFH ¢ 15
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Research and development progress

We are committed to continuous efforts and innovation
in research and development, and to promote the
economy, reliability and durability of hydrogen fuel cells
through the improvement of technology and products.
In 2023, we finalized and applied membrane electrodes
technology integrated packaging technology and system
modular design technology. With the improvement of the
performance of the cell stacks and system products and
the research and development of the core materials of
the cell stacks and key components of the system, we
continuously reduced the production cost of fuel cells. We
optimized the production process and equipment of the
fuel cell stacks and systems, and improved the product
quality. Through the research of performance evolution and
failure mechanisms under various working conditions, we
effectively improved the durability of our products. We also
improved the reliability and durability of the high-power
fuel cell systems under severe working conditions through
the research of the optimal control method of the extreme
application environment which in turn improved its system
efficiency. We adhere to the research and development
philosophy of “a generation in production, a generation at
development, a generation in research (f£E—{ - FZE—
R~ #5E—MR)", by continuously accumulating knowledge
and technology to promote successful commercialization of
our fuel cell products. As of 31 December 2023, we have
applied for 262 patents. At the same time, we also attached
great importance to standard leadership and we took part
in 10 national standards and 18 group standards to further
promote the planned application of hydrogen fuel cells.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Building production line

We expanded our production capacity nationwide in line
with the hydrogen energy industry potential, development
planning and regional market demand in different regions.
This facilitates the virtuous cycle of scaled production and
closed operation to reduce cost and increase efficiency.
In 2023, we expanded our production capacity in phases
in key regions across China to empower the hydrogen
energy industry and seize sizable market share, so as to
further reduce the average production costs, to enhance
operational efficiency and increase the Company’s
advantages in scaled production and competition. Such
key regions include Jiaxing, Zhejiang Province; Yunfu and
Guangzhou, Guangdong Province; Chongging; Ordos,
Inner Mongolia; Puyang, Henan Province; and Lin-Gang
Special Area of Shanghai. Among these, the construction
of our factories in (i) Jiaxing, Zhejiang Province (Phase
[); (ii) Ordos, Inner Mongolia; and (iii) Lin-Gang Special
Area of Shanghai have been completed and are now in the
trial production phase. We anticipate that the production
capacity of hydrogen fuel cell systems will increase by
12,000 sets.

Scaling our team

We are keenly aware that talent is the core competitiveness
for a company focusing on technology development and
innovation. In 2023, we attracted more talent through
diversified recruiting channels, such as social recruitment,
campus recruitment, internal recommendations, headhunter
recommendations and internship programs, to meet the
needs of the Company for its rapid development. As at
31 December 2023, the number of employees amounted
to 798, of whom 30% are research and development

personnel.

Capital market

In 2023, the Company was successfully listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange, marking a significant
milestone towards international capitalization and providing
robust support for our future development in the hydrogen
energy industry.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

We primarily derived revenue from the sale of the hydrogen fuel
cell stacks to fuel cell system manufacturers and hydrogen fuel cell
systems to downstream manufacturers.

For the Reporting Period, the Group’s revenue amounted to
approximately RMB700.6 million, as compared to approximately
RMB748.5 million for the Previous Period, representing a decrease
of 6.4%. The decrease was mainly attributable to (i) the fact that
the hydrogen fuel cell industry in which the Group operates is still
at an early stage of commercialization; (ii) the uncertainties in the
development of commercialization scenarios for hydrogen energy,
which have led to some of the Group’s customers delaying their
orders, and the expected growth in revenue was not achieved in the
Reporting Period; and (iii) the decrease in the average selling prices
of hydrogen fuel cell systems.

The following table sets forth a breakdown of the revenue by product
type for the years indicated:

BZ12A31ALEE HE12A31ALFE
For the year ended For the year ended

31 December 31 December

2023 F 20224

2023 2022

AR¥BT T ARETFTT

RMB’ 000 RMB’000

B E MRS Hydrogen fuel cell systems 681,259 732,482
SRR E St R Ep i e Hydrogen fuel cell system components®ot 15,105 4,023
QB EEH Hydrogen fuel cell stacks 3,604 11,877
EHith Others 648 93
F-YON Total revenue 700,616 748,475

MiE RS MR SR B R E A I
BRANMES HE SR B R
RATBREEMAREITEBETEA

Note: The increase in revenue for hydrogen fuel cell system components for the
Reporting Period was mainly due to the increase of RMB11 million from
sales of hydrogen fuel cell system components and hydrogen production
equipment to customers.
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Sales Volume and Average Selling Price

The following table sets forth a breakdown of the sales volume and
average selling price of the hydrogen fuel cell stacks and hydrogen
fuel cell systems for the years indicated:

BZ12A31HLEE
For the year ended 31 December

20234 20224
2023 2022
HE FEEE HE FHERE
Sales Average Sales Average
volume selling price volume selling price
(8TR (BTR
(FR) AR T) (FR) AREETT)
(kW) (RMB per kW) (kW) (RMB per kW)
TREIEMEHE  Hydrogen fuel cell stacks 2,314.0 1,557.5 7,122.8 1,667.5
MBI EMES  Hydrogen fuel cell systems 148,640.0 4,583.3 131,300.0 5,578.7

BMEREELEGHELEERBTE
M ARKES,578.77L,/ TE TR EHREH
MO ARK4,583.37L, TH - REMEM
HEMEENTHEERBAHENAR
¥1,667.57L, FE/ME TR EREHB
AR¥1,557.57T,/ FR - AR () EEESEE
MBI EMITENBERIENS  QEREEN
ERTESETEH TR  Ri)AEERB
BEREMMENE L  HORMBEE
ERENBENL  TEZENREL £
SERMEARESERHELEZRRER
HENBHENERE  REMBHRES

The average selling price of our hydrogen fuel cell systems decreased
from RMB5,578.7/kW for the Previous Period to RMB4,583.3/kW for
the Reporting Period and the average selling price of our hydrogen
fuel cell stacks decreased slightly from RMB1,667.5/kW for the
Previous Period to RMB1,557.5/kW for the Reporting Period, due to
(i) the lower industry selling price of hydrogen fuel cell product with
the development and advancement of hydrogen fuel cell industry;
and (ii) through the Group’s independent research and development
of products, the localized procurement and production of core raw
materials and production machineries and the high-quality mass-
production, enabling us to reduce the selling price of hydrogen fuel
cell systems and hydrogen fuel cell stacks and improve our market
competitiveness.
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The sales volume of hydrogen fuel cell systems increased from
131,300 kW for the Previous Period to 148,640 kW for the Reporting
Period mainly due to (i) the Group’s continuous research and
development efforts that improved the reliability of our products; (ii)
the Group’s efforts to reduce costs and selling prices as mentioned
above that promoted the commercialization of our products; (iii)
the Group's actively expanding application scenarios of products,
continuous establishing strategic cooperations with customers,
to jointly develop hydrogen fuel cell vehicle applications; and (iv)
the Group’s expansion of product portfolio and applications that
strengthened our position in the market. The sales volume of our
hydrogen fuel cell stacks decreased significantly from 7,122.8 kW
for the Previous Period to 2,314.0 kW for the Reporting Period mainly
due to the Group’s commitment to promote hydrogen fuel cell system
products with a higher level of integration and the reduced amount of
hydrogen fuel cell stacks available for external sales.

Cost of Sales

The Group’s cost of sales consists primarily of raw materials,
employee benefit expenses, depreciation and amortization of the
production facilities and other fixed assets used in the production
process, and impairment loss of the non-financial assets.

The table below sets forth a breakdown of the cost of sales for the
years indicated:

BZE12A31BLEFE
For the year ended
31 December

Year-on-
year change
compared to

20234 2022 20224
2023 2022 2022
AR¥TR AREFIT (%)
RMB’ 000 RMB'000 (%)

ERRREHNHEERAE Cost of sales of goods and services
R Raw Materials 443,486 486,738 (8.9)
EEREANAX Employee benefit expenses 30,098 28,869 43
EREHMAS Depreciation and amortization expense 14,221 19,173 (25.8)
Hi Others 15,851 11,585 36.8
gt Subtotal 503,656 546,365 (7.8)
FERERE Impairment loss of inventories 21,210 43,307 (51.0)
@it Total 524,866 589,672 (11.0)
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Raw materials were the largest component of our cost of sales for
both the Previous Period and the Reporting Period. The cost of raw
materials decreased by 8.9% from approximately RMB486.7 million
for the Previous Period to approximately RMB443.5 million for the
Reporting Period mainly due to (i) the decrease in revenue from sales
of hydrogen fuel cell systems; and (ii) the decrease in raw material
procurement costs for the Reporting Period.

The impairment loss of inventories decreased significantly by 51.0%
from approximately RMB43.3 million for the Previous Period to
approximately RMB21.2 million for the Reporting Period, which is
mainly due to the increasing age of 9SSL fuel cell stacks inventories
with gradually decreasing market demand. We made corresponding
impairment provision in accordance with their net realizable values
for the Previous Period and made further provision for the Reporting
Period with a lesser amount of provision.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

Our gross profit represents our revenue less our cost of sales, and our
gross profit margin represents our gross profit divided by our revenue,
expressed as a percentage. The table below sets forth a breakdown
of our gross profit and gross profit margin by product types for the
years indicated:

BE1231ALEE
For the year ended 31 December

2023 F 20224
2023 2022
ARBTR % AREFT %
RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
o R BRNE Gross profit and gross profit
EABERE margin of sales
& il of goods and services
M TR E S Hydrogen fuel cell stacks 1,301 36.1 e 19.1
MK BLERE Hydrogen fuel cell systems 192,305 28.2 198,439 27.1
EHE SRR R A Hydrogen fuel cell systerm
components and others 3,354 21.3 1,399 34.0
2% Subtotal 196,960 28.1 202,110 27.0
B FEREEE Less: impairment loss of inventories (21,210) TEA (43,307) 7~ A
st Total 175,750 25.1 158,803 21.2
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The gross profit of the Group increased by 10.7% from approximately
RMB158.8 million for the Previous Period to approximately RMB175.8
million for the Reporting Period, and the gross profit margin of the
Group increased by 3.9 percentage points from approximately 21.2%
for the Previous Period to approximately 25.1% for the Reporting
Period, which mainly due to (i) higher gross profit of the Group’s
customized development of hydrogen fuel cell stacks during the
Reporting Period; (ii) the gross profit margin of the hydrogen fuel
cell system has increased by 1.1 percentage points as a result of
fundamentally realization of localized procurement for the Group’s
major raw materials, which effectively reduced costs of raw materials;
and (iii) the decrease in impairment loss of inventories during the
Reporting Period.

Other Income

Other income of the Group decreased by approximately RMB2.7
million or approximately 19.0% from approximately RMB14.4 million for
the Previous Period to approximately RMB11.7 million for the Reporting
Period, which was mainly due to the decrease in the government
grants and subsidies received and recognized during the Reporting
Period of approximately RMB1.8 million.

Other Gains/(Losses)-Net

Other gains/(losses)-net of the Group improved from losses of
approximately RMB19.5 million for the Previous Period to gains of
approximately RMB38.2 million for the Reporting Period, mainly due
to (i) the Group’s fulfillment of an obligation to buy back shares of an
associate, resulting in the reversal of change in fair value of derivative
financial instruments during the Reporting Period; and (ii) the Group
used its idle fund to purchase principal-protected floating income
financial products from independent third-party financial institutions.
The products have no fixed terms and can be redeemed at any time,
and are classified as financial assets at fair value, with their fair value
gains at the end of the period recognized in the profit or loss for the
period.
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Administrative Expenses

The Group’s administrative expenses primarily consist of employee
benefit expenses, share-based payments, impairment losses,
depreciation of right-of-use assets, and depreciation of property,
plant and equipment. The Group’s administrative expenses increased
from approximately RMB181.4 million for the Previous Period to
approximately RMB249.7 million for the Reporting Period, primarily
due to (i) the increase in depreciation and amortization expenses
as the construction of the Company’s production facilities was
completed in line with its forward-looking strategic planning for laying
a foundation for the achievement of mass production; (ii) the increase
in share-based payment expenses recognized under the Company’s
share incentive schemes and employee option plan; and (iii) the one-
off listing expenses incurred in the Reporting Period.

Selling Expenses

The Group’s selling expenses increased from approximately RMB49.3
million for the Previous Period to approximately RMB59.3 million for
the Reporting Period, primarily due to the expansion of sales network
and increase in marketing expenses by the Group.

Research and Development Expenses

The Group's research and development expenses increased
from approximately RMB91.8 million for the Previous Period to
approximately RMB151.1 million for the Reporting Period, mainly
due to (i) the Company’s continuous investment in research and
development to facilitate its iteration of existing products and the
technological upgrading of new products; and (ii) the increase in labor
costs as the Company has continuously introduced skilled technicians
and scaled the research and development team.

Net Impairment Losses on Financial Assets and Contract Assets

The Group’s impairment losses on financial assets and contract assets
increased from approximately RMB98.1 million for the Previous Period
to approximately RMB164.4 million for the Reporting Period, primarily
due to the increase of allowance for expected credit losses for trade
receivables.
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Finance Income/(Costs), Net

The Group’s finance costs mainly consist of interest expenses on
borrowings. For the Reporting Period, net finance income of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB2.5 million (2022: net finance costs
of approximately RMB6.8 million), mainly due to the combined effect
of the decrease in interest expenses on borrowings and increase in
interest income from bank deposits.

Income Tax Credit

The Group’s income tax credit primarily represents the Group’s
total current income tax and deferred income tax charges under the
relevant income tax rules and regulations in the jurisdictions where
we operate during the Reporting Period. For the Reporting Period,
the Group recorded an income tax credit of approximately RMB28.8
million (2022: approximately RMB13.5 million).

Loss Attributable to Owners of the Company

As a result of the foregoing, loss attributable to owners of the
Company amounted to approximately RMB404.4 million for the
Reporting Period, as compared to approximately RMB273.4 million for
the Previous Period.

Liquidity, Financial and Capital Resources

The Group’s primary sources of liquidity consist of cash generated
from operating activities, bank borrowings, and proceeds from the
listing of H Shares on the Stock Exchange on 5 December 2023.
The Group's cash and cash equivalents primarily consist of bank
balances. The Group’s future cash requirements will depend on many
factors, including the Group’s operating income, capital expenditures
on property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets, market
acceptance of the Group’s products or other changing business
conditions, and future developments, including any investments or
acquisitions we may decide to pursue. We may require additional cash
due to changing business conditions or other future developments. If
the Group’s existing cash is insufficient to meet its requirements, the
Group may seek to issue equity and/or debt securities or borrow from
lending institutions.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

As of 31 December 2023, the Group had cash and cash equivalents
including restricted cash of approximately RMB808.0 million,
representing an increase of 12.5% compared to approximately
RMB718.2 million for the Previous Period. As of 31 December 2023,
the Group had net current assets of approximately RMB2,210.1
million, as compared to approximately RMB1,388.6 million as of 31
December 2022. The current ratio of the Group increased slightly to
approximately 2.7 as of 31 December 2023 from approximately 2.4 as
of 31 December 2022.

Borrowings and Charges on Group Assets

As of 31 December 2023, the Group’s outstanding current and non-
current borrowings amounted to approximately RMB304.1 million,
of which interest payable was approximately RMBO0.4 million. The
maturity groupings of the borrowings are as follows:

iis e
Year-on-
BZ12B31BLEE
For the year ended 31 December

year change
compared to

2023F 20224 20224
2023 2022 2022
AR¥TT ARBFT (%)
RMB’ 000 RMB’000 (%)

& =K A PR Borrowing terms
—FELA Within one year 265,631 197,400 34.6
—EWF Between one and two years 4,000 50,800 (92.1)
MERF Between two and five years 34,500 32,100 7.5
BEt Total 304,131 280,300 8.5
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As of 31 December 2023, the Group’s bank loans were approximately
RMB304.1 million. As at 31 December 2023, the Group has
guaranteed borrowings including (i) short-term bank borrowing of
approximately RMB107.1 million guaranteed by deposit; and (ii) long-
term bank borrowings of approximately RMB32.0 million secured
by the Group’s land use rights with net book value of approximately
RMB53.1 million. The proportion of the Group’s long-term borrowings
in the total borrowings is approximately 12.7% as of 31 December
2023, ensuring the healthy and stable cash flow of the Group in the
future. The Directors believed that the Group’s debt level and financial
structure had laid a solid foundation for the Group to withstand market
volatility and diminish financial risks. The weighted average effective
interest rates for the Group’s bank borrowings as of 31 December
2023 was 4.39%. All bank borrowings or loans were all denominated
in RMB.

Gearing Ratio

The gearing ratio is calculated by dividing total borrowings by total
equity as of the Reporting Period. From the Previous Period to the
Reporting Period, gearing ratio remained relatively stable at 0.1.

Capital Commitments

The Group’s capital expenditure during the Reporting Period
represented the acquisition of property, plant, and equipment. For
the Reporting Period, the Group had contracted but not provided for
capital commitments for acquisition of property, plant and equipment
were approximately RMB109.6 million (2022: approximately RMB252.2
million).

Capital Expenditures

The Group’s capital expenditures primarily relate to payments of
property, plant and equipment and land lease. For the Reporting
Period, the Group’s capital expenditures were approximately
RMB150.5 million (2022: approximately RMB362.8 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Foreign Exchange and Exchange Rate Risk

The Group primarily operates in the PRC and is exposed to foreign
currency risk arising from fluctuations in exchange rates between RMB
and other currencies relating to the Group’s business. The Group is
subject to foreign currency risk attributable to the bank balances that
are denominated in currencies other than RMB. The Group seeks
to limit the exposure to foreign currency risk by minimizing its net
foreign currency position. The Group did not enter into any hedging
transactions in respect of foreign currency risk as of 31 December
2023. The Directors expect that the fluctuation of the RMB exchange
rate will not have a material adverse effect on the operation of the
Group.

FUTURE DEVELOPMENT AND OUTLOOK OF
THE COMPANY

The Company has experienced development stages, including
industrialization, automation and commercialization since its
establishment. Through years of continuous technological innovation
and product iteration, the Company has effectively accelerated
the commercialization of hydrogen fuel cells in China. In the next
milestone, we will focus on the development in technology and
product upgrading and iteration, talent cultivation and system
construction, business model innovation, and large-scale operation
and other aspects:

1. Further investment in research and development of core
products for product upgrading and iteration

We intend to continue the development of high-efficiency
and high-power hydrogen fuel cell stacks, hydrogen fuel cell
systems, as well as hydrogen production equipment. We plan
to accelerate product iterations with technological innovation in
order to further reduce production costs and improve production
efficiency, and to ensure that the performances of our products
are at a leading level. In the future, we will put our research and
development efforts into our products on the following directions:
graphite bipolar plates, hydrogen fuel cell stacks, hydrogen
fuel cell systems and hydrogen production equipment. Through
continuous research and development investment in the above
aspects, we aim to provide customers with diversified products
with higher stability, better consistency, lower cost and wider
applications to further strengthen our leading position in the
hydrogen fuel cell industry.
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Continually introducing and cultivating professionals to
promote system construction and management and operation
efficiency

We intend to continually introduce and cultivate professionals, as
well as consolidate collaboration with colleges and universities
in China, so as to improve talent cultivation and team building
and further enhance the leading position of the Company in
the industry. Meanwhile, we will further strengthen system
construction to improve management and operation efficiency
as a whole. Our overall corporate governance, management and
operation shall be improved in each aspect through recruiting
and training talent and improving system construction, which will
effectively consolidate and enhance our competitiveness in the
industry.

Realization of business model innovation in hydrogen energy
industry to accelerate the commercialization of hydrogen
energy industry

We will further expand our product applications to diversified
markets by seizing the current and future hydrogen industry
market opportunities. By capitalizing the synergism with upper,
middle and lower streams of hydrogen energy, we will continue
to innovate business models in the hydrogen energy industry,
expand the applications of hydrogen fuel cell products based
on various scenarios, build comprehensive product matrix and
expand application of hydrogen energy in different industrial
usages, so as to consolidate our leading position in the industry.

Expand production capacity in accordance with local policies
and opportunities

We plan to expand our production capacity nationwide in line
with the hydrogen energy industry development policies, plans
and market demand in different regions. This facilitates the
virtuous cycle of scaled production and localized operation
to reduce cost and increase efficiency, and provides strong
support to the local governments’ initiatives to build a clean,
low carbon-emission, safe and efficient energy system. We plan
to expand production capacity in key regions to empower the
local hydrogen energy industry and seize sizeable market share,
to further reduce the average production costs by localizing
production activities and enhance operational efficiency, to
increase our advantages in scaled production and competition.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS AND FUTURE
PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR
CAPITAL ASSETS

The Group did not hold any significant investment and events which
could have material impact on our operating and financial performance
for the Reporting Period. Save as disclosed in the prospectus of the
Company’s initial public offering dated 27 November 2023, as of 31
December 2023, the Company had no specific plans for significant
investments or acquisitions of capital assets.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not have any material
acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries, associates, or assets.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As of 31 December 2023, the Group had a total of 798 full-time
employees and all of them were based in China. We primarily recruit
our personnel through recruitment agencies, on-campus job fairs,
referrals, and online channels including our corporate website and
social networking platforms.

We place a strong emphasis on training our employees to develop
their skills. Pursuant to our employee training policy, we provide our
employees with opportunities to participate in training sessions and
seminars on safety production, fire safety and emergency care, as
well as team-building activities to cultivate our corporate culture.

In terms of remuneration, our employees’ remuneration varies
according to the functions: (i) our sales personnel’s remuneration
includes base salary and bonuses based on their total sales amount;
(i) our administration personnel’s remuneration includes basic salary,
subsidies and performance-based bonuses; and (iii) our production
personnel’s remuneration includes base salary and bonuses.

Employee benefit expenses consist of (i) salaries, wages and bonuses;
(ii) pension cost — defined contribution plans; (iii) housing fund,
medical insurance and other social insurance; and (iv) share-based
payments expense. Employee benefits expenses were approximately
RMB235.3 million during the Reporting Period (2022: approximately
RMB177.9 million).
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SUBSEQUENT EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

Proposed Implementation of H Share Full Circulation

On 26 February 2024, the Company has submitted an application to
the CSRC in respect of the conversion of certain domestic shares
of the Company held by certain Shareholders into H Shares. As
of the date of this annual report, the details of the Company’s
implementation plan of the Conversion and Listing have not been
finalized and the completion of the Conversion and Listing is subject
to the performance of other relevant procedures required by the
CSRC, the Stock Exchange and other relevant onshore and offshore
regulatory authorities. The Company has received a filing notice dated
18 April 2024 (the “Filing Notice”) issued by the CSRC regarding the
Company’s proposed implementation of the H share full circulation.
According to the Filing Notice, the Company has completed the
filing with the CSRC in respect of the conversion of no more than
273,074,088 Domestic Shares (representing approximately 52.7% of
the total issued share capital of the Company) into H shares which
may be listed and traded on the Stock Exchange. Please refer to the
announcements of the Company dated 26 February 2024 and 19 April
2024 for more details.

Save for the above, there were no events occurred that has
significantly affected the Group up to the date of this annual report.

DIVIDEND

No dividends were declared for the Reporting Period, nor have any
dividend been proposed subsequent to 31 December 2023.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As of 31 December 2023, there was a legal claim (note 37(b) to
the audited financial statements of the Group for the Year (the
“Consolidated Financial Statements”)) relating to the legal
proceeding lodged by Hangzhou Ousen Technology Co. Ltd.
(“Hangzhou Ousen”) against us for the sum of approximately
RMBO0.56 million being the compensation, of which provision has
been made in the Consolidated Financial Statements, in relation to a
judgment by PRC courts in November 2022 arising out of a production
equipment procurement contract we entered into with Hangzhou
Ousen in 2017 as disclosed in the Prospectus, The legal proceeding
of the abovementioned disputed sum is pending the outcome of the
court judgment after the first hearing in July 2023. Save as disclosed
above, the Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities.
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Set forth below is the profiles of the Directors, Supervisors and senior
management of the Company as at 31 December 2023.

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Chen Xiaomin (FRE:®), aged 47, graduated from Foshan
University (#BILBIZ2RATEPT) with a bachelor’s degree in trade and
economics in June 2000. Mr. Chen was appointed as the chairman of
the Board and the legal representative of the Company in December
2021. Mr. Chen has been appointed as a Director since June 2015
and was subsequently redesignated as an executive Director in
October 2022. Mr. Chen is responsible for presiding over our overall
strategic planning and production and operation management.

Mr. Chen has more than 15 years of experience in corporate
management. From July 2000 to March 2007, Mr. Chen worked as an
officer in Foshan Local Taxation Bureau. From March 2007 to August
2008, he served successively as deputy manager and Party Branch
Committee member of Foshan Chanyun Chengba Co., Ltd. (LTl
BB E AR A A]) (‘Foshan Chanyun”). From September 2008 to
June 2009, he served successively as manager of Foshan Chanyun,
deputy secretary of Party Committee and manager of bus branch of
Foshan Automobile Transportation. From July 2009 to August 2010,
he served as the manager of Foshan Xinli Public Transport Co., Ltd.
(BLTF AR ERBARAR]). From September 2010 to August 2011,
he served as deputy manager of Foshan Automobile Transportation
and member of the Party Committee. From September 2011 to August
2017, he served as executive deputy general manager of Foshan
Automobile Transportation and Party Committee member. From May
2015 to present, Mr Chen has been serving as the chairman of the
board of directors of Hongyun Hydrogen Energy and is currently the
sole director of Hongyun Hydrogen Energy. From January 2018 to
present, Mr. Chen has been serving as the chairman of the board of
directors of Hongyun High-Tech. From December 2020 to present,
Mr. Chen has been serving as the legal representative and chairman
of the board of directors of Foshan Automobile Transportation. From
December 2021 to present, Mr. Chen has been serving as the general
partner of Huahui Technology. From January 2021 to present, Mr.
Chen has been serving as the legal representative and chairman of
the board of directors of Foshan Chanyun.
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Mr. Yang Zeyun (%5£%), aged 35, graduated from Renmin University
of China (fB AR KXZ) with a master’s degree in economics in June

2012. Mr. Yang has served as the secretary to the Board, general
manager, Director and executive Director since May 2020, mainly
responsible for presiding over our daily operations and affairs related
to capital market including investment and financing.

Mr. Yang has over eight years of experience in the investment
management industry. Prior to joining our Company, Mr. Yang worked
in the investment banking department of Southwest Securities (74 &
£ AR AR]), a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange
(stock code: 600369) from July 2012 to September 2016. Mr.Yang
worked in China Everwin Asset Management Co., Ltd. (EEAREE
EEARSTAT) from November 2016 to June 2017, and he worked
as a senior investment manager of the equity investment department
of Union Asset Management Corporation (AREEEERMD AR A
A]) from June 2017 to September 2018, and he also worked as the
head of investment department in Qingdao Accurate Power Asset
Management Co., Ltd. (BE&RBEAAEAEEERERAF) from August
2018 to May 2019. From June 2019 to March 2020, he worked as
the investment director in Beijing Qingkong Daokou Investment
Management Co., Ltd. (Jt REZREOREABTEERAR).
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Profiles of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

Mr. Ye Jiajie (¥32¢), aged 43, graduated from Zhongnan University
of Economics and Law (@B & BUEKRE) with a bachelor’'s degree in
business administration in June 2003, and has served as the Director
and executive Director since March 2020. Mr. Ye is responsible for our
administrative affairs.

Mr. Ye has over 18 years of experience in corporate management.
Mr. Ye successively served as a clerk of the human resources
and administration department and the office of Foshan Automatic
Transportation Group Co., Ltd. (B ILTT/SEE&EEEAR A R]) from July
2003 to March 2005. He successively served as the deputy director of
the office and the director of the office of the Foshan Traffic Technical
School (I EE R @I TE) from March 2005 to December 2011.
He served as the assistant to the general manager and the director
of the office of Foshan Sanshui Guohong Public Transport Co., Ltd.
(BT =K@ BEE AR T BARAF) from December 2011 to August
2013. He served as the deputy chief officer of Foshan Automobile
Transportation and the director of the office of Foshan Shunde
Hongyun Public Transportation Co., Ltd. (fLL77IB%E B E A L@
BBR2A7A]) from August 2013 to April 2014. He served as the deputy
manager of the asset management and investment development
department of Foshan Automatic Transportation Group Co., Ltd. ({#
I REEHEEAR AR from April 2014 to June 2017. Mr. Ye is
currently a manager of the personnel and political work department,
manager of the asset management and investment development
department and member of the discipline inspection committee of
Foshan Automatic Transportation Group Co., Ltd. (fILTh /A8 E#HE%E
E B[R A7) since June 2017, a manager of Hongyun High-Tech since
January 2018, a manager of Foshan Jinhong New Energy Co., Ltd.
(BT 8RB ee R AR A F)) since April 2018, a manager of Foshan
Nanhai Hongyun Business Development Co., Ltd. (LT E/ER
TEIBREEEABRAR]) since June 2021 and a manager of Foshan
Chancheng Chengbei Automobile Hydrogenation Station Co., Ltd. (f#
LT [ AL R E | I B PR A R]) since July 2021.
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Non-executive Directors

Mr. Zhan Zhanlin (ZEM), aged 46, has served as the Director
and non-executive Director since August 2020. Mr. Zhan is mainly
responsible for participating in formulating business plans and
strategies of our Company.

Mr. Zhan has over 16 years of experience in management and
operation. Prior to joining our Company, Mr. Zhan has held various
positions in Yunfu Street Lamp Management Company (Z% M BEE
IR 7]) from September 2006 to August 2014, with his last position
as the deputy manager. From August 2014, he served as the deputy
director of the Yunfu Harbour Bureau (Z/2M&#%/@), during which
he concurrently served as the branch secretary of the Yunfu Harbour
Bureau Committee from June 2015 and a director of Yunfu Hongda
Port Construction Investment Co. Ltd. (E¥FHMRESOERREGR
~AA]) from May 2015. Mr. Zhan has been serving as the principal
head of Yunfu Energy and Transportation Development Company (£
TE TR B EHE AR since July 2016 and the chairman of the
board of directors of Yunfu Yunsheng Investment and Development
Co., Lid. (EFMEFKEEFREMRAA]) since May 2017 and the vice
president of Yunfu Industrial Park since September 2017 and deputy
general manager of Yunfu Industrial Park since October 2017. He
is also currently serving as the secretary of the Party Committee
and chairman of the board of directors of Yunfu Yunda Investment
Holdings Co., Ltd. (¥ MiEEREFRARAF]) and the chairman of
the board of directors of Yunfu Anda Investment Holdings Co., Ltd. (£
FTZIER B AR A R]) since March 2020, and the chairman of the
board of directors of Yunfu Power Plant (B) Co., Ltd. (E;¥ % B (B &)
ABRAF]) since June 2020.
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Mr. Huang Jiao (&%), aged 38, graduated from South-Central Minzu
University (FEREAEZ) with a bachelor’'s degree in international
economics and trade in June 2008, and has served as the Director
and non-executive Director since June 2008, primarily responsible for
participating in decision-making in respect of significant matters such
as business plans and strategies of our Company.

Mr. Huang has several years of experience in project management
and operation of listed energy companies. Mr. Huang worked
as a commissioner in Chant Heat Energy Science & Technology
(Zhongshan) Co., Ltd. (BIERASREERHEE (FRIL)BERAF) from July 2008
to June 2011. From February 2011 to February 2014, Mr. Huang
worked in Sinovel Wind Group Co., Ltd. (FE#RERE(EE)EHDER
AA]). In April 2015, he worked in Guangdong Hanergy Investment
Development Co., Ltd. (BRZEEEHEFEREHREFRAA]), and
served as the executive vice president of Guangxi branch company.
He served as a member of the Public Relation Policy Committee of
Hanergy Thin Film Power Asia Pacific Limited (ZiEEEEE D RER A
A]) (formerly known as Hanergy Global Solar Asia Pacific Limited (/&
RERER N IKEF M) since August 2014. From July 2015 to July 2018,
he served as the business development manager of SunEdison New
Energy Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. CEEFEEREIE(LE)ER A
Al). Mr. Huang is currently working in Qingdao Industrial Investment
(Group) Co., Lid. (BEEWIREERE(SE)BRAF]) since September
2020.
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Dr. Wan Yu (&%), aged 34, graduated from Tsinghua University
(/BEKE) with a doctoral degree in mechanics in June 2017, was
appointed as a non-executive Director in October 2022, primarily
responsible for participating in decision-making in respect of
significant matters such as business plans and strategies of our
Company.

Dr. Wan has over 5 years of experience in investment management.
Prior to joining our Company, Dr. Wan worked in Xi’an CAS Star
Science And Technology Incubator Co., Ltd. (FZF &IEI 2 BHE RS
BBRAR]) from July 2017 to May 2021, with his last position serving as
a senior investment manager. Dr. Wan worked in Xi’an Shanmei Fund
Management Co., Ltd. (AL EZEXEESEREHFRAAE]) (“Xi'an Shanmei”)
since June 2021 and is currently serving as a deputy manager of the
investment business department in Xi'an Shanmei presiding over the
work of the company.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Liu Xin (2/37), aged 53, graduated from Peking University (Jt 5
A2 with a master’'s degree in law in June 2005, has been appointed
as an independent non-executive Director from March 2023 with effect
from the Listing Date. He is responsible for providing independent
advice and judgment to the Board.

Mr. Liu has over 29 years of legal experience. From July 1993 to
April 2006, Mr. Liu held various positions at the Supreme People’s
Procuratorate of the PRC (FEARAMBEZE ARKRER), including
clerk, assistant procurator and procurator. Since May 2006, Mr. Liu
has been a PRC practicing lawyer at Beijing Zhanda Law Firm (3t /&
ERBDEFT). Currently, he is a senior partner and the director of the
Administrative Committee.
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Dr. Xing Wei (/%%), aged 60, graduated from CIACCAS with a
doctoral degree in physical chemistry in July 1995, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director since October 2022, with his
appointment taking effect from the date of Listing. He is responsible
for providing independent opinion and judgment to the Board.

Dr. Xing has more than 34 years of experience in the research of
applied chemistry. From July 1988 to June 1995, Dr. Xing worked as
an intern research fellow in the CIACCAS. From July 1995 to March
1999, he worked as an assistant research fellow in CIACCAS. From
April 1999 to December 2000, he worked as an associate research
fellow in CIACCAS. From January 2001 to present, he has worked as
a research fellow in CIACCAS. Dr. Xing is also currently working in the
School of Applied Chemistry and Engineering of University of Science
and Technology of China (BRI EKMASZEA(LEETIZER) and
he has been serving as a professor from September 2017 to present.

Ms. Wong Yan Ki, Angel (£fR#), aged 52, has been appointed as
an independent non-executive Director since October 2022, with her
appointment taking effect from the date of Listing. She is responsible
for providing independent opinion and judgment to the Board.

Ms. Wong has more than 25 years of experience in accounting,
auditing, corporate finance and capital market. Ms. Wong joined
Kwan Wong Tan & Fong in October 1995, which later merged with
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu in August 1997, and resigned from Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu in November 1999. She later served a number of
roles at Great East Packaging Holdings Limited (EREBHERNEEAE
[RA7]) from October 1999 to March 2003, including group financial
controller and assistant finance manager. Between April 2003 and
December 2007, she held various positions at Benefit Capital Limited
(AEEREARAR) including vice president and executive director.
From April 2005 to November 2005, she also acted as chief financial
officer of Shengda (Group) Holdings Ltd (BsEBIFRIERARAA).
Since November 2007, Ms. Wong has been an executive director
of Advanced Capital Limited ([EEfEXRABRAF]), where she was
responsible for operation management and major decisions.
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Ms. Wong has served as a director of various public companies listed
in different regions. From August 2009 to January 2011, she acted as
a non-executive director of Esmart Holdings Limited (currently known
as Duty Free International Limited), a company listed on The Stock
Exchange of Singapore Dealing and Automated Quotation System
(stock code: DutyFree), during which she acted as the chairman of
the board from February 2010 to January 2011. Ms. Wong served
as an independent non-executive director of (i) China Best Group
Holding Limited (BIZELEZERABMRAF]), a company listed on the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 0370), from June 2011 to September
2014; (ii) Oriental Unicorn Agricultural Group Limited (Ri#2%E%E
BBRAR]) (currently known as China Demeter Financial Investments
Limited (FI2& @R EAFR2AA])), a company listed on the GEM of
the Stock Exchange (stock code: 8120), from October 2011 to May
2013; (iii) China Public Procurement Limited (FFEIAHKKBER A
Al) (currently known as Cherish Sunshine International Limited (7
EEEBRAR])), a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 1094), from December 2015 to July 2018; (iv) Miko International
Holdings Limited (CKIEBIFRIZRABMRAR]), a company listed on the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 1247), July 2017 to July 2018; (v)
Yuhua Energy Holdings Limited (#RIEBLRIZRABRAR]) (currently
known as Jintai Energy Holdings Limited (£ZaEFRIZRAER A AD)),
a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 2728), from
November 2016 to December 2018 and (vi) Hengxing Gold Holding
Company Limited (B ESIERABERAR]), a company listed on the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 2303), and delisted in February 2021,
from March 2013 to February 2021, respectively. From August 2014
to September 2015, she served as an independent non-executive
director of China Shengda Packaging Group Inc. (FEIBsEREZEEE
BBRAR]), a company listed on the Nasdag Stock Exchange (stock
code: CPGI). Ms. Wong has been an independent director of BIT
Mining Limited (formerly known as 500.com Limited), a company listed
on the New York Stock Exchange (stock code: BTCM) from November
2015 to April 2023. Ms. Wong has been an independent non-executive
director of Betta Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd. (BZEZEERMHAER AT,
a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code:
300558), since January 2021, Many Idea Cloud Holdings Limited (%
HMEZERABR AR, a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 6696), since, October 2022, and Henan Jinyuan Hydrogenated
Chemicals Co., Ltd. (A &RE/Lt TIRHBRAF]), a company listed
on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 2502), since October 2023.
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Ms. Wong obtained a bachelor of economics in international
accounting, from Xiamen University (EFIAZ) in July 1994, a
post-graduate certificate in professional accounting from the City
University of Hong Kong in November 2000 and an executive master
degree of business administration from Cheung Kong Graduate
School of Business (K;TREZT) in the PRC in October 2009. Ms.
Wong obtained the certificate of follow-up training courses for
independent directors of listed companies from the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange in the PRC in May 2022. Ms. Wong has been admitted
as a member or fellow member of several associations. Ms. Wong
has been successively admitted as fellow member of the Institute of
Financial Accountants in the United Kingdom since October 2003,
fellow member of the Society of Registered Financial Planners in Hong
Kong since November 2003, member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Directors since November 2014, fellow member of the Institute of
Public Accountants (FIPA)CRM AR EHEHEEREE) since April
2015, founding member of the Hong Kong Independent Non-executive
Director Association (BBBEZIENITESHE) since January 2016,
fellow member of CPA Australia (RMNE:HEIAE) since May 2017,
member of the Guangdong Association of Management Accountants
since December 2017, and member of the Association of Chinese
Internal Auditors in Hong Kong (&8 AREERTEIAE) since April
2022, respectively.

SUPERVISORS

Ms. Lin Minting (#8/2), aged 38, obtained her bachelor's degree
in administrative management from Shenzhen University (FYIAER)
in June 2010, has been the chairlady of the Supervisory Committee
since August 2020, primarily responsible for the overall operation of
the Supervisory Committee and the supervision of our Board, senior
management and the business operations of our Company.

From January 2014 to January 2019, she worked in Bank of China,
Yunfu Branch. Ms. Lin is currently serving as the head of the finance
department of Yunfu Industrial Park, mainly responsible for financial
accounting since October 2019.
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Mr. Hu Muzhou (#/A/E), aged 42, graduated from Guangzhou
University (M KXZ) with a bachelor's degree in administrative
management in June 2006. He has served as the manager of the
general administration department and the employee representative
Supervisor since February 2019, primarily responsible for the
administration and logistics of our Company, the supervision of
our Board, senior management and the business operations of our
Company.

Mr. Hu worked as a clerk in the logistics branch of Foshan Automobile
Transportation from July 2006 to October 2010, the deputy director of
the office of Foshan Shunde Hongyun Public Transportation Co., Ltd.
(FILTIEEEBEARZBARAF]) from October 2010 to June 2015,
the manager of the general administration department of our Company
from July 2015 to December 2016, and the director of the office of
Foshan Feichi Automobile Technology Co., Ltd. (il REE SER A
R~ 7]) from January 2017 to January 2019.

Mr. Liao Han (%), aged 33, graduated from the University of
Kentucky of United States with a bachelor’s degree in business
administration in December 2013, has served as a Supervisor since
March 2022, mainly responsible for the supervision of our Board,
senior management and the business operations of our Company, as
well as overall operation of the Supervisory Committee.

From 2014 to 2021, Mr. Liao successively served as the assistant to
the chairman of Qujing Mingzhu Group Investment Development Co.,
Ltd. (HHIERAREEIRER AR A7) and deputy general manager of
Qujing Huating Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. (F#hiEZEREfE i E
2 BMR/AF]). Since September 2021, he serves as the investment
manager of Shanghai Greenway Equity Investment Fund Management

Co., Ltd. (L/BSIRIREIRERSEIRFRAA).

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Yang Zeyun (%/2ZE), is the general manager of our Company
since June 2022. For the biography of Mr. Yang Zeyun, see “—
Executive Directors” above.
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Mr. Zhang Zhejun (58 %), aged 50, obtained his master’s degree in
business administration from Sun Yat-sen University (FF1LAE}) in June
2005. He has served as the deputy general manager and the director
of the marketing centre from December 2016 to present and is
primarily responsible for market development, business management,

after-sales customer service management of our Company.

Mr. Zhang has many years of experience in business management.
Mr. Zhang was appointed as a technical expert level Il of Guangdong
Power Grid Corporation (EREM A7) (“Guangdong Power”) in
January 2013, a deputy supervisor of the branch of information
application division of information department of Foshan Power Supply
Bureau of Guangdong Power from November 2009 to January 2011,
and served as supervisor of the branch of information application
division of information department of Foshan Power Supply Bureau
of Guangdong Power since January 2011. He served as a director of
information management department of Kingfa Sci. & Tech. Co., Ltd.
(£ BRHEERMD AR AR from 2013 to 2016.

Dr. Liu Zhixiang (2|75%), aged 47, obtained a doctoral degree in
chemical engineering and technology in July 2006 from the Institute
of Nuclear and New Energy Technology of Tsinghua University (&
A BIZALEF AR MTAIEPT), has served as the deputy general
manager, the director of the hydrogen fuel cell system research
and development center of our Company since May 2016. Dr. Liu is
primarily responsible for R&D of hydrogen fuel cell systems.

Dr. Liu has accumulated over 20 years of academic knowledge and
working experience in hydrogen fuel cell projects to date. He worked
as an assistant researcher of Institute of Nuclear and New Energy
Technology of Tsinghua University (7&K i 86 8257 8RB AT A 78
Ft) since 2006 and deputy researcher in chemical engineering at
Tsinghua University (;B#EKZ) since December 2011. From March
2012 to December 2014, he worked in Southwest Jiaotong University
(FIRI 23 A 2) qualifying as level 4 professional and technical position
in School of Electrical Engineering and served as a researcher since
August 2013. From April 2016 to December 2020, he worked as a
professor at School of materials science and energy engineering of
Foshan University (ff L% S5 a 2RI 28R T2 2T). Dr. Liu
has served as an external tutor for master of engineering of Beijing
Institute of Technology (1t T A2) since June 2018, an executive
director of Yunfu Branch Center of Advanced Energy Science and
Technology Guangdong Laboratory (Jti#gEREIZEHEMERE TR
EEFZ5H L) since December 2019, and a part-time master tutor of
Chongging University (& AX2) since December 2020.
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Dr. Yan Xiqgiang (#75%), aged 49, obtained a doctoral degree in
chemical engineering from Dalian Institute of Chemical Physics (Ki&
{EE2YIBHFEFT) in January 2012, has served as our deputy general
manager and director of hydrogen fuel cell stack research and
development center since May 2016 and is primarily responsible
for directing and supervising the development of our Company's
hydrogen fuel stack.

Dr. Yan has over 20 years of experience in technology research and
development. Dr. Yan served as an assistant researcher of the Dalian
Institute of Chemical Physics, Chinese Academy of Sciences from
June 2003 and a senior engineer of Sunrise Power Co., Ltd. (FTIRE) /7
f& 5 BB F]) from December 2006 to April 2016.

Mr. Wang Jun (£ %), aged 54, obtained an executive master’s degree
in professional accountancy in November 2019 from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong, has served as the deputy general manager
and the financial director of our Company since February 2017, and is
primarily responsible for formulating and supervising our Company’s
financial budget and forecast, participating in decision-making and
analysis of major events, providing financial analysis and decision
making basis for the production, operation, business development,
external investment of our Company. Mr. Wang was appointed as one
of the joint company secretaries of our Company (‘Joint Company
Secretaries”) in October 2022 with his appointment taking effect from
13 November 2023.

Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Wang has approximately ten years
of extensive experience in project management and financial
management. Mr. Wang served in Sinopacific Shipbuilding Group
Co., Ltd. (I#AFFEMEBRMERAF) from December 2012 to
August 2014, and served as finance vice general manager of China
Sunergy (Nanjing) Co., Ltd. (FEER(FER)HIRERAF]) and CSUN
Eurasia Energy Systems Industry and Trade Inc. from November 2015
to January 2017.
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Ms. Li Jing (&), aged 32, graduated from the Hong Kong University
of Science and Technology with a master's degree in economics
in November 2015, has been serving as the deputy general
manager and the secretary to our Board since August 2022, and
is primarily responsible for managing the daily affairs of our Board,
and responsible for our Company’s standard operation, information
disclosure, investor relations management, etc.

Ms. Li has approximately seven years of experience in capital
markets. Prior to joining our Company, Ms. Li worked as an investment
manager of Shenzhen Qianhai Echo Fund Management Co., Ltd.
CRYIAEEAIESLERARAF) from October 2015 to November
2016. From February 2017 to November 2020, she worked as a vice
president of the merger and acquisition department of the investment
banking commission of Zhongtai Securities Co., Ltd. (R ZEFEHFRMNE
R 2 7]). From November 2020 to August 2022, she worked for Huatai
United Securities Co., Ltd. (EREEFHFBRBEEAF) with the last
title as a vice president of international business function.

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. Wang Jun (E£#£) is one of the Joint Company Secretaries
appointed in October 2022 with his appointment taking effect from 13
November 2023. For biographical details of Mr. Wang Jun, please see
the section “—Senior management” above.

Ms. Leung Ho Yee (2f]14) is one of the Joint Company Secretaries
and was appointed in October 2022 with her appointment taking
effect from 13 November 2023. Ms. Leung is a senior manager of the
Corporate Secretarial Department of Boardroom Corporate Services
(HK) Limited and a fellow of The Hong Kong Chartered Governance
Institute. She has over 10 years’ experience in the fields of corporate

secretarial, financial management and corporate finance.
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The Board is pleased to present the annual report together with the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Company was established as a limited liability company under the
laws of the PRC on 30 June 2015 and was converted into a joint-stock
company with limited liability on 22 March 2022. The Company was
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on 5 December 2023.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The Company is a leading technology-based hydrogen fuel cell
company in the PRC focusing on research, development, production
and sales of hydrogen fuel cell stacks and hydrogen fuel cell systems.

A fair review of the Group’s business during the Year, including an
analysis of which using financial key performance indicators and the
outlook of the Group’s business are provided in the sections headed
“Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion and Analysis”
of this annual report, which forms part of this “Report of the Board of
Directors”.

SUBSIDIARIES

The activities and particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries
are shown under note 14 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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RESULTS AND FINAL DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the Year and the state of affairs of the
Group as at 31 December 2023 are set out in the Consolidated
Financial Statements on pages 186 to 328.

The Board has resolved not to recommend the distribution of a final
dividend for the Year.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board may declare dividends in the future after taking into
account various factors including our results of operations, financial
condition, cash requirements and availability, legal requirements and
other factors as it may deem relevant at such time.

PRC laws require that dividends be paid only out of the profit for the
year determined according to PRC accounting principles. PRC laws
also require foreign invested enterprises to set aside at least 10% of
its after-tax profits, if any, to fund its statutory reserves, which are not
available for distribution as cash dividends. As advised by our PRC
Legal Advisers, according to the PRC Company Law, each of the
PRC subsidiaries of the Company can pay dividend from the after-tax
profit once (i) it sets aside as statutory reserves at least 10% of its
after-tax profit until the cumulative amount of its reserves reaches 50%
of its registered capital, and (ii) any losses of the PRC subsidiaries
from prior fiscal years have been offset. Based on the above, and
considering that we incurred accumulated losses as of 31 December
2023, we are not able to pay any dividend before we have made up
for such accumulated losses.
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Our future declarations of dividends may or may not reflect our
historical declarations of dividends and will be at the absolute
discretion of the Board. There is no assurance that dividends of
any amount will be declared or be distributed in any year. Although
currently we do not have a formal dividend policy or a fixed dividend
distribution ratio, the Board may declare dividends in the future after
taking into account various factors including our future earnings and
cash inflows, future plan for use of funds, long-term development of
our business and other legal and regulatory restrictions. Dividend
declaration and payment shall be proposed by the Board in
accordance with the Articles of Association and relevant PRC law and
regulations.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Our business operations are subject to the following key risks and
uncertainties:

(i)  Changes to or eliminations of the PRC government policies and
regulatory framework supporting the hydrogen energy industry
and the hydrogen fuel cell vehicle industry could have a material
impact on our industry and our business operation.

(i) The demand for our products depends on the trend and
development of the hydrogen fuel cell vehicle industry in China
and the availability of other types of new energy products. There
are uncertainties in future market demand and we cannot assure
that we will continue to obtain sufficient purchase orders in the
future.

(iii) We are in a new industry where emerging technologies used
in hydrogen fuel cell systems may not be mature. Any major
product defects, malfunctions or negative news concerning the
hydrogen fuel cell vehicle industry may damage our reputation
and adversely affect our business, financial condition and results
of operations.

(iv) The industry we operate in is characterized by rapid
technological changes and advancements. We may not be able
to maintain our revenue growth and any delay by us in bringing
new and competitive products to the market could adversely
affect our financial performance.

(v) We recorded net losses in the past and had negative cash flows
from operating activities, all of which may continue if we may
not be able to implement our business plans successfully in the
future.
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(vi) We are exposed to credit risk of our customers and failure to
collect our trade and bills receivables in a timely manner may
affect our financial condition and results of operations.

(vii) We depend on certain major customers for the majority of our
revenue and the loss of any of these customers could adversely
affect our business, financial condition, results of operations and
cash flows.

We also face financial risks including foreign currency risk, credit risk,
maximum exposure and liquidity risk. Details of these financial risks
are set out in note 3.1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

GLOBAL OFFERING

On 5 December 2023, the H Shares of the Company were listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange by way of the Global Offering. The
H Shares were issued and subscribed to Hong Kong and overseas
investors at a final offer price of HK$19.66 per H Share (excluding
brokerage of 1.0%, SFC transaction levy of 0.0027%, the Stock
Exchange transaction fee of 0.00565% and Accounting and Financial
Reporting Council transaction levy of 0.00015%) by way of an initial
public offering. For details of the Global Offering, please refer to the
Prospectus and the allotment results announcement of the Company
dated 4 December 2023.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE GLOBAL
OFFERING

The net proceeds received by the Company from the Global Offering
in the amount of approximately HK$1,456.26 million after deducting
underwriting fee and commissions and all related expenses. There
is no change to the intended use of net proceeds and the expected
implementation timetable as previously disclosed in the section
headed “Future Plans and Use of Proceeds” in the Prospectus. After
the Listing Date, the unutilized net proceeds are placed in licensed
banks and/or authorized financial institution as defined under the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) and laws in the relevant jurisdictions (where applicable).
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The following table sets forth the Company’s use of the proceeds from

the Listing and the planned timetable as at 31 December 2023.

BZE2023F BZE2023F
EB SRR 12A31AL 12A31AL
REM kBELHH HmegA MEAT BARTHRBRE
BMABAL MERERE FESRETRE MENUEEHE FEEFEEO
Net Remaining
Approximate Net proceeds net proceeds
percentage proceeds utilized as of as of Expected time to
of the total from the 31 December 31 December utilize the remaining
net proceeds Listing 2023 2023 net proceeds in full®
(%) (B&ET) (B&ET) (B&8ET)
(%) (HK$ million)  (HK$ million)  (HK$ million)
BAREENT MR EHELER 40 582.6 0 582.6 HZE2026FILFE
TR B RRHER R A
Expand the production capabilities of By the end of the
the Group's hydrogen fuel cell stacks year ending 2026
and hydrogen fuel cell systems
SMHEB B - SRHEBRS 20 291.3 0 291.3 HZE2026FILFE
ARERIR KA RERTE RERA
Research and development of hydrogen By the end of the
fuel cell stacks, hydrogen fuel cell year ending 2026
systems, graphite bipolar plates and
hydrogen production equipment
RARBNRMR LBETERRNKRE 10 145.6 0 145.6 BIE2026FILFE
EENE SRR S ERER RERA
Investment in, the potential acquisition By the end of the
of, or the alliance with companies in year ending 2026
the Group's upstream industry
HEAEEEREAN TIFERNETR 10 145.6 0 145.6 BIE2026FIEFE
FER - WHEBAER - AREBE RRA
AR RABKIIAERE - BINER
SEERNAMFTR
Development of downstream transit and By the end of the
stationary applications of the Group’s year ending 2026
product portfolios and development
of domestic applications and the
increase of local demands for the
Group’s products by establishing joint
ventures with the local governments
and companies
EPRR - ATHREREI - URES 10 145.6 0 145.6 BIE2026FIEFE
BASE A B #)3 B X i KR RERAN
Team building, talents recruitment By the end of the
and training, as well as enhanced year ending 2026
compensation and incentives to key
personnel
LEES REM—RRF AR 10 145.6 7.4 138.2 EIE2026FIEFE
RERA
Working capital and other general By the end of the
corporate purposes year ending 2026
&5t®@ 100 1,456.3 7.4 1,448.9
Total®
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Notes:

(1) The expected timeline for using the unutilized net proceeds is based on
the best estimation of the present and future business market situations
made by the Board, and it will be subject to changes based on the future
development of market conditions.

(2) Any discrepancies in the above table between the total shown and the
sum of the amounts listed are due to rounding.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in share capital of the Company during the Year
are set out in note 29 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

RESERVES AND DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the Year
are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on
pages 190 to 191 of this annual report/note 42 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements. As at 31 December 2023, we did not have any
distributable reserves.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Company and the Group for the Year are set out in note 18 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

AGM AND CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF
MEMBERS

The AGM will be held on Wednesday, 19 June 2024. A notice
convening the AGM will be published and despatched to the
Shareholders in due course in the manner prescribed by the Listing
Rules. In order to determine the entitlement to attend and vote at
the AGM, the register of members of the Company will be closed
from Friday, 14 June 2024 to Wednesday, 19 June 2024 (both
days inclusive), during which period no transfer of H Shares will
be registered. Shareholders should lodge all completed transfer
documents accompanies by the relevant share certificates to the H
Share Registrar of the Company at Boardroom Share Registrars (HK)
Limited, at 2103B, 21/F, 148 Electric Road, North Point, Hong Kong
not later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 13 June 2024.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

We may be involved in legal proceedings in the ordinary course of
business from time to time. To the best of the Directors’ knowledge,
information and belief, during the Reporting Period, the Company has
complied in material respects with the relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the Company.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group is highly aware of the importance of environment protection
and has not noted any material incompliance with all relevant laws
and regulations in relation to its business including environmental
protection, health and safety, workplace conditions, employment
and the environment. We strive to comply with applicable rules,
laws, regulations and industry standards on workplace safety and
environmental matters. In doing so, our human resources department
would, if necessary, adjust our human resources policies to
accommodate material changes to relevant labor and safety laws and
regulations. During the Reporting Period, we had not been subject to
any fines or other penalties due to non-compliance with health, safety
or environmental laws or regulations.

For details, please refer to the Company’s Environmental, Social and
Governance Report on pages 107 to 175 of this annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

From the Listing Date up to the date of this annual report, there
was no purchase, sale or redemption of any listed securities of the
Company by the Company or any of its subsidiaries.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

According to the provisions under the PRC laws and the Articles of
Association, the Shareholders do not have pre-emptive rights.
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DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

The Board currently consists of the following 9 Directors:

Executive Directors

Mr. Chen Xiaomin (Chairman of the Board)
Mr. Yang Zeyun
Mr. Ye Jiajie

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Zhan Zhanlin
Mr. Huang Jiao
Dr. Wan Yu

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Liu Xin
Dr. Xing Wei
Ms. Wong Yan Ki, Angel

The Supervisory Committee currently consists of the following 3
Supervisors:

Supervisors

Ms. Lin Minting
Mr. Hu Muzhou
Mr. Liao Han

The biographical details of the Directors, Supervisors and senior
management of the Group are disclosed in the section headed
“Profiles of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management” on pages
31 to 43 of this annual report.
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CHANGE OF INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS
AND SUPERVISORS

After making specific enquiry by the Company and confirmed by
the Directors and the Supervisors, save as disclosed in the section
headed “Profiles of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management”
of this annual report, there is no change to any information required to
be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules since the
Listing Date and up to the date of this annual report.

SERVICE CONTRACTS OF DIRECTORS AND
SUPERVISORS

Pursuant to Rules 19A.54 and 19A.55 of the Listing Rules, we enter
into service contracts with each of our Directors and Supervisors in
relation to, among other things, (i) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations; (ii) compliance with the Articles of Association; and (iii)

provisions on arbitration.

Save as disclosed above, none of our Directors or Supervisors has
entered, or has proposed to enter, a service contract with any member
of the Group (other than contracts expiring or determinable by the
employer within one year without the payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation).

Details of Directors and Supervisors’ remuneration for the Year are set
out in note 43 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE FROM THE
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence
from each of the independent non-executive Directors (the “INEDs”)
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Main Board Listing Rules and all of them
are considered to be independent.
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INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS
IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

To the best knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors
or Supervisors or any entity connected with the Directors or the
Supervisors had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any
transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to the business
of the Group to which the Company, or any of its subsidiaries was a
party during the Year.

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE WITH CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company had no
controlling Shareholder.

COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The Directors, the Supervisors and the Company’s senior management
receive compensation in the form of salaries, allowances, bonuses and
benefit in kind. The compensation of Directors, Supervisors and the
Company’s senior management is determined based on each Director,
Supervisor and senior management’s responsibilities, qualification,
position and seniority. Details of the emoluments of the Directors, the
Supervisors and the Company’s senior management and emoluments
of the five highest paid individuals in the Group are set out in note
10(b) and note 41(c) to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

During the Reporting Period, no emoluments were paid by the Group
to any Director, Supervisor or senior management as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.
None of the Directors, Supervisors or senior management has waived
or agreed to waive any emoluments during the Reporting Period.
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Except as disclosed above, no other payments have been made or
are payable, during the Reporting Period, by our Group to or on behalf
of any of the Directors, the Supervisors or the Company's senior
management.

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE OBLIGATIONS
PURSUANT TO THE LISTING RULES

The Company does not have any other disclosure obligations under
Rules 13.20, 13.21 and 13.22 of the Listing Rules.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

During the Reporting Period, no contracts were entered into in relation
to the management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of the business of the Company.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

During the Reporting Period, the Group has not issued any convertible
bonds.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

To the best knowledge of the Directors, save for the Pre-IPO Share
Incentive Scheme, there was no equity-linked agreement entered into
by the Company or any of its subsidiaries during the Year.

MATERIAL LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

During the Reporting Period and up to the date of this annual report,
no member of the Group was involved in any litigation, arbitration or
claim of material importance, and no litigation, arbitration or claim
of material importance was known to the Directors to be pending or
threatened against any member of the Group.

LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Details of bank loans or other borrowings of the Group for the Year are
set out in note 34 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Save as disclosed in note 34 to the Consolidated Financial Statements,
the Group had not made any loan or provided any guarantee for loan,
directly or indirectly, to the Directors and senior management of the
Company, or their respective connected persons during the Reporting
Period.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITION OF
DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVES IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 December 2023, the interests and short positions of
our Directors and chief executive of our Company in the Shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
as notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions which he/she is keen to taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO), or as recorded in the register maintained
by the Company under section 352 of the SFO, or as notified to the

RARBIZE T RIZB A G AN Q7 KB ATHY Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code were
EmRRBEWAT as follows:
RAATE
ERITROATHE
REER G G RAER
BRI BRABEAL®
Epadu Approximate
Approximate percentage of
percentage in  shareholding in
RHEE the relevant  the total issued
2] EmME B4 &5l Number of class of Shares of the
Name Nature of Interest Class of Shares Shares Shares™ Company®
Bt AE REEEERS NE R 80,000,000 18.24% 15.44%
Mr. Chen Interest held by controlled Domestic Shares
corporations®
EREAAC NE K 5,000,000 1.14% 0.97%
Beneficial Owner® Domestic Shares
BEERE REEBERY NE R 5,000,000 1.14% 0.97%
Mr. Yang Zeyun Interest held by controlled Domestic Shares
corporations®
ERBEAA NE R 1,200,000 0.27% 0.23%
Beneficial OwnerW Domestic Shares
FEEE XEEEER NE R 3,065,000 0.70% 0.59%
Mr. Wang Jun Interest held by controlled Domestic Shares
corporations®
ERFERAD WE R 100,000 0.02% 0.02%
Beneficial Owner® Domestic Shares
Hp® NE K 1,000,000 0.23% 0.19%
Other® Domestic Shares
RreE Hitp© NE R 100,000 0.02% 0.02%
Mr. Ye Jiajie Other® Domestic Shares
HREEE Hip NE R 40,000 0.01% 0.01%
Mr. Hu Muzhou Other™ Domestic Shares
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Notes

The calculation is based on a total number of 438,521,669 Domestic
Shares in issue and a total number of 79,520,000 H Shares in issue as at
31 December 2023.

The calculation is based on the total number of 518,041,669 Shares in
issue as at 31 December 2023.

As at 31 December 2023, Hongyun Hydrogen Energy was held as to
0.01% by Mr. Chen and 99.99% equity interest by Huahui Technology,
which was in turn held by 80% by Mr. Chen as its general partner. By
virtue of the SFO, Mr. Chen is deemed to be interested in the same
number of Shares held by Hongyun Hydrogen Energy. Mr. Chen is
interested in 5,000,000 Pre-IPO Share Options granted by the Company
under the Pre-IPO Share Incentive Scheme.

These 5,000,000 Shares comprise Shares held by Gonggingcheng Zeyuan
Investment Partnership (Limited Partnership) (AEWMBRIEESELE
(BERA%)) (“GQ Zeyuan’), an ESOP platform which was owned as to
approximately 66.67% by Mr. Yang Zeyun (#/2%E), our executive Director
as its general partner and approximately 33.33% by Ms. Liao Tiantian (2
#f &), spouse of Mr. Yang Zeyun and an employee of our Company as its
limited partner as of 31 December 2023. As at 31 December 2023, Mr.
Yang Zeyun was the general partner of GQ Zeyuan and by virtue of the
SFO, Mr. Yang Zeyun is deemed to be interested in the same number of
Shares held by GQ Zeyuan. Mr. Yang is interested in 1,200,000 Pre-IPO
Share Options granted by the Company under the Pre-IPO Share Incentive
Scheme.

The 3,065,000 Shares comprise Shares held by Gonggingcheng
Hongsheng Fengyuan Investment Partnership (Limited Partnership) (&
WIBELYRIGEAELE(ERAE)) (‘Hongsheng Fengyuan’), an ESOP
platform which was owed as to approximately 0.11% by Mr. Wang Jun
(EE), one of our senior management and one of the Joint Company
Secretaries, as its general partner and 99.89% by 38 senior management
and other employees of the Group as its limited partners as of 31
December 2023. As at 31 December 2023, Mr. Wang Jun was the general
partner of Hongsheng Fengyuan and by virtue of the SFO, Mr. Wang
Jun is deemed to be interested in the same number of Shares held by
Hongsheng Fengyuan. As at 31 December 2023, Mr. Wang was a limited
partner holding 13.61% equity interest of Gonggingcheng Hongsheng
Fengying Investment Partnership (Limited Partnership) ((FS¥HEKE
BEESELE(BEREE)) ("Hongsheng Fengying”), one of the ESOP
Platforms and he is interested in 1,000,000 Shares held by Hongsheng
Fengying. Mr. Wang is interested in 100,000 Pre-IPO Share Options
granted by the Company under the Pre-IPO Share Incentive Scheme.
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(6) As at 31 December 2023, Mr. Ye Jiajie was a limited partner holding
2.18% equity interest of Gonggingcheng Hongsheng Fengtai Investment
Partnership (Limited Partnership) (EEMBEREREKEABTEBREE))
("Hongsheng Fengtai”), one of the ESOP Platforms and he is interested in
100,000 Shares held by Hongsheng Fengtai.

(7) As at 31 December 2023, Mr. Hu Muzhou was a limited partner holding
1.31% equity interest of Hongsheng Fengyuan, one of the ESOP Platforms
and he is interested in 40,000 Shares held by Hongsheng Fengyuan.

(8) All interests stated above are long positions.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, to the knowledge
of the Board, none of the Directors, the Supervisors or chief
executive of the Company had any interests or short positions in
the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO) which were required to be (i) notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests and short positions which the Directors,
the Supervisors and chief executive of the Company were taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); (ii) recorded in
the register kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO;
or (iii) notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code.
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FERRRR G RAEERD INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITION OF

EERAE SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES

HE2023F12A31H  BEFMEA T As at 31 December 2023, to the best of Directors’ knowledge, the

AL,/ BE(BRARARNES EEgx following persons/entities (other than a Director, Supervisor or chief

BITEABIN) RIRH S BER NP HEBIR executive of the Company) had an interest or short positions in the

BELSLHEEMEXVEE2RIDIRE Shares and underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed to

BRANRIRBMZABEE 2 EEIAR - the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3

A RBEFSF LB EENEI6HEERT of Part XV of the SFO, or which were required to be recorded in the

RGP A AR E R MAZ ERIOAR register of the Company required to be kept pursuant to section 336

of the SFO:

REQRBRT

WP BEEH

RAIEE R 7 ERRRER

HRIRH BAEA @

BATFDHEO Approximate

Approximate percentage of

percentage in  shareholding in

EEME B 685 RHEE the relevant  the total issued

BRRES BB Nature of Class of Number of class of Shares of the

Name of Shareholder Interest Shares Shares Shares Company®

TBETREIR ERERA NER 80,000,000 18.24% 15.44%
Hongyun Hydrogen Energy Beneficial owner Domestic Shares

EER RREERE RSV NE K 80,000,000 18.24% 15.44%
Huahui Technology Interest held Domestic Shares

by controlled

corporations®

ERTERE EREEAW W& R 68,000,000 15.51% 13.13%
Yunfu Industrial Park Beneficial owner® Domestic Shares
BLUTRTEELEERAR REEEREERY WA R 68,000,000 15.51% 13.13%
(MILRE])
Foshan Dongping Asset Interest held Domestic Shares
Management Co., Ltd. (f# by controlled

LT RFEELEERAA) corporations®
(“Foshan Dongping”)

FHERTEREREAREE ERBEEAO NER 31,250,000 7.13% 6.03%
(ER&R)) ([ZE=EE])
Jiaxing Guohong Hydrogen Port  Beneficial owner® Domestic Shares

Equity Investment Partnership
(Limited Partnership) (3 &
BEERERESBRPE(BER
£%)) (“Jiaxing Hydrogen
Port”)
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RAQARERIT

BBz H

RiEER S sy
BRI WA
BHESHEO Approximate

Approximate
percentage in

percentage of
shareholding in

s i 43 48 51 RGOEE the relevant  the total issued
BRHES£18 Nature of Class of Number of class of Shares of the
Name of Shareholder Interest Shares Shares Shares Company®
FETEAREREESERY  REEERAERC W& R 31,250,000 7.13% 6.03%
A) ((E8EH )
Jiaxing Nanhu Equity Interest held Domestic Shares
Investment Fund Co., Ltd. (3 by controlled
EMEAREREESERA corporations®
7)) (“Jiaxing Nanhu”)
RETEHERREERDA REEERHERRY W& R 31,250,000 7.13% 6.03%
(I==mHER))
Jiaxing Nanhu Financial Service Interest held Domestic Shares
Co., Ltd. (REMEPSRER by controlled
BHMRAF]) (“Jiaxing Nanhu corporations®
Financial”)
BARERERAR (DEARE]) REAERERERS W& R 31,250,000 7.13% 6.03%
Chiyue Investment Limited (it Interest held Domestic Shares
R EAR A7) (“Chiyue by controlled
Investment”) corporations®
EBEREPHNARLE (BRE BEREBAC NER 26,400,000 6.02% 5.10%
%) ([E88R])
Qingdao Chengtou Hydrogen Beneficial owner® Domestic Shares
Power Partnership (Limited
Partnership) (& & &
BHEaBLE(ERER))
(“Qingdao Chengtou”)
EEHEREEBRERAR RIEEEFBERC W& R 26,400,000 6.02% 5.10%
((EEHE]
Qingdao Chengshi Investment  Interest held Domestic Shares
Management Co., Ltd. (& by controlled
EREREEERRATF) corporations®
(“Qingdao Chengshi”)
BB REEERAR RIEEE A ERC W& R 30,000,000 6.84% 5.79%

([EEHER])

Qingdao Chengtou New Energy Interest held
Group Co., Ltd. (B &%
gREEAERAT) (“Qingdao
New Energy”)

Domestic Shares
by controlled

corporations®
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REARREHT

B EE
REER 5 IR
BRI BRES L
BAFDHEO Approximate
Approximate percentage of
percentage in  shareholding in
EEME EnE=p:ll BRHEE the relevant  the total issued
BRES /£8 Nature of Class of Number of class of Shares of the
Name of Shareholder Interest Shares Shares Shares(® Company®
BERTEMRE (RE)ARE XEEEREERC NE K 30,000,000 6.84% 5.79%
ERA([EBRMRR])
Qingdao City Construction Interest held Domestic Shares
Investment (Group) Co., Ltd. by controlled
(EBHmEREE(ER)E corporations®
B ZE A7) (“Qingdao City
Construction”)
ReE REEEREERO NE R 25,692,308 5.86% 4.96%
Chen Jinxia (BR& &) Interest held Domestic Shares
by controlled
corporations®
BigwH REEER AR W& R 23,434,065 5.34% 4.52%
Sun Junfu (ZBH) Interest held Domestic Shares
by controlled
corporations®
HEE XEFEARAEE®  RER 23,220,135 5.30% 4.48%
Dai Xingzi (B##&) Interest held Domestic Shares
by controlled
corporations'?
AED R EEREER NE R 23,220,135 5.30% 4.48%
Gu Shuai (&81) Interest held Domestic Shares
by controlled
corporations?
28 REEEARAER© RER 23,220,135 5.30% 4.48%
Zheng Song (#F48) Interest held Domestic Shares
by controlled
corporations?
BE(ER) REBRAA XEFEARAEE® RER 23,220,135 5.30% 4.48%
(MEEdR])
Yiyi (Beijing) Investment Co., Interest held Domestic Shares
Ltd. (BE(JLR)REBRAQAF) by controlled
(“Yiyi Beijing”") corporations('®
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REBRRG
BRI
ESER Al
Approximate
percentage in

RERRERIT
R BT
1hIRRER
BREI e
Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in

s i 43 48 51 RGOEE the relevant  the total issued
BRHES£18 Nature of Class of Number of class of Shares of the
Name of Shareholder Interest Shares Shares Shares Company®
BREEARCEEEARNE IEEEREERD™ RNER 23,220,135 5.30% 4.48%
(BR&%) [EREE])
Guangdong Baohui Interest held Domestic Shares
Chuangneng Enterprise by controlled
Management Partnership corporations!'?
(Limited Partnership) (EE S
Eale X ERARCEER
A%)) (“Guangdong Baohui”)
MNEERBEERARLE (AR SXiESEERD  RNER 23,220,135 5.30% 4.48%
&%) ([mMEE])
Hangzhou Yiyi Investment Interest held Domestic Shares
Management Partnership by controlled
(Limited Partnership)(# 1l {& corporations‘®
BREBERABPE(ERS
%)) (‘Hangzhou Yiyi")
AR ERETL(BRAR) ERBEAAM W& K 23,220,135 5.30% 4.48%
(FRIIm@ED
Shenzhen Rongdingze Beneficial owner('® Domestic Shares
Investment Centre (Limited
Partnership) (FIIBRZIRE
0 (BRER))("Shenzhen
Rongdingze”)
B = RIEEERERERZ"  RER 22,857,142 5.21% 4.41%
Liu Xianting (238 =) Interest held Domestic Shares
by controlled
corporations!'")
HEUKRBARRELRRER BREFAN NE K 22,857,142 5.21% 4.41%

O (BRAR) ([HEHK
KEK])

Gonggingcheng Shuida
Yuda Technology Industry
Investment Center (Limited
Partnership) (&K K AKX
RIREEXRERL(BREE))
(“GQ Shuida Yuda”)

Beneficial owner'"

Domestic Shares
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REBRRG
BRI
BABEDHEO
Approximate
percentage in

RADBE BT
RAPEEES

IR ER
BAEI L
Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in

EEME EnE=p:ll BRHEE the relevant  the total issued
BRES /£8 Nature of Class of Number of class of Shares of the
Name of Shareholder Interest Shares Shares Shares(® Company®
FEEEEREEBFRAT REEERERRED NER 31,250,000 7.13% 6.03%
(=3:54-2)
Jiaxing Binhai Holding Group Interest held Domestic Shares
Co., Ltd. (REEBEREESE by controlled
B2 8]) (“diaxing Binhai”) corporations”
REEERHA R HAR 20,497,500 25.78% 3.96%
Interest held H Shares
by controlled
corporations”
ISR ERERARAF REEERAEE NE R 31,250,000 7.13% 6.03%
(MHTERE])
Zhejiang Hydrogen Energy Interest held Domestic Shares
Industry Development Co., by controlled
Ltd. (I EAEEEERER corporations”
A7) (‘Zhejiang Hydrogen ~ EmEAAD HR% 20,497,500 25.78% 3.96%
Energy”) Beneficial owner(™ H Shares
FRETAREEAR XFEAD HAR 10,986,500 13.82% 2.12%
(TaEETED
Zhongcheng Trust Co., Ltd. Trustee” H Shares
(PRIEFTAREELA)
(“Zhongcheng Trust”)
RERZE19FQDIE—EEER TiEAD HA 9,511,000 11.96% 1.84%
AE((REZE])
Dongxing Anxin No.19 QDII Trustee™” H Shares
Single Asset Management
Scheme (REZE19%:QDIIE
—EAEEEE) ("“Dongxing
Anxin”)
TARBESERAR BEmEAR A HAR 5,535,000 6.96% 1.07%
(TEAKER])
Yatai Nengyuan Trade Limited ~ Beneficial owner('? H Shares

(“Yatai Nengyuan”)
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The calculation is based on a total number of 438,521,669 Domestic
Shares in issue and a total number of 79,520,000 H Shares in issue as at
31 December 2023.

The calculation is based on the total number of 518,041,669 Shares in
issue as at 31 December 2023.

As at 31 December 2023, Hongyun Hydrogen Energy was held as to
0.01% equity interest by Mr. Chen and 99.99% equity interest by Huahui
Technology, which was in turn held as to 80% equity interest by Mr. Chen
as its general partner respectively. By virtue of the SFO, each of Mr. Chen
and Huahui Technology are deemed to be interested in the same number
of Shares held by Hongyun Hydrogen Energy. Mr. Chen is interested in
5,000,000 Pre-IPO Share Options granted by the Company under the
Pre-IPO Share Incentive Scheme.

As at 31 December 2023, Yunfu Industrial Park was held as to 49% equity
interest by Foshan Dongping and was therefore deemed to be interested
in the Shares held by Yunfu Industrial Park. Yunfu Industrial Park was
ultimately wholly controlled by State-owned Assets Supervision and
Administration Commission of Foshan Municipal People’s Government
(BLUTARBNREEEEEEELE®) and Yunfu Municipal People’s
Government (E¥MARBNEEEELZEEEEZE®) and the Department
of Finance of Guangdong Province (E&R & M IKEE).

Jiaxing Hydrogen Port is a limited partnership established in the PRC in
August 2022 engaged in equity investment. Each of Jiaxing Nanhu (the
general partner of Jiaxing Hydrogen Port), Zhejiang Hydrogen Energy (the
limited partner of Jiaxing Hydrogen Port holding 99.99% equity interest as
at 31 December 2023), Jiaxing Nanhu Financial (the sole shareholder of
Jiaxing Nanhu) and Chiyue Investment (holding 62.20% equity interest of
Jiaxing Nanhu Financial) is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by
Jiaxing Hydrogen Port for the purpose of SFO.

Qingdao Chengtou is a limited partnership established in the PRC in
March 2021 mainly engaged in investment activities. Each of Qingdao
Chengshi (the general partner of Qingdao Chengtou), Qingdao New
Energy (a limited partner holding 41.53% equity interest of Qingdao
Chengtou and the sole shareholder of Qingdao Chengshi) and Qingdao
City Construction (the sole shareholder of Qingdao New Energy) is
deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Qingdao Chengtou for the
purpose of SFO. Qingdao New Energy is the sole shareholder of Qingdao
Chengsheng Investment Management Co., Ltd. (ESMELEEEERA
Al) ("Qingdao Chengsheng”), a Shareholder holding 3,600,000 Domestic
Shares, representing approximately 0.69% of our total Shares and
therefore Qingdao New Energy and Qingdao City Construction are also
deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Qingdao Chengsheng for
the purpose of SFO. Qingdao City Construction was ultimately controlled
by State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of
Qingdao Municipal People’s Government (ESMARKNEEEEEBEERE

ZE®E).
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(10)

(12)

(13)

Zhejiang Hydrogen Energy, a limited liability company established in the
PRC in April 2021 was held as to 100% equity interest by Jiaxing Binhai
and ultimately beneficially owned by State-owned Assets Supervision and
Administration Commission of Jiaxing Municipal People’'s Government (3
EHARBNEEEEESEIRZEZER). As of 31 December 2023, Zhenjiang
Hydrogen Energy, as the trustor held 10,986,500 and 9,511,000 H Shares
through two trustees namely, Zhongcheng Trust and Dongxing Anxin,
respectively.

Chen Jinxia (FR€E) (i) was the largest shareholder of the general
partner of Shanghai Hongcheng and owned approximately 65.728% as a
limited partner of Shanghai Hongcheng Start-up Investment Partnership
(Limited Partnership) (&5 BIXIREABNE(EREE)) (“Shanghai
Hongcheng”), which held 13,340,000 Domestic Shares in our Company;
(ii) was a 99.76% limited partner of Shanghai Jucheng Start-up Investment
Partnership (Limited Partnership) (EEBBEIXLEABLE(BREE))
(“Shanghai Jucheng”), which held 6,660,000 Domestic Shares in our
Company; and (iii) owned 50% of Yongjin Industry (Group) Co., Ltd. (&
SEE(£E)BRAF]), which indirectly controlled the general partner of
Hangzhou Yonglongyi Investment Partnership (Limited Partnership) (1
INERBRESBEE(ERER)) ("Hangzhou Yonglongyi”), which held
5,692,308 Domestic Shares in our Company. By virtue of the SFO, Chen
Jinxia was deemed to be interested in the same number of Shares held by
Shanghai Hongcheng, Shanghai Jucheng and Hangzhou Yonglongyi.

Sun Junfu was the largest shareholder of the general partner of
Gonggingcheng Hydrogen Hong New Energy Industry Investment
Partnership (Limited Partnership) (EEMEEHEEREXRESELEE
[R&%)) (“GQ Hydrogen”), which held 576,923 Domestic Shares in our
Company. Sun Junfu was the general partner of GQ Shuida Yuda, which
held 22,857,142 Domestic Shares in our Company. By virtue of the SFO,
Sun Junfu was deemed to be interested in the same number of Shares
held by GQ Hydrogen and GQ Shuida Yuda.

Shenzhen Rongdingze is a limited partnership established in the PRC in
December 2015, mainly engaged in equity interest investment. As of 31
December 2023, Shenzhen Rongdingze was owned as to approximately
0.01% by Yiyi Beijing as its general partner and 69.99% by Guangdong
Baohui. The largest shareholder of Yiyi Beijing was Hangzhou Yiyi holding
80% equity interest of Yiyi Beijing, and the general partner who owned as
to 50% of Hangzhou Yiyi was Zheng Song, while the limited partner who
owned as to 50% of Hangzhou Yiyi was Dai Xingzi. Guangdong Baohui
was owned as to 95% by Gu Shuai as its general partner. By virtue of the
SFO, Dai Xingzi, Zheng Song, Gu Shuai, Yiyi Beijing, Hangzhou Yiyi and
Guangdong Baohui were deemed to be interested in the same number of
Shares held by Shenzhen Rongdingze.

Liu Xianting held 72.08% equity interest as a limited partner of GQ Shuida
Yuda. By virtue of the SFO, Liu Xianting was deemed to be interested in
the same number of Shares held by GQ Shuida Yuda.

Yatai Nengyuan has disposed all of its holdings of H Shares on 12 January
2024,

All interests stated above are long positions.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, the Directors were
not aware of any other persons/entities (other than the Directors and
chief executive of the Company) who had interests or short positions
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

ARRANGEMENTS FOR PURCHASE OF SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the Reporting Period was the Company or any of
its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement that would enable the
Directors to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate, and none
of the Directors or any of their spouse or children under the age of
18 had any right to subscribe for the equity or debt securities of the
Company or any other body corporate or had exercised any such
right.

KEY RELATIONSHIP WITH STAKEHOLDERS

We recognize that various stakeholders including customers,
suppliers, employees and other business associates are key to the
Group’s success. The Group strives to achieve corporate sustainability
through engaging, collaborating, and cultivating strong relationships
with them.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate revenue attributable to the Group’s largest customer
for the Year accounted for approximately 47.6% (2022: 34.3%)
of the Group’s total revenue. The aggregate revenue attributable
to the Group’s five largest customers for the Year accounted for
approximately 73.9% (2022: 84.9%) of the Group’s total revenue.

The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s largest suppliers
for the Year accounted for approximately 22.2% (2022: 20.8%) of the
Group’s total purchases. The aggregate purchases attributable to the
Group’s five largest suppliers for the Year accounted for approximately
60.1% (2022: 53.1%) of the Group’s total purchases.
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During the Year, none of the Directors or any of their associates or any
Shareholders (which to the best knowledge of the Directors owned
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had a material
interest in our five largest customers or suppliers.

TAXATION

Tax position of the Company during the Year is set forth in note 15 to
the Consolidated Financial Statements.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available
to the Shareholders by reason of their holding of the H Shares of
the Company. If the Shareholders are unsure about the taxation
implications of purchasing, holding, disposing of, dealing in, or
exercising of any rights in relation to the H Shares, they are advised to
consult their professional advisers.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had a total of 798 full-time
employees and all of them were based in China. We primarily recruit
our personnel through recruitment agencies, on-campus job fairs,
referrals, and online channels including our corporate website and
social networking platforms.

We place a strong emphasis on training our employees to develop
their skills. Pursuant to our employee training policy, we provide our
employees with opportunities to participate in training sessions and
seminars on safety production, fire safety and emergency care, as
well as team-building activities to cultivate our corporate culture.

In terms of remuneration, our employees’ remuneration varies
according to the functions: (i) our sales personnel’s remuneration
includes base salary and bonuses based on their total sales amount;
(ii) our administration personnel’s remuneration includes basic salary,
subsidies and performance-based bonuses; and (iii) our production
personnel’s remuneration includes base salary and bonuses.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

A Remuneration Committee has been set up for, among others,
reviewing the Group’s emolument policy and structure for all
remuneration of the Directors and senior management of the Group,
having regard to the Group’s operating results, individual performance
of the Directors and senior management and comparable market
practices.

The Group has adopted a Pre-IPO Share Incentive Scheme as
incentive to eligible employees, details of the scheme is set out in the
sections headed “Pre-IPO Share Incentive Scheme”.

RETIREMENT AND EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
SCHEME

Details of the retirement benefit scheme are set out in note 10(a) to
the Consolidated Financial Statements.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of material related party transactions entered into by our
Group during the Reporting Period are disclosed in note 41 to
the Consolidated Financial Statements. None of the related party
transactions as disclosed in note 41 to the financial statements
constitute any non-exempt connected transactions or continuing
connected transaction which should be disclosed pursuant to the
Listing Rules.

CONNECTED AND CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

During the Year, none of the related party transactions as disclosed
in note 41 to the Consolidated Financial Statements constitute
any non-exempt connected transaction or continuing connected
transaction which should be disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules.
During the Year, the Company has not entered into any non-exempt
connected transaction or continuing connected transaction which
should be disclosed pursuant to Rules 14A.49 and 14A.71 of the
Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

As at 31 December 2023, none of the Directors or their respective
associates had engaged in or had any interest in any business which
competes or may compete with the businesses of the Group.
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PRE-IPO SHARE INCENTIVE SCHEME

The Pre-IPO Share Incentive Scheme was adopted and approved by

resolutions in writing by our Board on 28 October 2022. The following

Is a summary of the principal terms of the Pre-IPO Share Incentive

Scheme.

(a)

(b)

Purpose

The purpose of the Pre-IPO Share Incentive Scheme is to further
improve the long-term incentive mechanism of our Company,
attract high-end technical and management talents in the
industry and region while stabilizing the existing talent team
and stimulating the enthusiasm of employees, and lay a solid
foundation of core talent team and management mechanism
for the realization of our development strategy. All Shares to be
issued under the Pre-IPO Share Incentive Scheme are Domestic
Shares of our Company.

Who may participate

The eligible participants (“Eligible Participants”) of the Pre-IPO
Share Incentive Scheme are determined according to the
Company Law, PRC Securities Law (2019 revision) (F#EA R
MEIFEHEN20194127])) (the “PRC Securities Law”) and other
relevant laws and regulations and the relevant provisions of the
Articles of Association.

The Eligible Participants under the Pre-IPO Share Incentive
Scheme only cover the employees that made significant
contribution to our operation and development, including senior
officers or core technical personnel or other employees that have
been working in our Group or those who are designated by our
Board, excluding our INEDs and Supervisors. Our Board has the
sole discretion to determine the eligibility of the employees to
participate in the Pre-IPO Share Incentive Scheme.

Before granting any Option(s), each Eligible Participant shall
enter into a share option grant agreement with the Company,
which specifies their respective rights and obligations under the
scheme.
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Maximum number of Shares in respect of which Options may
be granted

The maximum aggregate number of underlying Shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all Options granted or to be
granted (if any) under the Pre-IPO Share Incentive Scheme shall
not exceed 19,733,475 Domestic Shares.

Outstanding Options Granted

Upon Listing, a total of 29 Eligible Participants were offered
Options to subscribe for an aggregate of 12,065,000 Domestic
Shares, representing approximately 2.33% of the total issued
share capital of the Company in issue. The number of share
options available for grant under the Pre-IPO Share Incentive
Scheme was 19,733,475 Domestic Shares as at 1 January 2023.
No further Options will be available for grant under the Pre-IPO
Share Incentive Scheme after its Listing.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of Shares issued and which may fall to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted under the Pre-IPO
Share Incentive Scheme (including both exercised or outstanding
options) to each eligible person in any 12-month period must not
exceed 1% of the issued share capital of our Company for the
time being.

Term and remaining life of Pre-IPO Share Incentive Scheme

The term of the Pre-IPO Share Incentive Scheme commences
on the date on which the Options are first granted until the date
when the Options granted are fully exercised or fully canceled,
which in any event will not be longer than 10 years. As at the
date of this annual report, the remaining life of the Pre-IPO Share
Incentive Scheme was around nine years and two months.
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Vesting and Exercise of Options

The Options shall not be exercised before the Listing Date.
Subject to the satisfaction of the relevant conditions of exercises,
the Options shall be exercisable after the Listing in three

tranches:
55 IR 40 FARE RO EL 1
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TS TRERFR of Share
Exercise period Exercise time Options to vest
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The first exercise period

The first trading day of 12 months after the relevant Options

are granted; or 6 months after our Company completes the

Listing, whichever is later (the “First Exercise Date")

(AT

RERATER1REARE-EAXSZH A ELTRARBEREF 30%
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The second exercise period  The first trading day of 12 months after the First Exercise
Date or the date on the disclosure of the Company'’s first
annual report after the Listing, whichever is earlier
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The third exercise period

The first trading day of 24 months after the First Exercise

Date or the date on the disclosure of the Company’s
second annual report after the Listing, whichever is earlier
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Each of the Grantees shall undertake that (i) he/she will continue
to serve in his/her position with us from the Option grant date to
the Option exercise date; and (ii) he/she will endeavor to prevent
the occurrence of any disqualification event. If a Grantee resigns
from our Company after the date of Grant, or any disqualification
event occurs, any Options granted shall be invalidated.

If the exercise conditions (including but not limited to the
performance of the Company and the annual performance
appraisals attained by the Grantees before any Options can
be exercised) of each tranche of Options are not fulfilled, the
relevant interests shall not be deferred to the next period. The
starting date of the next exercise period shall not be earlier
than the expiration date of the previous exercise period. In the
event that the Grantee resigns from the Company after the date
of Grant or an event occurs that disqualifies the Grantee, the
Options held by the Grantee will lapse or will be cancelled by the
Company.
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(h) Consideration

()

(1))

(k)

U]

No consideration is payable by the grantees upon acceptance of
the grant of Options under the Pre-IPO Share Incentive Scheme.

Exercise price and basis of determining the exercise price of
options granted

Subject to the rules of the Pre-IPO Share Incentive Scheme,
the exercise price in respect of any Options granted shall be
RMB8.00, which was by reference to the Company’s audited net
assets per share when the Pre-IPO Share Incentive Scheme was
adopted.

Adjustment

If our Company conducts capital reserve capitalization, bonus
shares issue, share subdivision of shares, share split, share
reduction, allotment or issuance of shares, the Board shall adjust
the number and price of the Pre-IPO Share Options.

Lock-up

The Domestic Shares to be issued to the Grantees pursuant to
the exercise of the Options are subject to lock-up restrictions in
accordance with the Articles of Association, the Company Law,
the PRC Securities Law, the Listing Rules and other relevant
laws and regulations. In particular, where the Grantee is a
Director, Supervisor or a member of the senior management of
our Company, the number of Shares which may be transferred
or disposed by the Grantee each year upon the exercise of the
Options shall not exceed 25% of the total number of the Shares
held by him/her. No Grantee shall transfer or dispose any Shares
held by him/her within (i) one year from the Listing Date and (ii)
six months after his/her resignation from the positions held in our
Group.

Ranking of the Shares

The Domestic Shares to be allotted and issued upon the exercise
of an Option will be subject to the provisions of the Articles of
Association and shall rank pari passu in all respects with other
Shares in issue as of the date of allotment and will entitle the
holders to participate in all dividends or other distributions paid
or made on or after the date of exercise of the Option subject to
the rules of the Pre-IPO Share Incentive Scheme. The Pre-IPO
Share Option(s) held by the Grantees are not Share(s) and do
not confer rights related to voting and dividends to the Grantees.
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(m) Transfer of Options

(n)

(o)

The Options held by the Grantees shall not be exercised prior
to Listing. After exercising the Options, the Grantee can obtain
profits by reducing its shareholdings in the secondary market
or other lawful means after the expiration of the lock-up period,
which is subject to the prerequisites stipulated in the Pre-IPO
Share Incentive Scheme. A Grantee shall not assign, transfer by
way of gift his/her Pre-IPO Share Option(s) or use his/her Pre-IPO
Share Option(s) as a guarantee or to repay debts.

Arrangement for Special Circumstances to the Pre-IPO Share
Incentive Scheme

In the event that the Grantee retires, dies (naturally or due to
injuries sustained from work) or became incapacitated, all his/her
Options which are exercisable but not yet exercised shall remain
exercisable and shall be exercised within three months after the
occurrence of such circumstance(s), and his/her Options which
are not exercisable shall be cancelled.

Where a Grantee changes his/her position in our Company by
reason of, among others, violation of laws causing losses to
our Company, violates our Company’s rules and regulations, or
is held criminally responsible, the Options that have not been
exercised by the Grantee will lapse. In relation to the exercised
Options, our Company or the Board has the right to recover the
relevant proceeds in accordance with the terms of the Pre-IPO
Share Incentive Scheme.

Where a Grantee resigns (including the lapse of employment
contract), the Options that are not exercised by the Grantee will
lapse on the termination date. Where a Grantee is terminated
or dismissed by reason of, among others, violation of our
Company’s rules and regulations, seriously prejudicing the
interest of our Company, or was held criminally responsible, the
Options that have not been exercised by the Grantee will lapse

on the date of termination.

Alteration of the Pre-IPO Share Incentive Scheme

If the Pre-IPO Share Incentive Scheme needs to be modified for
any special situation, our Company shall implement the internal
review procedure again and fully disclose the contents of the
Pre-IPO Share Incentive Scheme.
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(p) BREBEXAHBEAREHERB (p) Outstanding Options granted under the Pre-IPO Share
BRI RITENRZAE Incentive Scheme
FA - REBEZSFEIRINOT ¢ During the Year, details for changes of Options are set out as
follows:
RESHEHE
Number of share options"“ "
#2023 #2023 %
1818 REEER  REEER  RRESER  REEER 12A31A
fTiEE BT B 2y T8 R HRITE
(AR®) Outstanding Granted  Exercised  Cancelled Lapsed Outstanding
TS Exercise asat  duringthe  duringthe  duringthe  during the as at
534 #2 BLAH Exercise Price  1January  Reporting  Reporting  Reporting Reporting 31 December
No. Name Date of grant ~ Period (RMB) 2023 Period Period Period  Period"*? 2023

FRREE  BETRARAIERR
Directors, Chief executive or substantial shareholder of the Company

1. RER 2023%6A208 202468208 - 8.00 - 5,000,000 - - 1,500,000 3,500,000
(BERENES) 2033%F6A19R
Chen Xiaomin (&) 20 June 2023 20 June 2024 to
(Chairman of the Board 19 June 2033
and executive Director)
2. BEE(BES) 202356208 2024568208 - 8.00 - 1,200,000 - - 360,000 840,000
2033564190
Yang Zeyun (EE) 20 June 2023 20 June 2024 to
(Executive Director) 19 June 2033
3. IH(ALAMBEEZ - 22023567208 202456720 - 8.00 - 100,000 - - 30,000 70,000
BRERBRLANE) 2033564 19A
Wang Jun (£5) 20 June 2023 20 June 2024 to
(Financial director, 19 June 2033

deputy general manager
of the Company and joint

company secretary)
N - 6,300,000 - - 1,890,000 4,410,000
Sub-total
4 ARTEUEER 2023%F6F208 2024F6F208 - 8.00 - 5,765,000 - - 1,729,500 4,035,500
2033%6A19A
Other Employees of the 20 June 2023 20 June 2024 to
Company 19 June 2033
@it - 12,065,000 - - 3,619,500 8,445,500
Total
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Notes: (1) The above share options shall be vested in three tranches
with the first vesting date on 20 June 2024. For details of the
next vesting date, please refer to “(f) Vesting and Exercise
of Options” above.

(2) As the financial performance of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2023 has not fulfilled the exercise
condition as set out in “- (g) Vesting and Exercise of
Options” above, the aforesaid number of Options lapsed
was reflected in the above table respectively.

Except as set out above, no other Options have been granted or
agreed to be granted by the Company under the Pre-IPO Share
Incentive Scheme during the Reporting Period.

The fair value of the Options granted on 20 June 2023 was
RMB12.88 per Share at the date of grant. Details of the valuation
of the Options of the Company during the Reporting Period,
including the accounting standard and policy adopted for the
Pre-IPO Share Incentive Scheme, are set out in note 31(b) to the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

12,065,000 Shares, representing approximately 2.82 % of the
weighted average number of Shares for the Reporting Period,
may be issued in respect of the Options granted during the
Reporting Period to the Eligible Participants pursuant to the Pre-
IPO Share Incentive Scheme.

General

The Pre-IPO Share Incentive Scheme is not subject to the
provisions of Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules as it has not
involved any grant of Options by the Company since the Listing.

The Remuneration Committee, at its meeting held on 26 March 2024,

has reviewed the Pre-IPO Share Incentive Scheme.
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Report of the Board of Directors

PUBLIC FLOAT

The Stock Exchange has granted to the Company a waiver from strict
compliance with Rule 8.08(1)(a) of the Listing Rules (the “Public
Float Waiver”). Pursuant to the Public Float Waiver, the Company’s
prescribed minimum percentage of Shares which must be in public
hands must not be less than 15% of the total issued share capital of
the Company (including the Shares that may be issued under the Pre-
IPO Share Incentive Scheme). Based on information publicly available
to the Company and to the best knowledge of the Directors, at least
15% of the Company’s total issued Shares, the required minimum
percentage of public float approved by the Stock Exchange under the
Public Float Waiver, was held by the public since the Listing Date and
up to the date of this annual report.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance in respect of
legal actions arising out of corporate activities against the current
Directors, Supervisors and senior management of the Company and
its associated companies and the Directors, Supervisors and senior
management of the Company and its associated companies who
resigned during the year ended 31 December 2023. The permitted
indemnity provision is in force and was in force during the Reporting
Period for the benefit of the Directors as required by the provisions of
the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the laws of Hong Kong).

DONATION

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group made charitable
and other donations of approximately RMB0.28 million (2022: RMB0.12

million).

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company recognizes the importance of good corporate
governance for enhancing the management of the Company as well
as preserving the interests of The Shareholders as a whole. The
Company has adopted the code provisions set out in the CG Code
as its own code to govern its corporate governance practices. In the
opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied with the relevant
code provisions contained in the CG Code during the period from the
Listing Date to 31 December 2023.

Details of the Group’s corporate governance practices can be found
in the corporate governance report contained on pages 80 to 106 of
this annual report.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE

The Company has adopted the Model Code as the code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by the Directors and Supervisors.

The Board is pleased to confirm that, after making specific enquiries
with all Directors and Supervisors, all Directors and Supervisors have
fully complied with the standards required according to the Model
Code during the Reporting Period.

AUDITOR

The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared in
accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards and audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers who will retire as the auditor of the Company
(the “Auditor”) at the forthcoming AGM of the Company and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the
re-appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers as the Auditor will be
proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

There has been no change in Auditor since the Listing Date and up to
the date of this annual report.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The events after the Reporting Period has been disclosed in section
“Management Discussion and Analysis — Subsequent Events after
the Reporting Period” on page 30 of this annual report. Save for the
above, there were no events occurred that have significantly affected
the Group up to the date of this annual report.

By order of the Board
Mr. Chen Xiaomin
Chairman and Executive Director

Jiaxing, the People’s Republic of China
26 March 2024
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Report of the Supervisors

During the Reporting Period, all members of the Supervisory
Committee have complied with the principle of integrity and earnestly
performed their supervisory duties in accordance with the relevant
regulations set out in the PRC Company Law, the Articles of
Association and Rules of Procedures of the Supervisory Committee to
safeguard the interests of the Shareholders and the Company.

COMPOSITION OF THE SUPERVISORY
COMMITTEE

The Supervisory Committee currently consists of three Supervisors,
among which one of them is the chairman to the supervisory board.
Pursuant to our Articles of Association, at least one-third of our
supervisors must be employee representatives elected by our
employees. We have one employee representative supervisor elected
by our employees and two shareholder representative supervisors
elected and appointed by our Shareholders at the general meeting.
Each of the supervisors elected by our employees and/or by our
Shareholders is appointed for a term of three years which is renewable
upon re-election and re-appointment. Composition of the Supervisory
Committee is set out as follows:

M B

Name Position

MEs L+ EEETRF

Ms. Lin Minting Chairlady of the Supervisory Committee
FRE R E BIRKES

Mr. Hu Muzhou Employee representative Supervisor
Y £

Mr. Liao Han Supervisor

EEeRBEMENEIETE
R

FAR-EESOMIREE  FHEOT

R2023F2[220 R EBHE—ES
AREH  EATZREABRIMNBERA
A]HiBallard Hong Kong Limited (Ballard
Power Systems Inc. 92 &K BAR) A1

HURFEE

MR2023F3A318 EE e BHE—ES
NREHE  EXABRRIEERNETESE
HERAERER -

MAJOR WORK PERFORMED BY THE
SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE DURING THE
REPORTING PERIOD

For the Year, the Supervisory Committee held 4 meetings and the
details are as follows:

On 22 February 2023, the fifth meeting of the first session of the
Supervisory Committee was held and the resolutions on strengthening
the cooperation between the Company and Ballard Hong Kong
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Ballard Power Systems Inc.
were duly considered and approved.

On 31 March 2023, the sixth meeting of the first session of the
Supervisory Committee was held and the resolutions on the
amendments to the Rules of Procedure for Supervisory Committee
were duly considered and approved.
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On 20 June 2023, the seventh meeting of the first session of the
Supervisory Committee was held and the resolutions on determining
the Eligible Participants as Grantees and granting of Options to the
Eligible Participants under the Pre-IPO Share Incentive Scheme were
duly considered and approved.

On 20 June 2023, the eighth meeting of the first session of the
Supervisory Committee was held and the resolutions on the matters
considered by the Board of Supervisors during the year ended 31
December 2023 were duly considered and approved.

COMMENTS OF THE SUPERVISORY
COMMITTEE ON CERTAIN MATTERS OF THE
COMPANY IN 2023

During the Reporting Period, the members of the Supervisory
Committee adhered to the principles of fidelity and accountability to all
Shareholders and duly performed their duties and works according to
the relevant laws and regulations. The Supervisory Committee worked
actively, supervised the regulatory compliance and operation, financial
condition, use of proceeds and internal control of the Company
through attending Shareholders’ general meeting, Board meetings and
audit and inspection as non-voting delegates and onsite inspections.
The Supervisory Committee has arrived at the following opinions:

(1) During the Reporting Period, the Board of Directors
conscientiously performed the rights and obligations conferred
by the PRC Company Law and the Articles of Association,
made timely decisions on major matters such as operation
plans and conscientiously implemented the resolutions of
the General Meeting and the Board of Directors. The senior
management operated in accordance with the law and in a
standardized manner. The Directors and senior management
were able to perform their obligations in good faith, and there
were no violations of the law, the Articles of Association or acts
detrimental to the interests of shareholders.

(2) During the Reporting Period, the Supervisory Committee
supervised and inspected the financial system and financial
position of the Company and considered that the Company’s
financial system was sound, its financial operations were
standardized and its financial position was good, and that the
Company’s annual audit report and the independent auditor’s
report truly, accurately and completely reflected the financial
position, results of operations and cash flows of the Company.
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Report of the Supervisors

(8) From the Listing Date to the date of this annual report, the
Supervisory Committee supervised the actual application of funds
raised from the Global Offering. The Supervisory Committee
was of opinion that the Company strictly complied with the use
disclosed in the Prospectus in the management of funds raised.
The use of funds raised conformed to the Company’s project
plan and approval decision procedure without any appropriation
of funds raised in breach of stipulation. For details of the usage
of the funds, please refer to the paragraph headed “Use of
proceeds from Global Offering” in the “Report of board of
Directors” in this annual report.

(4) The Supervisory Committee has conducted a review on the
Company and considered that the Company has established an
appropriate internal control system in all material aspects and the
internal control system has operated effectively, thus ensuring its
consistent implementation and normal production and operation.

WORK PLAN FOR 2024

In the coming year, the Supervisory Committee will continue to fulfill
and comply with its supervisory duties conferred by the relevant laws
and regulations and the Articles of Association over members of the
Board and senior management of the Company and strengthen its
supervisory functions to improve the corporate governance structure
of the Company.

The Supervisory Committee will continue to monitor the regulatory
compliance of the Company and actively supervise the operation
of the internal control system to effectively prevent and reduce
operational risks and improve operational efficiency. Furthermore, the
Supervisory Committee will continuously examine the financial position
of the Company and deepen its supervision on the Company’s
financial operation. The Supervisory Committee will continue to
act honestly and due diligently so as to promote the sustainable
development of the Company and safeguard the interests of the
Shareholders.

On behalf of the Supervisory Committee
Ms. LIN Minting
Chairlady of Supervisory Committee

Jiaxing, the People’s Republic of China
26 March 2024
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The Board is pleased to present herein the corporate governance
report of the Company for the Year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Directors and the management of the Group recognize the
importance of sound corporate governance to the long-term success
and continuing development of the Group. Therefore, the Board is
committed to upholding good corporate standards and procedures,
so as to improve the accountability system and transparency of the
Group, protect the interests and create value for the Shareholders.

The Company has adopted the principles and code provisions set
out in the section headed “Part 2 - Principles of good corporate
governance, code provisions and recommended best practices” of CG
Code as the basis of the Company’s corporate governance practices.
Save as disclosed herein, the Board is of the view that the Group has
complied with the applicable code provisions under the CG Code
during the period from the Listing Date to 31 December 2023 (the
‘Relevant Period”).

The Company will continue to regularly review and monitor its
corporate governance practices to ensure compliance with the CG
Code and maintain a high standard of corporate governance practices
of the Company.

CORPORATE PURPOSE, CULTURE AND
VALUES

The Company is dedicated to creating a clean and sustainable world,
leading the way in hydrogen energy and creating the future together.
Through continued technological innovations and product iterations,
the Company has contributed to the transformation of the hydrogen
fuel cell industry as well as the development and commercialization of
the hydrogen energy technologies in the PRC since its establishment.

The Group’s corporate culture is built around a dedication to the
research and development of independently developed products,
high-quality mass-productions, continuously leading the development
of hydrogen fuel cell industry in the PRC.
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The Group’s leading and continuously upgrading technology is
the bedrock for its competitive products, mass-production and
commercialization capabilities, as well as its leading position in the
industry.

The Group aims to leverage its leading position to pave a sustainable
development pathway for China’s hydrogen energy industry and
accelerate the adoption of clean and low-carbon energy sources in
China. We will adopt the following strategies to achieve our goals:

° Further investment in research and development of core products

to improve product performance and competitiveness

° Expand production capacity in accordance with local policies
and opportunities

° Actively venture into raw materials and components aspects of
the industry and enhance industry-wide synergies

° Expand the applications of hydrogen fuel cell technology and
accelerate the commercialization of hydrogen energy industry

The Directors believe that the Company’s ever-developing culture and
business strategies would create long-term value for Shareholders.

At its meeting held on 26 March 2024, the Board had assessed
the progress and implementation of the aforesaid strategies and
considered that they were appropriate and successful for the
generation of Shareholders’ long-term values.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as the code of conduct
and rules governing dealings in the securities of the Company by
all the Directors and Supervisors, and the Group’s employees who,
because of his/her office or employment, are likely to possess inside
information in relation to the Group or the Company’s securities.
Having made specific enquiry of all the Directors and Supervisors,
they have confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code
during the Relevant Period.

The Company was not aware of any incidents of non-compliance with
the Model Code by relevant employees for the Relevant Period.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company is headed by an effective Board which oversees the
businesses, strategic decisions and performance of the Group and
takes decisions objectively in the best interests of the Company.

The Board regularly reviews the contribution required from a Director
to perform his/her responsibilities to the Company, and whether the
Director is spending sufficient time performing them.

Board Composition

As at the date of this annual report, the Board consists of nine
Directors, including three executive Directors, three non-executive
Directors and three INEDs as follow:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Chen Xiaomin (Chairman of the Board)
Mr. Yang Zeyun
Mr. Ye Jiajie

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Zhan Zhanlin
Mr. Huang Jiao
Dr. Wan Yu

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Liu Xin
Dr. Xing Wei
Ms. Wong Yan Ki, Angel

The biographical information of the Directors are set out in the section
headed “Profiles of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management”
on pages 31 to 43 of this annual report. Save as disclosed therein,
to the best knowledge of the Company, there has been no financial,
business, family, or other material/relevant relationship(s) among the
Directors.
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Chairman of the Board and General Manager

Code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of
chairman and chief executive should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual, to reinforce their respective
independence and accountability. Since the Listing Date and up to the
date of this annual report, Mr. Chen Xiaomin, our executive Director,
has been the chairman of the Board responsible for presiding over our
overall strategic planning and production and operation management
of the Board, while Mr. Yang Zeyun, our executive Director, being
has been the general manager of the Company and responsible for
managing the daily business operations of the Group. Therefore, the
division of responsibilities between the chairman of the Board and the
general manager has been clearly established.

As the Company was only listed on the Stock Exchange on 5
December 2023, which is less than one month away from 31
December 2023, no meeting was held by the chairman of the Board
with the INEDs without the presence of other Directors during the year
ended 31 December 2023.

On 26 March 2024, in his capacity as the chairman of the Board, Mr.
Chen met with all the INEDs without the presence of other Directors.

Board, Board Committees and General Meetings and Directors’
Attendance Records

The Company has adopted the practice of holding regular Board
meetings at least four times a year. Notice of not less than 14 days is
given of all regular Board meetings to provide all Directors with the
opportunity to attend and include matters in the agenda. The agenda
and accompanying board papers are despatched to the Directors or
members of the committees of our Board (the “Board Committee(s)”)
at least three days before meetings to ensure that they have sufficient
time to review these documents and be adequately prepared. When
Directors or Board Committee members are unable to attend a
meeting, they are advised of the matters to be discussed and are
given an opportunity to make their views known to the chairman of
the Board prior to the meeting. The Directors can attend meetings
in person or through other means of electronic communication in
accordance with the Articles of Association.

Minutes of the Board meetings and the Board Committee meetings are
recorded in detail and include the matters considered by the Board
and the Board Committees and the decisions reached, including
any concerns raised by the Directors. Draft minutes of each Board
meeting and Board Committee meeting are sent to the Directors within
a reasonable time after the date on which the meeting is held so that
they have an opportunity to request amendments.
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Since the Company was only listed on the Stock Exchange on 5
December 2023, no meeting of the Board and Board Committees have
been held by the Company during the Relevant Period. Subsequent
to the Reporting Period and up to the date of this annual report, one
meeting of each of the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee,
Remuneration Committee, and the Board has been held by the
Company. All Directors and members of the Board committees
attended the aforementioned meetings, respectively.

Due to the fact that the Company was listed on 5 December 2023, no
general meeting was held during the Relevant Period.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

According to the Articles of Association, Directors shall be elected
by the general meeting with a three-year term. The term of office of
Directors shall last from the date on which the Directors take office to
the expiration of the term of office of the current Board of Directors.
Upon the expiration of the term, the Directors may be re-elected and
serve consecutive terms.

Unless otherwise required by the applicable law, the Shareholders
may remove any Director (including non-executive Director or INEDs)
before the expiration of his/her term of office by way of an ordinary
resolution at the general meeting, without prejudice to claims for
damages made by the Director pursuant to any contract.

Responsibilities, Accountabilities and Contributions of the Board
and Management

The Board, being the primary decision-making body of the Company,
assumes responsibility for leadership and control of the Company.
The Board sets fundamental business strategies and policies for the
management and operation of the Company’s business and monitors
their implementation.

The Board directly, and indirectly through the Board Committees,
leads and provides direction to management by laying down strategies
and overseeing their implementation, monitors the Group’s operational
and financial performance, and ensures that sound internal control
and risk management systems are in place.

All Directors, including executive Directors, non-executive Directors,
and INEDs, bring a wide spectrum of valuable business experience,
knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and
effective functioning. The INEDs are responsible for ensuring a
high standard of regulatory reporting of the Company and bring
independent judgment to the decision-making process of our Board.
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The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other offices
held by them.

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating to
policy, strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management,
material transactions (in particular those that may involve a conflict
of interests), financial information, the appointment of Directors and
other significant operational matters of the Company. Responsibilities
relating to implementing decisions of the Board, directing and
coordinating the daily operation and management of the Company are
delegated to management team. Such arrangement will be reviewed
periodically to ensure they remain appropriate to the Company’s
needs.

To facilitate the decision-making process, the Directors are free to
have access to the management for enquiries and to obtain further
information when required. The Directors can also seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s
expense, in discharging their duties to the Company. All Directors
have unrestricted access to Joint Company Secretaries who are
responsible for ensuring that the Board/committee procedures are
complied with, and for advising the Board/committee(s) on compliance
matters.

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance on
Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of any legal actions taken
against Directors and senior management arising out of corporate
activities. The insurance coverage would be reviewed on an annual
basis.

Independent Non-executive Directors

During the period from the Listing Date to the date of this annual
report, the Board at all times met the requirements of the Listing
Rules relating to the appointment of at least three INEDs representing
one-third of the Board with one of whom possessing appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial

management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each of
the INEDs in respect of his/her independence in accordance with the
independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company is of the view that all INEDs are independent.
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Continuous Professional Development of Directors

Directors shall keep abreast of regulatory developments and changes
in order to effectively perform their responsibilities and to ensure that
their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.

Each newly appointed Director is provided with necessary induction
and information to ensure that he/she has a proper understanding
of the Company’s operations and businesses as well as his/her
responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant
regulatory requirements upon commencement of their directorship in
the Company. Such induction shall be supplemented by meetings with
senior management of the Company.

Directors are encouraged to participate in appropriate continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills. Internally-facilitated briefings for Directors would be arranged
and reading material on relevant topics would be provided to Directors
where appropriate.

All Directors are encouraged to attend relevant training courses at the
Company'’s expenses.

Prior to the Listing and during the Relevant Period, the Company
organized training sessions conducted by the qualified professionals/
legal advisers for all Directors. The training sessions covered
Directors’ duties and responsibilities. In addition, relevant reading
materials covering Directors’ duties and responsibilities have been
provided to the Directors for their reference and studying.
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The training records of the Directors up to date of this annual report

TS 8 are summarized as follows:
g

BE Directors Type of Training Nete)
HITEE Executive Directors
RS L (FEL) Mr. Chen Xiaomin (Chairman of the Board) A&B
BEELE Mr. Yang Zeyun A&B
HERtk4E Mr. Ye Jiajie A&B
HHITEE Non-executive Directors
EEMEE Mr. Zhan Zhanlin A&B
FREE Mr. Huang Jiao A&B
BFEL Dr. Wan Yu A&B
BUHBITEE Independent non-executive Directors
Bl Mr. Liu Xin A&B
pjiit= N tam Dr. Xing Wei A&B
Ei/$i 8 e Ms. Wong Yan Ki, Angel A&B

B E Notes:

A 2NEYERE . aFEERERHEE 5 A: attending training sessions, including but not limited to, seminars,

e HIERETI - briefings, conferences, forums and workshops.
B: MEAELE. —MEBR PEBTARE B: reading newspapers, journals and updates relating to the economy,

ERANEEORE  PTREFES

general business, corporate governance and directors’ duties and
responsibilities.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board delegates certain responsibilities to various Board
Committees. In accordance with the relevant PRC laws and
regulations, the Articles of Association and the Listing Rules, the
Board has established its Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee,
Nomination Committee and Strategy Committee. All Board Committees
are established with specific written rules of procedures which deal
clearly with their authority and duties. The rules of procedures of the
Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee
and Strategy Committee are posted on the Company’'s website
(www.sinosynergypower.com) and the Stock Exchange’s website
(www.hkexnews.hk) and are available to Shareholders upon request.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established in compliance with Rule 3.21
of the Listing Rules and the CG Code on 28 October 2022. The Audit
Committee consists of three INEDs, namely Ms. Wong Yan Ki, Angel,
Mr. Liu Xin and Dr. Xing Wei, with Ms. Wong Yan Ki, Angel being the
chairlady of the committee.

The primary function of the Audit Committee is to assist our Board in
providing an independent view of the Company’s financial reporting
process, internal control and risk management system, overseeing
the audit process and performing other duties and responsibilities as

assigned by our Board which includes, amongst other things:

o proposing to the Board the appointment, reappointment and
replacement of external audit firms;

° supervising the implementation of our internal audit system;

° liaising between our internal audit department and external
auditor;

° reviewing our financial information and related disclosures; and

° other duties conferred by the Board of Directors.
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Code provision D.3.3(e)(i) of the CG Code provides that members
of the Audit Committee should liaise with the Board and senior
management and the Audit Committee must meet, at least twice a
year, with the Company’s auditor. As the Company was only listed
on the Stock Exchange on 5 December 2023, which is less than one
month away from 31 December 2023, no meeting was held by the
Audit Committee during the Relevant Period.

At its meeting held on 26 March 2024, the Audit Committee had
reviewed audited annual results for the year ended 31 December 2023
and this annual report, and confirmed that this annual report complies
with the applicable accounting principles, standards, the Listing Rules,
and other applicable legal requirements and that adequate disclosures
have been made. There is no disagreement between the Board and
the Audit Committee regarding the selection and appointment of
external auditor. The Audit Committee has recommended to the Board
that PricewaterhouseCoopers be nominated for re-appointment as
the Company’s auditor at the forthcoming AGM. The Audit Committee
has also reviewed and discussed the risk management and internal
control measures and systems of the Company, the effectiveness
of the Company’s internal audit function, financial reporting and the
appointment of the external auditor, including selecting and assessing
the independence and qualifications of the external auditor, and
ensuring effective communication between the Directors and external
auditor. The Board is of the view that the Audit Committee has
properly discharged its duties and responsibilities during the Relevant
Period and up to the date of this annual report.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established in compliance with
Rule 3.25 of Listing Rules and the CG Code on 28 October 2022. The
Remuneration Committee consists of two INEDs and one executive
Director and is chaired by an INED. The members of the Remuneration
Committee are Mr. Liu Xin, Mr. Chen and Ms. Wong Yan Ki, Angel,
with Mr. Liu Xin being the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.
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The primary function of the Remuneration Committee is to develop
remuneration policies of our Directors, evaluate the performance,
make recommendations on the remuneration packages of our
Directors and senior management and evaluate and make
recommendations on employee benefit arrangements which includes,
among other things:

. establishing, reviewing and making recommendations to our
Directors on our policy and structure concerning remuneration of
our Directors and senior management;

° determining the terms of the specific remuneration package of
each Director and members of senior management;

o reviewing and approving performance-based remuneration by
reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved by our
Directors from time to time; and

° other duties conferred by the Board.

The remuneration of the Directors and senior management is
determined with reference to the level of remuneration paid by
comparable companies, the time commitment and responsibilities of
Directors and senior management, and the employment conditions of
the Company and its subsidiaries and consolidated affiliated entities.
The level of remuneration takes into consideration the remuneration
required to attract and retain to manage the Company successfully.
No Director or senior management of the Company is involved in
deciding his/her own remuneration.

According to code provision E.1.5 of the CG Code, the annual
remuneration for senior management (excluding Directors and
Supervisors) of the Company by band for the year ended 31
December 2023 falls within the following bands:

AB

FEE (AR T) Remuneration band (RMB) Number of Individuals

2,000,001 to 3,000,000
3,000,001 to 4,000,000
4,000,001 to 5,000,000
9,000,001 to 10,000,000

2,000,001% 3,000,000
3,000,001% 4,000,000
4,000,001%5,000,000
9,000,001% 10,000,000

o N =
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As the Company was only listed on the Stock Exchange on 5
December 2023, which is less than one month away from 31
December 2023, no meeting was held by the Remuneration Committee
during the Relevant Period.

At its meeting held on 26 March 2024, the Remuneration Committee
discussed and reviewed the service agreement and remuneration
policy for Directors and senior management of the Company during
2023, and made recommendations to the Board on the service
agreement and remuneration packages of individual executive
Directors and senior management. The Remuneration Committee has
also reviewed the Pre-IPO Share Incentive Scheme at its meeting held
on 26 March 2024. The Board is of the view that the Remuneration
Committee had properly discharged its duties and responsibilities
during the Reporting Period and up to the date of this annual report.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established in compliance with Rule
3.27A of the Listing Rules and the CG Code on 28 October 2022.
The Nomination Committee consists of two INEDs, and one executive
Director. It is chaired by the chairman of the Board. The members of
the Nomination Committee are Mr. Chen, Mr. Liu Xin and Dr. Xing Wei,
with Mr. Chen being the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The primary function of the Nomination Committee is to make
recommendations to our Board in relation to the appointment and
removal of Directors which includes, among other things:

. reviewing the structure, size and composition of our Board on
a regular basis and making recommendations to the Board

regarding any proposed changes;

. identifying, selecting or making recommendations to our Board
on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

o assessing the independence of our INEDs;
. making recommendations to the Board on relevant matters
relating to the appointment, re-appointment and removal of our

Directors; and

o other duties conferred by the Board of Directors.
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In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee would
take into account various aspects as well as factors concerning
Board diversity as set out in the Company’'s Board diversity policy
(the “Board Diversity Policy”). The Nomination Committee would
discuss and agree on measurable objectives for achieving diversity on
the Board, where necessary, and recommend them to the Board for
adoption.

Director Nomination Policy

The Company has adopted a director nomination policy as contained
in the rules of procedures of the Nomination Committee, which sets
out the selection criteria and nomination process and the Board
succession planning considerations in relation to nomination and
appointment of Directors and aims to ensure that the Board has a
balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate
to the Company and the continuity of the Board and appropriate
leadership at Board level.

The nomination process of appointment of new Director set out in the
rules of procedures of the Nomination Committee is as follows:

The Nomination Committee shall promptly communicate with
relevant departments of the Company to check the need for new
Directors and prepare written materials in relation thereto;

ii. The Nomination Committee can extensively hunt for the
candidates for Directors inside the Company and the wholly-
owned companies, holding companies (invested companies) and
the human resource market;

ii. To collect information on the preliminary candidates, including
career, academic degree, technical title, detailed working
experience and all part-time positions, and prepare written
materials in relation thereto;

iv. To seek for the consent from the nominated candidates on the
proposed nomination; otherwise, such nominated candidates
shall not be considered as candidates for Directors;

v.  To convene a meeting of the Nomination Committee, and review
qualifications of preliminary candidates pursuant to the working
requirements for Directors;
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vi. To submit relevant suggestions and relevant documents related
to the candidates for Directors to the Board before the election of
new Directors; and

vii. To carry out other follow-up works pursuant to the decision and
feedback of the Board.

In identifying and selecting suitable candidates for directorships,
the Nomination Committee would consider the candidate’s relevant
criteria as set out in the Board Diversity Policy that are necessary to
complement the corporate strategies and achieve Board diversity,
where appropriate, before making recommendations to the Board.

As the Company was only listed on the Stock Exchange on 5
December 2023, which is less than one month away from 31
December 2023, no meeting was held by the Nomination Committee
during the Relevant Period.

At its meeting held on 26 March 2024, the Nomination Committee
reviewed and assessed the implementation of the Board Diversity
Policy and assessed the independence of the INEDs.

Strategy Committee

The Strategy Committee consists of two executive Directors and one
INED. It is chaired by the chairman of the Board. The members of the
Strategy Committee are Mr. Chen, Mr. Liu Xin and Mr. Yang Zeyun,
with Mr. Chen being the chairman of the Strategy Committee.
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The primary function of the Strategy Committee is to devise and
advise on the long-term strategy and material investment decisions
of the Company and putting forward suggestions. The Strategy
Committee will assist our Board in discharging its duties with respect
to the development and implementation of the Company’s strategic
plan and the risks associated with such plan which includes, among
other things:

° researching and making recommendations on our Company’s
long-term development strategic plan;

° researching and making recommendations on material
investment and financing plans that require the approval of the
Board as stipulated in the Articles of Association or authorized
by the Shareholders; and

° researching and making recommendations on material capital
operations and asset management projects that require the
approval of the Board as stipulated in the Articles of Association
or authorized by the Shareholders.

As the Company was only listed on the Stock Exchange on 5
December 2023, which is less than one month away from 31
December 2023, no meeting was held by the Strategy Committee
during the Relevant Period.

At its meeting held on 26 March 2024, the Strategy Committee
considered and made recommendations on the Company’s long-term
development strategic plan.

SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

The Supervisory Committee is a supervisory body of the Company
that is responsible for the supervision of the Board and its members
and senior management so as to prevent them from the misuse of
authority and infringement upon lawful rights of the Shareholders, the
Company and the Company’s employees. The number of members
and the composition of the Supervisory Committee are in line with
the provisions and requirements of the laws, regulations and the
Articles of Association. The Supervisory Committee is comprised of
three Supervisors, of whom one was an employee representative
democratically elected by the employees of the Company.

The biographical information of the Supervisors is set out in the
section headed “Profiles of Directors, Supervisors and Senior
Management” on pages 31 to 43 of this annual report.

94 e SINO-SYNERGY HYDROGEN ENERGY TECHNOLOGY (JIAXING) CO., LTD. Annual Report 2023



EFER/EXERABREFOHRAR

A W B R AR B M B MR AR E ST
ERERBENER

s BULERBEENSHEEEMNE
MIFEEERER

o HIE BAMEREELREFERD
TRTARERTM

o HIERBRIAARTMERERHER
BERITAMAESSROERREL
PEHR -

s BIARFTHEEEATANETIE
TAR TR EFIRAEE

EEEABRRES

EZeRA DENCEEAREERBY
EPARRESEEABNM — B ERE
BRI DA R AR R PR H AR IR 6 & B R
THERER - Wt - ARBEHENRT
BR R EI - WHREETRE - UERAE
SEMEERERERNER

s EEEREEEZIL
s WREFRSAUEIEBYER
o REFSRER

EZgREEES L
ARFCHRMEFTEZ LK EFH
IERMEREZTELTIENBERRES
E e ERAYFREZTELT(CM &
THRSEFEEEMNZ T (BEEZ
TAE)KFERERARARBBEFED IR
THARBEZRREZOABAT EH R
5 BENMABREENENNZLESR -

EEERRE

Corporate Governance Report

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board recognizes that corporate governance should be the
collective responsibility of the Directors which includes:

° to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

° to review and monitor the training and continuous professional

development of the Directors and senior management;

° to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual applicable to employees and Directors;

o to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the Board
and report to the Board on such matters; and

° to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the annual report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE POLICIES AND
MECHANISM

The Board recognizes that a comprehensive corporate governance
management structure is crucial in helping the Company to implement
its strategies and policies effectively and consistently throughout the
Group, and safeguard the long-term interests of its Shareholders.
Accordingly, the Company has established the following policies and
mechanism and has continuously reviewed them to ensure that the
Group meets the requirements of the applicable laws and regulations:

° Board and Management Diversity
° Ensuring Independent Views Available to the Board
° Anti-corruption and Whistle-blowing

Board and Management Diversity

The Company has adopted the Board Diversity Policy which sets
out the objectives and approach to achieve and maintain diversity
of the Board. It recognizes and embraces the benefits of having
a diverse Board and sees increasing diversity at our Board level,
including gender diversity, as an essential element in maintaining
the Company’s competitive advantage and enhancing its ability to
attract, retain and motivate employees from the widest possible pool
of available talent.
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All Board nominations, appointments and reappointments will
continue to be made on a merit basis with due regard for the benefits
of diversity of the Board members and the nomination policy of
the Company. Pursuant to the Board diversity policy, selection of
candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, language, cultural and
educational background, professional qualifications, skills, knowledge,
industry and regional experience and length of service.

Our Directors have a balanced mix of gender, knowledge, skills and
experience, including management, strategic development, business
development, research and development, investment management,
legal etc. They obtained academic degrees in various fields such as
business administration, international economics and trade, computer
science and technology and mechanics. We have three independent
non-executive Directors who have different industry backgrounds,
representing one-third of the Board members. As at the date of this
annual report, the Board consisted of one female and eight male
Directors with experience from different industries and sectors with
ages ranging from 34 years old to 60 years old.

Gender Diversity

With respect to gender diversity, Ms. Wong Yan Ki, Angel, an INED
and the chairlady of the Audit Committee, Ms. Lin Minting, the
chairlady of the Supervisory Committee, and Ms. Li Jing, deputy
general manager and the secretary to the Board, having extensive
experience in their respective field, contribute to gender diversity of
the Board, the Supervisory Committee and its Senior Management.

While it is recognized that gender diversity of the Company can
be improved given that one out of nine of the Directors, one out of
three Supervisors and one out of six Senior Management members
are female, the Company considers that the gender diversity of the
Company is at an acceptable level. The Company will continue to
take steps to promote gender diversity at the Board and Supervisory
Committee, as well as all other levels of the Company from the Board
downwards to enhance the effectiveness of our corporate governance
as a whole. With regards to gender diversity on the Board, our board
diversity policy further provides that the Board shall take opportunities
to increase the proportion of female members over time when
selecting and making recommendations on suitable candidates for
Board appointments. The Board would ensure that an appropriate
balance of gender diversity is achieved with reference to stakeholders’
expectations and international and local recommended best practices,
with the goal of bringing the Board to gender parity. The Board will
(i) continue to make appointments based on merits with reference to
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board diversity as a whole; (ii) take steps to promote gender diversity
at all levels of the Company by recruiting staff of different gender;
(iii) consider the possibility of nominating female management staff
who has the necessary skills and experience to the Board; and (iv)
provide career development opportunities and more resources in
training female staff with the aim of promoting them to the senior
management or the Board so that we will have a pipeline of female
senior management and potential successors to the Board in a few
years’ time.

Workforce Diversity

The Company has adopted recruitment standards and procedures
to ensure equal work opportunities for its employees and potential
recruitment candidates without bias as to gender, age, race,
nationality or other factors. In addition, it is fully aware of the value
of a diverse and skilled work team and aims to continuously improve
diversity and inclusion. The following table sets forth the total
number of employees by gender as of 31 December 2022 and 2023,
respectively:

BZE12A31H
As of 31 December
20224 2023
2022 2023

ABL % AE %

person % person %

S Male 628 82.4 662 83.0
Eeq3 Female 134 17.6 136 17.0
“E Total 762 100.0 798(HiE)(Note) 100.0

Wit E E=2023F12A31H » £798%EEF »
B17TR2VBRERERTEEKES -

BERRARBRAUNE-—FTELH NN
el NREER/ENSBNZ T
BB (R B - MR Z T LAt 8k m]
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BRI E K

7‘5A2024¢3H26E|73Ff'ﬁm;;§¢ T EEg
FRAEEERT TEES L TERE
m;ﬁﬁﬁém%@,ﬁ;@F‘aﬁaﬁﬁﬁﬁ&“ﬁ@'\iﬁﬁﬁ%

=
N

Note: Out of 798 employees, there were 17 ethnic minority employees and 7
disabled employees as of 31 December 2023.

While the Company recognizes that gender diversity of the workforce
can be improved, the Group considers that the current composition
of workforce diversity objective (gender ratio, plan or measurable
objectives for gender diversity, factors or circumstances affecting the
gender ratio, etc) being at acceptable level.

At the meeting held on 26 March 2024, the Board and the Nomination
Committee have reviewed the Board Diversity Policy and was satisfied
with its implementation and effectiveness during the Relevant Period.
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Ensuring Independent Views Available to the Board

The Company has implemented different mechanisms to ensure
independent views being available to the Board:

. Composition of the Board: Throughout the Relevant Period, the
Board had at all times complied with Rules 3.10 and 3.10A of
the Listing Rules. The Company has three INEDs, representing
one-third of the Board. At least one of the INEDs has appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

o Independence assessment: Each of the INEDs has made his/
her annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all INEDs
have fulfilled the requirements of the independence guidelines
set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

. Board decision-making: A Director who has a material interest
in any transaction, contract, or arrangement shall abstain from
voting (and shall not be counted in the quorum) on any Board
resolution approving the same. If a substantial Shareholder or
a Director has a conflict of interest in a matter to be considered
by the Board which the Board has determined to be material,
such matter shall be dealt with in a Board meeting rather than
by a written resolution. The Directors can also seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company’s expense, to assist their performance of duties.

o Communication between the chairman of the Board and the
INEDs: The chairman of the Board values communication with
the INEDs and meets with them at least once each year, without
the presence of other Directors, to receive their independent
views and inputs in relation to a wide variety of matters of the
Company.

. Remuneration of INEDs: INEDs receive fixed remuneration
for their role as members of the Board and Board Committees.
No equity-based compensation, whether with or without
performance-related elements, is granted to the INEDs to avoid
potential bias in their decision-making or compromise to their
objectivity and independence.
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o Board evaluation: The Board assesses and reviews annually the
time contributed by each INED and their attendance at Board
and Board Committee meetings, so as to ensure that every
INED has devoted sufficient time to the Board to discharge his
responsibilities as a Director of the Company.

The Company has established formal and informal channels of
communication to ensure that independent views and inputs are
available to the Board. The Articles of Association and the rules
of procedures of various board committees have set out a formal
framework to ensure that the INEDs remain independent and free to
express their views, and their views are systematically considered by
the Board.

The implementation and effectiveness of the above mechanisms are
reviewed on an annual basis. At the meeting held on 26 March 2024,
the Board reviewed the mechanisms and was satisfied with their
implementation and effectiveness during the Relevant Period.

Anti-corruption and Whistleblowing

The Company has adopted an anti-corruption and anti-fraud policy as
part of its risk management and internal control measures.

o The internal control department is directly responsible for
the anti-corruption and anti-fraud risk management with an
anti-corruption committee established under it, comprising
designated personnel from the Company’s human resources,
internal control and legal departments.

o The Company has established a whistle-blower inbox
encouraging the internal report of suspicious activities. The
reported suspicious activities will be directed to the Audit
Committee for consideration and investigation, as the case may
be.

o The Group has zero-tolerance for corruption and does not accept
employment or promotion of persons responsible for corruption
incidents.

. The Group regularly provides training related to anti-corruption
to the employees that required the attendance of employees
across various departments. It also regularly arranges training
for the management teams on topics such as anti-bribery and
anti-corruption policies to ensure compliance at the management
level.
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o The Group requires all suppliers to execute anti-corruption
commitments before engagement.

At its meeting held on 26 March 2024, the Board has reviewed
the Company’s risk management and internal control measures
which covered the anti-corruption and whistleblowing policies and
considered that the current risk management and internal control
measures being adequate and effective.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Company is dedicated to the establishment and maintenance
of a robust risk management and internal control system. The
Group has adopted and has been continually improving our internal
control mechanisms to ensure the compliance of our business
operations. Furthermore, the Company conducts periodic reviews
of the implementation of the Group’s risk management policies and
internal control measures (including those relating to Environmental,
Social and Governance (the “ESG”) risk, performance and reporting)
annually to ensure their effectiveness and sufficiency. The Company
has been committed to promoting a compliance culture and will adopt
policies and procedures on various compliance matters, including
the Stock Exchange’s requirements on corporate governance and
environmental, social and governance matters.

The Group is exposed to various risks during our operations.
Accordingly, it has in place a set of internal control and risk
management procedures to address various potential operational,
financial, ESG, legal and market risks identified in relation to the
Group’s operations, including revenue and receivables, inventory
management, procurement and payment, fixed assets management,
treasury management, human resources, financial reporting, tax
management and information technology and other various financial
and operational controls and monitoring procedures. These risk
management policies set forth procedures for reporting risks identified
in the Group’s operations.

The Group’s management procedures for financial reporting and
inside information disclosure are in strict compliance with the
requirements of the Listing Rules. Prior to disclosing such information
to the public, the Group will ensure that the relevant information are
kept in strict confidential and will perform the obligation to inform and
supervise the insiders of inside information as required.
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management measures:

° Compliance with the Listing Rules: various policies have been
adopted to ensure compliance with the Listing Rules, including
aspects related to corporate governance, connected transactions
and information disclosure, such as:

(i)  Anti-corruption and anti-fraud risk management: the
internal control department is directly responsible for the
anti-corruption and anti-fraud risk management with an
anti-corruption committee established under it, comprising
designated personnel from our human resources, internal
control and legal departments. The Company has
established a whistle-blower inbox encouraging the internal
report of suspicious activities. It has zero-tolerance for
corruption and do not accept employment or promotion of
persons responsible for corruption incidents. The Group
conducts routine internal training and requires all suppliers
to execute anti-corruption commitments before engagement;

(i) Connected transactions management: the Company
has put in place connected transactions management
policies for all Directors and employees to comply with.
Trainings will be arranged for all Directors, Supervisors and
senior management members so as to discuss and study
the relevant regulatory requirements in relation to their
responsibilities and duties under these policies.

° Business operations risk management: the Company has
adopted various measures and procedures regarding each
aspect of its business operations, including the protection of
intellectual property, information system risk management, and
human resources risk management. The Group provides periodic
training on these measures and procedures to the employees as
part of its employee training program. It also regularly monitors
the implementation of those measures and procedures through
their on-site internal control team for each stage of the product
development process;

° Financial reporting risk management: the Company has in
place a set of accounting policies in connection with its financial
reporting risk management. Various procedures are in place to
implement accounting policies, and the financial department
reviews the management accounts based on such procedures;
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° Audit Committee and Board Oversight: to monitor the ongoing
implementation of the Company’s risk management policies, an
Audit Committee has been established to review and supervise
the Company’s financial reporting process and internal control
system (including those relating to ESG risk, performance and
reporting) on an ongoing basis to ensure that the internal control
system is effective in identifying, managing and mitigating risks
involved in business operations. The Audit Committee comprises
three members, namely Ms. Wong Yan Ki, Angel, Mr. Liu Xin
and Dr. Xing Wei. Ms. Wong Yan Ki, Angel is the chairlady of the
Audit Committee and an INED.

The internal control department is responsible for reviewing
the effectiveness of internal controls and improving the internal
control system (including those relating to ESG risk, performance
and reporting) by identifying its weaknesses on an ongoing
basis. The internal audit department reports any major issues
identified to the Audit Committee and Board on a timely basis.

On 26 March 2024, the Board and the Audit Committee has conducted
a review of the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023
and considered the risk management and internal control systems to
be effective and adequate.

Directors’ Responsibility in Respect of The Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements with the support of the accounting and finance
team.

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with the
IFRS Accounting Standards issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board. Appropriate accounting policies have also been
used and applied consistently except the adoption of revised
standards, amendments to standards and interpretation.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. The financial
statements of the Company are prepared on a going concern basis,
the Directors are of the view that they give a true and fair view of the
financial position, performance and cash flow of the Group for the
Reporting Period, and the disclosure of other financial information and
report therein complies with relevant legal requirements.

The statement of the external auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report of this annual report.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid and payable to the external auditor of the
Company in respect of audit services and non-audit services for the
year ended 31 December 2023 is set out below:

e/ ENER

Fees Paid/Payable

(AR¥F )

BR % %8 51 Service Category (RMB’000)
BET R Audit Services 3,173
IERET AR5 Non-audit Services =
RET Total 3,173
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JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. Wang Jun (£8) (“Mr. Wang”) is one of the Joint Company
Secretaries and was appointed in October 2022 with his appointment
taking effect from 13 November 2023. Mr. Wang is also the deputy
general manager and the financial director of our Company. For
biographical details of Mr. Wang, please see the section headed
“Profiles of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management — Senior
management”.

Ms. Leung Ho Yee (ZZA]15) (“Ms. Leung”) is one of the Joint Company
Secretaries and was appointed in October 2022 with her appointment
taking effect from 13 November 2023. Ms. Leung is a senior manager
of the Corporate Secretarial Department of Boardroom Corporate
Services (HK) Limited (“Boardroom”) and is nominated by pursuant
to an engagement letter made between the Company and Boardroom,
pursuant to which Boardroom has agreed to provide certain corporate
secretarial services to the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, Mr. Wang and Ms. Leung
had undertaken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training
in compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules. The primary person
at the Company with whom Ms. Leung had been contacting in respect
of company secretarial matters is Mr. Wang.

GENERAL MEETINGS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The AGM is a forum in which the Board and the Shareholders
communicate directly and exchange views concerning the affairs and
overall performance of the Group, and its future developments, etc.
At the AGM, the Directors (including INEDs) are available to attend
to questions raised by the Shareholders. The external auditor of the
Company are also invited to be present at the AGM to address to
queries of the shareholders concerning the audit procedures and the
auditor’s report.
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The forthcoming AGM will be held on Wednesday, 19 June 2024, the
notice of which shall be sent to the Shareholders at least 20 clear
business days prior to the meeting.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting

According to Article 52 of the Articles of Association, Shareholder(s)
who individually or collectively hold 10% or more of the Shares
shall have the right to request the Board of Directors to convene
an extraordinary general meeting (the “EGM”) and shall submit the
request in writing to the Board of Directors. If the Board of Directors
does not agree to convene an EGM or does not provide feedback
within 10 days after receiving the request, Shareholders who
individually or collectively hold 10% or more of the Shares shall have
the right to propose to the Supervisory Committee to convene an EGM,
and shall submit the request in writing to the Supervisory Committee.
If the Supervisory Committee agrees to convene an EGM, it shall issue
a notice to convene the general meeting within 5 days after receiving
the request. If the Supervisory Committee fails to issue the notice of
the general meeting within the prescribed period, it shall be deemed
that the Supervisory Committee does not convene and preside over
the general meeting, and Shareholders who individually or collectively
hold 10% or more of the Shares for more than 90 consecutive days
may convene and preside over the general meeting on their own.

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

Pursuant to Article 57 of the Articles of Association, a Shareholder
alone or Shareholders jointly holding no less than 3% of the Shares
may add proposed resolutions to the meeting agenda in writing to the
convenor 10 days prior to the date of general meeting. The convenor
shall issue a supplemental notice of general meeting within two days
after receipt of the motion, with such proposed resolution being
announced.

Except as provided in the preceding paragraph, the convenor, after
issuing the notice of the general meeting, shall neither modify the
proposed resolution stated in the notice of general meetings nor add
new proposed resolution.
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Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, Shareholders may
send written enquiries to the Company via mail to the Company’s
place of business in Hong Kong, or its registered office in the PRC or
via e-mail, the contact details of which are as follows:

Registered office
in the PRC:

Room 501-2, Block No. 37, Hangzhou Bay

New Economic Park, Port District, Jiaxing City,

Zhejiang Province, PRC (For the attention of the

Board of Directors)

Place of business 31/F, 148 Electric Road, North Point, Hong Kong
in Hong Kong:

Email: ir@sinosynergypower.com

For enquiries about shareholdings, share registration and related
matters, Shareholder(s) shall direct their enquiries to the Company’s
Hong Kong H Share Registrar and the contact details are set out as
follows:

Boardroom Share Registrars (HK) Limited

Address: 2103B, 21/F, 148 Electric Road,
North Point, Hong Kong

Email: srinfo.hk@boardroomlimited.com

Tel: (852) 2153 1688

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and investor
understanding of the Group’s business performance and strategies.
The Company endeavors to maintain an ongoing dialogue with
Shareholders and in particular, through AGMs and other general
meetings. At the AGM, Directors (or their delegates as appropriate)
are available to meet Shareholders and answer their enquiries.
The external auditor of the Company will also attend the AGMs to
answer questions about the conduct of the audit, the preparation and
contents of the auditor’s report, the accounting policies and auditor
independence.

To safeguard Shareholders’ interests and rights, separate resolution
should be proposed for each substantially separate issue at general
meetings, including the election of individual Director. All resolutions
put forward at general meetings will be voted on by poll pursuant to
the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on the websites of the
Company and of the Stock Exchange after each general meeting.
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Shareholders Communication Policy

The Company has in place a shareholders’ communication policy. The
policy aims to promote effective communication with Shareholders and
other stakeholders, encouraging Shareholders to engage actively with
the Company and enabling Shareholders to exercise their rights as
Shareholders effectively.

To ensure transparent and comprehensive disclosures to investors, the
Company delivers information about the Group to the public through
various channels, including general meetings, public announcements
and financial reports. The investors are also able to access the
latest news and information about the Group via our website
(www.sinosynergypower.com).

Since the Company was only listed on the Stock Exchange on 5
December 2023, the Board will conduct the annual review on the
implementation and effectiveness of the shareholders’ communication
policy in the financial year 2024.

DIVIDEND POLICY

Although currently the Company does not have a formal dividend
policy or a fixed dividend distribution ratio, the Board may declare
dividends in the future after taking into account various factors
including the Company’s future earnings and cash inflows, future
plan for use of funds, long-term development of business and other
legal and regulatory restrictions. There is no assurance that dividends
of any amount will be declared or be distributed in any year.
Dividend declaration and payment shall be proposed by the Board in
accordance with the Articles of Association and relevant PRC law and
regulations. There was no arrangement under which a shareholder
waived or agreed to waive any dividends during the Reporting Period.

For further details of the relevant PRC laws and regulations, please
refer to the section headed “Dividend Policy — Report of the Board of
Directors” on pages 45 to 46.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Articles of Association were adopted with effect from the
Listing Date, and are available on the websites of the Company
(www.sinosynergypower.com) and the Stock Exchange
(www.hkexnews.hk). There is no change in the constitutional
documents of the Company during the Relevant Period.

The Company proposed to make certain amendments to the current
Articles of Association. For details, please refer to the announcement
of the Company dated 27 March 2024.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ABOUT THE REPORT

Presentation of the report

Sino-Synergy Hydrogen Energy Technology (Jiaxing) Co., Ltd. (“Sino-
Synergy”, the “Company” or “We”) are pleased to present our first
Environmental, Social and Governance Report (the “Report”). The
Report aims to systematically introduce the stakeholders to the
sustainable development concepts, practices and achievements
of the Company and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) in terms of R&D
innovation, product quality and safety, employee management and

development, environmental protection and community engagement.

Basis for preparation

The ESG Report has been prepared in accordance with the ESG
Reporting Guide (the “Guide”) as set out in Appendix C2 from the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

Scope and boundary of the Report

The policies and data disclosed in the Report encompass the
Company and its subsidiaries and the scope of the Report is the same
as that of the Annual Report, covering the period from 1 January 2023
to 31 December 2023 (the “Reporting Period”), with some contents
tracing back to previous years or extending to future years. The data
and cases in the Report are mostly derived from the Group'’s statistical
reports and related documents, and the historical data cited are the
final statistical data. Unless otherwise specified, the Report records
the financial data in RMB.
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Report principles

° Materiality: Communication with stakeholders and materiality
assessment are engaged in the preparing process of this report
to determine key ESG topics, and matters that may have a
material effect on the Group’s business and stakeholders are
highlighted in this report.

° Quantification: The Report presents the key performance
indicators (KPI) of the environmental and social aspects with
quantitative data, accompanying explanations to illustrate its
purpose and impact.

° Balance: The Report is formulated following the principle of
balance to impartially present our ESG performance.

o Consistency: The Report is the first ESG report issued by the
Company. Unless otherwise specified, the future ESG reports will
adopt key indicators and statistical methods consistent with the
Report.

DIRECTORS’ STATEMENT

The Board of Directors attaches great importance to ESG
management, strictly complies with the ESG Reporting Guide
requirements, supervises and manages the Group’s ESG matters, and
assumes the ultimate information disclosure responsibility. The Board
of Directors pays due attention to the identification and management
of ESG risks and opportunities, strengthens its supervision and
involvement in the Group’'s ESG management, and will make great
efforts to promote the Group’s drive to build an ESG management
framework and system. The Board actively facilitates the incorporation
of ESG concepts into the Group's strategies, major decisions and
business practices, and continues to create long-term value for the
society, thus safeguarding the Group’s sustainable and high-quality
development.

The Report was validated by the management and approved by the
Board of Directors on 26 March 2024.
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hERE LIST OF HONORS
=27 #%1E S EBER g S RBERA
No. Name of awards/honors Level of awards/honors
1 B = R % EIE
National high-tech enterprise National level
2 E &R Tk Bl Rk
Post-Doctoral Research Center National level
3 B 5K 4% 2 T Bl Kk
National Green Factory National level
4 BERGeHEEREEE BT
National Green Supply Chain Demonstration Enterprise National level
5 TEESMA R RBLE Bl Rk
China Industry-University-Research Cooperation Innovation National level
Demonstration Enterprise
6 P B M TSR A 22 ETER
China Machinery Industry Science and Technology Award National level
7 B B R S T R A R B S E f Bl KA
China Excellent Product of International High-tech Achievements National level
8 Tl B A B S AR R R — %%
China Invention and Entrepreneurship Award Achievement Award First prize
9 TNTEREEIF ¥ DNE R RIE
Asian Hydrogen Energy Innovation Enterprise Asian Hydrogen Energy Forum
10 A& B R ZEbT (2023 2 3k A Bk ) AR E HE
Selected into the “Global Unicorn Index 2023” by Hurun Hurun Global Unicorn Index 2023
Research Institute
1 BERETERMERERE AR
Guangdong Provincial Key Laboratory of Hydrogen Provincial level
Energy Technology
12 BREE LT TIEM B
Guangdong Province Doctor Workstation Provincial level
13 ERA R R 87 HER
Guangdong Province Science and Technology Progress Award Provincial level
14 )14 TF AT 25 12 HR
Sichuan Province Science and Technology Progress Award Provincial level
15 BRE&ERREFEMH TIRRMHTES O B
Guangdong Province Green Energy Equipment and Material Provincial level
Engineering Technology Research Center
16 AT E TR AR
Zhejiang Province SRDI Enterprise Provincial level
17 BRE R ESHRME® HR
Guangdong Famous High-tech Product Provincial level
18 ER [ RBIN | B AIFT KR 5 R
Bronze Prize of Guangdong “Mass Innovation Cup” Provincial level
Entrepreneurship and Innovation Competition
19 EEFTBREEHE AR
Yunfu Municipal Government Quality Award Municipal level
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ESG MANAGEMENT

ESG governance structure

Taking root in the clean energy industry, and with clean, green
and sustainable development in its DAN, the Group commits itself
to fulfilling corporate environmental and social responsibilities,
and integrating sustainability into its business strategy and routine
operations. With an ESG management structure started to take shape,
we will continue to improve the ESG management system to boost
the Company’'s ESG performance in quality management, talent
development and environmental protection, thus dedicating to driving
clean energy business operation and business development in a more
responsible manner, contributing to the achievement of the national
energy transformation targets.

The Group has established an ESG governance structure composed
of the Board of Directors, the senior management and a number of
executive departments involved in ESG business. In order to fully
ensure effective advancement in the ESG business and related
business operations in various fields, the Group’s senior management
and the executive heads in various departments have formed a task
force led by the Board office, organizing the executive departments
to implement the Company’s sustainable development strategy and
promote the Company’s ESG-related business on a comprehensive
scale. Under the Board’s supervision and guidance, the ESG task
force adopts a systematic and effective governance structure,
provides effective organizational safeguards for the Company’s
sustainability work, implements top-down ESG management, and

continuously improves related management practices.

BExg
Board of Directors

ESGEEIEHE (BEE)

ESG Special Working Team (Senior management)
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The Board Office
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Sino-synergy Hydrogen ESG governance structure
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Board of Directors: As the Group’s highest-level executive body
responsible for ESG supervision and information disclosure, the
Board of Directors is tasked with evaluating and determining ESG
management policies and strategies, supervising ESG matters,
and bearing the ultimate responsibility for the Company’s ESG
strategy and reporting work. The Board of Directors will meet at
least once a year to discuss ESG related issues. The Board of
Directors will review the sustainable development strategy of the
Company to ensure alignment with the Company’s development
strategy. The Board of Directors will regularly review and discuss
ESG related matters during the meeting examine progress in
the fulfiiment of ESG-related goals, and approve the annual ESG
report by reference to industry standards and annual ESG key
performance data.

ESG Task Force: The task force is responsible for formulating
ESG management policies, strategies and performance
indicators, implementing annual ESG work planning,
management and supervision, and evaluating and determining
ESG-related risks and opportunities. It ensures that the Group
establishes an appropriate and effective ESG risk management
system, and regularly reviews ESG objectives and commitments.
The ESG task force makes resolutions in respect of the ESG-
related issues and reports to the Board of Directors on the
progress in and results of ESG-related operations in the form of
meetings at least every two years.

Office of the Board of Directors: The Office is responsible for
leading the implementation of the Group’s ESG management
policies, enforcing ESG policies and guidelines, coordinating
and promoting routine ESG work, organizing the annual ESG
report preparation, and reporting the ESG work progress to the
management.

Executive departments in various fields: In accordance with the
Group's ESG strategic guidelines and management policies, the
departments are responsible for implementing the departments’
respective functions and important ESG-related tasks, and
continuously improving and upgrading internal ESG management
within the departments.
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Communication with stakeholders

The Group is well aware that effective engagement of stakeholders
is crucial to the long-term development of the Company. The Group
identifies major stakeholders including employees, shareholders
and investors, suppliers, government, communities and customers
in line with the characteristics of the clean energy industry and
its business operations, and actively communicates with them
through questionnaire surveys, conferences, training activities,
etc. to acquire a thorough understanding of their needs and their
opinions and suggestions on our ESG strategy and performance,
and identify important ESG issues and incorporate them into our own

ZSRANEPEL ESG management to meet various stakeholders’ requirements and
expectations.
MRS EREHE BBEER
Stakeholders Demands and expectations Communication form
(=) el B R e
Employees Training and development System release
TTE A BAE R BT
Sound salary and welfare mechanism Employee training
FEHRERZTTE BIEH)
Equal opportunities and diversity Employee activities
BEERERLZE BT R RATE
Occupational health and safety Performance assessment and evaluation
EELEARILRE W= E
Information security and privacy protection Internal publicity
EBEBER
Business activity communication
TEapRe
Trade Union and Worker’ Congress
IR EE RE O FEMF RS
Shareholders and investors Return on investment Annual and interim reports
ERHRE EV N
Information disclosure General meeting
[ REEEHREG
Risk management and control Investor forum
235
Road show

HEn HERER HEmE SR AEINES
Suppliers Supplier management Supplier quality improvement training activities
NP RIE HEEEZ

Fairness and justice

Supplier audit
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REAEBES EREHE BBEER
Stakeholders Demands and expectations Communication form
SEHER RSRPER
Win-win cooperation On-site investigation
[ &8 8 R AT
Anti-corruption Supplier performance evaluation
HERRR

Supplier communication

BT

Government

aRKE

Compliance management
FOEMBL

Compliant tax payment
BERitE

Contribution to society

[ &8 8

Anti-corruption

R ER
Investigation

R

Information disclosure
BERBAT

Policy implementation
DI

Official correspondence
1 # FE ,

Reports of materials
EEE

Supervision and audit

i
Community

BEtRE
Caring for the community
N=E T
Caring for the community
R RE
Environmental protection

RAIEH

Company official website
BEMERREED

Charity and voluntary service activities
ESGH&

ESG report

HEEEERE

Social media channels

&S

Community activities

P

Clients

EmEERLD

Product quality and safety

7 on B 35 R AU

Product development and innovation
REEIRIE

Rights protection

BRRAMTHE

Clean technology opportunities

RERTIERED

Online and offline promotion activities
ERED

Customer visits

EmZEmHE

Product launch

EFREERAE

Customer satisfaction survey
EiRER

Customer service hotline
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Materiality assessment

In order to clarify the priorities of the Group’s ESG work, we appointed
an independent third-party professional organization to conduct a
materiality assessment to determine the importance of each ESG
topic toward the Company’s business development and various
stakeholders, and the evaluation results will substantially inform the
formulation of ESG management strategies and ESG reports. Our
materiality issues assessment steps are as follows:

Step 1: Identify ESG issues

According to the ESG Reporting Guide requirements of the Stock
Exchange, we analyzed and identified 20 ESG-related issues of
concern to stakeholders through questionnaire surveys and peer
benchmarking, taking into account macroeconomic dynamics and
trends, the intrinsic nature and characteristics of the industry,
company management and business practices;

Step 2: Confirm the importance level

Through internal interviews and discussions, and after soliciting
professional opinions from external sources, together with online
questionnaire, we have collected over 300 valid responses from
stakeholders, including our staff, management, shareholders and
investors, clients, colleges and universities and scientific research
institutes, enabling us to have a deeper understanding of the
expectations and demands of stakeholders. Based on the investigation
results, we evaluate each topic applying two criteria: “importance
to the Group” and ‘“influence on the stakeholders”, and generate a
materiality assessment matrix according to the investigation results, so
as to rank the priority of ESG topics;
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B3 TR Step 3: Evaluation results

AAREFEREREEEE WL HERT The Board of Directors and the senior management review and
HEER - validate the evaluation results.
WMEBRA - AEEBNABESGEE M During the Reporting Period, the Group identified the specific ESG
FEEBEMT materiality matrix as follows:

BB S 882023 F B E M AT L EM

2023 Sino-Synergy Hydrogen Substantial Evaluation Matrix

HANSEHBEINEEREE

Degree of influence on stakeholders

L]
R ER

Community development

HERERENEERE
Importance of hydrogen energy to Sino-Synergy Hydrogen
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Special topic: Strengthening climate response and moving
towards clean and low carbon transformation

At present, climate change has become a major global governance
challenge, and a key issue of concern to the international community.
Accelerating energy transformation and promoting carbon neutrality
realization have become global concerted actions. Developing
clean energy is an important path for green and low-carbon energy
transformation. Hydrogen energy, hailed as “the ultimate clean
energy”, has the advantages of high energy density, good combustion
performance and virtually zero pollution, making it one of the most
important clean energy alternatives. As a high-tech enterprise with
hydrogen fuel cell as its core product, the Group pays close attention
to global climate changes and risks, seizes opportunities in clean
energy development, boosts the development of the hydrogen energy
industry through product and technology innovation, and provides
green solutions for global climate risk response and carbon neutrality,
working with partners throughout the value chain to create a clean and
sustainable future.

Respond to climate risk

The Group regards climate action as an important development
strategy, and defines the specific responsibilities of the management
and key departments regarding climate issues. We incorporate
climate risk into the Company’s risk assessment and management
framework, increase climate risk identification efforts, and evaluate its
potential impact on our operation, financial standing and development
prospects, so as to actively respond to the challenges brought by
climate change, thereby providing a more adequate analytical basis
for the Company to develop relevant strategies and development
policies. The ultimate goal is to continuously adapt our operations to

climate risk and improve business resilience.
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Climate-related risk identification & analysis

EXRGRABRELEEXE

Major climate risks and their potential impacts
AR EEEHET

Description of risks and potential impacts

RER
Risk types

2R
Acute risk

ERERE
Entity risk

121 R B
Chronic risk

B KRR EREMERE N - BELEEEL S
: R S PN
The severity and frequency increase of extreme weather events

BHERT

could disrupt production and operation plans, result in production
capacity decline and revenue decrease

iR X BERSERmARFH SR BEERRRTE - SBERTR -
EEW AR

The extreme weather events such as typhoon or rainstorm could
interrupt the supply chain transportation route, and lead to decrease
in production capacity and operating income

RERE TESRFREROEE - ENEIMERFIRRR E A

The additional subsidies and insurance fees could increase in order
to ensure the health of employees in high temperature environment

BRI
Reputation risk

BRRK

Transformation risk

BERFE R R MR
Policy and legal risk

3% @b
Market risk

AEIEN ER 77 E R E RIRTTE 7 EERERE R ITE MR FHE B #FRE
ML HERIRTHTIMEENBEEEELE  MEBUELKARIEMN
The operating cost could increase due to response to the
stakeholders’ expectations to take positive climate action actions
and improve information disclosure transparency, and avoid the
potential reputation impact caused by adverse climate actions

R R B R B R 2 RIE A AR

The compliance costs could increase to meet the increasingly
stringent regulatory requirements

R 35 # Bl AL D B BUE & AR S N

The operating costs could increase due to the decrease in market
subsidies

RIZEZEE
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Climate emergency management

In view of the acute risks associated with climate change, we have
formulated a comprehensive emergency plan, designated the specific
departments responsible for handling emergencies caused by natural
disasters such as rainstorm and typhoon, and standardized the
operating procedures for pre-disaster prevention, disaster response,
emergency rescue and post-disaster recovery, so as to minimize
the possible adverse effects caused by extreme weather events. In
addition, we regularly organize emergency drills in the production
bases to continuously improve employees’ ability to effectively respond
to emergencies, and effectively protect the Company’s property safety
and personal safety of staff members.
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Seize the clean energy opportunity

In response to the acceleration of the global climate action, the
National Development and Reform Commission, the National Energy
Administration and other government departments jointly issued the
“Fourteenth Five-Year Plan for Renewable Energy Development”,
elaborately mapping out policies toward energy transformation
and energy system modernization. The State Council also clearly
pointed out in the Action Plan for Peaking Carbon Emission by 2030
that efforts should be made to increase the application of hydrogen
energy and other new energy sources in the transportation industry,
promote the construction of hydrogen refueling stations and other

BORERRIES B infrastructure facilities in an orderly manner, and advance the low-
carbon transformation of transportation vehicles and equipment.
Against the backdrop of climate change and carbon neutrality, the
hydrogen energy market will embrace major opportunities to address
climate change.

ARG BG83 B 547 Climate-related opportunity identification & analysis

RRERARBRAEES
Climate-related opportunities and their potential impacts
BeER BBREESEHT
Opportunity types Description of opportunities and potential impacts
1EHRZE fn B AR 7% e HREEBREEENESRT  HSNHHHNEEERERERBEFT KB =L
Low-carbon products B AR R EE R AT AR R 5 B B 3 AR A 2 T 45 7R A T A 2R Ay & 2R _EF
Due to the increasing society and market demand for green and low-carbon products

NCIEy v

and services
and services under the low-carbon economic transformation background, the Company’s
hydrogen fuel cell-related products and technical solutions could become more mature
and recognized by the market, resulting in revenue increase
HRAEEELWHARSUERER - RRERERUERAMERNELKANTIE

Due to the efficient resource management at the production and operation end,

BIR =R J
Resources efficiency
the Company’s operating cost could decrease due to resource utilization efficiency
improvement

HRTISEERMOTEEAIR - IHFEBRENEE - TS A B AR AT RIEE SR -
BRESBE  RAEEEELRHERAIBERRAFERNESKETR

Due to the green technology R&D and innovation in the market and the introduction of

B & aeREs

Company energy

transformation
supportive policies, the renewable energy accessibility may gradually improve, and the
price may gradually reduce, the Company’s operating costs could decrease due to the use
of renewable energy in production and operation

RARIKE M BRESRARGECEERRENRIREES - ARIEAMEL BT ETEHIRS T

Improve climate F

REYULA £

resilience Due to the gradual improvement of climate change response speed and climate
adaptability, the Company could constantly improve its capital and operational stability, as

well as the revenue
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Focus on green business

As a leading hydrogen fuel cell manufacturer in China, we pay close
attention to the latest trends in the industry and marketplace, actively
respond to the 1.5-degree Celsius goal of the Paris Agreement and
China’s “carbon peak and carbon neutrality” strategy adhering to the
technological development route of “a generation in production, a
generation at launch, a generation in reserve”. This way, we seek to
achieve innovation in key and cutting-edge technologies, and promote
hydrogen energy commercial application.

Boasting advanced patented technology and exceptional R&D
capabilities, we have developed high-efficiency and high-power
hydrogen fuel cell stacks, hydrogen fuel cell systems and hydrogen
production equipment, and consistently stepped up technological
innovation, accelerated product development iterations, while ensuring
outstanding product performance in the industry. Meanwhile, with
high-quality large-scale production, we have vigorously promoted
the commercialization of hydrogen fuel cell technology in road traffic,
rail transit, ships, distributed power generation and other fields,
boosted clean energy industry development in China, and contributed
positively to the fulfilment of the “double carbon” targets.
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Create clean energy products

Through years of independent R&D and technology acquisition, we
have built a complete product system covering bipolar plate/fuel cell
stacks, battery power systems, hydrogen power generation equipment
and green hydrogen production equipment, with a diverse hydrogen
fuel cell product matrix and comprehensive application solutions to
provide customers with a wide range of hydrogen fuel cell solutions.
Our products are suitable for various and widely-covered application
scenarios to meet varying electricity supply requirements in different
fields, and provide the market with cleaner and lower-carbon energy

options.
SER BB B SRBELE DR
Bipolar plate/fuel cell stacks Hydrogen fuel cell power system
JEIRGI MBiERH240 WEiEH120 JBIEG110
SynStack Gl SynRoad H240 SynRoad H120 SynRoad G110

G BEG120
SynStack GllI SynRoad G120
HBIGEH J8#810-002

SynairStack G stacks SynMat 10-002

P

9SSLE #
9SSL stacks

JB#BE10-001
SynMat E10-001

& G80
SynRoad G80

JEELAT10
SynRail A110

J818E10-003
SynMat E10-003
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Green hydrogen production equipment

SHEBRERRE

Hydrogen power generation equipment

TEIRS70-001 TBIRS160-002
SynPower S70-001 SynPower S160-002

T5IRS640-002
SynPower S640-002

7&IRS1250-001
SynPower S1250-001

B E R EmER
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Alkaline electrolytic water system
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GENERATION SYSTEM
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Sino-Synergy Hydrogen product matrix
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As an important part of the Group’s product matrix, our power
generation systems have many advantages. In addition to major
features such as long service life, high reliability, convenient
maintenance and economical efficiency, the Group’s power generation
systems use renewable energy, and operate with zero carbon emission
throughout the product life cycle, achieving the goal of “green
power generation”. The system adopts a modular design, and the
air compressor unit and heat exchange module can be re-designed
according to different application scenarios, leading to improved
scalability. When operating the systems, we utilize remote data
monitoring and big data platform systems to perform fault analysis and
diagnosis, and conduct accurate analysis and management through
all-round backend data coordination. As of the end of the Reporting
Period, our fixed hydrogen fuel cell power generation systems had
been successfully operated in the Yulin zero-carbon distributed smart
energy center in Shaanxi Province.

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s hydrogen fuel cell
products have been installed on the vehicles for stable operation
in 20 provincial-level administrative regions such as Guangdong,
Shandong, Hebei, Zhejiang, Shaanxi, Inner Mongolia, Tianjin and
Beijing. Our product innovation capability and excellent performance
have gained widespread recognized among market participants and
customers, providing practical assistance for green and low-carbon
socioeconomic development.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

HYDROGEN INNOVATION FOR THE FUTURE

Sino-Synergy adheres to the “innovation-driven development”
philosophy. Over the years, the Group achieved independent
research and development, systematic quality management,
and highly efficient service system operations through effective
technology development and acquisition and comprehensive
quality management, and wholeheartedly cooperated with
upstream and downstream enterprises to create a clean and
sustainable world, leading the way in hydrogen energy and

creating the future together.

Technological innovation

1.1.1. R&D management

The capability of sustainable innovation is at the core of our
competitiveness. The Group has made great efforts to build a
systematic and efficient R&D management system, set up a R&D
management framework with clear division of responsibilities
and a complete well-established policy system, and provided
strong support for product and technological innovation. We
set up a hydrogen energy research institute, an operation and
planning center, a stack R&D center, a system R&D center, a
hydrogen production equipment R&D center, a power generation
equipment R&D center, and a simulation and experiment center
to support the development of different product series. We
have developed a multi-department and internal and external
collaborative R&D model, and built a diversified and efficient
innovation system. In order to ensure the effective operation
of the R&D mechanism, we have formulated and implemented
various policies, systems and regulations such as Design
and Development Control Procedure, Design Change Control
Procedure, Project Management Control Procedure, and R&D
Project Establishment and Closure Management Process to
standardize the entire product development process and
promote continuous improvement in the quality and efficiency of
R&D operations.
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On the basis of a fully-developed R&D management system, we
have continuously increased R&D investment and resource input,
and built on our R&D capabilities covering multiple business
lines. Paying due attention to R&D team building, we have
established an industry leading team with solid R&D capability,
excellent strategic vision and diversified market expansion
vision. The core R&D team consists of R&D personnel with
professional experience in hydrogen fuel cell materials, stacks,
systems, automobile development and engineering technology
applications. As of the end of the Reporting Period, the Group
had about 242 R&D staff, accounting for approximately 30% of
the total employee headcount. In order to encourage actively
R&D invention and creation, we have developed the Intellectual
Property Award System 2.0 to keep track of the patents,
standards, copyrights and theses filed and released by our
employees, and cash rewards are offered to qualified employees.

We made active arrangements for R&D initiatives, and built a
platform to acquire superior industry R&D resources to ensure
continuous improvement in cutting-edge innovation capability
building. As of the end of the Reporting Period, the Group
had established a number of national and provincial R&D
platforms such as Post-Doctoral Research Center, Provincial
Key Laboratory of Hydrogen Energy Technology, and Provincial
Research Center of Green Energy Equipment and Materials
Engineering Technology, attesting to the fruitful development
of innovative platforms. As of the end of the Reporting Period,
we were officially designated as a national high-tech enterprise,
which fully reflects the accolades and recognition we earned for

effective R&D management and innovation achievements.

1.1.2. Protecting intellectual property rights

The Group respects and protects intellectual property rights
as a central asset of innovation. We attach great emphasis to
innovation achievement protection, strictly abide by the Patent
Law of the PRC, the Trademark Law of the PRC, the Enterprise
Intellectual Property Management Standard and other relevant
laws and regulations, and continuously build on our capacity of
intellectual property management, protection and application,
so as to consolidate our competitive advantage and brand
reputation, and avoid infringing on others’ intellectual property
rights.
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We set up the Technology Management Department, which is
responsible for intellectual property management operations,
such as patent application and management, trademark
application and implementation, copyright registration, use,
licensing and transfer, within the Group, and formulated a series
of documents such as Patent Management Measures, Trademark
Management Measures and Copyright Management Measures to
ensure standardized and process-oriented intellectual property

(MM BB ERREIRINE) - H
BTIRINCEIREHHE) LEARR
HREEEXHINERE - WEBIF
Fl - EESHE MR8 TH R
TREENTHRES S - BREH
REEBEFHERE  EENLE
2RI - PHABERERRERER
WEHE o publicity and other measures to ensure relevant confidentiality

management. We also pay due attention to the protection of
technical and trade secrets, formulated the Technical and
Trade Secrets Management Measures, signed the Employee
Confidentiality Agreement with employees, and ensured rigorous
regulation of the confidential document delivery process.
We raised the awareness of the importance of technical and
trade secrets protection among employees through training,

management throughout the whole research and development,
and production and operation process, and the prevention of the

intellectual property rights infringement and leakage risks.

itialization, so as to avoid repeated

ol Bl el

SIRER : i
Project initialization management ’ i L nefit the market the most

earch and development pro

2 — AR
HFERE We prohibit all behay
Patent application

to the actual circums’

S B THRENRETRE RS RAERIEPT - W BT HEME T
=GRS We encourage employees to report patent infringement to relevant departments in a timely manner after
discovery, and help investigation and evidence collection
Patent protection

FEAMAENE B EHERE R FA BEEAINEFI R A

We make full use of patent information to monitor the domestic and foreign patent application trends related

ERSRENEEER
Sino-Synergy Hydrogen patent management measures
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AENEBEERNESBANBEES In order to promote intellectual property management in the Group
BIE ZRMSEREAEBERRER more efficiently, we actively carried out various forms of patent training
ZRILANEFNEI - WHEBBE for R&D personnel and organized intellectual property management
EEBABL2EINBNSGEREES personnel to participate in external intellectual property management
H BRURS TAEBE Ta M E training programs, which effectively enhanced their awareness and
REEZBNHERE  RECERZLOBF skills in intellectual property protection, and maintained the core
N BEREHR  *EBHAEBR competitiveness of the Group. As of the end of the Reporting Period,
EEFIS7H  BREYEIERETEES the Group had obtained 157 licensed patents, 16 software copyright
164 - ARIERBERE T EFS2M4 - certificates and two works copyright certificates.

P : HEASER RS

Case: Patent Mining Training for R&D personnel

BEHA - BMHEMEASHRET EAZREI) - HIREFBRGREE BRIt EEENRBFEENEERIMTE
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During the Reporting Period, we conducted patent mining training for R&D personnel. Starting from the overall
layout of patents, the training comprehensively sorted out the main technical points that may have patent
application value and their peripheral related technologies, aiming at improving employees’ patent mining
ability, enabling employees to more accurately identify and grasp the main technological inventions, thus
comprehensively, fully and effectively protecting technological innovations.

EHRIZIRE

Patent mining training
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1.1.3. Industry exchange & cooperation

Adhering to the principles of “tenacity, innovation, openness
and mutual benefit”, we actively established Industry-
University-Research partnerships with universities and other
external organizations, and realized the synergistic benefits
in complementary strengths, resource sharing and win-win
cooperation through personnel training, exchange and technical
research. As of the end of the Reporting Period, the Group has
conducted Industry-University-Research cooperation with the
following universities:

EERE
Cooperation work

PEXBRE AZIBARERMR o

Shanghai Jiaotong University,
Xi ‘an Jiaotong University and other
universities

FREIEYE 1R TR o ) TIZER a5 B TR RIME AL 3R 3% | ot (B R S Bh A Bt 8l
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Co-undertaking the research on “Development of Performance and Life
Engineering Verification and Prediction Model” (a national key research
and development plan), having completed the preliminary model of key
material attenuation and the development of fuel cell stack for power
station, and carried out the performance verification

RILIKE - FhL BRI SRR F .

Sun Yat-sen University, Foshan
Institute of Science and Technology,

HAERESNETEQRMENE N ZFSEX | K (ERE ShERH
EFBIER) WAL ERHEREM M - M EBRGEARREN R
iy~ BRR E 0 & A ap B B B B PR ) B 2 2 TR R SR BTl

Co-undertaking the research on “Power System Integration of High
Power Density Hydrogen Fuel Cell” (a key research and development

etc. project in Guangdong Province), and overcoming many key technology
difficulties such as high specific power fuel cell integration technology,
low temperature fuel cell system start-up technology, and adaptive
control technology in the fuel cell life cycle
FERBEHREESEP s  HEEAEHSIEREME HJ}’@EH& RECTERE - HRKREEBEGI

School of Vehicle and Mobility,
Tsinghua University

FOIREE /ﬁzaatﬁiﬁqfﬂl

Cooperating to carry out research in the application field, and jointly
promoting the verification of rapid activation method, with the results
having been applied in the production of SynStack Gl series fuel cell
stacks
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BEER BERE

Cooperative universities Cooperation work

BMAKE BFEAEERDZE - BT AT BERERN M RHR AR B R | R
REAME

Fuzhou University

Signing a cooperation framework agreement and carrying out in-depth
cooperation around “talent training and exchange” and “scientific and
technological innovation and achievements application”
BREERERAERE  KIRMABBEIREREXEME R

Signing a major project cooperation agreement and establishing
Fuzhou University Sino-Synergy Hydrogen Industry Research Institute

AL FIE T RS R R 220

School of Mechanical and Vehicular
Engineering, Beijing Institute of
Technology

BRpBEHIRELTE  HRBAEEEHIEBELTTE
Hosting a master program in vehicle engineering and carrying out joint
graduate training in vehicle engineering

AEBETHIRSERD S MIERER
B BREEGHSRMELES -
DEZBEIEFZENRERE R 2
ETENRREDERE - REHR -
BM2HETZEEREE  BEE4E
BITERENREREFW - 215
(GB/T 20042.2-2023E 7 # & 4
BEME2I S « B BB MG
)~ (T/CIET 063 — 2023&MHE
MITEGZETIMTERGE)SE - Bh
RIEBITXEENAGELENSEER
B MEWREHR  AEEREEY
SEEE T HBB0ESMRHE MBI TE
MR R AT IR LE -

kS - AP TR E B2 BRI -
M EE LRI ITERRIES -
ERREFREORME N IARE @
HEBBHRE - HH*E@?‘T%@%(E
ERMAEERBHERARZ A
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1B

While continuously improving product quality and performance,
the Group leveraged its technological strengths, participated in
the drafting and implementation of multiple industry standards,
and promoted healthy and vigorous industry development.
During the Reporting Period, we were involved in the drafting,
validation and discussion of multiple national standards, group
standards and industry standards, including GB/T 20042.2-
2023 Proton Exchange Membrane Fuel Cells Part 2: General
Technical Conditions for Cell Stack, and T/CIET 063-2023
Hydrogen Fuel Cell Industry Green Plant Evaluation Specification,
etc. We committed ourselves to promoting overall industry
standardization and high-quality construction. As of the the
end of Reporting Period, the Group had led or participated in
the formulation of more than 20 sets of national and industry
standards in relation to the hydrogen fuel cell industry.

In addition, we took part in various industry exchange activities
such as technical forums and academic seminars. While
demonstrating our profound technical strengths and highly
competitive product portfolio, we look forward to engaging in in-
depth exchanges of innovative R&D ideas and achievements
with other leading players in the market, focusing on the latest
technological developments in the cutting-edge hydrogen energy
industry.
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Case: Participating in Smart China Expo 2023

2023F9 R - BSRABALNMRHELERHE2023F BEREREXTES - HEGUIIRRIR BBREKIR
T BSESERNAERTESEERREMASRE  2RERTEAEENTTERAMNERE) - EFES L - K
SERBEENERERRRT B EGNITEREMRBEDEMKT - RMINAEAETHEIEREZIREE RBRE
BEABBRRERAH - HERS QEERMAIFT 2B - BFREQEEFERERR

In September 2023, Sino-Synergy Hydrogen brought its leading fuel cell products to the Smart China Expo
2023. With the theme of “Hydrogen Leading the Global Smart Future”, the Expo presented the smart industry
hotspots and development strength around the professional sectors and sub-sectors such as smart new energy
vehicles. At the Expo, the Group demonstrated its industry-leading fuel cell technology level through a rich
product matrix. Our R&D personnel also actively conducted exchanges and discussions with experts, scholars
and visitors in the field of hydrogen energy to jointly explore the road of hydrogen energy technology innovation
and look forward to the future industry prospects.

Mllulha..'ih.‘
-

3

BESRS

Expo Events
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Case: Participating in Hong Kong InnoCarnival activities

EEEHZEBHNAIFEHZFEReThink HK 2023E&E L AEBEEAZTHMAFSENR N ENEEAE - BB
2502 &R - 6,0008 28 EARS00EEEATHARS MO ZEMAFEEROA AR E

At InnoCarnival ReThink HK 2023 held in Hong Kong Science and Technology Park, the Group, as an
outstanding representative of zero-carbon sustainable technology enterprise, discussed and shared cutting-
edge solutions for zero-carbon sustainable development with more than 250 exhibitors, 6,000 participants and
500 professionals.

A EEER G ERE OB TERER | OBERA L BRMIERTHEEAHELER - YRBHRBRZ2EA
BB THRHESNEZERRBEZEMASS  RolIRZRE  BgENER2B 8GN -

In addition, on the joint booth themed “Green Technology for Low Carbon City Transformation”, we
demonstrated the flagship fuel cell products, and enthusiastically introduced their multiple advantages and
extensive application scenarios to the visitors, which attracted many visiting and consulting guests and
participants.

2023 B BAIFBREFEESGEFLARFHRS

2023 Hong Kong InnoCarnival ESG publicity and welfare activities events
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1.2. Pursuit of excellent quality
1.2.1Quality management system

The Group strictly abides by the Product Quality Law of the PRC
and other relevant laws and regulations, and has established and

E %E’J%Eiﬂ—f EMEARGE iﬁ@ improved the quality management system to provide customers
URPESERER  REPRMHZE with secure and efficient products in line with its commitment
2 EROED BMRIKMEES to ensuring high product quality and reliability. We established
R TEHTEEEEEEE  ¥5 a technical quality center, consistently improved the quality
HEZEEMAARAFTEERESE management structure, integrated high-quality standards into

WiBB(EERBESREF) (R

THEF) (EmERF)E—F
DHIERS  BRERELEZUSE - @
BEHR -

routine production and operation, and ensured product safety,
reliability and excellent quality applying a series of system
specifications such as Production Process Control Procedure,
Delivery Control Procedure and Product Protection Procedure.

HEREHR  AEEERBIATF
16949:2016 AE{TREEEHERRA
&+ ISO/TS 22163:2017 (IRIS)H &
EEEZAERISO 9001 1 20154
EERBERET KATEHHIHES

As of the end of the Reporting Period, the Group had passed
the certification of IATF 16949:2016 Quality Management System
ISO/TS 22163:2017 (IRIS) Quality
Management System and ISO 9001: 2015 Quality Management

for Automobile Industry,

System, and became one of the first hydrogen fuel cell

IATF 16949H S8 RRENTMME
MERZ— e

SGS

IATF 169493 &
IATF 16949 Certificate

enterprises in China to obtain the IATF 16949 quality system

certification.

(ﬂ

CERTIFEILICARFE

e,

Deien

Crticate vatd e 11082023

Loo

et dte 17002023
Corticate Regiter o V0004362

oo
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Catcae v uth: 22002026

IRISD

Certification

IRISEE
IRIS Certificate
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1ISO 9001:F &
ISO 9001 Certificate
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1.2.2Full life cycle quality management

We have enhanced the standard of quality management
operations, established a product life cycle quality management
system encompassing R&D, raw material procurement,
production and delivery, implemented strict quality control criteria
and procedures, conducted all-round quality control covering

HEEER  WERDZERERAER the entire product life cycle, and adopted various product quality
g8 - improvement measures.

o HEVAEMERNMERFRE 2R FEMTE - URREMHES
We conduct quality and reliability assessments on suppliers with whom we have established partnerships
to ensure the quality of raw materials

BEMERER * WERHEHE - ZRAR TTRE] BERRERIEETMRARKRER - U LTS REMEEAEERRE

Raw material After receiving raw materials, we will carry out inspection according to the internal “zero defect” acceptance
inspection standard and instruction manual to prevent unqualified materials from entering the production process

J

s BEBRRMEMITEEERABEEBFTERNREETIE
We will follow relevant national industry standards and internal quality standards to carry out production work
e RYETHREY  MEERHENTHRRAGNERS  BREERENSEAREINEARREFPRENEBRERMAE -
By IEBRIEZE mAE AR~ —FEER
EEEEE@% We set up designated inspection points, and the quality control team regularly carries out tests and inspections to ensure that each
Production production process meets the quality standards and specifications stipulated by the Company and customers, so as to prevent defective

process products from entering the next production stage

N

inspection

o EFRMAT - YR MERFERING - R - MBS REESEERER  SRRTERGE - HRRASBIEHIZFETEMNT
Before the finished product storage, we will carry out appearance, size, performance requirements, packaging and other
- routine inspections for the samples. If unqualified products are found, we will reprocess them according to internal control procedures
R B B A . -
Finished product IREkE S G L Y= P S R Sy ey et Tt Tl
inspection We will take safety measures during storage to minimize fire, flood and other potential product quality risks

and storage

o HEEEHEREEER KA  BREBERTEE  UERKMEERHBER THER
The quality control team cooperates with the production team to ensure that the packaging design is reasonable and the
244 finished product is intact during transportation

Delivery

EREHERREGBHEREER
Sino-Synergy Hydrogen Product Life Cycle Quality Management
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We actively used the digital system to empower product quality
management, and recorded the entire product quality inspection
process through the quality management module in the enterprise
resource planning (ERPU9) system to ensure stable, efficient and
traceable product quality management. In order to further improve
the effectiveness of the quality control system, our quality control
team regularly organizes internal quality inspections and invites
external third-party organizations to conduct quality audits assessing
the Company’s compliance with the quality system standards and
rectify issues identified. During the Reporting Period, we organized 11
internal and external quality audits in total.

We adopted a rigorous and pragmatic approach to quality
management. In order to improve employees’ quality management
awareness and related skills, we have established a quality training
matrix, and formulated various types of training plans according to
the skillsets required for different positions. The training covers skill
training, pre-job training, pre-production training, etc., and we are
dedicated to building a “quality culture” that effectively engages all
staff members.

EEEERRAIZIRG
Quality management system training events
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1.3 Providing high-quality service

1.3.1Customer service management

The Group focuses on providing customers with high-quality
products and services, with service regarded as an extension
to product operations. We strictly abided by the Law of the PRC
on the Protection of Consumer Rights and Interests and other
relevant laws and regulations, formulated the Management
Measures for Handling Customer Complaints, improved the
customer service management system and mechanism, and
established corresponding operating procedures for processing
customer complaints. We clarified the responsibilities of all
parties concerned in the complaint handling process, so as to
ensure that customer needs are satisfied in a timely and effective
manner, optimally protect customer rights and interests, and
enhance customer satisfaction.

We continued to improve the customer service management
system, established four after-sales service centers in South
China, East China, North China and Southwest China, and set
up a 7/24-hour working mechanism and a remote backend
monitoring system to quickly locate faulty products and collect
fault data, enabling us carry out fault investigation in real time.
Our technical team can arrive at the site within eight hours
after receiving a report (for provinces with after-sales service
centers) or within 24 hours (for other provinces) to better meet
customers’ needs with highly efficient and meticulous services.
In addition, we also regularly carried out skill training for front-
line technicians and functional personnel in technical service
centers to build a high-quality service team and further enhance
the Company'’s after-sales service capability.
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We paid particular attention to users’ suggestions, and collected
customer feedback through various channels such as email,
telephone and on-site service. Upon receiving a customer
complaint, we set up a customer complaint handling team, with
a dedicated person designated to collect information about
the customers’ real needs, and classify the complaint by the
issue(s) raised. We then organize R&D centers, technical quality
centers and other relevant departments to analyze the cause
the complaint, develop and a solution accordingly, and follow-
up on the implementation of the rectification measures adopted,
so as to continuously improve service quality. After the complaint
handling, we contact the customer by telephone within three
days to confirm whether the issues complained are effectively
solved and assess the degree of customer satisfaction. During
the Reporting Period, we received five complaints about the
conventional fuel cell system component failures, and all the
customers’ demands were promptly solved.

EnEEFARBRRHEXRMASIEE
TR °

Send professional technicians to guide the
installation and debugging during the
product loading and debugging process.

EmXNEEIREELRBAS SRR -
RESHRBISER o

After-sales service personnel shall be
sent to track the whole process before the
products are delivered and operated, so
as to solve the on-site demand in time.

BEREEZRERBER
Sino-Synergy Hydrogen whole process service system
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1.3.2 Product recall management

1.4.

1.4.1.

The Group attaches great importance to the quality products
offered in the market and product safety risk management,
and strictly abides by the Product Quality Law of the PRC
and other laws and regulations as well as relevant industry
standards, and has formulated the Regulations on the Product
Recall Management. The Group regulates the recall process,
responsibilities and operational requirements of non-conforming
or defective products, prevents the unexpected use or delivery
of such products, effectively avoids and reduces potential
safety risks, and optimally guarantee that customers can use our
products healthily and safely.

Once we detect any product quality issue or other issues
that may threaten or damage customers’ rights or interests,
we immediately initiate the recall procedure to trace the
product location and gather relevant information such as the
contact details of the parties involved, promptly determine the
appropriate remedial measures to be implemented, and inform
relevant parties of the safety remedial measures. We will also
ensure the availability of required storage and transportation
facilities according to the quantity and weight of the products
involved, so as to ensure timely and effective product recall.
After all the products are recalled and properly handled, we
will carry out internal review and improve related management
practices to prevent similar situations from happening again.
During the Reporting Period, the Group did not have any product
recalls caused by safety and health reasons.

Building a sustainable supply chain
Supplier management

High-quality supply chain building is crucial to sustainable
development. The Group values establishing mutually beneficial
and win-win stable cooperative relations with suppliers, and
formulates Supplier Management Procedure and other internal
documents, which clearly regulates the supplier selection,
evaluation and management processes, so as to ensure that
the products or services supplied meet the technical, quality,
delivery, cost and service requirements specified by the
Group, and also maintains the orderly, transparent and efficient
operation of the supplier management system.
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As regards supplier screening, we adopt multi-dimensional
supplier screening and assessment criteria such as technical
evaluation, quality evaluation and delivery date evaluation, and
screen potential suppliers through preliminary investigation,
technical integration, sample testing, on-site audit, etc. giving
priority to suppliers who have passed ISO 9001, IATF 16949 or
ISO14001 environmental
management system certification or other equivalent certifications

TS 22163 quality system certification,

to ensure that the products and services procured meet our high
standards.

After initiating partnerships with suppliers, we categorize the
suppliers into four categories by the importance of the supplied
materials: A (critical suppliers), B (important suppliers), C
(general suppliers) and D (non-production suppliers), and
carry out classified and hierarchical management. In addition
to arranging regular system audits for Class A and Class B raw
material suppliers, we also conduct annual external supplier
audits and assessments focusing on their business conditions,
supply chain management, environmental compliance, after-sales
service and continuous improvement concerning nonconforming
products. We have compiled the Supplier Improvement Schedule
for suppliers underperformed in the annual audit to provide
them with real-time guidance and assistance in improving their
production capacity and quality.

As of the end of the Reporting Period, the Group had 454
suppliers, including 447 Chinese mainland suppliers and seven

overseas suppliers.

Supply chain risk management

We regard the supply chain stability as an important safeguard
for steady business development, and regularly identify and
timely control potential supply chain risks to enhance supply
chain resilience. We integrate ESG management requirements
into supply chain management, with the addition of performance
indicators such as environmental management, employee human
rights protection, and social welfare participation as supplier
screening and assessment criteria, giving priority to prospective
suppliers who have obtained environmental management system
certification or have a good track record of ESG performance.
When entering into a cooperation agreement with suppliers, we
will include probity, good faith, environmental protection and
social responsibility requirements in the contract template, and
actively urge partner suppliers to fulfill their environmental and
social responsibilities. While we provide clean energy products
to the society, we also conduct greener procurement to reduce
the environmental impact of the value chain.

BEEMR (ZE) ROERATF

TEI=FF ¢ 137



RIE - HERERRSE
Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RREHREEEN - RAECHE
ERESEERS)  BEREMHEED
B HEREAREEREEN TR
Bl YERMEHRERRE RN
BTN RE2ET  BRE®EE

BN e o - BPTREBVEERE Z T
RIS REEDHREREERHEE
7 WRESEEENHERKFESHE
HER SR - L2 EES HEER
RIELEE ]  FTER BTN M
FEHE -

1.4.3 REREBEHEX T

BMERHEEDER BB ITIES
- EFEEA - RESE  ARITE
BRE RfgaSSLETHA A
HEFRBEYRMN  BRABTY R
B m5 B3R H2EE
S HERBATFHAMHEFRRESE
BSEBRCRICEER  HZEE
R e ERE R - R ERE
ﬁ%mioﬁiﬁw'ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁw
F% ARBEBERSENHBS
ﬁm HHHERRE T ZBEIIR
ﬁ@'xﬁﬁm‘EEﬁWAaﬁﬁ
TROE - BFAEXRMHAL -

In order to ensure supply continuity, we have formulated the
Emergency Supply Chain Management Mechanism, requiring
suppliers of long lead time components to keep stocks of
spare parts at the Group’s after-sales maintenance points, and
all suppliers to ensure safety inventories of secondary supply
components. In addition, we adopt the supplier diversification
strategy, select backup suppliers for each material category,
and develop multiple supplier clusters according to the needs of
each production base, so as to thoroughly improve the supply
chain risk response capability and build a secure and reliable
resilient supply chain.

1.4.3. Supplier communication and exchange

We attach considerable emphasis to communications with
suppliers, and maintain close communication with suppliers
through online or offline means such as work email, telephone,
video conference, and industry exhibitions and technical
meetings. The issues communicated encompass procurement,
commerce, technical development, quality management,
etc. operations. We hope to actively share our management
experience and business practices with partner suppliers,
share high-quality resources, empower supplier development,
and enhance the overall standard of supply chains. During
the Reporting Period, we held multiple training and exchange
meetings with some core partner suppliers, including suppliers of
fuel air compressors and hydrogen circulating pumps, bringing
together technical and quality control personnel from various
organizations to engage in in-depth discussions, and make joint
efforts to achieve win-win cooperation and co-development.

HEERIEIIZRR
Supplier training exchange events
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RESPONSIBLE FOR STEADY
DEVELOPMENT

Committed to operating in compliance with the laws, we
establish a systematic and sound compliance management
and risk management system, and abide by the highest
operating standards. We implement strict governance routines
and procedures revolving around issues such as risk-based
compliance, business ethics, information security and privacy
protection, and responsible marketing, with a view to realizing

long-term and steady development of the Company.

Comprehensive risk management

Comprehensive and effective risk management is the
guarantee of stable operation. The Group strictly abided by
the Company Law of the PRC, Basic Standards for Enterprise
Internal Control and other laws and regulations, and built a risk
management framework consisting of the Board of Directors,
the risk management leadership group and the internal
control department. The risk management leadership group is
responsible for making decisions regarding the risk management
system and regulations, and the internal control department
is tasked with organizing and coordinating risk management
operations of all departments, and reports to the leadership
group. We set up the Risk Management System, defined the main
responsibilities of personnel in various functional departments,
established a standardized and effective risk control system,
and improved the Company’s risk prevention capability on a

comprehensive scale.
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2.2

We have established a four-step risk management workflow —
initial information collection, risk assessment, risk response,
and risk management supervision — to continuously and
comprehensively promote risk management through closed-loop
management. We collect initial risk management information,
establish a risk information library, and regularly identify and
update the internal and external risk information involved in the
Company’s operation activities and business processes every
year to ensure that we can thoroughly identify various risks that
may impact the Company’s development. We evaluate the risk
information library, create the risk coordinate map, and classify
the potential risks into three levels according to their impacts
on the Company’s operating objectives: minor risks, general
risks and major risks. We formulate relevant mitigation plans and
response measures for different types of risks, implement various
risk response measures, and regularly conduct self-examination
and inspection of risk management operations in various
departments. During the Reporting Period, we identified 58 risk
events involved in business, strategic, marketing, legal and
financial activities, with climate change considerations included
as a criterion in risk assessment. We devised a detailed Risk
Assessment and Response Table, and adopted management
measures to effectively reduce potential risk events and their
adverse impacts.

Observing strict business ethics

The Group upholds the bottom line of regulatory compliance,
strictly abides by the Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the PRC
and other laws and regulations, as well as the regulatory agency
regulations and requirements, and promotes business ethics and
integrity system building. We established a clean management
structure encompassing the Audit Committee, the management
and the audit department, and formulated internal policies
such as the Staff Management System and the Anti-Fraud
Management System, requiring all employees to abide by the
Company’s relevant regulations against corruption, commercial
bribery, conflict of interest, unfair competition and other business
practices, and comply with high-level operating standards.
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Adopting a “zero tolerance” stance against corruption, favoritism
and unfair competition and other acts that violate business
ethics, we have entered into confidentiality agreements or non-
solicitation agreements with employees in key positions and
management positions to eliminate leakage of confidential
information and related commercial corruption incidents.
During routine business and management operations, the audit
department conducts routine spot checks on justifiability of
employee reimbursements — unjustified reimbursements are
seriously investigated and punished in accordance with internal
regulations. As a result, expense reimbursement practices
are effectively regulated and supervised to prevent fraudulent
behavior. As for procurement operations, we have formulated
Procurement Management System and other internal policies,
strictly regulated the requirements of various procurement
businesses, and implemented procurement pre-approval to
ensure that procurement requests are duly justified. We enforce
strict control over supplier management, implement multi-
departmental and multi-dimensional comprehensive assessment
on supplier acquisition and screening, and validate supplier
selection through cross-departmental assessment. For large-
sum procurement projects, we report them to the procurement
committee for determination or conduct formal bidding
based on amount-based authorization. When entering into
procurement contract, we formulate relevant integrity clauses
in the procurement contract template to prevent corruption in
procurement activities.

We encourage employees and stakeholders to actively report all
behaviors that violate business ethics and harm the Company
and employees’ interests, and set up multiple reporting channels
such as telephone hotline, email and physical mailbox. After
receiving a report, the audit department conducts an initial
investigation, and we will then set up a special team to carry
out in-depth investigation and prepare an investigation report,
and make a decision according to the investigation results.
We have established a whistleblower protection mechanism
to keep whistleblowers, reported matters and fraudulent
information strictly confidential, and explicitly prohibit any form
of illegal discrimination, retaliation or hostile measures against
whistleblowers. If we find any of retaliatory conduct, we will
impose strict measures in accordance with laws and regulations

to effectively protect the whistleblowers’ rights and interests.
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HERE

Reporting channels
BERER 0757-82963069
Hotline
BRI GH-Report@sinosynergypower.com
Email
el Epaukily HTE 52 BB R MM EF L EEI7ES01=-2
Mailing address Room 501-2, Building 37, Hangzhou Bay New Economic Park, Port Area, Jiaxing City,

Zhejiang Province

AR RNELS R TEAR During the Reporting Period, we adopted both online and offline
MR rEESENYE THE methods to disseminate the code of conduct for employees to
EHREETTALAISSE  Witya employees and Directors throughout the Group, and conducted
TR ENSEENEBERR business ethics and anti-corruption training on matters related
FEEE o W REEBREAS R to employee reimbursement criteria, etc. In addition, in 2022,
EHe TR 2022 F HE BN RS - the Group’s shareholders’ general meeting and the Board
Rss R R A T ] i of Directors also held an online meeting to deliberate on the
= e HELBEHEA - L proposal of formulating anti-fraud, anti-money laundering and
By AE@EABAESRESE - B anti-terrorist financing policies. The meeting was attended by
B . 812 - HSFOR vk B M AR IR a total of six directors. During the Reporting Period, the Group
B R REREE had no reports, irregularities or legal cases involving corruption,

bribery, extortion, fraud or money laundering.

23. REEERSE 2.3 Ensuring information security
KAMESEERELTE REABILGR We attach great importance to information security and personal
o OBRBREST(PEARLNMEHSE privacy protection, strictly abide by the Cybersecurity Law of the
ZEE) (HFEARANBEEELZ S PRC, the Data Security Law of the PRC, the Personal Information
B CREARAMEEAE B RE Protection Law of the PRC and other relevant laws and

E)ERBERER M AESR
MIERPISRE - WHELERPT - SHEERPT -
EBHFAEEAEKNESLEER

regulations, and set up an information security management team
led by the information technology department and composed of

A BERBEREATIELRRE the heads of the R&D department, the sales department and the
BT BRIRMBBIBEIP guard legal department to oversee information security management
I EL  VPNERER - EA in the Company. Thus far, we have installed the IP guard data
WEIARE - AL ERTUGEEE encryption system, VPN virtual network, Huawei network firewall,
EFERETEERE2RE L EAER Qi An Xin antivirus software, etc. to ensure information security,
BECMXERERRMH D AHERE and are planning an ECM file management system to effectively

EEBETERER  RMBEEY

S A 2 5 7 T R A [ manage the Company’s unstructured data. We have gradually
M e=H GG =R =R EWSN

established a sound information security system suitable for

ZERG  WE2EHEESEREBY , _ ,
2 HRATIREEENLEI SR business development to fully safeguard information and data
%o security and ensure full protection of the Company’s and

customers’ privacy.
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We have formulated internal documents such as Information
Security Management System, Confidentiality Management
Measures, Data Backup and Recovery Management Measures,
Information Security Incident and Emergency Management
Measures, Media Management Measures, Computer Room
Management Measures, Software and Hardware Management
Measures to set out information security standards and guidance
covering business systems, hardware assets, software assets,
information, general services, physical security areas and other
fields in the Company’s routine operations, improve employees’
skills to prevent information security risks at work, standardize
workflow, and prevent data information leakage. We encrypt
important documents and storage devices containing sensitive
information, set forth strict access control procedures, stipulate
users’ access rights to different data and information, and
strengthen personal account management. For third-party
personnel, including information technology support personnel,
maintenance personnel, visitors from other units and other
outsourced support service personnel, we assess their risk
exposure for accessing relevant data and information, and
authorize access accordingly.

In view of cybersecurity management, we have formulated and
enforced the Measures for Information System Secure Access
Management, and implemented step-by-step cybersecurity
management measures such as employee accounts, network
usage, and operation and maintenance. In addition, we conduct
vulnerability and virus attack testing on the network firewall every
week to ensure a safe and reliable firewall at all times. We install
security protection software on user terminals and equipment
and conduct regular maintenance operations, so as to effectively
cope with the changing network environment and prevent the
cybersecurity and information risks. During the Reporting Period,
the Group did not have any information security or privacy
leakage incidents.
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2.4 HREETEH 2.4. Carrying out responsible marketing

AEBEBRBETARMEANAETE The Group adheres to open and transparent responsible
o BRBET(PEARENEES marketing, focuses on adopting publicity and marketing practices
E)VEERFEER  BARHARFTEER that conform to domestic and foreign laws and regulations,
NINERER - (LG RE LBEERE social norms and moral standards in strict compliance with the

MEGHEHEE HERLEE % Advertising Law of the PRC and other laws and regulations, and
2 BEKRBEERRGHRES advertises our products and services based on their quality and
HEMISAT main safety and other features following relevant legal provisions

to ensure fairness in market competition.

BRHGIECARRTEMEILRIE) We have formulated internal policies such as WeChat Official
(EEHGRE) (EBEERE)E Account Publishing Approval Process, Media Interview Process

AES M - SEHEEE - HEBESHE and Media Cooperation Process, and established sound
HINEERBEREITENEEREHR management processes and mechanisms for news dissemination,
HHl - DAREREINE MRS BEIRE media interviews and other publicity channels, so as to ensure
BER EERE  -EBEEAEER accurate, authentic and objective information transmission. We
HINEHERATHERRmIREMNE avoid overstating product performance, etc. or using deceptive
B UBEENAAREREFPEZT or misleading information in publicity materials, and protect the
TR - rights and interests of customers in a responsible way.

ABRKABEE
WeChat official account content management

e  RIEEBEMERF  BHEBER=(EMRER  BAEEBFHEREIMEEBRMAR  ELERRLOBEEREER - BHRIK
BROERGETER  PREERH - ﬁ%%ﬁmmﬁﬁmgﬁzmﬁmﬁﬁﬁ
The process management covers three stages: application, approval and implementation. Relevant departments

will submit external information release materials, the operation management center is responsible for the draft,
and department managers and leaders will review it. The information related to business policies and plans will
be reviewed by the general manager

o EBRGTREBEITEMUER - UHEESHER
The content will be published after the review is completed, and put on record for subsequent reference

BEEGER

Media interview management

. EEx%mﬁEI&DDHEEEE*BFEJ/\,\,\HWF%%E“*}E{#E’J%W MERERUKB(EIEIERIRGESE) ETHR -
RHAKLEEN  FRERETHITHERGR
The employees to be interviewed and the brand management personnel will jointly sort out the answers

according to the media interview outline, and put them on record according to the Memorandum of Employees
Accepting Media Interviews, which will be submitted to the general manager for approval before the interview is
proceeded and filed

HESEER
Media cooperation management

o MEHPIEZTY  HEHNFRBOEBER  HENEE  BBERWBPIRESIESRR

After the brand department accepts the invitation of publications, associations and other media, the capital

operation, business and technology departments will provide cooperation opinions

s FEEARBEEXABLEENETIRBEIENRETEE
After confirmation, the cooperation plan will be submitted to the general manager for approval and implemented
accordingly
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GREEN, ENVIRONMENTALLY FRIENDLY,
AND LOW-CARBON OPERATION

While leading the hydrogen energy industry development, the
Group firmly promotes green development, integrates the low-
carbon environmental protection concept into the Company’s
routine production and operation activities, and minimizes
the possible negative impact of its production and business
operations on the environment. We make full use of our own
competitive advantages, pay particular attention to various
environmental issues such as waste discharge and resource
management, and strive to synergize environmental protection
and economic growth to create green value for society.

Implementing environmental management

The Group strictly abides by the Environmental Protection Law
of the PRC, the Environmental Impact Assessment Law of the
PRC and other relevant laws and regulations, and duly fulfils its
environmental governance responsibilities. We have formulated
a series of environmental management policies, clarified
the responsibilities of relevant departments and personnel,
established and continuously optimized the environmental
management system, and stepped up all-round environmental
management and the implementation of various tasks related
to system management, supervision and assessment. During
the Reporting Period, we pushed ahead with environmental
management system building and certification in an orderly
manner according to the ISO 14001 environmental management
system. As of the end of the Reporting Period, the Group was
officially designated as a “National Green Factory” and “Industrial
Product Green Design Demonstration Enterprise (Batch I11)” by

the Ministry of Industry and Information Technology of the PRC.

We always carry out environmental impact assessment before
commencing manufacturing activities in accordance with
relevant internal operating procedures and policies, and assess
production process-related environmental risks to manage the
environmental impacts of our business operations. Before the
commencement of facility construction and expansion projects
and during the final construction stage of such projects,
we engage third-party professional organizations to issue
environmental impact assessment reports to ensure compliance
with relevant environmental requirements. During the Reporting
Period, our business activities did not have a material impact on
the environment or natural resources.
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3.2. Strengthening emission management

We comply with the Water Pollution Prevention Law of the PRC,
the Air Pollution Prevention Law of the PRC, the Solid Waste
Pollution Prevention Law of the PRC, Soil Pollution Prevention
Law of the PRC and other relevant laws and regulations. One of
our environmental management objectives is to ensure that the
disposal and continuous optimization on discharge of pollutants
and wastes are in accordance with regulations and standards.
We have introduced a regular inspection system and strict
emission management measures to minimize the environmental
impact.

Wastewater discharge is mainly generated during the cleaning
stage of the polar plate production process. As regards
wastewater from production, we set up sewage treatment
stations in the production bases, and discharge all properly
treated wastewater to the sewage treatment plant. Waste gas
we discharge is mostly generated during the impregnation,
solidification and drying processes of polar plate production.
We collect waste gas using pipelines and discharge the
properly treated waste gas with tail gas treatment devices.
In addition, based on management principle of “effective
monitoring, analysis and improvement”, we have developed
relative management measures in order to achieve discharge
management goal of discharging in accordance with regulation
and continuous improvement. We strictly follow the requirements
on environment protection during production and operation,
implement monitoring mode of “twice per year” to discharge
of wastewater and waste gas. We have engaged qualified
environmental impact assessment agencies semi-annually, to
conduct assessment on discharge of wastewater and waste gas,
so as to ensure discharge activities comply with the standard.
Meanwhile, we will research on emission reduction measures
leading by safety production management department under
the assistance from production, processing, procurement and
other departments based on analysis from report data. We will
evaluate, firmly implement and follow up the feasible emission
reduction proposal from various aspects including production
operation, process optimization, raw materials procurement and
back-end sewage treatment. During the Reporting Period, the
current annual emission of Group is minimal and in line with
national emission standard. We had duly obtained wastewater
and waste gas discharge permits, and complied with the relevant
pollutant discharge concentration standards in the places where
we operate with each environment protection monitoring data up
to the standards.
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Pollutant discharging permits

Our solid wastes are mainly generated from waste raw and auxiliary
materials, packaging materials, domestic garbage and others during
production. At present, we develop management measures under
the qualitative management goal of “reasonable classification, timely

disposal, recycling and reducing pollution”, and establish and strive

to achieve the waste reduction target, that is “the amount of final
waste discharge being better than that as required by the place
where the operation is located”. In terms of non-hazardous waste
and domestic garbage during production, we regularly entrusted
waste recycling stations and waste disposal institutions for treatment.
In terms of the harmful wastes such as resin-containing wastes and
activated carbon generated in the production process, we engage
third-party organizations with the “Hazardous Waste Business
License” to properly classify, collect, transport and dispose related
waste materials, so as to ensure timely and systematic treatment and
avoid potential environmental pollution incidents. In addition, in terms
of management and optimization of solid waste, we continuously
reduce waste generation at the source through various ways, such as
innovating product design, optimizing production process, improving
production efficiency, replacing environment friendly materials
and promoting green procurement. We consolidate classification
management of solid waste, encourage recycling and reuse, thereby

effectively improving the recycling and reuse rate of solid waste.
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During the Reporting Period, our wastewater, waste gas and solid

BEEMBREBENT waste discharge data are as follows:
BB By 20234
Indicators Unit 2023
&K
Waste water
REKBFE U 19,224.90
Wastewater discharge Tonne
COoD({LBFEa8) Fr 376.96
COD (chemical oxygen demand) Kilogram
an T 11.03
Ammonia nitrogen Kilogram
BR T 13.75
Total nitrogen Kilogram
[ESEL7) Fr 150.92
Suspended substances Kilogram
BR
Waste gas
k=Kl = 0.98
Sulfur oxide Kilogram
p=Kla) T 17.43
Nitric oxide Kilogram
VOCs (Bt FHY) 2% /SRR 0.46
VOCs (volatile organic compounds) Mg/m?
E B EEEY
Solid waste
BEREDES U 24.16
Total amount of harmless waste Tonne
BEBEWETE W BRMEENERSTR 0.00008
Harmless waste density Tonnes/per kilowatt of our products

produced
BEREEDES U 6.47
Total amount of hazardous waste Tonne
BEEENTE W BMEENERE TR 0.00002

Hazardous waste density

Tonnes/per kilowatt of our products
produced
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3.3 Optimizing resources utilization

3.8.1Energy management

The Group strictly abides by the Energy Conservation Law of the
PRC and other relevant laws and regulations. By continuously
optimizing our energy structure and increasing the proportion
of using clean energy, we aim to reduce our reliance on fossil
fuels. We improve the layout of production equipment through
production technology innovation, reduce energy consumption
per unit of product and increase the utilization rate of traditional
energy sources through optimizing production process. We
formulate energy management standards and requirements,
improve monitoring and appraisal on energy use during operation
through setting energy consumption management standards,
in order to effectively manage current use of energy. We
cultivate living and working habit of saving energy and reducing
consumption among employees, strength corporate culture
promotion and education, enhance employee’s awareness
and engagement in energy saving and reducing consumption,
minimize energy waste generated in the production and use
of hydrogen fuel cell products, with a view to achieving the
energy conservation and emission reduction targets — “keeping
the energy consumption growth rate 5% to 10% lower than the
production growth rate by 2025”. As long as we implement
the above management measures, we estimate that we could
achieve energy management goal earlier than schedule.

During production and business operations, energies resources
consumed by the Group mainly are purchased electricity,
hydrogen and gasoline. By regularly recording electricity and
hydrogen and other energy resources consumed in production,
we obtain a clear understanding of the usage and consumption
of various energy resources, and promptly investigate and
tackle abnormalities once discovered. We improved the
workshop equipment layout, reduced the number of heating
facilities, and separated the production equipment with special
temperature and humidity requirements, and abolished heating
and dehumidification requirements formerly implemented in
all workshops, so as to reduce the air conditioning load and
energy consumption. We also carried out production equipment
energy-saving transformation by, for example, reconfiguring the
cooling systems of air-conditioning screw machines and using its
residual heat for glue injection and cleaning process to further
reduce energy consumption and cost. In addition, we actively
used renewable energy in the production process to reduce
greenhouse gas emissions and contribute to carbon neutrality

goal realization.
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Case: Photovoltaic power generation devices in Jiaxing production base

2023F4 7 AEEREAEEMIAKRAREETRAEARMALRAGES KRR IRAEELNAERFIIN &
EHBREEEHABEEKEBRA - BEREMR  ZRBEEEMAREETSHH396,147 TRE - EEWALGT
# AR H164,5207T ©

In April 2023, the Group Jiaxing production base officially put the 1.1 MW photovoltaic power generation
equipment into use for electricity generation. In addition to meeting the daily operation demand, the extra power
generated has been incorporated into the power grid to generate electricity sales revenue. As of the end of the
Reporting Period, the Jiaxing production base generated total photovoltaic power of 396,147 kWh, and total
electricity sales revenue of approximately RMB164,520.

Photovoltaic power generation equipment
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During the Reporting Period, the Group’s energy use and greenhouse
gas emissions are as follows:

BB B 20234
Indicators Unit 2023
HEERERE
Direct energy consumption
pav:i F R 605,165.84
Petrol KWh
BERERERE
Indirect energy consumption
HNEE T FRE 13,822,850.26
purchased electricity KWh
SN ER F R B 6,036,878.49
purchased hydrogen KWh

RERERE

Comprehensive energy consumption

BEREFEEE F R F 20,464,894.59
Total energy consumption KWh
BEIRBRT R FEKRMEENERSTR 68.90
Energy consumption density KWh/per kilowatt of our products

produced
BERBHER
Greenhouse gas emissions
HE (BE-)REREFNE WE— S bk 2 147.96
Direct greenhouse gas emissions (Scope 1) Tonnes of COe
R (FE ) RERBHNE WE—EftinEg 7,883.17
Indirect energy greenhouse gas emissions Tonnes of CO,e

(Scope 2)

BERBHREE mE— S iE 8 8,031.13
Total greenhouse gas emissions Tonnes of CO,e
BEREYEREE o tiE R RMEENEREBTR 0.03
Greenhouse gas emission intensity Tonnes of CO,e/per kilowatt of our

products produced
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Notes:

1. For the energy consumption calculation, please refer to the GB/T
2589-2020 General Rules for Comprehensive Energy Consumption
Calculation promulgated by the State Administration of Market
Supervision and the State Standardization Administration Committee.

2. For the greenhouse gas emission coefficient calculation, please
refer to the Guidelines for Accounting Methods and Reporting of
Greenhouse Gas Emissions of Enterprises in Other Industries (Trial)
published by the National Development and Reform Commission in
2015.

3. For the emission factor for purchased electricity, please refer to the
Notice on the Management of Greenhouse Gas Emission Reports for
Power Generation Industry Enterprises in 2023-2025 issued by the
Ministry of Ecology and Environment in 2023.

3.3.2 Water resources management

Water is one of the most important natural resources for the
Group’s business operations and development. Being clearly
aware of the importance of water resources and water protection,
we strictly abide by the Water Law of the PRC and other relevant
laws and regulations, and strive to tighten up water resources
management to ensure the rational and efficient utilization of
water resources while committed to achieving the environmental
goal of “gradually optimizing the use of water resources”. All
the water resources consumed in our production and business
operations come from municipal water, and they are primarily
consumed in processing and cleaning operations during R&D
and production or domestic activities. As of the end of the
Reporting Period, we did not encounter any problems and
challenges in searching for appropriate water source. Since we
cannot accurately predict and calculate specific quantitative
indicators at the moment, we have formulated a qualitative
management goal for water resources with a downward trend
in water use intensity compared with the previous year. In
subsequent years, we will formulate water use efficiency
quantitative goals and regularly review the progress of achieving
these goals.

In order to reduce fresh water consumption, we upgraded
R&D technology and lean production management practices,
implemented strict control over production and operation water
consumption, and monitored water consumption in production
activities, ensuring that instances of abnormal water use are
promptly detected and eliminated. As a champion of green
office, we organize publicity activities to promote routine green
environmental protection and resource conservation, set up
water-saving publicity signs in the staff living quarters, and call
on our employees to raise their awareness of water conservation
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to reduce water waste. During the Reporting Period, the Group
did not have any problems or risk events in sourcing suitable
water sources.

During the Reporting Period, consumption of water resources by
the Group was as follows:

e By 2023
Indicators Unit 2023
BAKE L7 75,392.73
Total water consumption Tonnes

RKEE W ERMEENERSTR 0.25

Water use density

Tonnes/per kilowatt of our products produced

BHEE

BPELEELBRETEIEEMAN
BEMHBREDRR (BEREANE
£) B (BHEIBE) - A (RHR
SMEE)F - BB R BEME
B BEEMRRE(LLEERE
W E D R BEMHFREER
RAA - WEDWEORE - TEETT
BESEMKT  BRESEMHMEL
MERFESE -

3.8.3 Packaging materials management

The Group mainly use packaging materials such as pearl cotton
(inner packaging for stack shock absorption), cartons (stack
outer packaging) and wooden cases (system outer packaging)
for production and business purposes. We strive to reduce the
consumption of packaging materials, optimize packaging design
according to product specifications, and carry out recycling
of certain recyclable packaging materials to reduce waste,
continuously enhance the standard of eco-friendly packaging
operations, and reduce packaging-caused environmental

impacts.

WERN - AREREMHERBR During the Reporting Period, consumption of packaging materials
m by the Group was as follows:

BE By 2023 F
Indicators Unit 2023
BERRE e .
Total packaging materials consumed Tonnes

BEMKERETE W RMEENERE TR 0.0004

Packaging material use intensity

Tonnes/per kilowatt of our products produced
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4.1.

PEOPLE-ORIENTED AND MUTUALLY
BENEFICIAL DEVELOPMENT

Adhering to the “people-oriented” business philosophy, the
Group attaches great emphasis to the protection of employees’
rights and interests as well as their career development and
growth, and provides comprehensive salary, benefits and care
packages, seeking to create a safe and healthy workplace to
drive the common development of employees and the Company.
In addition, we duly fulfill our corporate social responsibilities
and contribute substantially to the community prosperity and
development.

Protecting employees’ rights and interests

. Compliance with employment regulations

The Group strictly abides by the Labor Law of the PRC, the Labor
Contract Law of the PRC, the Provisions on Prohibiting Child
Labor, the Law of the PRC on Protecting Minors and other laws
and regulations, and has formulated the Employee Management
Policy and other employment management rules and regulations,
and established a sound human resource management system to
effectively regulate employee rewards and performance appraisal
and protect employees’ rights and interests.

We uphold the principle of fair employment and prohibit any
employment discrimination based on nationality, gender, age,
color or religion. We resolutely prohibit child labor employment,
strictly abide by the relevant labor and social security department
regulations, explicitly prohibit employing minors under 16. The
recruitment criteria in the Recruitment Management System set
out the age requirements for candidates, and we implement strict
inspection measures during the hiring process, requiring our
candidates to provide a series of personal file information such
as resumes, identity cards, medical reports, academic degree
certificates, etc., to effectively prevent child labor through strict
information collection and verification. If any violation is found,
we will deal with it in strict accordance with relevant procedures.
For those whose file information of the proposed employee does
not meet the employment requirements, it is prohibited to go
through the entry procedures; If an employee does not meet the
employment requirements, the employment relationship shall be
terminated immediately after investigation and verification.
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We prohibit any form of forced labor, formulate and strictly
implement the Attendance Management Policy, and implement
standard or special working hours policies, including flexible and
comprehensive working hours arrangements, according to the
nature of work entailed in different positions, so as to ensure that
employees have reasonable, sufficient and guaranteed rest time.
Where employees are required to work overtime to fulfill business
needs, the Company arranges compensatory time off or pay
overtime allowance according to relevant regulations. In addition,
we consistently optimize staff attendance management, holidays
and other systems to ensure that employees enjoy various
holidays, including national statutory holidays, personal leave,
annual leave, maternity leave, marriage leave, funeral leave, etc.,
thereby enabling them to achieve a balance between work and
private life.

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not engage in any
child labor or forced labor incidents.

Staff recruitment

Knowing that human resources are at the core of research and
innovation competitiveness, we have formulated the Recruitment
Management Policy and established a set of objective and fair
procedures for conducting recruitment and job interviews to
provide equal employment opportunities for job interviewees from
different regions, nationalities and cultures. We recruit highly
qualified candidates through a diverse range of recruitment
channels including job fairs, on-campus recruitment, internal
referrals, headhunters and internship programs to meet the
Company’s rapid development needs. During the Reporting
Period, we recruited approximately 70% of qualified candidates
through job fairs, and about 12% of R&D candidates through on-
campus recruitment and internship programs.

In order to further strengthen our R&D capabilities, we
vigorously acquire high-quality human resources, maintain
close cooperation with higher education institutions, and
promote mutual stimulation between technological innovation
and staff training. We also maintain innovation vitality through
cross-regional and interdisciplinary academic exchanges and
exchanges of human resources. As of the end of the Reporting
Period, we had a Post-Doctoral Research Center set up in
Guangdong Sino-Synergy Hydrogen Energy Technology jointly
with the National Postdoctoral Management Committee. The
“100 doctoral and
postdoctoral innovation platforms in Guangdong Province” and

center is officially designated as one of the

has one postdoctoral fellow.
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Employee structure

As of the end of the Reporting Period, the Group had a total of 798

2023F AE(A)
No. of people in 2023

e
Total
BRI 8 5
By gender
St
Male

=g
Female

798

662

136

REREES

By employment type
ES:

Full-time

Fe

Part-time

798

RETERS

By employee type
mEEEABR

Senior management
FEEEAB

Middle management
EEAE

Entry-level employees

34

87

677

RERE D
By age
30T
Below 30
30-507%%
30-50
508 A £
Over 50

422

365

11

RiEE S
By region
B KR

China mainland

798
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Detailed employee turnover indicators

During the Reporting Period, our total staff turnover rate was

23%.

2023 F i K E (%)

Turnover rate in 2023(%)

#st
Total
BRI 8 5
By gender
B
Male

g
Female

23

25

16

RERE S
By age
303 T
Below 30
30-507%%
30-50
508 A £
Over 50

25

22

RiLEE S
By region
B R R

China mainland

23

F=a]

1. 2023FBIRKXRBEM TN
B BIRAR-BEHAREKA
%/ BIMAH100% °

Note:

1. The 2023 employee turnover rate is calculated according to the
following formula: employee turnover rate = number of employees
lost during the Reporting Period/total number of employees *100%.
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Case: Special training for R&D personnel

B BRERTTT B IHRAMGEE N o

REERDBEFIER - HERINFEREY - RREHARNAR T ERZEFHABNS SRR - FJlhs g
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4.2 Helping employees grow

The Group attaches great emphasis to personnel training and
employee empowerment. We support employees to continuously
improve their skills, and seek to establish a sustainable learning
organization and comprehensively promote talent training and
talent echelon building.

To help new employees quickly assimilate into the Company’s
corporate culture, we provide on-the-job training to familiarize
them with the Company’s corporate culture. Meanwhile, we
provide a variety of learning resources through differentiated
means, from internal training to external learning, from online
learning to offline practice, according to their professional
backgrounds, rank and position capability requirements,
to create an all-round and multi-dimensional training and
development platform, and to promote their self-improvement
and common growth and development with the Company.

The Group made full use of the internal and external experts to co-ordinate training resources. During the
Reporting Period, the Group organized a number of special trainings for all R&D personnel. The external tutors
gave both online and offline trainings simultaneously, and the R&D personnel conducted in-depth discussions
and exchanges with external tutors on R&D technology and cutting-edge topics, which promoted professional
knowledge acquisition and effectively improved employees’ technical capability.

B A B EEET

Special training for R&D personnel
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Case: Supply Chain Department Staff Training

WEMSA - RPKTER T 255 HEEEEE - AEBEPIEEABAKEEFIIEMEK  BIATRERE
&R REER RAERNTANLHEERRBSSESE - BE100%HEEHLFIET -

During the Reporting Period, we successfully held 25 special supply chain training sessions, and the training
lecturer team was mainly composed of managers of the Supply Chain Department. The training contents
included procurement contracts, channel management, product introduction and supply chain risk identification,
covering 100% of the Supply Chain Department employees.

HrEE s
Supply chain special training

HEHAN - NEEI6.24%ME TS During the Reporting Period, the Group organized various
TAREBNSEEI - ABEIIRE training programs for 96.24% of the employees, and the average
RIE31.07/ N6 © length of training time per person was as long as 31.07 hours.
BIZIEE FHETEDE(%)  AFEINDNEEE (NEF)

Percentage of Training hours per
Employee training indicators employees trained (%) capita (hours)
RERIE 5
By gender
EeRis 84 30.6
Male
gegid 16 3383
Female
RERERS
By employment type
SRERE 4 3.2
Senior management
hRRE R E . .
Middle management
AEET 85 30.4

Entry-level employees
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Notes:

1. The employee training ratio in 2023 is calculated according to the
following formula: percentage of employees trained = employees
trained/total number of employees * 100%; Percentage of employees
trained by category = number of employees trained in category/total
number of employees trained *100%.

2. The employee training hours in 2023 are calculated according to
the following formula: average training hours per employee = total
training hours/total number of employees; average training hours by
category = total training hours in category/number of employees in
category.

4.3 Sharing development achievements

4.3.18Salary and incentives

In order to fully meet the development requirements, we have
formulated the Salary Management Policy, established a
systematic and reasonable salary management system, clearly
set out the management requirements on job rank division, salary
structure composition, salary adjustment, salary payment and
salary confidentiality, and set up a salary structure that matches
employees’ positions, competence and performance, so as to
utilize salary incentive to its fullest potential.

Meanwhile, we have set up a variety of employee reward
mechanisms, including the annual outstanding employee
bonus, outstanding contribution bonus, patent bonus, etc. with
the aim of stimulating employees’ potential and enhance their
sense of accomplishment, value and gain through a sound and
competitive salary and incentive system, and ultimately achieving
and sharing mutual growth with the Company.

4.3.2 Performance management and promotion

We fully recognize the value created by all employees in their
respective positions, and lay a clear and unimpeded career
development path for employees based on fully-established
performance management and promotion mechanisms.
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We have established a sound organizational structure for
performance appraisal management, and set up a performance
appraisal committee consisting of the chairman and general
manager as the highest decision-making body for staff
performance appraisal. The committee has a performance
appraisal team composed of senior managers at and above
the level of deputy general manager. The team is responsible
for reviewing the appraisal management policy. The Human
Resources Department is responsible for supervising and
inspecting the assessment process of each department and
standardizing the assessment results. We formulate and
implement the Performance Appraisal Management Policy,
adhering to the basic principles of openness, fairness and
impartiality, and conduct employee performance appraisal twice
a year. By reviewing the employee performance development,
we help them set personal performance goals, thus supporting
their continuous capability building efforts and continuous
performance improvement. During the Reporting Period, we
carried out performance appraisals for all employees applying
multiple assessment criteria. The performance appraisals were
conducted in the form of “appraisal score” or “performance
report + appraisal score” depending on the different positions
held by employees, covering 100% full-time employees.

We are also committed to providing employees with a high-
quality development platform, and have established talent
training, development and management systems for management
and technical staff, offering employees a clear and smooth
career development path. We are devoted to guiding employees
to make appropriate career plans at different career stages, and
encourage all employees to utilize their talent to the fullest extent,
striving for a balance between career development and personal
values.
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4.4. MRBEBER 4.4. Strengthening communication and employee care

HMBTETHER  EEBEFHN
BTEA%RS  ITPERETLBY
BB E TREFRFK - BBAIBBRYF
6 ITEEBTRRKRE BI{EM
EZEETEBRE WRETRSE
HERBIEREE -

<

LEETEMREG  REEFOHE
JI?’*IE CBMAAEHRETEESZEN
IREEE) “?ﬁﬁﬁaﬁfﬁ EHEEE
BW - BREY - RFEIEHE
K& HREHE  FEE T
ERETIEZ8  BRAFZDHIMEER
%EIE’U%MTXEE?JEW ﬁ%,ﬁﬂ
A BRMEST LESEERZ BT

EPE —/\RBXH ‘E%HE@L
FLERE - o RAERTEKE
OB TRHEATEFHREARAS
NE - BEREDTABNERNOAST
BB = 8 B A FRE - DARER
MHEEES - BRREBEAT

We pay due attention to employees’ needs, establish an effective
employee communication mechanism, and actively listen to
employees’ voices and encourage them to communicate their
demands. We ensure that employees’ suggestions and opinions
are effectively conveyed through internal communication
platforms, trade unions and employee congresses, employee

mailboxes and other communication channels.

In order to enrich employees’ leisure-time activities and promote
their physical and mental health and well-being, we organize
a variety of recreational activities from time to time, including
holiday greetings, holiday package distribution, team building
activities, company employee sports meetings, skill competitions,
morale building activities, etc. seeking to enhance their sense of
happiness and belonging through relaxation after work. During
the Reporting Period, we organized various activities such as
Shanghai Hongxin League Building, Staff Games, Women's Day
on March 8th, Chongqging Guohong League Building, etc. In
addition, we also provide eligible employees with staff housing
subsidies and talent apartments, and actively help those who
meet government requirements to apply for government high-
tech talent subsidies, so as to reduce their living pressure and
effectively retain outperforming employees.

L =k
BFERE

BETEDS
Staff sports meeting

Team building activities

BRERED ENRLEREED

Women’s Day caring activities
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Protecting personal safety and health

4.5.1 Work safety

We always put the health and safety of employees in the first
place, strictly abide by relevant laws and regulations such as the
PRC Law on Work Safety and the PRC Law on Fire Prevention,
and formulate internal documents such as the Management
Policy for the Work Safety Accountability System, Regulations
on Management of Major Hazards, Regulations on Investigation
and Management of Hidden Dangers, Emergency Evacuation
Plan for Accidents, and Fire Safety Management Policy to ensure
comprehensive implementation of the work safety policy of
“Safety First, Prevention First, Comprehensive Management”. We
have also set up a clear and definite work safety management
framework to ensure the implementation of work safety
management responsibilities at all levels, and effectively protect

the personal safety and health of employees.

REEEF-RBEA

The first responsible person in
production safety

o TR EERABREEEA
The ultimate responsible person in safety
production target

HEWET
Leadership group

cHIERD TARKLEAERE
Formulate safety production targets
for all branches and subsidiaries

B PFRATREEEF—BEA
The first responsible person in
production safety of centers,
branches and subsidiaries
e BEZML  ADFARMBTR EEEMYE
BEEZ
Responsible for the safety production and

occupational health objectives of various
centers branches and subsidiaries

EREEREEETERE
Sino-Synergy Hydrogen energy safety production management framework
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4.5.2.

We set work safety targets, and formulate and release them
through the Work Safety Committee at the beginning of each
year. Meanwhile, we require the Work Safety Committee to sign
the Annual Work Safety Target Management Accountability
Statement with the heads of various centers, branches and
subsidiaries, so as to ensure that the heads at all levels have a
clear understanding of the yearly work safety and occupational
health objectives, and break them into specific hierarchical sub-
objectives. The heads at all levels are responsible for conducting
supervision, inspection and monthly analysis to ensure the
fulfilment of the objectives according to schedule. We set up an
assessment management committee, which tasked with carrying
out target assessment according to relevant accountability
statements and performance appraisal forms, and establish the
equipment safety department to be responsible for performing
routine appraisal and reporting major issues, so as to ensure the
effective operation of the entire work safety target management
system.

We resolutely implement the requirements of work safety
standardization, and strive to create a safe, stable and orderly
production environment to ensure effective implementation of
work safety management tasks. In order to optimally ensure
personal safety for employees, we provide them with safety
protection gear that meet the operation requirements according
to the post features, including anti-static work clothes, safety
shoes, helmets, protective gloves and a series of protective
equipment. Meanwhile, we set up warning signs and instructions
at prominent positions to prevent work safety accidents and
protect employees’ personal safety.

Occupational health

We strictly abide by the PRC Law on Occupational Disease
Prevention and Control, the Classified Catalogue of Occupational
Disease Hazards, the Design Hygienic Standard of Industrial
Enterprises, the Administration Measures for the Occupational
Health Surveillance and the Supervision and Administration
Measures for the Employer Occupational Health Surveillance and
other laws and regulations, and formulate the Management Policy
for the Prevention and Control of Occupational Disease Hazards
to establish and improve the occupational health surveillance
files for each employee. We provide routine work safety
protection safeguards, and ensure that every employee who is
exposed to occupational hazards receives a comprehensive
occupational health check-up before, during, and after his/her
shift work, in order to timely understand their health status.
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We continue to strengthen the supervision and management
of occupational disease protection facilities and safety gear,
and provide employees with occupational disease protection
equipment such as protective masks and earplugs. We regularly
invite properly qualified third-party testing institutions to test the
occupational disease hazard factors in the Company’s production
workplace and continuously optimize management and improve
production technology according to the test reports issued by
the institutions, so as to minimize the possibility of occupational
disease occurrence. During the Reporting Period, we had
obtained the certification of professional third-party testing
institutions, and the occupational disease hazard factors of 23
tested workplaces did not exceed the occupational exposure
limit, and met the health requirements.

During the past three years, no work-related fatalities occurred in
the Group. During the Reporting Period, the Group incurred zero
working days lost due to work-related injuries.

4.5.3. Enhancing safety awareness

We strictly abide by the Work Safety Law of the PRC, the
Provisions on Safety Training of Production and Business
Units and other laws and regulations, and formulate the Safety
Education and Training Management Policy, and strive to
improve employees’ work safety protection awareness. We
establish a multi-level safety training system covering safety
management personnel, departments, shift safety officers,
special safety officers, etc. For newly recruited employees, we
carry out three-level work safety training to familiarize them with
the work safety knowledge system comprising of three levels —
company, department and team. The system includes basic work
safety knowledge, work safety rules and regulations, dangerous
operation points of the department, post-related safety operation
procedures, etc. We provide education and training, including
new knowledge, new technology, safety laws and regulations,
etc. for all staff members.
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BMARZTENEZE2HEFIIRE We offer diversified safety education and training courses and
RS BIEATRALEZEEAR - activities, including but not limited to Work Safety Month, warning
SEZ2EREFRAETREIN - A training on injury types during work safety accidents, hydrogen
ALEHEEI HELTE2EHNEE safety education and training, etc., to publicize and disseminate
EAZEREIE SELTREEEE work safety knowledge and actively create a “safety first” work
MFE - BEREER2E—INITHESR atmosphere. In addition, we also actively organize accident
o bAN - FRPITF BB A E TR prevention and emergency drills, and conduct fire emergency
ESOER - RIEHAHRREES drills and special equipment (forklifts) emergency handling drills
BRI RASTERME (RE) REFHIE during the Reporting Period, so as to effectively improve the
ZEEER  LNABIRFAEIRES employees’ emergency management capability.

RS EES -

ZEREE A BEREANERZZ2HFEI
Safety production month training Occupational health knowledge
safety education and training

=

JH A SR AR BERBRBREMAESEEER
Fire emergency drill Emergency handling drill

for special equipment emergencies
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4.6 Engaging community welfare

As a responsible enterprise, we deeply practice the business
philosophy of [engaging the community and serving the
community ], focusing on charity causes related to disaster relief
assistance and caring for vulnerable groups, and making our
own contributions to community building and social progress
through practical actions. During the Reporting Period, we
donated materials and funds to the flood-stricken areas in Beijing
and Hebei to help local residents overcome the difficulties. After
the earthquakes in Gansu and Qinghai, we immediately donated
materials and funds to the disaster areas to support local rescue
and reconstruction efforts. We pay attention to the hard work of
grass-roots workers and send greeting materials and care to the
Ordos sanitation workers to express our respect and gratitude to
the workers and to convey the power of business for goodness.

During the Reporting Period, donated materials and funds worth
about RMB280,000 in total.

EBERRS (R ) RHERAR
g
.

AHREABREVENES

EEALSHERENENES
Donate materials and funds to
flood-stricken areas in Beijing

Donate materials and funds to the
disaster-stricken areas in Gansu

EHEZHNRET AXEMERMNEIE
Send gifts and care to
Ordos sanitation workers

AEEXBRENENES
Donate materials and funds to
the disaster-stricken areas in Qinghai
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APPENDIX: THE STOCK EXCHANGE ESG

TEEE  EE -REERBRARER

Main categories, aspects, general disclosure and key performance indicators

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into
water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

Note: Air emissions include nitrogen oxides, sulfur oxides and other pollutants regulated by
national laws and regulations. Greenhouse gases include carbon dioxide, methane,
nitrous oxide, hydrofluorocarbons, perfluorocarbons and sulfur hexafluoride. Hazardous
waste refers to those defined by the national regulations.

Bl AE BENE
Aspect Description of the Indicators Relevant Chapter
ARE
A. Environmental area

INE — MR
73187 BRBERRREREHN  AkRTineHs  AEREZSBEEVNELSH

(a) BR: R

(b) BTHBITABERTEZMEEEERADEER -

#d BREREERAY  HEtVREMIBERZERANREN LAY RERERE_4

el - Bk - EBA - EERKACY - 2HECMEABCT - BEEEMERRAOMAT SEIREF

Al General disclosure EiEs
Emissions Information on: Green,

environmentally
friendly, and low-
carbon operation

A1 | BREUTERR MR R -

The types of emissions and respective emission data.

FRBRR
EHES

Green,
environmentally
friendly, and low-
carbon operation

A2 | BE (8EN) RPREE (BE2) R EREBHNE AR E) & (ER) BE
(MABEE8R - BHERMETE) o

Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse gas emissions
(in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).

HRERR
EHGES

Green,
environmentally
friendly, and low-
carbon operation

A13 | EEAERENMEE CABE) L (WER) BE (MABESEM - 8AR
Hest®) -

Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where appropriate,
intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).

HERR
EBES

Green,
environmentally
friendly, and low-
carbon operation

A14 | EEESEENEE CAEE) R(WER) BE (MABESEM - §ER
HetE) o

Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where appropriate,
intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).

FERR
ERES

Green,
environmentally
friendly, and low-
carbon operation

168 e SINO-SYNERGY HYDROGEN ENERGY TECHNOLOGY (JIAXING) CO., LTD. Annual Report 2023




BiE - HE8RE

A

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ITEEE  EE -REERBRARER

Main categories, aspects, general disclosure and key performance indicators

B RE BREVE
Aspect Description of the Indicators Relevant Chapter
A15 | HRATRTIZROBIIRE B R M RERIEL B RATIRIRHO S8R - HERR
Description of emissions target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them. RhREe
Green,
environmentally
friendly, and low-
carbon operation
A6 | HIEEREENESERYMNAE - REAPET SRR R AERELR FERR
AT R R o EHcEs
Description of how hazardous and nonhazardous wastes are handled, and Green,
a description of reduction target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them. environmentally
friendly, and low-
carbon operation

A2 : —RIRE
EiRE A BRERER (BEER  KEREMEMNR) 5E - FRBRR
i ERAAREE i8R BF BTRES - EikEe
A2: General disclosure Green,
Use of Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and other raw environmentally
Resources materials friendly, and

Note: Resources can be used for production, storage, transportation, buildings, electronic
equipment, etc.

low-carbon operation

A21 | REBREDHEER  SHEEER (NS - feh) #5%
kZE (MABESEN - FERETE) ©

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. electricity, gas or

EUATETRHEE)

oil) in total (kWh in '000s) and intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume,
per facility).

HERR

EHCES

Green,
environmentally
friendly, and
low-carbon operation

A22 | BFEKERTE (NMAGESEN  SERETE)

Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).

HFERR

EcEs

Green,
environmentally
friendly, and
low-carbon operation

A2.3 | HIETET MERE A B IR R RETEL B SRR AR -
Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to
achieve them.

FRERR

EHGES

Green,
environmentally
friendly, and
low-carbon operation

BEERE (2
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TEER  EE -REERBEENER

Em RE KELE
Aspect Description of the Indicators Relevant Chapter
A2.4 | HEICKERERAR ERTAEMBE - ARSI ARG BIE R AEREL HERR

B IR FTERERAO 22 58 - EHES

Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for Green,

purpose, water efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them. environmentally

friendly, and

low-carbon operation

A25 | R@FTABEMEGEE (UEE) R (MER) BEESMLGE - HERR

Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes) and, if EoEE

applicable, with reference to per unit produced. Green,

environmentally

friendly, and

low-carbon operation

A3 : —RRE FERR
BERRAER HEBTAHRERAAERENEAT BHEE EiE
A3: General disclosure Green,
The Environment | Policies on minimizing the issuer’s significant impact on the environment and environmentally
and Natural natural resources. friendly, and low-
Resources carbon operation

A3.1

HAEBEDHRERARERNEATERCRNERABETENTH -
Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment and
natural resources and the actions taken to manage them.

HERR
RHGE &

Green,
environmentally
friendly, and low-
carbon operation

170 e SINO-SYNERGY HYDROGEN ENERGY TECHNOLOGY (JIAXING) CO., LTD. Annual Report 2023




BiE - HE8RE

A

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ITEEE  EE -REERBRARER

Main categories, aspects, general disclosure and key performance indicators

Em RE BEVE
Aspect Description of the Indicators Relevant Chapter
A4 : —fRR = BERR
FEEL BRI REHE LR EHETAELEYENERREREEERHCR RHRE &
A4: General disclosure Green,

Climate Change

Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-related issues which
have impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer.

environmentally
friendly, and
low-carbon operation

A4l | BEREERAREHBETAEEYENEARGIEREE - REHTE -

Description of the significant climate related issues which have impacted,
and those which may impact, the issuer, and the actions taken to manage

ZRERR
RiEs
Green,

environmentally

them.
friendly, and
low-carbon operation
B.&E
B. Social area
B1: —REE
&R ﬁl%ﬁ G R E  BEREA - TERE - R T CBTTb - RIERIA R E AL
FFARERR
(a) BR: R
(b) BTHBTABERTEMEEERRAREER - AABZR
B1: General disclosure HEHE
Employment Information on People-oriented and

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-
discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.

mutually beneficial

B1.1 | #&It5 - EEEL (NEBEFR) - FRASIMIRE D NIESEE -
Total workforce by gender, employment type (for example, full — or part -
time), age group and geographical region.

AARK

HEHAR
People-oriented and
mutually beneficial

B1.2 | IR FhANKIBEHDMEERKLE -

Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical region.

AABR

HEHE
People-oriented and
mutually beneficial

BEERE (2

B)RNBRAF
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TZEE  EEH —REERERERES
Main categories, aspects, general disclosure and key performance indicators
B RE REVE
Aspect Description of the Indicators Relevant Chapter
B2: —MRBE
fEREZE BRRRZ2 THERFERREREREBEEAEN
(a) HE: &
(b) BETFHBTABERZENHEMEZRBOHINEH - PNV
B2: General disclosure HEHE
Health and Information on People-oriented and
Safety (a) the policies; and mutually beneficial
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting
employees from occupational hazards.
B21 | BE=F (BEERFE) GFRITHRMAZBRLE - PNV
Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of the past HEHR
three years including the reporting year. People-oriented and
mutually beneficial
B22 | BIGHEATIIFEE - ANBAR
Lost days due to work injury. AERE
People-oriented and
mutually beneficial
B2.3 | HMPAIRMAVE R R 21 - ARBBRTRESEE - PNV
Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, and how HEHR
they are implemented and monitored. People-oriented and
mutually beneficial
B3: —MR®E
EEY S BRRMHEE BT TEBE OB R REEMECE - HgES -
i EIEREE  TREREENENNIIMIRE - AR
B3: General disclosure HEHAR
Development Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging duties at | People-oriented and
and Training work. Description of training activities. mutually beneficial
Note: The training refers to vocational training, which may include internal and
external courses paid by the employer.
B3.1 | BUAIKEEFN (NMSREEE  +REEES) ENNTIEEENL PYNYS
The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee category AERE
(e.g. senior management, middle management). People-oriented and
mutually beneficial
B3.2 | HURINEERNES  BEEETAXINTHRY - PNV
The average training hours completed per employee by gender and HEHR
employee category. People-oriented and
mutually beneficial
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ITEEE  EE -REERBRARER

Main categories, aspects, general disclosure and key performance indicators

Em RE BENE
Aspect Description of the Indicators Relevant Chapter
B4 : —REE
B TR B EE T HEH% T
(@) B®: Rk o
(b) BFHETABEATEOIRBERRAPIOEH - AARA
HEHE
B4: General disclosure

Labor Standard

Information on

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer relating to preventing child and forced labor.

People-oriented and
mutually beneficial

B4.1 | HigsT R EMMERNBEETRBHIET -
Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid child
and forced labor.

People-oriented and
mutually beneficial

MABA

HEHE

B4.2 | HAERRERBENEEREAERMRRNLSE -

Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when discovered.

People-oriented and
mutually beneficial

AARK

HEHE

B5:
fRIEEE R
B5:

Supply Chain
Management

—RIRE

BREEIRS R R AR -

General disclosure

Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply chain.

Hydrogen innovation

Bl R
TURRR

for the future

B5.1 | HitEEIDHEEREE -

Number of suppliers by geographical region.

Hydrogen innovation

Bl R
TURRR

for the future

B5.2 | Ml AMEARERNES  MEARTEBEMNNREREE - URERHEH
HBITREENE -

Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of
suppliers where the practices are being implemented, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

Hydrogen innovation

BTN
SRR

for the future

B5.3 | Ml ABEAIHEESERGAIRE AL SRARKED - ARBERTRER
T e

Description of practices used to identify environmental and social risks
along the supply chain, and how they are implemented and monitored.

Hydrogen innovation

HIFE
HRRH

for the future

B5.4 | B EREHERRRELARREDRRBOES  URBBRTRERS
& e

Description of practices used to promote environmentally preferable
products and services when selecting suppliers, and how they are

implemented and monitored.

Hydrogen innovation

fIFE
HRRH

for the future
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Main categories, aspects, general disclosure and key performance indicators

Responsibility

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer relating to health and safety, advertising, labeling and privacy
matters relating to products and services provided and methods of redress.

B RE REVE
Aspect Description of the Indicators Relevant Chapter
B6 : —MRBE
EmEAL BHFFRBEMANRBOERELZS BS  SREBEEARBIEN :

(a) HE: K&

(b) BFHBTABEATENRBERRRONER - Bl RH
B6: General disclosure TRURK
Product Information on Hydrogen innovation

for the future

B6.1 | CEXRDERERABTRL 2 ERFEGMAQRNBE DL

Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety
and health reasons.

iy

TURRAIR

Hydrogen innovation
for the future

B6.2 | REMNERNRBENRFEAUREETE -

Number of products and service related complaints received and how they
are dealt with.

iy

FRRK

Hydrogen innovation
for the future

B6.3 | HilEBAERREANIEREBOED -

Description of practices relating to observing and protecting intellectual
property rights.

i Er

TRAIR

Hydrogen innovation
for the future

B6.4 | ML ERTBIEREROUIRF -

Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures.

iy

FRRK

Hydrogen innovation
for the future

B6.5 | A EE BB RERABIE - UEBERITRERTE -

Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, and how
they are implemented and monitored.

i era

TRMAIR

Hydrogen innovation
for the future
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ITEEE  EE -REERBRARER

Main categories, aspects, general disclosure and key performance indicators

Em RE BEVE
Aspect Description of the Indicators Relevant Chapter
B7 —REE
k&S BEAM ILEEEE - BR - BGFRERES -
(@) BE: Rk T
(b) BTFHBITABERTEMEEERRARKER - R
Bk
B7: General disclosure

Anti-corruption

Information on

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

Responsible for
steady development

B7.1 | RERBAHETASHESREVYERENESHARNNHE RFALER -
Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought
against the issuer or its employees during the Reporting Period and the
outcomes of the cases.

BEEEE

Rk
Responsible for
steady development

Br.2 | HpyHEERBRER  URBEBERTRERE
Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing procedures, and
how they are implemented and monitored.

BEEER

REER
Responsible for
steady development

B7.3 | HAREERE TRHEMNRESHE -

Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors and staff.

BEEEE

REsk
Responsible for
steady development

B8 :
HREE

Ba8:
Community
Investment

—BEE
BRAMELERTBETACENEHRZENRREEBEDSZEHRFIZMNK
% o

General disclosure

Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of communities
where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities take into consideration the

communities’ interests.

ANRA
HEZHE
People-oriented and

mutually beneficial

B8.1 | BIER®EE (WHE BEEE BIBX #E Xt 85)-
Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental concerns, labor

needs, health, culture, sport).

PARK

HEHR
People-oriented and
mutually beneficial

Bs.2 | EFIEBABAER (ML BREH)

Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area.

AABE
HZHE
People-oriented and

mutually beneficial
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H 9 E R

HPRR  ZEFEUBHRRE RIECBRE
FHmEetEADERMh A RRT &
S ER 2023512 431 HWER& SRR
HBEZRLFENGSYBRARES
Reng  WEEREFB(RBERG) K
BHREZREME -

To the Shareholders of Sino-Synergy Hydrogen Energy
Technology (Jiaxing) Co., Ltd.
(incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

Opinion
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Sino-Synergy Hydrogen
Energy Technology (Jiaxing) Co., Ltd. (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”), which are set out on pages 186 to 328,
comprise:

o the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2023;

o the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year then
ended;

o the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year
then ended:;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then
ended;

o the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended;
and

o the notes to the consolidated financial statements, comprising
material accounting policy information and other explanatory
information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2023, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with IFRS Accounting Standards and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards
on Auditing (“ISAs”). Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the International
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International
Independence Standards) issued by the International Ethics Standards
Board for Accountants (“IESBA Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:

° Revenue recognition from sales of goods

° Impairment of trade receivables and contract assets
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Key Audit Matter
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Revenue recognition from sales of goods
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Refer to Note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group mainly manufactures and sells goods including hydrogen
fuel cell systems, hydrogen fuel cell system components and
hydrogen fuel cell stacks. During the year ended 31 December
2023, the Group’s revenue from sales of goods were amounted to
RMB699.97 million.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when the goods are
delivered to the agreed delivery locations in accordance with the
contracts and the customers confirm the acceptance (as the point of
control transfer).

We focused on this area as significant efforts were spent on auditing
the revenues recognised from sales of goods due to the significance
of the revenue amount and the large volume of revenue transactions
from various customers during the year.
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Key Audit Matters (Continued)
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
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Our procedures in relation to revenue recognition from sales of goods
included:

We obtained an understanding of the Group’s revenue recognition
process, evaluated and tested management’s key controls over

revenue recognition from sales of goods;

We understood the Group’s accounting policy on revenue recognition
from sales of goods, evaluated and tested revenue from sales of
goods on a sample basis by:

(a) Examining sales contracts to evaluate the contract terms and
conditions relating to the transfer of control and assessing the
appropriateness of the Group’s accounting policy with reference
to the relevant accounting standards;

(b) Testing the revenue recognised from sales of goods by tracing
to the supporting documents, including sales contracts, sales
orders, sales invoices and customer’s goods acceptance notes;

(c) Performing confirmation procedures with selected customers for
revenue transactions from sales of goods during the year and the
trade receivables and contract assets balances as at the balance
sheet date;

(d) Testing revenue transactions recognised from sales of goods
before and after the balance sheet date by tracing to the
supporting documents, including sales contracts and customer’s
goods acceptance notes to evaluate whether the revenue was
recognised in the correct reporting period.

Based on the procedures performed, we considered that the Group’s
revenue from sales of goods was supported by evidence obtained.
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Impairment of trade receivables and contract assets
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Refer to Note 3.1(b), Note 4(a), Note 6(a) and Note 26 to the
consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2023, the gross balance of trade receivables and
contract assets of the Group were amounted to RMB1,927.47 million
and RMB61.74 million, respectively, and the impairment of trade
receivables and contract assets were amounted to RMB384.45 million
and RMB9.65 million, respectively.

The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measure
expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance
for trade receivables and contract assets. Management grouped
trade receivables and contract assets based on shared credit risk
characteristics, and then determined the expected loss rates on the
basis of the payment profiles of customers and the corresponding
historical credit losses, which were adjusted to reflect current and
forward-looking information on macroeconomic factors affecting the
ability of the customers to settle the receivables.

We focused on this area due to the significance of the balance of
trade receivables and contract assets and complex estimates and
judgements were involved in the assessment of expected credit losses
mentioned above.
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Key Audit Matters (Continued)
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
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Our procedures in relation to management's assessment on the
impairment of trade receivables and contract assets included:

We obtained an understanding of management’s internal control and
assessment process of impairment of trade receivables and contract
assets and assessed the inherent risk of material misstatement by
considering the degree of estimation uncertainty and level of other
inherent risk factors;

We evaluated and tested the Group's key internal controls over the
assessment of impairment of trade receivables and contract assets;

We assessed the appropriateness of expected credit loss model,
methodology and key assumptions adopted by management with the
involvement of our internal expert:

(a) Evaluated the appropriateness of management’s assessment on
customer grouping based on our understanding of the Group’s
business and operations and the credit risk characteristics of the
relevant customers;

(b) Evaluated the reasonableness of the expected loss rates
by considering the payment profiles of customers and the
corresponding historical credit losses;

(c) Evaluated the reasonableness of management’s assessment
on the forward-looking information with reference to our
understanding of Group’s business, industry and external
macroeconomic data;

We tested the historical data used in the calculation of the historical
credit losses, including the settlement records and the accuracy of the
ageing analysis of trade receivables and contract assets, on a sample
basis, to supporting documents;

We tested the mathematical accuracy of the calculation of the
impairment of trade receivables and contract assets.

Based on the procedures performed, we considered that the
judgements and estimates adopted by management in the assessment
of impairment of trade receivables and contract assets were supported
by evidence obtained.
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Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all of the information included in Sino-
Synergy Hydrogen Energy Technology (Jiaxing) Co., Ltd. 2023 Annual
Report (the “annual report”) other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. We have obtained some
of the other information including corporate information, management
discussion and analysis, profiles of directors, supervisors and
senior management, report of the board of directors, report of the
supervisors and corporate governance report prior to the date of this
auditor’s report. The remaining other information, including chairman’s
statement, financial highlights, environmental, social and governance
report and the other sections to be included in the annual report, is
expected to be made available to us after that date.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not and will not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information identified above
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that
we obtained prior to the date of this auditor's report, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

When we read the remaining other information to be included in the
annual report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement
therein, we are required to communicate the matter to the Audit
Committee and take appropriate action considering our legal rights
and obligations.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report

Responsibilities of Directors and the Audit Committee for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements (Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of

internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to

cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair

presentation.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements (Continued)

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Wong Kam Chin.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 26 March 2024
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

EHZE2023F12A31HILFE  For the year ended 31 December 2023

HBZ12831ALLEE

Year ended 31 December

2023 % 20224

2023 2022

{iFz3 ARKET T ARET T

Note RMB’ 000 RMB’000

WA Revenue 700,616 748,475

HEKA Cost of sales (524,866) (589,672)

— HEEmMmRRBARA - Cost of sales of goods and services (503,656) (546,365)

- FEREEBE — Impairment loss of inventories (21,210) (43,307)

EF Gross profit 175,750 158,803

HERX Selling expenses (59,325) (49,279)

MERZ Research and development expenses (151,122) (91,815)

THHAX Administrative expenses (249,689) (181,385)
SREERASREENRERIE Net impairment losses on financial assets 3.1(b)

R and contract assets (164,395) (98,144)
HiA Other income 7 11,685 14,424
Hiwdezs /(B518) — 38 Other gains/(losses) — net 8 38,231 (19,506)
KEEHE Operating loss (398,865) (266,902)
B RS Finance income 11 12,667 10,320
BTSN Finance costs 11 (10,125) (17,111)
BHWA /(RE) - 38 Finance income/(costs) - net 2,542 (6,791)
FEfG{E AREmE ABRREEE A7) Share of losses of associates and joint 12

ReEELENER ventures accounted for using the equity

method (40,094) (19,986)
R BB AR 18 Loss before income tax (436,417) (293,679)
Fﬁ?ﬁe‘jfﬁﬁﬁ% Income tax credit 15 28,795 13,452
FAEE Loss for the year (407,622) (280,227)
UTATELEFRER : Loss for the year attributable to:
S VNG 2PN - Owners of the Company (404,447) (273,416)
— FEEfR RS - Non-controlling interests (3,175) (6,811)
(407,622) (280,227)
RARIREREGEENERER  Basic and diluted loss per share for 16
k#EER (UERARET loss attributable to shareholders of the
578 ) Company (expressed in RMB per share) (0.95) (0.72)
E194E £ EI28H 2 M NZ SR A5 The Notes on pages 194 to 328 are an integral part of these
W ZARED © consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

EZ2023F12A31HILFE  For the year ended 31 December 2023
BZ12A31ALEE
Year ended 31 December
2023F 20224
2023 2022
Bt e AR¥T R AR®TT
Note RMB’ 000 RMB’000
FRER Loss for the year (407,622) (280,227)
Hit2mEEE Other comprehensive loss
BEg Ml EEEH DB EIEEEA  Item that may be subsequently
HH reclassified to profit or loss
—EBmEER — Currency translation differences (332) (318)
FRZHEEBEARE Total comprehensive loss for the year (407,954) (280,545)
DTALEMLEFEARNZEEE  Total comprehensive loss for the year
B attributable to:
S VNGIE 2PN — Owners of the Company (404,779) (273,734)
— FEE RS - Non-controlling interests (3,175) (6,811)
(407,954) (280,545)

F194HEF328H 2 MiETs
R AR

SR

consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

1202312 A31H As at 31 December 2023

R12831H
As at 31 December
2023 20224
2023 2022
B e AR¥T T ARETTT
Note RMB’ 000 RMB’000
BE Assets
FEREEE Non-current assets
Y% - WE K& Property, plant and equipment 18 694,173 474,566
ERAEEE Right-of-use assets 19(a) 216,735 204,355
B EE Intangible assets 20 27,315 24,869
aREE Contract assets 6(a) 52,088 41,128
BEMBHEE Deferred income tax assets 35 47,136 16,390
AEREARIZE Investments accounted for using
the equity method 18 52,523 8,626
BAREBEFAEMEZEKE Financial assets at fair value through
W REE other comprehensive income 23 88,636 88,636
mAREES AIBZENEE  Financial assets at fair value through
BE profit or loss 24 113,999 -
B 5 I WRIE K R W R Trade and bills receivables 26 - 16,162
HEMIERBEE Other non-current assets 21 63,930 173,828
FEREBEELE Total non-current assets 1,356,535 1,048,560
REEE Current assets
3 Inventories 25 281,754 379,692
B 5 EWGRIE R ERE B Trade and bills receivables 26 1,543,022 1,147,070
A e WO IR R TR SRR Other receivables and prepayments 27 69,258 125,607
WARBEABZEMNEE  Financial assets at fair value through
BE profit or loss 24 796,946 -
BARBESAHMEEWZE Financial assets at fair value through
KB EE other comprehensive income 23 7,990 800
R EIRE Restricted cash 28 203,302 -
RENRRESEED Cash and cash equivalents 28 604,715 718,183
REBEEHAE Total current assets 3,506,987 2,371,352
EEHE Total assets 4,863,522 3,419,912
fEm Equity
RATHEE AE(LERE Equity attributable to owners of the
Company
%N Share capital 29 518,042 438,522
i1 4= B Share premium 29 3,657,827 2,300,891
EAh Other reserves 30 46,426 62,252
EEfF AR 0 Treasury shares reserve 30 - (54,000)
REtEE Accumulated losses (848,435) (443,988)
3,373,860 2,303,677
FEFE AR A Non-controlling interests 17,000 (4,679)
A Total Equity 3,390,860 2,298,998
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REMBRR R

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

As at 31 December 2023

M12A31H8
As at 31 December
2023%F 20224
2023 2022
Mot ARETR ARET T
Note RMB’ 000 RMB’000
a& Liabilities
EREBEE Non-current liabilities
&k Borrowings 34 38,500 82,900
HEaE Lease liabilities 19(b) 37,846 16,585
FEFEUT A Deferred income 36 86,595 23,646
B Provisions 37 12,834 15,018
FRBEEAE Total non-current liabilities 175,775 138,149
REBEE Current liabilities
B 5 I R =R Trade and bills payables 32 773,700 510,726
Eh R IR R ERTE A Other payables and accruals 33 212,773 187,822
aRAE Contract liabilities 6(b) 1,659 4,695
EHMGEHARE Current tax liabilities 773 8,486
B Borrowings 34 265,631 197,400
HERE Lease liabilities 19(b) 28,486 27,714
PTESmTA Derivative financial instruments 38 - 38,950
IRFEWA Deferred income 36 5,156 4,301
B Provisions 37 8,709 2,671
REaEAE Total current liabilities 1,296,887 982,765
EEHE Total liabilities 1,472,662 1,120,914
EEREEEE Total equity and liabilities 4,863,522 3,419,912

%186 HE F 328 H MR A M 3R TN 2024

The consolidated financial statements on pages 186 to 328 were

FIA26HEZEEZHHE - WHIATRERR approved by the Board of Directors of the Company on 26 March 2024
= and were signed on its behalf by:
EF EF
Director Director
F194 B £ E3288 2 M D2 E4HE M5 The Notes on pages 194 to 328 are an integral part of these

R 2 HERER S o

consolidated financial statements.
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KRR ERES

Equity attributable to owners of the Company

ER F2
RE EEER  BRORE  AADE  EfBE  RbEE 2R it Be EgeE
Treasury Non-
Share Paid-in Share Capital Other shares Accumulated controlling Total
capital capital  premium Teserve  Teserves reserve losses Subtotal  interests equity
ARETT ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARETT ARMTR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOO0O  RMBOO0  RMBIOOD  RMBOO0  RMBO0O  RMBOO0  RMBOOD  RMBI0OO
20251818 As at 1 January 2022 = 376,622 - 1479928 671,972 (54000)  (956,818) 1,516,704 2,132 1518836
2EFE Comprehensive loss
ERER Loss for the year - - - - - - (273416)  (23418)  (6811) (260.22)
EEAEEE Currency translation
differences - - - - (318) - - (318) - (318)
2EFRER Total comprehensive loss - - - - (318) - (273416) (213734 (6811) (260,545)
EEEANRS Transactions with owners
PHARNERAR Conversion into a joint stock
(Kz29k30) company (Notes 29and 30) 375,622 (375,622) 1357400 (1,479928)  (663718) - 786246 - - -
HAR (H20) Issue of new sheres (Nofe 29) 62,900 - o340 - - - - 1,006%1 1,008,391
Ri3%H (k1) Share-based payment
(Note 31) - - - - 54,316 - - 54,316 - 54,316
REEANRAEE Total transactions with
owners 438522 (375622) 2300891 (1,479.928)  (609,.402) - 786,246 1,060,707 1,060,707
R2022E12A318 As at 31 December 2022 438,622 - 2,300891 - 62,252 (54,000 (443988) 2303677 (4,679) 2,298,998
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RERDBER
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

EZ2023F12A31HILFE  For the year ended 31 December 2023
LGN
Equity attributable to owners of the Company
Ef FER
k& Ly Rt Rt Zithi gt B EHEL
Treasury Non-
Share Share Other shares  Accumulated controlling Total
capital premium reserves reserve losses Subtotal interests equity
AEETR  ARETR ARETn ARETn  ARETr  ARETn  ARETR  ARETn
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
R2023%151A As at 1 January 2023 438,522 2,300,891 62,252 (54,000) (443,988) 2,303,677 (4,679) 2,298,998
2EER Comprehensive loss
ERER Loss for the year - - - - (404,447)  (404,447) 8,175 (407,622)
ERAEED Currency translation
differences - - (332) - - (332) - (332)
2EEELR Total comprehensive loss - - (332) - (d04,4d7)  (404,779) (3,175) (407,954
HEEANR S Transactions with owners
REERAEEERT  Issuance of shares by
&3 fke%ES  inial public offering, net
(Hfzk29) of underwriting
commission (Note 29) 79,520 1,331,854 - - - 1,411,374 - 1,411,374
Hft ER (B#ES  Capialisation of other
BaM) B4 listing expenses, except
for underwriting
commission - (65,445) - - - (65,445) - (65,445)
WEHHhFER Acquisition of minority
shareholder equity - (7,854) - - - (7,854) 7,854 -
FEREREND Vesting of shares granted
STEIRENRG under Share Incentive
(FzE31(a)) Scheme (Note 31(a)) - 98,381 (98,381) 54,000 - 54,000 - 54,000
PERREE Capital injection from
minority shareholder - - - - - - 17,000 17,000
Tt f (3E31) Share-based payment
(Note 31) - - 82,887 - - 82,887 - 82,887
HEEANRZEE  Total transactions with
owners 79,520 1,356,936 (15,494) 54,000 - 1,474,962 24,854 1,499,816
R2023%12431H As at 31 December 2023 518,042 3,657,827 46,426 - (848,435) 3,373,860 17,000 3,390,860
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HZ12A31ALLEE
Year ended 31 December

2023F 20224
2023 2022
iiEz3 AR¥T R ARETT
Note RMB’ 000 RMB’000
RETRHRERSRE Cash flows from operating activities
KEMARE Cash used in operations 39(a) (252,291) (271,036)
BRFAEHE Income tax paid (7,559) (555)
B U F & Interest received 11 12,667 10,320
RETBHFTARERAE Net cash used in operating activities (247,183) (261,271)
RETEFMSRERE Cash flows from investing activities
MYE - BEMEREELRR  Payments for property, plant and
(BN equipment (150,510) (254,192)
B E A RE1E H B TR Payments for land use rights - (108,606)
2 UEBAT R A Government subsidies received 70,417 =
=il Loans to related parties 41(b) (505) (100)
S EEER Repayments of loans from related
parties 41(b) 517 5,348
BREBENFREERE Investment in associates and joint
ventures (84,741) (25,642)
HEFEEELNHNRK Payments for intangible assets (8,255) (596)
BEWME  BWENLREHE  Proceeds from disposal of property,
IE plant and equipment 39(b) 59 248
REEAREEAEBZN  Investments in financial assets at fair
TREE value through profit or loss (908,700) =
B AREBEFAEMET Investments in financial assets at fair
W e mEE value through other comprehensive
income - (77,163)
BEEEDE Disposal of a joint venture - 14,100
RETDMARSFE Net cash used in investing activities (1,081,718) (446,603)
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HBEEERER
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

EZ2023F12A31HILFE  For the year ended 31 December 2023

HZ12A31ALLEE
Year ended 31 December

2023%F 20224
2023 2022
Bt ek AR¥T R ARBTT
Note RMB’ 000 RMB’000
REITEHMERERE Cash flows from financing activities
BATHAR Issue of new shares - 1,006,391
& BT P15 FIE Proceeds from share issuance upon
listing 1,411,496 -
LHREEE Capital injection from minority
shareholder 17,000 -
SERFIEE (gn),md (Increase)/decrease in restricted cash 28 (203,302) 819
RITE RIS KRIE Proceeds from banks borrowings 339,000 195,300
BBIRTTIER Repayment of bank borrowings (261,510) (300,000)
BEE=FTEX Repayment of loans from third parties (50,000) (148,800)
BFE Interest paid (18,329) (14,777)
S _EMAEBEMZEH AT Payments for listing related expenses (13,866) (17,435)
HEEEEELHERK Payments of lease liabilities (8,480) (7,604)
RMETEMESELSFE Net cash generated from financing
activities 1,212,009 713,894
HEREBELZEY (BL), Net (decrease)/increase in cash and
EINFEE cash equivalents (116,892) 6,020
FYRERACEEY Cash and cash equivalents at the
beginning of the year 718,183 711,819
EEGHHHERRESE Effects of exchange rate changes on
By cash and cash equivalents 3,424 344
FRESRBELEEY Cash and cash equivalents at the
end of the year 604,715 718,183
E194 £ 328 B MMt Iz Ein A M E TRz The Notes on pages 194 to 328 are an integral part of these

EoFEInasiSay

consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EHZE2023F12A31HILFE  For the year ended 31 December 2023
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Sino-Synergy Hydrogen Energy Technology (Jiaxing) Co., Ltd.,
formerly known as Guangdong Sino-Synergy Hydrogen Energy
Technology Co., Ltd. (“the Company”), was incorporated as
a limited liability company on 30 June 2015 in Yunfu City,
Guangdong Province, the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC"). The registered office of the Company is Room 501-2,
Block No. 37, Hangzhou Bay New Economic Park, Port District,
Jiaxing City, Zhejiang Province, the PRC. On 22 March 2022, the
Company was converted into a joint stock company with limited
liability.

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) are
principally engaged in the research and development, production
and sale of hydrogen fuel cell stacks and systems in the PRC.
The single largest shareholder of the Company is Guangdong
Hongyun Hydrogen Energy Technology Co., Ltd. (“Hongyun
Hydrogen Energy”) which is controlled by Mr. Chen Xiaomin
(“Mr. Chen”) through Foshan Huahui Technology Investment
Partnership (Limited Partnership) (“Huahui Technology”) holding
99.99% equity interest in Hongyun Hydrogen Energy.

The Company’s shares have been listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (“HKSE”) since 05 December 2023.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of RMB (“RMB’000”) unless otherwise stated.

These consolidated financial statements have been approved for
issue by the Board of Directors on 26 March 2024.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICY AND DISCLOSURES

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have
been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards as issued by the International
Accounting Standard Board (“IFRS Accounting Standards”)
and disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance Cap. 622. The consolidated financial statements
have been prepared under the historical cost basis, except
for certain financial assets and liabilities that are measured
at fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”)
and financial assets at fair value through profit and loss
(“FVPL").

194 o SINO-SYNERGY HYDROGEN ENERGY TECHNOLOGY (JIAXING) CO., LTD. Annual Report 2023



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EZ2023F12A31HILFE  For the year ended 31 December 2023

2 mUEEREABRREE
SEEH (&)

21 RBEXE(E)

RETABERP I RE SR

8|

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICY AND DISCLOSURES
(CONTINUED)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements

MERE P BERAFEERETH
REsHht c TEREEEALASE
EN=EIo6 I (el
RES F M R E SRR - SR

in conformity with IFRS Accounting Standards requires the
use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process
of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas

REMET GRSV BERBEX
ME RIS ER T4 R KR

2.2

(a)

A RIS ER R

—LEHT R AR R] ERE
RRAHEH - RAZE
S 2E Al J2 & R T S S & [ A9

MBMN R E BT
BERFE  TEFETE

A -

2.2

involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to
the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note
4.

New or amended standards or interpretations

(a) A number of new or amended standards became
applicable for the current reporting period. The
adoption of these new standards and amendments
did not have material impact on the Group’s financial
position or operating result and did not require
retrospective adjustment.

RUAT B #g 2 1%
B 0 B 4F 2 B fE AR K
Effective for annual
periods beginning

on or after
Rt ERIE 8 (BRI A) GrthEt 2 EE 20231 A1H
IAS 8 (Amendments) Definition of Accounting Estimates 1 January 2023
B et ERIE 1258 (IBFTA) HE—QZELECZEERAERMRLENRIE 202351811

IAS 12 (Amendments)

B PR & 5t 22 RIS 1 5% % BB B 75
HEERIE KA
F25% (IBFTA)
IAS 1 and IFRS Practice
Statement 2 (Amendments)
BIFR B TS SR 5 2R RIS 17 5%
IFRS 17
BIFR &5t 2ERIZE 1255 (85T A)
IAS 12 (Amendments)

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities

1 January 2023

arising from a Single Transaction

BETBOR 2 R

Disclosure of Accounting Policies

20231 H1H

1 January 2023

REREX 2023F1A1H
Insurance Contracts 1 January 2023
BIFRT U E — = S ARRA 20231 A1A

International Tax Reform — Pillar Two model
rules

1 January 2023
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EHZE2023F12A31HILFE  For the year ended 31 December 2023

2 RHUEERSTBRREE 2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN

EHEH (&) ACCOUNTING POLICY AND DISCLOSURES
(CONTINUED)

2.2 FAIREBITERRRRE (&) 2.2 New or amended standards or interpretations (Continued)

(b) BHTFEBRMHFT AR (b) Certain new accounting standards and interpretations

RBZRBEANEZE2023F have been published that are not mandatory for the

12 A 31 B LE F Z 58 §ll £%% year ended 31 December 2023 and have not been

W AEEWARIEFRRA early adopted by the Group. These standards are

L EER REE - EE not expected to have a material impact on the Group

AIFEE T H A S EE A in the current or future reporting periods and on
FARRBERERAER foreseeable future transactions.

RRZHERERFZE

RUATT B #igk 2 18 B A
B E HAfR AR A
Effective for annual
periods beginning on

or after
BIFR & st 2ERIZE 158 (IBETA) BEBERRDAIFRD AR 202451 H1H
IAS 1 (Amendments) Classification of liabilities as current or 1 January 2024
non-current
et ERIE 158 (IBATA) MR IERE A E 202441 R1H
IAS 1 (Amendments) Non-current liabilities with covenants 1 January 2024
BB B 75 HR 5 R 16557 ERERZEEAE 202451 A1H
(fEFTA)
IFRS 16 (Amendments) Lease liability in a sale and leaseback 1 January 2024
BIR s ERIE 75 RERIME  HERRE T 202451 A1H
HEERET7R (BRTA)
IAS 7 and IFRS 7 Supplier finance arrangements 1 January 2024
(Amendments)
B a2 RIS 21 5% (AT A) ERZ AR 202541 A1H
IAS 21 (Amendments) Lack of exchangeability 1 January 2025
R EAFE10R KBRS RKREFEEBENASSGEREZRN FE
AR5 2857 (1EFTAN) BEHEILE
IAS 10 and IAS 28 Sale or contribution of assets between an To be determined
(Amendments) investor and its associate or joint venture
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EZ2023F12A31HILFE  For the year ended 31 December 2023

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk, cash
flow fair value and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk. The Group’s overall risk management program focuses
on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimize potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance. Risk management is carried out by the senior
management of the Group.

(a) Market risk
(i)  Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk arises when future
commercial transactions or recognised assets
and liabilities are denominated in a currency that
is not the Group entities’ functional currency.
The Company’s functional currency is RMB.
The Company’s primary subsidiaries were
incorporated in the mainland China, and these
subsidiaries considered RMB as their functional
currency.

The Group is primarily exposed to changes
in RMB/USD exchange rates. If USD had
strengthened/weakened by 10% against RMB
with all other variables held constant, the Group’s
loss before tax for the years ended 31 December
2023 and 2022 would have been RMB91,801,000
and RMB80,000 lower/higher, respectively, as
a result of foreign exchange gains/losses on
translation of USD denominated cash and cash
equivalents and restricted cash.
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EHZE2023F12A31HILFE  For the year ended 31 December 2023

3 MBERERE (&) 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(CONTINUED)
3.1 H¥EBREZR(E) 3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) WHER (&) (a) Market risk (Continued)
(i) SlEESE (&) (i) Foreign exchange risk (Continued)
AEBTEEARE The Group is also exposed to changes in RMB
T (BT EXZFHaE to Hong Kong dollar (“HKD”) exchange rates. If

B - HE20234F %2022
F12A31ALEFE 4
BILHARBHE RE
10% -+ MATA H A& 2R
BAg  AEBEMHF AR
BB BB DRI 15
AR #48,058,0007T &
AR#46,0007T @ JyER
BRELBTHENRES R
RESBEYWHWINERE
BT °

7R & 8 3R By 30 A% S GE S )
BUR o A AEEEHE
BERIERE - LR
BEHE2RZ ELHIHREKRI
e

HKD had strengthened/weakened by 10% against
RMB with all other variables held constant, the
Group’s loss before tax for the year ended 31
December 2023 and 2022 would have been
RMB48,058,000 and RMB46,000 lower/higher,
respectively, as a result of foreign exchange
gains/losses on translation of HKD denominated
cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash.

The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy. However, the
management of the Group monitors foreign
exchange exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the

need arise.

M20229F12H31H
31 December 2022

#2023F12H31H
31 December 2023

E35T0 BT = BT
uUSD HKD uUsbD HKD
AR¥TT AR%STn ARETT ARETT
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB’000
BANBETAEGRS Financial assets at fair value
SREE (fizE24) through profit or loss
(Note 24) 910,945 - - -
RERREEED Cash and cash
(Fi=E28(a)) equivalents (Note 28(a)) 7,061 480,633 1,749 480
JERTER R Accounts payables - - (946) -
AT RE & Other payables and
[EsT &R accruals - (56) = (18)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HZE2023F12A31AILEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises from bank
deposits and borrowings. Borrowings obtained
at variable rates expose the Group to cash flow
interest rate risk which is partially offset by cash
at bank with variable interest rates. Borrowings
obtained at fixed rates expose the Group to fair
value interest rate risk. During the years ended
31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group's
borrowings bore interest at both variable rates
and fixed rates.

Bank deposits carried at prevailing market
interest rate expose the Group to cash flow
interest rate risk. The Group closely monitors
trend of interest rate and its impact on the
Group’s interest rate risk exposure to ensure it
is within an acceptable level. The Group has not
used any interest rate swap arrangements.

If interest rate on borrowings had been higher/
lower by 50 basis points of current interest rate,
with other variables held constant, loss before
income tax for the years ended 31 December
2023 and 2022 would have been approximately
RMB249,000 and RMB502,000 higher/lower,
respectively.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents and
restricted cash, amounts due from related parties and
trade receivables, contract assets, other receivables
and financial guarantee obligation. The carrying
amounts of each class of the above financial assets
and the carrying amounts of financial guarantee
obligation represent the Group's maximum exposure
to credit risk in relation to the corresponding class of
financial assets and financial guarantee obligation.

(i)  Credit risk of cash and cash equivalents and
restricted cash

To manage this risk, cash deposits at banks are
mainly placed with state-owned and reputable
financial institutions in the PRC. There has been
no recent history of default in relation to these
financial institutions. These instruments are
considered to have low credit risk because they
have a low risk of default and the counterparty
has a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash
flow obligations in the near term. The identified
credit losses are immaterial.

(i) Impairment of financial assets

The Group has four types of assets and liabilities
that are subject to the expected credit loss
model:

° trade receivables

° contract assets

o other receivables

o financial guarantee obligation
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HZE2023F12A31AILEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(1)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Trade receivables and contract assets

The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach
to measuring expected credit losses which uses
a lifetime expected loss allowance for trade
receivables and contract assets.

To measure the expected credit losses,
trade receivables and contract assets have
been grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics. The contract assets represent the
Group’s right to consideration in exchange for
goods or services that the Group has delivered to
a customer. The contract assets were all not due
and have different risk characteristics with trade
and bills receivables. The Group has therefore
concluded that the expected loss rates for trade
receivables were different from the contract
assets.

The expected loss rates of trade receivables were
based on the payment profiles of customers and
the corresponding historical credit losses, which
were adjusted to reflect current and forward-
looking information on macroeconomic factors
affecting the ability of the customers to settle the
receivables. The Group has identified the Gross
Domestic Product (GDP) and the growth rate of
the Manufacture of Motor Vehicles, Trailers and
Semi-Trailers industry to be the most relevant
factors, and accordingly adjusted the historical
loss rates based on expected changes in these
factors.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(CONTINUED)
3.1 BBEBEAERE) 3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) 1EEEE (&) (b) Credit risk (Continued)
(i) E=HEERE(E) (i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
B ZRKHIEBERE R Trade receivables and contract assets
BE(8) (Continued)
R 2023F k20224 As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the loss
12A31H  &~& allowance for the Group’s trade receivables was
#Z 5 FE UK TE K B determined as follows:
BREEENT :
PIME 1FEF2E 2FZE3F 3N E @t
Less than 1yearto  2yearsto Over
1 year 2 years 3 years 3 years Total
ARETR AR¥ETR AR¥TRT AR%®Tn AR%Tzn
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
®2023512F31H As at 31 December 2023
REREE On collective basis:
ERABE-Z5EK  Gross carrying amount -

8 (Fitzt26) trade receivables (Note 26) 778,983 701,297 381,081 66,112 1,927,473
BHERR Expected loss rate 15.64% 17.58% 20.77% 91.09% 19.95%
e (FiEo6) Loss allowance provision

(Note 26) 121,813 123,254 79,165 60,219 384,451
®2022%12831A As at 31 December 2022
REREE On collective basis:
FEEE-Z5ER  Gross carrying amount -

08 (FitzE26) trade receivables (Note 26) 816,856 416,708 110,981 34261 1,378,806
EHEE® Expected loss rate 10.61% 15.61% 41.43% 52.51% 15.65%
e A (FiEtos) Loss allowance provision

(Note 26) 86,706 65,064 45,976 17,991 215,737
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HZE2023F12A31AILEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

EREERE (E) (i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
B RKFIERER Trade receivables and contract assets
BE (&) (Continued)
20234 220224 As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the loss
12A31H  &~& allowance for the Group’s contract assets was
# & R & &= EE# determined as follows:
BEEWT
SME 16228 2523 3FEHNE #st
Less than 1yearto  2yearsto Over
1 year 2 years 3 years 3 years Total
ARBTT ARETR ARETn ARETRT AR%TR
RMB’000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
12023512531R As at 31 December 2023
IRAERERE On collective basis:
FEAE-SREE Gross carrying amount -

(BiE6(a)) contract assets (Note 6(a)) 21,822 20,001 17,780 2,138 61,741
EHERE Expected loss rate 15.64% 15.64% 15.64% 15.64% 15.64%
Bt (Fi1356(a)) Loss allowance provision

(Note 6(a)) 3,412 3,128 2,780 333 9,653
12022%612531R As at 31 December 2022
REAE-cREE Gross carrying amount -

(P7E6(a)) contract assets (Note 6(a)) 26,614 17,733 1,739 - 46,086
BHERX Expected loss rate 10.76% 10.76% 10.76% - 10.76%
EiaRE (Hik6(a) Loss allowance provision

(Note 6(a)) 2863 1,908 187 - 4958
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For the year ended 31 December 2023

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(ir)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Trade receivables and contract assets
(Continued)

Contract assets primarily relate to the Group’s
right to consideration in exchange for the
products that the Group has transferred to a
customer. Contract assets represent retention
contract consideration withheld by customers
which are recoverable after the completion
of warranty period of the relevant contracts,
generally the shorter of five years or when the
vehicle that carries the Group’s product travels
for 200,000 kilometres after the control of goods
transferred to the customers. Therefore, the
Group does not have an unconditional right to
the contract consideration until the warranty
period is completed, and only after the Group
completes the warranty period can the Group
reclassify contract assets to receivables. At
each balance sheet date, where credit risk of the
counterparty did not change significantly over the
years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, the
Group believes that for the same counterparty,
the expected credit risk for contract assets under
different aging bands would be similar, hence the
Group decided to take the provision rate of trade
receivables aged within 1 year as a reference for
the expected credit loss ratio of contract assets.

Trade receivables and contract assets are written
off where there is no reasonable expectation of
recovery. Indicators that there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery include, amongst others,
the failure of a debtor to engage in a repayment
plan with the Group, and a failure to make
contractual payments for a period of greater than
5 years past due.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EZ2023F12A31HILFE  For the year ended 31 December 2023

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)
Other receivables

Impairment on other receivables is measured as
either 12-month expected credit losses or lifetime
expected credit loss, depending on whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition. If a significant increase in credit risk of a
receivable has occurred since initial recognition, then
impairment is measured as lifetime expected credit
losses. As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the loss
allowance for the Group’s other receivables excluding
deductible value-added tax input were determined as
follows:

F-BER BEoER  E=ER
12BREH  2HREY 2HEH
FEEE FEER FEFE HEt
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
12-month Lifetime Lifetime
ECL ECL ECL Total
ARETT ARBTR ARWTRT AR®ETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

R2023512A31H
fRERE - EuElk

As at 31 December 2023
Gross carrying amount —

A (ffsE27) other receivables (Note 27) 15,832 - - 15,832
TRHEIE R Expected loss rate 7.04% - - 7.04%
Bk (fisa7) Loss allowance provision

(Note 27) 1,114 - - 1,114
M2022%12A31H As at 31 December 2022
AREAE — HElk Gross carrying amount —

I (MizE27) other receivables (Note 27) 13,388 - 9,790 23,178
TEEAE R X Expected loss rate 2.52% — 100.00% 43.70%
B (fska7) Loss allowance provision

(Note 27) 338 - 9,790 10,128
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For the year ended 31 December 2023

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

HHRREER (&) 3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) EEEE (&) (b) Credit risk (Continued)
R 2023 % 2022412 A 31 The loss allowances for the Group’s trade receivables,
H:  X&5EE 5 E WK contract assets, other receivables and financial
B AREE - HitfEl guarantee obligation as at 31 December 2023 and
FIERMEERETHE 2022 reconcile to the opening loss allowance as
BREEBERREN follows:
FEAT
g5 ity BBER
EWIE EREE FEW TR0 B st
Financial
Trade Contract Other  guarantee
receivables assets receivables  obligation Total
ARBTR AR®TrT ARETrn ARETn AR®T:x
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
R2023F1 818 As at 1 January 2023 215,737 4,958 10,128 - 230,823
RIESERREBEE Increase in loss allowance
#m recognised in profit or loss 198,415 4,801 899 - 204,115
BEREEE Reversal of impairment loss (29,701) (106) (9,913) - (39,720)
H2023F12A31H As at 31 December 2023 384,451 9,653 1,114 - 395,218
H2022F1A1H As at 1 January 2022 110,240 1,587 8,660 12,192 132,679
RIESERNEBEE Increase in loss allowance
#m recognised in profit or loss 137,404 3,371 1,621 = 142,396
REREESE Reversal of impairment loss (31,907) = (153) (12,192) (44,252)
R2022%12831H As at 31 December 2022 215,737 4,958 10,128 - 230,823
(c) HEELERE (c) Liquidity risk

REERPESRR - &K
SEHEEMMEREEER
RRANR MRS EFE
MAKF » URAREENE
BREE S MRER SR
BRBHTE -

TRBER SRS HRF
HEBESOIHA - &
HEA R R 2T A & E
MEEE - RAREDN
EREREHNRBEBAR SR

= °

To manage the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents
deemed adequate by the management to finance
the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of
fluctuations in cash flows.

The tables below analyse the Group’s financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the
remaining period at the end of each reporting period to
the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed
in the tables are the contractual undiscounted cash
flows.
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EZ2023F12A31HILFE  For the year ended 31 December 2023

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)

% %
PME 1582F 26F5% 56 E #ct
Between Between
Less than 1 and 2 and Over
1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years Total

ARBTR AR®TRT AR®TR AREMTR AR%T:R
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB’000

RW2023%12A31H  As at 31 December 2023

fE Borrowings 268,128 5,305 34,975 - 308,408
ZHEMNFELEN  Trade and bills payables
F& (f:E32) (Note 32) 773,700 - - - 773,700
HiEFFIERERT  Other payables and accruals
EH (7848 (excluding non-financial
af) liabilities) 174,814 - - - 174,814
HEBE Lease liabilities 28,612 10,247 21,044 10,264 70,167
1,245,254 15,552 56,019 10,264 1,327,089
RW2022612A31H  As at 31 December 2022
fE Borrowings 202,921 54,543 33,297 - 290,761
BHREMHIE Trade payables (Note 32)
(Fiz£32) 510,726 = = - 510,726
HibfEf 7 ERER  Other payables and accruals
ZH (T8#%%4m  (excluding non-financial
BfE) liabilities) 108,357 - - - 108,357
TESRIA Derivative financial instruments
(FizE38) (Note 38) 39,698 - - - 39,698
HEBE Lease liabilities 27,871 14,335 8,253 = 50,459
889,573 68,878 41550 - 1,000,001
EXER 3.2 Capital management

AREEREARNE BAREAR
EESFEENOEN  AARE
REERR AR RS ARER
HeRIEE - T R A AR
WD BEAPA -

REFIHABEARRE - AEE
A RE & PR T AR A AR SR
B BITHRO I EEER

DMEFE o

\S
S

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce
debt.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.2

Capital management (Continued)

Consistent with other companies operating in the same
industry, the Group monitors capital on the basis of the
net debt to equity ratio. This ratio is calculated as “net
debt” divided by “total equity”. Net debt is calculated as
borrowings, lease liabilities and cash and cash equivalents.
The net debt to equity ratios as at 31 December 2023 and
2022 were as follows:

M®12A31H

As at 31 December
2023 % 20224
2023 2022
AR®TT AREFT
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
RITER Bank borrowings 304,131 280,300
HEAE Lease liabilities 66,332 44,299
W ReRBEFEEY Less: cash and cash equivalents (604,715) (718,183)
BFE Net debt (234,252) (393,584)
RS 45 Total equity 3,390,860 2,298,998
FEM ML = Net debt to equity ratio TEA N/A TEA N/A

AREEME 3.3 Fair value estimation

TREAABEGTEMERZMA
ERMAABABRENER 5
TARBENSEERERBEA
ABEARNERTIA - FHE%
ABIRTZ T Xt o 858 A
RABERBEAN=(EBA

N

. ERTHTAAEENR
EBRE (RERE) (5
—E#) -

s REBENREEREE (HE
%) sk (REER)
AERNBRIIASZ —ER
ZIRE AN B A BUE (5
B &

o WIEERBAIEET S HIE
B & s A E R B A BUE
(BNIERERBAZE) (5
=BA) o

The table below analyses the Group’s financial instruments
carried at fair value as at each balance sheet date, by level
of the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair
value. Such inputs are categorised into three levels within a
fair value hierarchy as follows:

. Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

o Inputs other than quoted prices included within level
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived
from prices) (level 2); and

o Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs)
(level 3).
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For the year ended 31 December 2023

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

F-EBR E_EBR EZEBR @gt
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
AR¥TRT AR%Tn AR¥ETT AR%TxR
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
BEMALEETE Recurring fair value
measurements
12023%12H31H As at 31 December 2023
SREE Financial assets
BARBEGALMEEEERN  Financial assets at FVOCI
SREE
— 3 ERIERE (FH5E23) ~ Unlisted equity
investments (Note 23) - - 88,636 88,636
— RITREEE (PH5E23) - Bank acceptance Notes
(Note 23) - - 7,990 7,990
BEARBEABZENSBMEE Financial assets at FVPL
— BiER (fF24) — Wealth management
products (Note 24) - 910,945 - 910,945
- 910,945 96,626 1,007,571
LREE Financial liabilities - - - -
BEMALEEE Recurring fair value
measurements
®2022512831H As at 31 December 2022
CREE Financial assets
RANBEFAEMBEREGER Financial assets at FVOCI
SREE
— JEETMRHERE (FIFE23) — Unlisted equity
investments (Note 23) - - 88,636 88,636
— RITA R ESR (FizE23) - Bank acceptance Notes
(Note 23) - - 800 800
- - 89,436 89,436
LREE Financial liabilities
PTHEEmMIA Derivative financial
instruments
— BEBERRRO 2 EE - Obligation to buy back
(F¥zE38) the shares of an
associate (Note 38) - - 38,950 38,950
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For the year ended 31 December 2023

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and out
of fair value hierarchy levels as at the end of the reporting
period.

Level 1: The fair value of financial instruments traded in
active markets (such as publicly traded derivatives, and
equity securities) is based on quoted market prices at the
end of the reporting period. The quoted market price used
for financial assets held by the Group is the current bid
price. The quoted market price already incorporates the
market’'s assumptions with respect to changes in economic
climate such as rising interest rates and inflation, as well
as changes due to Environmental, Social and Governance
(“ESG”) risk. These instruments are included in level 1.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market (for example, over-the-counter
derivatives) is determined using valuation techniques which
maximise the use of observable market data and rely as
little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant
inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable,
the instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based
on observable market data, the instrument is included in
level 3. This is the case for unlisted equity securities and
for instruments where ESG risk gives rise to a significant
unobservable adjustment.

During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, there
are no transfers among levels of the fair value hierarchy
used in measuring the fair value of financial instruments,
and also no changes in the classification of financial assets
as a result of a change in the purpose or use of those
assets.
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EZ2023F12A31HILFE  For the year ended 31 December 2023

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

(a)

Fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3)

The following table presents the changes in level 3
financial assets at FVOCI| and derivative financial
instruments for the years ended 31 December 2023

ftb 2 H W 2 Y & B & E R and 2022:
PTAESR T AmE
M12H31H
As at 31 December
2023 F 20224
2023 2022
ARET ARETTT
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
BAAREEFTAHA Financial assets
ZHKBENESREE at FVOCI
READ As at the beginning of the year 89,436 12,273
NE Additions 7,990 77,163
BE Disposal (800) =
RER As at the end of the year 96,626 89,436
BZE12A31HLEE
Year ended 31 December
20234 20224
2023 2022
AR%TT ARETTT
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
PTESRMIA Derivative financial instruments
RED As at the beginning of the year 38,950 18,466
AREE ), md (Increase)/decrease of fair value
(HizE8) (Note 8) (38,950) 20,484
RER As at the end of the year - 38,950
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For the year ended 31 December 2023

3 BERRERE (&) 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)
3.3 AREEME (&) 3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)
(b) 1HEEAZIERAELR (b) Valuation inputs and relationship to fair value
1EEHIETR
TEBAKCEEE=ER The following table summarises the quantitative
AABEFEMAEAT information about the significant unobservable inputs
ABERG ABBENE{LE used in recurring level 3 fair value measurements.
* o
ANEE WAEEE
Fair value Range of inputs TUER@AYE
M2A31H FUEE BZ12A31BLEE  EAAEENER
As at 31 December  fhfEHFT BAYE Year ended 31 December Relationship of
20235 2022%  Valuation Unobservable 20235 2022%  unobservable
2023 2022 technique(s) input 2023 2022  inputs to fair value
ARETR ARETR
RMB’000  RMB'000
RANBEFAHES
ANENEREE
Financial assets at
FvVOCI
— FRERE 88,636 88,636 MAVA TNEA TER @R TEA
- Unlisted equity 88,636 88,636  Cost N/A N/A N/A  N/A
investments approach
—ROAGLER 7,990 800 HEZLRE KRE 2.33% 262% HRXES
RABEME
- Bank acceptance 7,990 800  Discounted Discount rate 2.33% 2.62%  The higher the
Notes cash flow discount rate,
the lower
the fair value
fTESRMIA
Derivative financial
instruments
— kR R ARD - 38950 HERREME EARERM TEA ARE  BEiRERLFEY
Af et 39,698,000 & ARBEEES
- Obligation to buy - 38,950  Discounted Expected net N/A RMB  The higher the
back the shares of cash flow cash outflows 39,698,000 expected net

an associate

cash outflows,
the higher
the fair value
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For the year ended 31 December 2023

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

(b)

Valuation inputs and relationship to fair value
(Continued)

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the discounted
cash flow method was adopted to determine the fair
value of derivative financial instruments held by the
Group. Key assumptions under discounted cash flow
method is expected net cash outflows.

The Group performed sensitivity test on changes in
unobservable inputs in determining the fair value of
the derivative financial instruments. The changes in
unobservable inputs including expected net cash
outflows will result in a significantly higher or lower
fair value measurement. The increase in the fair value
of the derivative financial instruments would increase
the loss of fair value change in profit or loss or other
comprehensive loss. When performing the sensitivity
test, management applied an increase or decrease
to each unobservable input, which represents
management’s assessment of reasonably possible
change to these unobservable inputs.

If the Group’s key valuation assumptions used to
determine the fair value of the derivative financial
instruments had increased/decreased by 5% with all
other variables held constant, the estimated fair value
changes from carrying amount are listed in below

HAENGHFTZEHINTRT table:
x:
HZ12A31HILEE
Year ended 31 December
2023 % 20224
2023 2022
ARETT ARETTT
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
EtRERHBE Expected net cash outflows
#IN5% Increase 5% - -
5% Decrease 5% - (1,947)
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that may have a financial impact
on the entity and that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the actual results. The estimates and assumptions
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next year
are discussed below.

(a) Impairment of trade and bills receivables, contract
assets and other receivables

The loss allowance for financial assets disclosed in Note
3.1 is based on assumptions about risk of default and
expected loss rate. The Group uses judgement in making
these assumptions and selecting inputs to the impairment
calculation, based on the Group’s past history, existing
market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at
the end of each reporting period.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and bills
receivables, contract assets and other receivables are
disclosed in Note 26, Note 6(a) and Note 27, respectively.

(b) Write-down of inventories

The Group’s management reviews the condition of
inventories, as stated in Note 25 to the consolidated
financial statements, at each reporting date, and makes
allowance for inventories that are identified as obsolete,
slow-moving or no longer recoverable or suitable for use
in production. The Group carries out the inventory review
on a product-by-product basis and makes allowances by
reference to the latest market prices and current market
conditions.
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Estimated useful lives and residual values of property,
plant and equipment

The Group’'s management determines the estimated useful
lives and residual values and consequently the related
depreciation charges for its property, plant and equipment,
and reviews the useful lives and residual values periodically
to ensure that the method and rates of depreciation are
consistent with the expected pattern of realisation of
economic benefits from property, plant and equipment.
This estimate is based on the historical experience of the
actual useful lives and residual values of property, plant
and equipment of similar nature and functions. If there are
significant changes from previously estimated useful lives
and residual values, the amount of depreciation expenses
may change.

Estimation of provision for warranty claims

The Group generally offers 5 years warranties for its
products sold. Management estimates the related provision
for future warranty claims based on historical warranty
claim information, as well as recent trend that might
suggest that past cost information may differ from future
claims. The assumptions made in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2023 are consistent with those in the
prior years. Factors that could impact the estimated claim
information include the success of the Group’s productivity
and quality initiatives, as well as parts and labour costs.
As at 31 December 2023, the carrying amounts of warranty
provision of the Group were RMB20,984,000 (2022:
RMB17,689,000) (Note 37). As at 31 December 2023, if the
estimated warranty claim as a percentage of revenue for
products sold had been higher/lower by 0.5%, with other
variables held constant, the loss before income tax of the
Group would have been RMB3,425,000 higher or lower as
a result of higher/lower warranty claim expenses (2022:
RMB3,722,000).

Income taxes and deferred tax asset

There are certain transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. Where the final tax outcome
of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the current
and deferred income tax assets and liabilities in the period
in which such determination is made.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(e)

()

Income taxes and deferred tax asset (Continued)

The Group recognises deferred tax assets based
on estimates that is probable to generate sufficient
taxable profits in the foreseeable future against which
the deductible losses will be utilised. The recognition
of deferred tax assets mainly involved management’s
judgements and estimations about the timing and the
amount of taxable profits of the companies who had tax
losses (Note 35).

Share-based payments

As disclosed in Note 31, the Company granted equity-
settled restricted share units to certain directors, senior
management and employees. Significant estimate on
assumptions in determining the fair value of the Share
Incentive Scheme and the Employee Option Plan include
weighted average cost of capital and expected volatility.

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION

(a)

Description of segments and principal activities

Management has determined the operating segments
based on the information reviewed by the chief operating
decision maker, who is responsible for allocating resources
and assessing performance of the operating segment. The
chief operating decision maker has been identified as the
executive directors of the Company.

Management reviews the operating results of the business
as one segment to make decisions about resources to
be allocated. Therefore, the executive directors of the
Company regard that there is only one segment which
is used to make strategic decisions. Revenue and profit/
(loss) before income tax are the measures reported to the
executive directors for the purpose of resources allocation
and performance assessment.

All the non-current assets of the Group are physically
located in the PRC. The geographical location of customers
is based on the location at which the customers operate,
and the revenue of the Group is almost all derived from
operations in the PRC during the years ended 31 December
2023 and 2022.
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5 SHER (&) 5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
(b) EEEXEEFHNEHR (b) Information about major customers

B Z2023%F 2022412 H31H
IFFEERIAEBERUA10% A

External customers that have contributed over 10% of total
revenue of the Group for the years ended 31 December

ERINBREAT : 2023 and 2022 were as follows:
BZ12A31HLLEE
Year ended 31 December
2023 F 20224
2023 2022
AR®TT ARKET T
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
~NAA Company A 333,172 *
1L T RE BRI BR A E]  Foshan Feichi Automobile Technology

([ BBLL RS 1) Co., Ltd. (“Foshan Feichi”) 80,535 165,060
A FIB Company B * 256,366
NCI® Company C * 156,460
~A7AID Company D * 16,372

* DPRAEER AR 10%

©2023412 A318 - f#fLMRE
RO AR AR BRI PR SR L IR AR 1D B
AR ([ESERIER]FE
NAF]3.86%KIARH o #BILFRS
MEMNEBRR 2 —BERHL
(BF)EXEBRIXRELEH
BERBRAR([EZIXE]) #
£8.33% * #IL AR5 IEESH
BT HEH32.33% » M EiE S
HitafLmAEEasE@aR
AR ([HLREER]) 2EH
B o BRI ERBEMBESHE
Mk#ELTEEHNESK -

*

Less than 10% of the Group’s revenue

As at 31 December 2023, Shanxi Meijin Energy Co., LTD.
(“Meijin Energy Holding”), the controlling shareholder of
Foshan Feichi, holds 3.86% of the Company. Foshan Feichi
was owned as to 8.33% by Guangdong Foshan (Yunfu)
Industrial Transfer Industrial Park Investment Development
Co., Ltd. (“Yunfu Industrial Park”) one of our substantial
Shareholders, and Foshan Feichi was owned as to 32.33%
by Hongyun High-Tech, which was in turn wholly owned by
Foshan Automobile Transportation Group Co., Ltd. (“Foshan
Automobile Transportation”). Mr. Chen is the Chairman
of both Hongyun High-Tech and Foshan Automobile
Transportation.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023

6 REVENUE

Revenue mainly comprises proceeds from sales of hydrogen fuel
cell systems, hydrogen fuel cell system components, hydrogen
fuel cell stacks and others. An analysis of the Group’s revenue
by category for the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022
are as below:

BZ12A31BLLEE
Year ended 31 December

2023 20224
2023 2022
ARBTR ARETFT
RMB’ 000 RMB’000

BEmiHE Sales of goods
— QBB RS — Hydrogen fuel cell systems 681,259 732,482
— g Bt R AT B — Hydrogen fuel cell system components 15,105 4,023
— QMBI EEH — Hydrogen fuel cell stacks 3,604 11,877
EHAfth Others 648 93
700,616 748,475

[Eft | T2 RERFERNAEENT
MR P REAR RS R MERS R -

HZE2023F 2022512 A31H IEF
& - AREBRFTA WA 7 F (6 B

“Others” mainly include the related system technology integrated
services to the Group’s downstream customers on an as-needed
basis.

All of the Group’s revenue was recognised at a point in time
during the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

ZhRER o
(a) EREE (a) Contract assets
REBEBRATEE RS AME The Group have recognised the following assets related to
AR EE contracts with customers:
M12H31H
As at 31 December
2023 %F 20224F
2023 2022
AR%ET ARETTT
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
FREBEREE Non-current contract assets
— SRR B EHE — Hydrogen fuel cell stacks 2,952 2,888
— QBB RS — Hydrogen fuel cell systems 58,789 43,198
61,741 46,086
B EHEEEERE Less: allowance for expected credit
(F17E3.1(b)) losses (Note 3.1(b)) (9,653) (4,958)
EREEHAE Total contract assets 52,088 41,128
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6 REVENUE (CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

Contract assets (Continued)
Significant changes in contract assets

The increase in contract assets was mainly due to the
existence of retention receivables in the newly signed sales
contracts with certain customers.

The Group also recognised a loss allowance for contract
assets following the adoption of IFRS 9 (Note 3.1(b)).

Contract liabilities

Contract liabilities represented the Group’s obligation to
transfer goods or services to a customer for which the
Group received consideration from the customer.

The Group has recognised the following liabilities related to
contracts with customers:

MW12H31H
As at 31 December
2023 20224
2023 2022
ARET ARETTT
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
REBEEAE Current contract liabilities

— SR ENE S — Hydrogen fuel cell stacks 714 754
— SMBEM RS - Hydrogen fuel cell systems 945 3,941
EREEAE Total contract liabilities 1,659 4,695
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6 REVENUE (CONTINUED)

(b) Contract liabilities (Continued)

A EEERRIINA (i)  Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities
TREINNEBE2023F & The following table shows the extent of the revenue
2022% 12 A31HIEFE 5 recognised during the years ended 31 December 2023
#HEE R A EERAUA - and 2022 which relates to carried-forward contract
liabilities.
HE12A31HILEE
Year ended 31 December
2023 20224
2023 2022
ARET R ARETT
RMB’ 000 RMB’'000
FAFENERAE Revenue recognised that was
RN EREWA included in the contract
liabilities balance at the
beginning of the year
— GREIE B H — Hydrogen fuel cell stacks 295 370
— SREIE M R R - Hydrogen fuel cell systems 3,846 =
4,141 370
KETER (i) Unsatisfied contracts
THREIFETFHE L The following table shows unsatisfied
ME AR 2023 4F & 2022 performance obligations as at 31 December 2023

F12A31 B RETHREL
BT :

and 2022 resulting from contracts with customers:

M12A31H
As at 31 December
2023 20224
2023 2022
AR®TT AREFT
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
—FR Within one year 240,562 75,077
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6 REVENUE (CONTINUED)

(c)

Accounting policies of revenue recognition

The Group is engaged in the development and
commercialisation of hydrogen fuel cell system. Its main
products are hydrogen fuel cell stacks, hydrogen fuel
cell systems, hydrogen fuel cell systems components and
related system technology integrated services. The specific
principles for the recognition of the Group’s operating
revenue are as follows:

(i)  Sales of goods

The Group manufactures and sells hydrogen fuel cell
systems, hydrogen fuel cell systems components
and hydrogen fuel cell stacks in the market. Sales of
goods are recognised at the time goods are delivered
to the agreed delivery location in accordance with the
contracts and customers confirm the acceptance (as
the point of control transfer).

The Group has a significant financing component
in sales contracts with some of its customers. In
determining the transaction price, the Group shall
adjust the promised amount of consideration for the
effects of the time value of money if the timing of
payments agreed to by the parties to the contract
(either explicitly or implicitly) provides the customer
or the Group with a significant benefit of financing the
transfer of goods or services to the customer. An entity
shall use the discount rate that would be reflected in
a separate financing transaction between the entity
and its customer at contract inception. That rate would
reflect the credit characteristics of the party receiving
financing in the contract, as well as any collateral
or security provided by the customer or the entity,
including assets transferred in the contract. An entity
may be able to determine that rate by identifying the
rate that discounts the nominal amount of the promised
consideration to the price that the customer would pay
in cash for the goods or services when (or as) they
transfer to the customer. After contract inception, an
entity shall not update the discount rate for changes
in interest rates or other circumstances (such as a
change in the assessment of the customer’s credit
risk).
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6 REVENUE (CONTINUED)

(c) Accounting policies of revenue recognition (Continued)

(i)

W

Sales of goods (Continued)

The Group’s obligation to repair or replace faulty
products under the standard warranty terms is
recognised as a provision (Note 37).

Services

The Group recognises revenue from the system
technology integrated services at a point in time when
the relevant services are rendered and acknowledged
for receipt by the customers.

Contract costs include contract fulfilment costs.
Costs incurred for provision of the system technology
integrated services are recognised as contract
fulfilment costs, which is recognised as the cost
of sales when recognising revenue. If the carrying
amount of the contract costs is higher than the
remaining consideration expected to be obtained by
rendering of the service net of the estimated cost to
be incurred, the Group makes provision for impairment
on the excess portion and recognises it as asset
impairment losses. As at the balance sheet date, if the
contract fulfilment costs is more than one year when
initially recognised, the amount of the Group’s contract
fulfilment costs net of related provision for asset
impairment is presented as other non-current assets.
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7 HA 7 OTHER INCOME
BE12A31BLEEE
Year ended 31 December
2023 F 20224
2023 2022
ARET T ARBTT
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
R AT 7 B K #7 Bh () Government grants and subsidies (a)
— FRYER & ER — Received and recognised during
the year 11,090 12,857
R B BaEE 5 B Rental income from

AW A (FiE41(b)) a related party (Note 41(b)) — 1,334
BT e FrE A B A Interest income on loan to a

(KIzE41(b)) related party (Note 41(b)) - 107
Hth Others 595 126

11,685 14,424
(a) IFF#EBH R fHEE BT AR (a) Government grants and subsidies mainly represented
EREBERLEBRL TOME the government grants to the Group to promote its
BY) o 5% 5%/ Bh 0 £ B A5 R AR (R development and construction. There were no unfulfilled
ey H b s AEIE o conditions or other contingencies attached to these grants.
8 HuizE (FE)- B8 8 OTHER GAINS/(LOSSES) — NET
BZE12A31ALEE
Year ended 31 December
2023 F 20224
2023 2022
ARBT R ARETIT
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
PTESMIAEARBEK, Net fair value gains/(losses) on
(E518) ¥ 58 (Fs£3.3(a)) derivative financial instruments
(Note 3.3(a)) 38,950 (20,484)
BAAEBEFABRZNEMEER  Net fair value gains on

AR EEKEFE financial assets at FVPL 2,245 =
BEME - WE&EEN (EE), (Losses)/gains on disposal of property,

Wz plant and equipment (13) 24
REFAEEEN WS Gains on disposal of right-of-use assets 20 764
=k Donation (278) (120)
HNE B 1BIFRE Net foreign exchange losses (3,424) (344)
BEEBAELERE Gains on disposal of a joint venture - 100
Efh Others 731 554

38,231 (19,506)
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9 EXPENSES BY NATURE

HE12A31BLEE
Year ended 31 December

2023 F 20224
2023 2022
ARET ARBTT
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
SR m R EERTFEEE) Changes in inventories of finished
goods and work in progress 93,804 (23,574)
BT B R ) R FE 4 Raw materials and consumables used 403,437 546,945
B EEAF = (MiEE10) Employee benefit expenses (Note 10) 235,300 177,939
M - BE REEBITE (HE18) Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment (Note 18) 56,606 27,877
FRELAENE (I:E19) Depreciation of right-of-use assets
(Note 19) 16,605 14,427
EEEEH (MisE20) Amortisation of intangible assets
(Note 20) 5,809 5,424
L EIN Y& Impairment losses on
REEE (f15E18) property, plant and equipment
(Note 18) - 15,437
FERE (MiFE25) Impairment of inventories (Note 25) 21,210 43,307
EEREER After-sales service fees 15,898 21,013
BERKE Professional service fees 23,841 20,953
BEEA Entertainment fees 15,161 12,133
AR X Utilities 11,689 6,515
ERAX Travelling expenses 9,520 6,334
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9 EXPENSES BY NATURE (CONTINUED)

HE12A31BLLEE
Year ended 31 December

2023 F 20224

2023 2022

AR%E T AR%TT

RMB’ 000 RMB’000

R Research and development expenses 19,936 4119

EHER Marketing fees 12,650 3,932

e (KisE19) Rental expenses (Note 19) 1,813 1,570
Z AN & Auditor’s remuneration

— et R — Audit services 3,173 808

— JEEE RIS — Non-audit services - 94

EmRX Listing expenses 5,128 670

HAh Others* 33,422 26,228

5T Total 985,002 912,151

* [Eft | T2 BERBREAAE  BL

FX - EEBRREMZSH -

10 EETABEX

*

“Others” mainly include inspection and testing fees, office expenses,
business tax and other transaction taxes.

10 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

HZ12A31ALLEE
Year ended 31 December

2023F 20224
2023 2022
AR¥T R ARETFTT
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
e TERELA Salaries, wages and bonuses 133,037 111,942
BRIKEKA — REEZEE(a) Pension cost — defined contribution
plans (a) 9,545 5,039
FEAES - BERKRKEAM Housing fund, medical insurance and
R other social insurance 9,831 6,642
H &R (HE31) Share-based payment expense
(Note 31) 82,887 54,316
BB 2 Total employee benefit expenses 235,300 177,939
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HZE2023F12A31AILEE

10 EERAAX (&)

(a)

(b)

RS R

AEFEGETENEBRETRPHE
BT A8 2 1 B 21 B TR AR R AR AT
MR E o NEEARE WIRAT
B REE B H SR AR —E Ll
(BETHELR) MEEE
g EEAESE  BEARREE
e ERBRARER - ARG
BAREES - NREBEERMNG
EEAEEERNSFENE
SR o

B ZE2023%F 2022412 H31H
\EFE - ANEE & B 5 BT
EENAERAFEEANRK

Eo
R o

<gp

AERBHFMAL

BZE2023F12A31ALLEE -
AEEBREERSHMHATRE
2FREE (2022F 1 — &) o &
LR e RN 43 FTE D
T o B E2023F & 2022412 A
B1HIEFE - 88T AT &% M
FHHT

For the year ended 31 December 2023

10 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

(CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

Contributions to pension plan

Full time employees of the Group in the PRC are members
of a state-managed retirement benefit scheme operated by
the PRC government. The Group is required to contribute
a specified percentage of payroll costs, subject to certain
ceiling, as determined by the local government authority to
the pension plan, housing funds, medical insurances and
other social insurances to fund the benefits. The Group’s
liabilities in respect of the benefit scheme are limited to the
contribution payable in each year.

The Group did not have any forfeited contribution for the
years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, in connection
with the defined contribution plan operated by the local
government.

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest
in the Group include two directors for the year ended 31
December 2023 (2022: one). Their emoluments are reflected
in the analysis presented in Note 43. The emoluments
paid to the remaining individuals for the years ended 31
December 2023 and 2022 are as follows:

BZ12A31ALLFE
Year ended 31 December

2023F 20224
2023 2022
AR¥T R AREFT
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
e~ TERIEA Salaries, wages and bonuses 3,464 3,801
BIRERA — REMFETE]  Pension cost — defined contribution

plans 92 23

FEAES BERRK Housing fund, medical insurance and
Hibite@F other social benefits 100 69
B& 15 Fr il sz Share — based compensation expense 15,672 13,882
19,328 17,775
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EZ2023F12A31HILFE  For the year ended 31 December 2023

10 EERABEX (&) 10 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
(CONTINUED)
(b) EEESHFMAL(E) (b) Five highest paid individuals (Continued)
BREME AN T43HENES The emoluments of the five highest paid individuals except
SN AEmEFT A TR SN for the director(s), whose emoluments have been disclosed
FLATEE : in Note 43, fell within the following bands:

BZE12A31ALLEE
Year ended 31 December

2023F 20224

2023 2022

EEAH EEAH

Number of Number of

employees employees
Fre#E (2,500,0017C2  Emolument band (HKD2,500,001 to

3,000,0003%7T.) HKD3,000,000) - 1
< #E (3,000,001 7CZ  Emolument band (HKD3,000,001 to

3,500,000 ) HKD3,500,000) - 1
4% E (5,000,00187LE  Emolument band (HKD5,000,001 to

5,500,000 7T ) HK$5,500,000) 2 -
Fre#E (6,500,001/7C2  Emolument band (HKD6,500,001 to

7,000,0003% 7%.) HKD?7,000,000) - 1
< #E (7,500,001 7c2Z  Emolument band (HKD7,500,001 to

8,000,000 77 ) HKD8,000,000) - 1
4% 10,500,0017% 7T Emolument band (HKD10,500,001 to

Z 11,000,000 ) HKD11,000,000) 1 -

3 4

H ZE2023F & 2022F12 A31H During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, none

FE  AZE=a WA T E of the five highest paid individuals waived or has agreed

WESREBREEAMME - B to waive any emoluments, and none of the five highest

HEmm P A T E g RSB paid individuals received emoluments from the Group

EX B <& {E A A0 AZS S B 3k il AR as inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or as

EEEARENSERBBRAE - compensation for loss of office.
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EHZE2023F12A31HILFE  For the year ended 31 December 2023

11 BBBA (RA) — FHE 11 FINANCE INCOME/(COSTS) — NET

HE12A1BLLEE
Year ended 31 December

2023 F 20224
2023 2022
AR%E T ARETTT
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
LU T ON Finance income
— SRITH WA - Bank interest income 12,667 10,320
B # B A Finance costs
— ERFERFAX — Interest expenses on borrowings (14,561) (18,170)
—HEAEMNERAE (M:E19) — Interest expenses on lease liabilities
(Note 19) (954) (2,080)
—MENTERIREERNE - Amounts capitalised in construction
&% ((a) RMzE18) in progress of property
((a) and Note 18) 5,390 3,139
(10,125) (17,111)
MW (RA) — FE8 Finance income/(costs) — net 2,542 (6,791)
(a) FAREEEMEMERKAEEE (a) The capitalisation rate used to determine the amount of
HERNEE BAREEEE2023 borrowing costs capitalised, which is the weighted average
F12A31BEFEBRER interest rate applicable to the Group’s borrowings for the
R NtEFHFERE - /5.45% year ended 31 December 2023, was 5.45% per annum
(20224 : 5.60%) ° (2022: 5.60%).

12 DLW E AT REGELES 12 SHARE OF LOSSES OF ASSOCIATES AND
B- 38 JOINT VENTURES - NET

BZ12A31BLLEE
Year ended 31 December

2023 F 20224
2023 2022
ARE T AREFT
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
A= A REE Share of losses of associates (39,789) (26,237)
DihEEREEE Share of losses of joint ventures (305)
TR EE AL B R Reversal on provision for excess deficit - 6,251
@t Total (40,094) (19,986)
HE2023F K 2022F12A31H [tF No dividends have been declared by the associates and joint
B BEARRAEECENETIRR ventures during the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

B o
o
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EZ2023F12A31HILFE  For the year ended 31 December 2023

13 RNEREZEARNEE QD 13 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
AREGELENKRE VENTURES ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE
EQUITY METHOD

BZ12A31ALLFE
Year ended 31 December

20234 20224
2023 2022
AR%T AREFT
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
REAERE AR E R R & Investments in Associates and Joint
BETENRE Ventures Accounted for Using the
Equity Method
—JELTmER — Unlisted entities 52,523 8,626
HENRIREELERENESF The movement of investments in associates and joint ventures
MEFIAT - are set out as below:
BZE12A31HLEE
Year ended 31 December
2023F 20224
2023 2022
AR¥T R ARETT
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
RER At the beginning of the year 8,626 23,221
BEIMEE Additional investments 83,991 25,642
DIGHEE A REE - FE Share of losses of associates, net
(HHEE12) (Note 12) (39,789) (26,237)
DIEEEREEBE  F8E Share of losses of joint ventures, net
(PfFzE12) (Note 12) (305) =
BE Disposal - (14,000)
RER At the end of the year 52,523 8,626
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EHZE2023F12A31HILFE  For the year ended 31 December 2023

13 REABSEARNBE R
ARGELENRE (H)

TXEHFNAEER2023F12A31H
EERARUAEEBHFEANBHELE N
AIREGELE - TXMIIEEHEE
HASEEERFA R T AR K
RohBAZEERBEIELEEME -
BREFEERERXIN - FTEEERL
Bl ER P FFR ZRELL GIAE R o

13 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES AND JOINT

VENTURES ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE

EQUITY METHOD (CONTINUED)

Set out below are the associates and joint ventures of the Group

as at 31 December 2023 which, in the opinion of the directors,

are immaterial to the Group. The entities listed below have

share capital consisting solely of ordinary shares, which are

held directly by the Group. The PRC is their principal place

of business. Except for Ejin Horo Banner Wind and Solar, the

proportion of ownership interest is the same as the proportion of

voting rights held.

FERRRADL
% of ownership interest
M2A318 REE
As at 31 December Carrying amount
g£1% /it
ERAHE RIER 20235 A0F  BRME EIE-9:0: 2235 N0%F  TEER
Place of business/
country Nature of Measure Principal
Name of entity of incorporation 2023 2022 relationship method 2023 2022 activities
FEEREAXIREFERERAR HEREE 65.00 MR aBRF i 12,695 —  HERNEREE
(IFeERERR])(c) (B AR
EREER)
Ejin Horo Banner Wind and Solar Hydrogen  Inner Mongolia, 65.00 N/A~ Joint Venture Equity 12,695 —  Hydrogen
Energy Industry Development Co., Ltd ~ the PRC production
(*Ejin Horo Banner Wind and Solar") (c) and re-fueling
station
operation
(currently at
development
stage)
LEXRERTLREARAT(e) hELAS 51.00 5100 AERX ki - - EEXR
Shanxi Meijin Guohong Hydrogen Shanxi, the PRC 51.00 5100  Joint Venture Equity - - Inactive
Technology Co., Ltd. (e)
BE5H (L ERR) RER hEgEE 30.00 NER  BERT Tig 30,000 -  THERERER
BRAA([2E%H ] (o) (B AR
BEHER)
Guoxin Hongyu (Hainan Special Economic  Hainan, the PRC 30.00 N/A Associate Equity 30,000 —  Market
Zone) New Energy Development Co., Ltd development
(“Guoxin Hongyu') (g) and promotion
(currently at
pre-operating
stage)
EFERTTHRARAA() hEERE 30.00 3000 BEAT Tig 8,626 8626 EEXH
Yunfu Jinhong Hydrogen Technology Guangdong, the PRC 30.00 30.00  Associate Equity 8,626 8,626 Inactive

Co., Lid. (d)
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13 REAESRZEZARNEBE A 13 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
AREELENRE (&) VENTURES ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE
EQUITY METHOD (CONTINUED)
FERRRADL
% of ownership interest
M2A318 REE
As at 31 December Carrying amount
gENE /R
BRAE HIER pIPEE:S ANE  BELE TRAE pIPEE:S ANE  FEER
Place of business/
country Nature of Measure Principal
Name of entity of incorporation 2023 2022 relationship method 2023 2022 activities
BERERRARAA (EHEE () hEEE 60.00 AR BERT g 1,202 — R (BAR
REEAER)
Fanxian Honghua New Energy Co., Ltd Henan, the PRC 60.00 N/A  Associate Equity 1,202 —  Energy storage
(“Fanxian Honghua) (f) technology
(currently at
pre-operating
stage)
EREEERERNRARAA TEERE 51.00 5100 BEAT g = - EELK
([E%E2])(a)
Guangdong Guohong Refire Energy Guangdong, the PRC 51.00 5100  Associate Equity - - Inactive
Technology Co., Ltd.
(“Guohong Refire") (a)
ERRRTHERAA(D) hEERE 3.7 BT BERT g - - EEER
Yunfu Shunwei Hydrogen Power Guangdong, the PRC 35.71 30.71  Associate Equity - - Inactive
Co., Ltd. (b)
Eh
Total 52,523 8,626

AHERNTBEARNEXEBE
BEEENBEZFAANPXXEH
B 7% 5% % A )3 S 1 kR A Y 2 3

HHE

BRPTESB AR EEE S

bk /NE]

SEPEWBEANAGE REARAE -

The English name of the PRC companies in this Note represent

management’s best effort in translating the Chinese names of

those companies as no English names have been registered or

are available.

There are no material commitment and contingence liabilities

in the associates and joint ventures above except for those
disclosed in the Note 38.
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HZE2023F12A31AILEE

13 REABSEARNBE R
ARGELENRE (H)

(a)

ARAE - EBEBEREER
MERAB ([ EBES]) &
EFTRELAELEARAA
(IE2zmeEl) 2RlFAERBE
#835.71% ~ 34.31% 5% 29.98%
RIE R o BIRICE ok R ABR
ERMA  BEREMEENE
NS F R EAEE R L ERR
EBNREESHEIHA BE -
ERRMETZABIREBH A
KEAER BEEZEFF1.50%
B [E E s R o PR EF mhE Sy
F29.98% M Em (AEWIEA
B  ARRR EEEBEH R
BEHBEEB51% % 49% H R
A EER - BEERE - 27
BhiE A 3% 12 80 B A E R sk AR 15
ERBEHEE - AARBITE
CHMITE  BEBHEBERD (K
7£38) o WA KRR R EBE
BHRBISELERNEREERN
FT B EISIR R AR L R B HE AR o
REBEE B AMSZRMAR
TE 0 IR E RS AR 3B R T
TERE - Bl AR R AR AR R
EEEXNEEE - HRBEBE
B 20224F % 2023 F &7 B Hi
B 4R R IR S B sk - RN R
R EBEBHRNIRE1% K49%
RIRRAELL BIRIBR B EE - X
20224 K% 20234 + AR T 5 B
EFEARME25500,0007T /%A
F#39,699,0007T ° R 20234
68 BEEETERESD Bt
B EEREFMES N ARE
77,840,0007T ° A& & &) BF 75
EISBERER -

For the year ended 31 December 2023

13 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE
EQUITY METHOD (CONTINUED)

(a)

The Company, Shanghai Refire Energy Group Co., Ltd.
(“Shanghai Refire”), and Yunfu Rongda Asset Management
Co., Ltd. (“Yunfu Rongda”) hold 35.71%, 34.31% and
29.98% voting rights of Guohong Refire, respectively.
Pursuant to investment agreements and articles of
association, the fund invested by Yunfu Rongda is subject
to a maturity date on which Yunfu Rongda has the right
to redeem its investment fund in Guohong Refire. Yunfu
Rongda does not entitle dividends or residual return from
Guohong Refire but entitles a fixed rate of return at 1.50%
per annum. Excluding the 29.98% interest held by Yunfu
Rongda (which is not equity interest in nature), the Company
and Shanghai Refire holds 51% and 49% equity ownership
interests of Guohong Refire, respectively. According to
the agreement, Yunfu Rongda can choose to withdraw its
investment through capital reduction or share transfer. The
Company has the derivative financial instruments for the
obligation to buy back the shares (Note 38). In addition,
the Company and Shanghai Refire provided guarantee
according to shareholding ratio for all debts arising from the
obligation of Guohong Refire’s borrowings. As stipulated
in the articles of association of Guohong Refire, when
insolvency occurs in a debt dispute or liquidation, the
shareholders who have not paid in full capital should pay
their capital contributions first. As Guohong Refire did not
have enough surplus cash in 2022 and 2023 when a debt
became due, so the Company and Shanghai Refire made
capital injections in proportion to the shareholding of 51%
and 49% into Guohong Refire. During 2022 and 2023,
the Company made capital injection of RMB25,500,000
and RMB39,699,000, respectively. In June 2023, Yunfu
Rongda exercised the right and Guohong Refire paid
RMB77,840,000 to Yunfu Rongda. The Company’s financial
obligation was released accordingly.
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(b)

ARF - BFEEE - LERE
e REMAERDA (LER

E)RERBHEIEBRA A
(BREW) 2RlEBEEERA
25.00% * 30.00% * 30.00% A
15.00% BV R - RIBRE W
FENRABEIRMAE - EIFREM
KRENESUNE FREGEED
EEEERAMNIREESHEIH
Eﬁﬁ°$@ﬂLT¥ﬁu@
Tk B ) D AT ok B4R Bl 3R] -
BEF1. 50%5@!@51@/\ ® W
ﬁ?xﬁrﬂiki—rﬁ%%ﬂ’ﬁé (7

EI?EEH@S@) /N I b=
5 I [ FE R )E'Jl BEEZH
535.71% » 42.86%&21.43%
HREFT AR - AAFRN
2022F MEFERATEARE
142,0007T °

AR R B A RSS2 T
BEEEREARAR - F2ER
EREEEEEARETARD
AliFEFEERER65.00%
K 35.00%HEH - REFR
ERERXMAKZERMA - F
SERERNEEEEEARET
AREBRREASRERRERS
RERBAGRE - AEER
2023 F MF R ERER N IEE
AR #13,000,0007T °

HZE2023F12A31AILEE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2023

13 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE
EQUITY METHOD (CONTINUED)

(b)

(c)

The Company, Yunfu Rongda, Shanghai Shunhua New
(Shanghai Shunhua)
and Guangdong Lianyue Hydrogen Energy Co., Ltd.
(Guangdong Lianyue) hold 25.00%, 30.00%, 30.00%
and 15.00% voting rights of Yunfu Shunwei respectively.

Energy Technology Co., Ltd.

Pursuant to investment agreements and articles of
association, the fund invested by Yunfu Rongda is subject
to a maturity date on which Yunfu Rongda has the right to
redeem its investment fund in Yunfu Shunwei. Yunfu Rongda
does not entitle dividends or residual return from Yunfu
Shunwei but entitles a fixed rate of return at 1.50% per
annum. Excluding the 30% interest held by Yunfu Rongda
(which is not equity interest in nature), the Company,
Shanghai Shunhua and Guangdong Lianyue held 35.71%,
42.86% and 21.43% equity ownership interest of Yunfu
Shunwei, respectively. The Company made capital injection
of RMB142,000 into Yunfu Shunwei in 2022.

The Company’s subsidiary, Ordos Guohong Hydrogen
Energy Technology Co., Ltd, Ejin Horo Banner State owned
Assets Operation Co., Ltd hold 65.00% and 35.00% voting
rights of Ejin Horo Banner Wind and Solar respectively.
Pursuant to the articles of association of Ejin Horo Banner
Wind and Solar,
Operation Co., Ltd has a veto power over the resolution of

Ejin Horo Banner State owned Assets

the general meeting of shareholders and the resolution of
the board of directors. The Group made capital injection
of RMB13,000,000 into Ejin Horo Banner Wind and Solar
during 2023.
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HZE2023F12A31AILEE

13 REABSEARNBE R
ARGELENRE (H)

(d)

()

NAFR2023F9 AMEIZR%E
#IEEAREE75,0000T + &
fhBR S IR AR YR B B AR AE (G L 3G N

RAT REBERIZEBRS BIFE
L FE3E$%51.00% 5 49.00% Y
BERE - RIRILTAEREKE
2B - R ASIRBRMNBLK
2EBEE—RAB®IE - LA
ERMABERAATREES
ERBRVELZBEST—HA
BER#E - EFSHIEKEMA
B - ADARHEB2BIRARE o

mﬂ—~§ﬁ%ﬁ%%ﬁ&§ﬁ

RA T)SU BREXRE(§
) BRAR D RIFAEHBE
60.00% - 30. 00%&10 00% &y
KRR - RIBEHBENAME
AR BRRAGSRBRNELD
BNV AL RERRAMED 2=
A E#LE - SERBENMABE

RAATEE - EFGIRERN
BEEEMNNACEEEE—HE
BERALE EFEHSEKNEH
B ARARIEG2HEIRGHE - K
A AR 2023 F 38 BB EIL N
EE AR 1,200,0007T °

For the year ended 31 December 2023

13 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE
EQUITY METHOD (CONTINUED)

(d)

(e)

®)

The Company increased capital injection with amount of
RMB675,000 into Yunfu Jinhong in September 2023, while
other shareholders also increased their capital according to
their shareholding ratio.

The Company and Meijin Energy Holding hold 51.00% and
49.00% voting rights of Shanxi Meijin respectively. Pursuant
to the articles of association of Shanxi Meijin, the resolution
of the general meeting of shareholders must be approved
only with the unanimous consent of all shareholders. The
articles of association of Shanxi Meijin also stipulates that
the resolution of the board of directors must be approved
with the unanimous consent of all directors. There are 3
members of the board of directors, and the Company has 2
nomination rights.

The Company, China Resources Power New Energy
Investment Limited Co., Ltd. and Puyang Zhiyuan Industrial
hold 60.00%, 30.00% and
10.00% voting rights of Fanxian Honghua respectively.

Investment (Group) Co., Ltd.,

Pursuant to the articles of association of Fanxian Honghua,
the substantive right of the resolution of the general meeting
of shareholders shall be approved by more than three-fourth
of all shareholders. The articles of association of Fanxian
Honghua also stipulates that the substantive right of the
resolution of the board of directors must be approved
with the unanimous consent of all directors. There are 5
members of the board of directors, and the Company has
2 nomination rights. The Company made additional capital
injection of RMB1,200,000 into Fanxian Honghua during
2023.
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REELENRE (H)

2B MR 2023F 11 AR -
ARAE -~ B ERERED B
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30.00% MR ERE - REBES
WHAEBETRRMA - BRERSR
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BB ERMATRTE  BES
WIREFTE  EARRER
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30,000,0007C °
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For the year ended 31 December 2023

13 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE
EQUITY METHOD (CONTINUED)

(9)

Guoxin Hongyu was set up in November 2023, with
the Company, Liu Xianting and Su Jin, hold 30.00%,
40.00% and 30.00% voting rights respectively. Pursuant
to the articles of association of Guoxin Hongyu, the
substantive right of the resolution of the general meeting
of shareholders shall be approved by more than two-third
of all shareholders. The articles of association of Guoxin
Hongyu also stipulates that Guoxin Hongyu does not have
the board of directors but has one executive director
elected by shareholders. The Company made additional
capital injection of RMB30,000,000 into Guoxin Hongyu
during 2023.

The Group has interests in a number of individually
immaterial associates and joint ventures that are accounted
for using the equity method.

M"12H31H
As at 31 December
2023F 20224
2023 2022
ARETT AR%TT
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
ERIFEE REEE A Al & Aggregate carrying amount of
EETCERNRERE individually immaterial
associates and joint ventures 52,523 8,626
BZ12A318LLEE
Year ended 31 December
2023 20224
2023 2022
AR%ET ARETT
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
AEBE TG RELRET - Aggregate amounts of the
Group’s share of:
AE Capital injection 83,991 25,642
SE IS 18 Loss from continuing operations (40,094) (19,986)
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14

SUBSIDIARIES

As at 31 December 2023, the Company had direct and indirect
interests in the following subsidiaries:

ERMALER #ft/ TEEK
REZ8 BHERAH BRTRBEREA  AREBENFEREEE & REEBE
Ownership interest held
by the Group
Registered/ R12A31A Principal activities
Issued and As at 31 December and place of operation
Country/place and paid-up 2023 2022
Entity name date of incorporation capital 2023 2022
% %
BEEER:
Directly held:
IREBE R RERAR hE - BREAAF ARE 100 100 RPEETRITFEENEE
201611 A16H 50,000,0007T
Beijing Guohong Hydrogen PRC, Limited Liability RMB 100 100  Technology development and
Technology Co., Ltd. Company 50,000,000 promotion in the PRC
16 November 2016
BERBENBEERAR B BEREAAA 5,000,000%7C 100 100 REBETRMFASE IR
20168 A19H
Hong Kong Nation-Synergy Hong Kong, Limited usD 100 100  Technology development and
Hydrogen Power Technology Liability Company 5,000,000 promotion in Hong Kong
Co., Limited 19 August 2016
EMNEE SRR AR AR PE - ARERERA ARE 100 100 RPEETRMREREH
2017F10A13H 100,000,0007T
Guangzhou Guohong Hydrogen PRC, Limited Liability RMB 100 100 Technical services and
Energy Technology Co., Ltd. Company 100,000,000 consulting in the PRC
13 October 2017
BERERTHMRERAR E - AREERA ARE 100 100 RAREBETTRMR SRR
2020F10A 148 100,000,0007T
Qingdao Guohong Hydrogen PRC, Limited Liability RMB 100 100 Technology development and
Technology Co., Ltd. Company 100,000,000 promotion in the PRC
14 Qctober 2020
RERRTHERRERAR E - AREARA ARE 100 100 RAEETRMTEEREE
202012 A2H 500,000,0007C
Wuhan Guohong Hydrogen PRC, Limited Liability RMB 100 100  Technology development and
Technology Co., Ltd. Company 500,000,000 promotion in the PRC
2 December 2020
ERRBANEARAR T BREAAR ARE 100 100 RPEEITHRMFEEREE
((EEE®E]) 20206128178 500,000,0007
Chongging Guohong Hydrogen PRC, Limited Liability RMB 100 100  Technology development and
Energy Technology Co., Ltd. Company 500,000,000 promotion in the PRC

(“Chongging Guohong”)

17 December 2020
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HZE2023F12A31AILEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023

22 November 2019

BEEERENE (FR) ROBRLA

14 EATR (&) 14 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
EMRIER/ it/ TEXK
LR BHERAH BERTRARRE  ARESENFERERE  REEME
Ownership interest held
by the Group
Registered/ R12A31A Principal activities
Issued and As at 31 December and place of operation
Country/place and paid-up 2023% 2022
Entity name date of incorporation capital 2023 2022
% %
EMEET EHEROERA HE - BREEAA ARE 100 100 RAEETRMHE
2017594307 100,000,0007T EEVEES
Guangzhou Guohong Hydrogen PRC, Limited Liability RMB 100 100  Technology research, testing
Energy R & D Center Co., Ltd. Company 100,000,000 and development in the PRC
30 September 2017
BINEBHERREEAR HE - BREAAF ARE 100 100 FAHREBETHE Rit#
20175104138 100,000,0007T
Guangzhou Guohong Sales PRC, Limited Liability RMB 100 100  Sale and wholesale in the PRC
Co., Ltd. Company 100,000,000
13 October 2017
RERBDHEMBEERAR T BREAAF AR 100 100 RAEETRIREREE
20205117188 100,000,0007T
Tianjin Guohong Hydrogen PRC, Limited Liability RMB 100 100  Technology development and
Technology Co., Ltd. Company 100,000,000 promotion in the PRC
18 November 2020
DERETRRRERAR BB FREERA ARE 100 100  RAPEETRTAERER
202146 A4H 100,000,0007C
Shanghai Hongxin Hydrogen PRC, Limited Liability RMB 100 100 Technology development and
Energy Technology Co., Ltd. Company 100,000,000 promotion in the PRC
4 June 2021
BUmEESERRERAR HE - FREERA ARE 100 100 RPEETHEREE
201911 4228 50,000,0007C
Foshan Guohong Hydrogen PRC, Limited Liability RMB 100 100 R &D and sales in the PRC
Technology Co., Ltd. Company 50,000,000
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14 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

EMRLER &/ TEER
BERsE R AH EROTRBERE  ARESENFERESE < REE#EY
Ownership interest held
by the Group
Registered/ R12A31A Principal activities
Issued and As at 31 December and place of operation
Country/place and paid-up 2023F 20224
Entity name date of incorporation capital 2023 2022
% %
BIENSBREERAR e - BRAY ARE 100 100 RPEIETTRME SRR
20206 10A 228 50,000,0007C
Guangzhou Hongli Hydrogen PRC, Limited Partnership RMB 100 100  Technology development and
Technology Co., Ltd. 22 October 2020 50,000,000 promotion in the PRC
SELEHERTERRBRAA HE FREERA ARE 100 100 R EETERHERERERE
2021117 18H 100,000,0007T
Ordos Guohong Hydrogen Energy PRC, Limited Liability RMB 100 100 Electrical machinery and
Technology Co., Ltd. Company 100,000,000 equipment manufacturing
18 November 2021 in the PRC
ABEBEMRERAR HE - FRERERA ARE 100 100 RPEETEE  HE -
202245 A17H 100,000,0007C TRRMBHH T
Henan Guohong Hydrogen Energy PRC, Limited Liability RMB 100 100 Manufacturing, Sales,
Technology Co., Ltd Company 17 May 2022 100,000,000 Engineering and Technology
Research of Batteries in the
PRC
ERENDHHBEERAA HE - EREARA ARE 100 100 RAEETERRRRRERE
(TER%AN]) 2019%11A7H 163,333,3007
Guangdong Hongli Hydrogen PRC, Limited Liability RMB 100 100  Electrical machinery and
Technology Co., Ltd. Company 163,333,300 equipment manufacturing
(“Guangdong Hongli") 7 November 2019 in the PRC
BN TR EEERAA T ERERERA AR% 100 100 RAOEETRTRERERE
2023%1A18H 100,000,0007T
Zhejiang Hongli Hydrogen Energy PRC, Limited Liability RMB 100 100  Technology development and
Equipment Co., Ltd. Company 100,000,000 promotion in the PRC
18 January 2023
B SRR AR HE - BREAAH ARE 100 100 RAEETRITEEREE
2023%5R24R 100,000,0007T
Shenzhen Hongxin Hydrogen PRC, Limited Liability RMB 100 100  Technology development and
Energy Technology Co., Ltd Company 100,000,000 promotion in the PRC

24 May 2023
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EZ2023F12A31HILFE  For the year ended 31 December 2023

14 MIE2AT (&) 14 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

EMRIER/ Fid TEXK
LR KBS BERTRARRE  ARESENFERERE  REEME
Ownership interest held
by the Group
Registered/ R12A31A Principal activities
Issued and As at 31 December and place of operation
Country/place and paid-up 2023% 2022
Entity name date of incorporation capital 2023 2022
% %
EREETEDNERAA HE - FREENA ARE 100 90 RPEETFERERE
(RAIBEREDEE A EaR 201694307 67,000,0007T
PNERAR - LATHRE
[E%E A1) (d)
Guangdong Synergy Hydrogen PRC, Limited Liability RMB 100 90  Special equipment
Power Co.. Ltd. (formerly Company 67,000,000 manufacturing in the PRC
Guangdong Synergy Ballard 30 September 2016
Hydrogen Power Co., Ltd.,
hereinafter “Synergy Power”) (d)
EHEDE ONT) @Ak HE FREERA ARE 51 51 RPEETRMFAERER
AR ([RBE%E]) 202066 A23A 200,000,000
Meijin Guohong (Zhejiang) PRC, Limited Liability RMB 51 51  Technology development and
Hydrogen Technology Co., Ltd. Company 200,000,000 promotion in the PRC
(“Meijin Guohong”) 23 June 2020
B RER (L) BRAR hE - BREERR ARE 85 TER  RPEETRBRERERE
2023%11R14R 100,000,0007T
Guohong Hydrogen Energy PRC, Limited Liability RMB 85 N/A Technology development and
Development (Shanghai) Company 100,000,000 promotion in the PRC
Co., Ltd. 14 November 2023
AR BEE TR RAA E - BRRELA ARE 65 TER  RPEETRIREREE
20241 f24H 20,000,0007C
Hebei Zhongwei Guohong PRC, Limited Liability RMB 65 N/A  Technology development and
Hydrogen Energy Technology Company 20,000,000 promotion in the PRC
Co., Ltd. 24 January 2024
EILEETERRARAR R BEREERR AR% 100 TER  RPEETRIEEREE
20241 729R 20,000,0007T
Tangshan Guohong Hydrogen PRC, Limited Liability RMB 100 N/A  Technology development and
Energy Technology Co., Ltd. Company 20,000,000 promotion in the PRC
29 January 2024
EEmEESERRARAR hE - BRRERR = 66 66 RPEEEEE
(IEZEE]) (b) 20165127268 172,400,0007C
Yunfu Puhui Hydrogen Energy PRC, Limited Liability RMB 66 66 Dormant in the PRC
Technology Co., Ltd. Company 172,400,000

(*Yunfu Puhui) (b)

26 December 2016

BEEERE (7

B) RNBRAFE
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14 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

EMRIER, it/ TEEH
BEEH BEREH BRTRARRE  AREREANFAERE  REELY
Ownership interest held
by the Group
Registered/ R12A31A Principal activities
Issued and As at 31 December and place of operation
Country/place and paid-up 2023F 20224
Entity name date of incorporation capital 2023 2022
% %
REESHRIHER E - AREARA AR% 44.44 4444 REEEEEE
BRRAC) 20208 A27H 18,000,0007T
Wuhan Guoging Hydrogen Energy PRC, Limited Liability RMB 44.44 4444 Dormant in the PRC
Fuel Cell Co., Ltd (c) Company 18,000,000
27 August 2020
RS
Indirectly held:
ERENSHHBEER A HE - BREAAH ARE 100 100 RAOEETRTRERERE
2020104 30H 100,000,0007T
Beijing Hongli Hydrogen PRC, Limited Liability RMB 100 100  Technology development and
Technology Co., Ltd. Company 100,000,000 promotion in the PRC
30 October 2020
BBERERT R RERAR B BREAAH 510,000/ 70 51 51 HRABEMTEBINBER
2022F4 F28H
Hong Kong Nation-Synergy Hong Kong, Limited HKD 51 51 Qverseas business
International Hydrogen Power Liability Company 510,000 development in Hong Kong
Technology Co., Limited 28 April 2022
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mEMBmRME
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EZ2023F12A31HILFE  For the year ended 31 December 2023

14 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

(a)

(c)

The English names of the PRC companies referred to
above in this Note represent management’'s best efforts in
translating the Chinese names of those companies as no
English names have been registered or are available.

The Company held the shares of Yunfu Puhui with 46.86%
shares and another shareholder Yunfu Foyun New
Energy Transportation Investment Development Co., Ltd.
(“Yunfu Foyun”) held 24.14%. 29.00% shares held by an
independent third party, namely Yunfu Rongda, which
was accounted for as financial liabilities with the principal
amount of RMB50 million (Note 34(b)).
Company could control the daily operating activities of

Meanwhile, the

Yunfu Puhui, thus the Company could control Yunfu Puhui.
In June 2023, the Company and Yunfu Foyun repaid RMB33
million and RMB17 million to Yunfu Rongda respectively. As
of 31 December 2023, the Company and Yunfu Foyun hold
66% and 34% equity interest in Yunfu Puhui respectively.

Although the Company owns only 44.44% equity interest
in Wuhan Guoging Hydrogen Energy Fuel Cell Co., Ltd,
the Company has three seats out of five seats of the board
of directors. Thus, the Company can control the board of
director according to the article of association.

On 28 June 2023, the Company completed the purchase
of 10% equity interest in Guangdong Synergy Ballard
Hydrogen Power Co. Ltd. from Ballard Hong Kong Limited,
which was wholly controlled by Ballard Power Systems Inc.
The Company changed its company name to Guangdong
Synergy Hydrogen Power Co. Ltd.

BEEMR (ZE) ROERAF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EHZE2023F12A31HILFE  For the year ended 31 December 2023

15 ISR 15 INCOME TAX CREDIT
ARG ERRERNAEHESS The amounts of income tax credit charged to profit or loss in the
FHiE : consolidated statement of profit or loss represent:
BE12A31ALEE
Year ended 31 December
2023 20224
2023 2022
AR¥T T ARETT
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
EHFTIS Current income tax 1,951 2,298
RIEFR1S Y (F13E35) Deferred income tax (Note 35) (30,746) (15,750)
FTiSHiE % Income tax credit (28,795) (13,452)
(a) FIEBiBEXHE G (a) Numerical reconciliation of income tax expense
BE12A31ALEE
Year ended 31 December
2023 20224
2023 2022
AR¥T T ARETT
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
MR ATIS B A 518 Loss before income tax (436,417) (293,679)
REREEMEFTENTR Tax calculated at applicable
statutory tax rate (108,466) (73,098)
— W R S NETHIRR — Super deduction on research and
development expenditure (17,309) (11,306)
—BEMENZE (D) — Effect of preferential tax rate (b) 13,311 10,856
— TR — Expenses not deductible for tax
purpose 2,002 4,405
— AL AR IEEEK - Utilisation of previously unrecognised
AENERtER tax losses and deductible temporary
differences (1) (344)
— REREEFBHEER - Deductible temporary differences for
AEMEREER which no deferred income tax asset
was recognised 33,371 25,516
— AERBELFBLER - Tax losses not recognised as deferred
BiIAEE tax assets 48,410 30,519
— B BRRER B BB T — Adjustments for current tax of prior
periods (113) -
FiSHiE % Income tax credit (28,795) (13,452)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EZ2023F12A31HILFE  For the year ended 31 December 2023

15 INCOME TAX CREDIT (CONTINUED)

(b)

(c)

PRC enterprise income tax (“EIT”)

The enterprise income tax rate applicable to the Company’s
entities located in Mainland China is 25% according
to the Enterprise Income Tax Law of the PRC (the “EIT
Law”) effective on 1 January 2008 unless these subject to
preferential tax rate set out below.

The Company and Beijing Guohong Hydrogen Technology
Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Group, were approved as
“High and New Technology Enterprise”, and they were
subject to a preferential corporate income tax rate of 15%
for the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022. The
certificate of “High and New Technology Enterprise” is

subject to renewal for each three-years intervals.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, Qingdao Guohong
Hydrogen Technology Co., Ltd., Chongqging Guohong,
Tianjin Guohong Hydrogen Technology Co., Ltd and
Beijing Hongli Hydrogen Energy Technology Co., Ltd. were
qualified as small and micro enterprises under the PRC
CIT regime, which enjoyed a corporate income tax rate of
20%. For the year ended 31 December 2023, only Qingdao
Guohong Hydrogen Technology Co., Ltd. was applicable.

Chongging Guohong was subject to a preferential income
tax rate of 15% as it was located in western development
areas in the PRC.

Hong Kong profit tax

Hong Kong Nation-Synergy Hydrogen Power Technology
Co., Limited, Hong Kong Nation-Synergy International
Hydrogen Power Technology Co., Limited, incorporated in
Hong Kong, are subject to Hong Kong profits tax at a rate
of 16.5% for the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

BEEERENE (FR) ROBRLA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EHZE2023F12A31HILFE  For the year ended 31 December 2023

15 FriSBii® (&)
(d) REREEHAEE
AR B3 M5 IR B RS

15 INCOME TAX CREDIT (CONTINUED)

(d) Deferred tax assets not recognised

The Group has not recognised any deferred tax assets in

BIETRIBAE ¢ respect of the following items:
M12H31H

As at 31 December
2023 F 20224
2023 2022
AR¥T T ARETTT
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
FRIAEHE (i) Tax losses (i) 453,103 231,558
R R B ZE BE (1) Unrecognised temporary differences (ii) 665,277 472,296
1,118,380 703,854

() KRER[ELEHRIAEEN
MIAEBERBRNATFEERE
o DT

(i)

Tax losses that are not recognised as deferred tax
assets will be expired in the following years:

M12H31H
As at 31 December
2023 % 20224
2023 2022
AR®TT ARETIT
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
20234 2023 N/A 6,413
20244 2024 6,658 6,658
20254 2025 2,570 2,570
2026 4F 2026 15,178 15,178
2027 F 2027 64,771 64,771
2027 F LA Later than 2027 363,926 135,968
BAEARERIIEEE Unrecognised tax losses carried
forward 453,103 231,558
AARRMENER AR The Company and its subsidiaries are not likely to
ARG RAKATREESE B generate sufficient taxable income in the foreseeable
HERTUW A AB) B AR T future to utilise the unused tax losses. No deferred

RABEER - AR EAR
AR R ERBULA - 8
3 % 5 B IR B 1R T R R
JERIREE -

tax asset has been recognised in respect of such tax
losses due to the unpredictability of future taxable
income.
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15 FriSBi® (&)
(d) REREEHAEE ()
(i) FEREEHES

15 INCOME TAX CREDIT (CONTINUED)

(d) Deferred tax assets not recognised (Continued)

(i) Unrecognised temporary differences

A12A831H
As at 31 December
2023F 20224
2023 2022
AR¥T AREFT
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
TREGEEBERE Expected credit loss provision 294,459 189,970
B& 5 & 1+ Share-based payments 184,051 105,130
fFERE Impairment of inventories 106,390 86,456
mEERE Impairment of intangible assets 32,177 40,570
IEFEWA Deferred income 19,459 20,154
H B Other provisions 9,125 9,964
ERETERE Impairment of construction in
progress 8,388 15,437
ERAEEE Right-of-use assets 11,228 4,615
RERE R ER Unrecognised temporary differences 665,277 472,296

BB S RER (28 IR B PR A A
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16 BREE 16 LOSS PER SHARE

(a) BRELREE (a) Basic loss per share
SREAEBEEBDERARNGES Basic loss per share is calculated by dividing the loss
AEHEERAE £2023F & attributable to the owners of the Company by weighted
202212 A31 B ILFE B &1T average number of ordinary shares in issue during the years
LR METEEETE - ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.
M2023F12A5H * AR On 5 December 2023, the Company issued 79,520,000
AIEEBREXARBE T ordinary shares through initial public offering.

79,520,000 % IR o

BZE12831HLLEE
Year ended 31 December

2023 %
2023
AARRREEFE (ARBETL)  Loss attributable to shareholders of the
Company (RMB’000) (404,447)
BEBITE B T () Weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue ('000) 427,735
FREREE (AERAREITIIR) Basic loss per share (expressed in RMB
per share) (0.95)
R20229F3A22H * ARAIH On 22 March 2022, the Company was converted into a joint
B AERNDERAT - it EFR stock company. For the purpose of computing basic loss
EAXEBEME - TERIIEBERE per share, ordinary shares were assumed to have issued
MK2020F1 A1 BET RO - and allotted on 1 January 2020 as if the Company has been
MIMARBRERFER—BEUE converted from a limited liability company into a joint stock
HERERN—RRNDEERA company by then based on 1 unit of paid in capital is 1 unit

BREFEARERBOHERAT - of share.
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16 BREE (&)

(a)

(b)

BREXEE (&)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EZ2023F12A31HILFE  For the year ended 31 December 2023

16 LOSS PER SHARE (CONTINUED)

(a) Basic loss per share (Continued)

As at 31 December 2022, a total of 18,000,000 shares were
treated as treasury stock and excluded from the dominator
of basic earnings per share. As at 31 December 2023, the
employees’ restricted share units were vested (Note 31(a)).

On 5 December 2023, the Company issued a total of
79,520,000 ordinary shares at the price of HKD19.66 per
share by initial public offering to investors, and raised a total
subscription amount of HKD1,563,363,200 (approximately
RMB1,422,910,650), net of underwriting commission, in
which RMB79,520,000 was included in the share capital,
and RMB1,331,854,000 was included in the share premium.

(b) Diluted loss per share

For the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, the
Group had potential dilutive shares throughout the years
ended 31 December 2023 and 2022 related to the Share
Incentive Scheme. Due to the Group’s losses during the
years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, Share Incentive
Scheme has anti-dilutive effect on the Group’s loss per
share. Thus, diluted loss per share is equivalent to the basic
loss per share.

17 DIVIDEND

No dividends have been paid or declared by the Company or the
companies now comprising the Group during the years ended 31
December 2023 and 2022.
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EHZE2023F12A31HILFE  For the year ended 31 December 2023

18 M%¥ - BMERRE 18 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Bl £ER
BFRETEE i B§ B HRIE Eh
Buildings and Furniture,
building fittings and  Construction
improvements Machinery Vehicles equipment in progress Total
ARET T ARETT ARETT ARETT ARET T ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
20221418 As at 1 January 2022
A Cost 75,778 138,151 2,586 6,678 95,814 319,007
Zithe Accumulated depreciation (32,935) (43,564) (1,008) (2,551) - (80,148)
FEFE Net book amount 42843 94,587 1488 4121 95,814 238,859
BENRENANALEE Year ended 31 December 2022
EMEDTE Opening net book amount 42,843 94,587 1488 4101 95,814 238,859
HE Additions 62,570 7,628 1,475 6,630 200,368 278,671
THEREREEAL (HE19() Capitalisation of land use right
depreciation (Note 19(i)) - - - - 574 574
£ Transfers = 5176 - 1,704 (6,880) -
RE Disposals - (65) - (159) - (224)
WEEA (Frio) Depreciation charge (Note 9) (9,838) (15,895) (519) (1,625) - (27.877)
WEEM (W39) Impairment charge (Note 9) - - - - (15,437) (15,437)
EREERE Closing net book amount 95,575 91,431 2,444 10677 274,439 474566
R2022%12831H As at 31 December 2022
A Cost 138,348 150,870 4,061 14,787 289,876 597,942
2ithE Accumulated depreciation (42,773) (59,439) (1617) (4,110) - (107,939)
ZiHE Accumulated impairment - - - - (15,437) (15,437)
RERE Net book amount 95,575 91,431 2,444 10677 274,439 474,566
BENRE12AALEE Year ended 31 December 2023
ENREFE Opening net book amount 95,575 91,431 2,444 10,677 274,439 474,566
RE Additions 6,709 9,373 1,173 2,687 264,706 284,648
THEREREAAL (H19() Capitalisation of land use right
depreciation (Note 19(i)) - - - - 574 574
g3 Transfers 279,121 81,328 - 2372 (362,821) -
RE Disposals - (322) 0] - (8,683) (9,009)
WEEA (W) Depreciation charge (Note 9) (34,191) (18,749) (682) (2,984) - (56,606)
FREEFE Closing net book amount 347,214 163,061 2,931 12,752 168,215 694,173
R2023%12831H As at 31 December 2023
A Cost 424178 241,249 5,230 19,846 176,603 867,106
ZitE Accumulated depreciation (76,964) (78,188) (2,299) (7,004) - (164,545)
ESp Accumulated impairment - - - - (8,388) (8,388)
BERE Net book amount 347,214 163,061 2,931 12,752 168,215 694,173
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EZ2023F12A31HILFE  For the year ended 31 December 2023

18 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)

Depreciation expenses of the Group were charged in the

following categories in the consolidated statement of profit or

loss:

BZ12A31BLLEE
Year ended 31 December

20234 20224
2023 2022
AR®TT AREFT
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
SHERAR Cost of sales 11,363 16,293
THRAX Administrative expenses 41,200 9,886
HEF Research and development expenses 3,460 1,322
HERX Selling expenses 583 376
Bt Total 56,606 27,877
(a) B ZE2023%F %2022 12 A 31 (a) The addition of the Group’s construction-in-progress for
HIEFE  ANEEFAERLEHT the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022 included
BRANEZIEDREMNSE the finance costs capitalised amounted to approximately
#) N R ¥5,390,0007T & AR ¥ RMB5,390,000 and RMB3,139,000 respectively (Note 11).
3,139,0007T (FizE11) °
(b) M2023F12A31H  A&HE (b) As at 31 December 2023, none of the Group’s property,
HYE  BELEREBIREH - plant and equipment was pledged as securities for the
EBAREBNEROER- Group’s borrowings. As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s
MR2022F12H318 * A&EH construction in progress with the carrying amounts of
MNEREIEMNEEBEOARE approximately RMB102,374,000 were pledged to bank
102,374,000 T E M ERITIES as the security for the long-term bank borrowings of
EHISF1TE 3 A R #82,100,000 RMB82,100,000 (Note 34(a)).
TTHHELR (MiEE34(a)) ©
(c) FEREHSEDEHITEKZ (N (c) Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to
BHEFI(EE) KA RNIBEHAT B allocate their costs, net of their residual values, over their
FHIEE - estimated useful lives as follows:
&t Estimated  Residual
A A FAERE useful lives  values
BFREFEE 3-20%F 5% Buildings and building improvements 3-20 years 5%
e 5-106 0-10% Machinery 5-10years  0-10%
EL7] 4-5% 5% Vehicles 4-5 years 5%
B REREE 4-5F 0-10% Furniture, fittings, and equipment 4-5 years 0-10%
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For the year ended 31 December 2023

19 #HE 19 LEASES
(a) FREEE (a) Right-of-use assets
T ERE WEHEE AERE @t
Land use Lease of Lease of
rights properties vehicles Total
AR®T R ARET T AR%TR AR®T T
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’000
R202261A1H As at 1 January 2022
BA Cost 38,351 52,836 879 92,066
e Accumulated depreciation (1,668) (11,212) (761) (13,641)
REFEE Net book amount 36,683 41,624 118 78,425
BE202512A310LLEE Year ended 31 December 2022
FREFE Opening net book amount 36,683 41,624 118 78,425
RE Additions 134,976 13,889 - 148,865
BE Disposals - (7,931) (3) (7,934)
WEER (M:29) Depreciation charge (Note 9) (1,318) (13,027) (82) (14,427)
EEIREMCMTERA() Depreciation charge capitalised
in construction in progress (i) (574) - - (574)
EREERE Closing net book amount 169,767 34,555 33 204,355
®2022F12A31H As at 31 December 2022
AR Cost 173,327 53,850 751 227,928
e Accumulated depreciation (3,560) (19,295) (718) (23,573)
REFEE Net book amount 169,767 34,555 33 204,355
BZE2023512A310LEE Year ended 31 December 2023
FOEREFE Opening net book amount 169,767 34,555 33 204,355
RE Additions - 29,444 194 29,638
RE Disposals - (79) = (79)
WEER (H:E9) Depreciation charge (Note 9) (2,893) (13,620) (92) (16,605)
ERTIREMUOITERA() Depreciation charge capitalised
in construction in progress (i) (574) - - (574)
EXREERE Closing net book amount 166,300 50,300 135 216,735
R2023F12831H As at 31 December 2023
AR Cost 173,327 81,821 194 255,342
ZAtiE Accumulated depreciation (7,027) (31,521) (59) (38,607)
REFE Net book amount 166,300 50,300 135 216,735
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(i) 20234128310 » ~&EE
Mt EFERENEREENA
AR#53,105,0007T (2022
F: AR#27,341,0007T)
EERBRITIERARE
32,000,000t (20224 : AR
#82,100,0007T ) KR 14
7 (Mf3E34(a)) °

AEENFEFAIRNZEBRER
FRIZ AT SR BIH0RR -

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EZ2023F12A31HILFE  For the year ended 31 December 2023

19 LEASES (CONTINUED)

(a) Right-of-use assets (Continued)

(i) The amount capitalised in construction in progress represents
land use right depreciation during the site preparation period
which is directly attributable to the condition necessary for
it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management.

(i) As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s land use rights with
the carrying amounts of approximately RMB53,105,000 (2022:
RMB27,341,000) was pledged to bank as the security for
the long-term bank borrowings of RMB32,000,000 (2022:
RMB82,100,000) (Note 34(a)).

Depreciation expenses of the Group were charged to the
following categories in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss as follows:

HZ12A831BLEE
Year ended 31 December

2023 20224
2023 2022
AR¥T R ARETFT
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
EREEETERX Depreciation expenses of right-of-use
assets
— T A - Land use rights 2,893 1,318
—YEEE — Lease of properties 13,620 13,027
—AEHEE — Lease of vehicles 92 82
16,605 14,427
FMEFRZ (G AMIBEAA) Interest expense (included in finance
(PfFsE11) cost) (Note 11) 954 2,080
HEHASERREBEHRE Expense relating to short-term leases
AR (M15E9) and low-value lease (Note 9) 1,813 1,570

EHZE2023F 12831 AL FEH
M- BERSREEENAEAR
#10,293,0007T (20224 : A
R#9,174,0007T) °

The total cash outflow for leases during the year ended 31
December 2023 was approximately RMB10,293,000 (2022:
RMB9,174,000).
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HZE2023F12A31AILEE

19 AE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2023

19 LEASES (CONTINUED)

(b) HEAE (b) Lease liabilities
M12A318
As at 31 December
2023%F 20224F
2023 2022
AR%T T AREFT
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
MEKRAERE Lease of properties and vehicles
— nE — Current 28,486 27,714
— JEmE — Non-current 37,846 16,585
66,332 44,299
20 BILEE 20 INTANGIBLE ASSETS
B4 ERRFA st
Patents
Software and licences Total
ARET T ARET T AR T
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
MH2022F1H81H As at 1 January 2022
DE Cost 5,561 130,365 135,926
ZEEPRE Accumulated impairment = (57,358) (57,358)
EET#EE Accumulated amortisation (2,017) (46,854) (48,871)
REFE Net book amount 3,544 26,153 29,697
FHZ£2022%F12 A31 H It £ EYear ended 31 December 2022
FYIRME A Opening net book amount 3,544 26,153 29,697
NE Additions 596 - 596
#3H (PEE9) Amortisation (Note 9) (781) (4,643) (5,424)
FEREREFEE Closing net book amount 3,359 21,510 24,869
#2022F12H31H As at 31 December 2022
%N Cost 6,157 130,365 136,522
2ERE Accumulated impairment - (57,358) (57,358)
EGE 3 Accumulated amortisation (2,798) (51,497) (54,295)
REFE Net book amount 3,359 21,510 24,869
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For the year ended 31 December 2023

20 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

B4 =) ) et
Patents

Software and licences Total
ARET T ARET T AR®T T
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

#H£2023%F12 431 H ILFEYear ended 31 December 2023
FYERMEFE Opening net book amount 3,359 21,510 24,869
NE Additions 7,873 382 8,255
#eH (MIzE9) Amortisation (Note 9) (1,232) (4,577) (5,809)
FREIEEFE Closing net book amount 10,000 17,315 27,315

#2023F12H31H As at 31 December 2023

BN 14,030 130,747 144,777
Z25HRE Accumulated impairment - (57,358) (57,358)
RETHEsH Accumulated amortisation (4,030) (56,074) (60,104)
REFE Net book amount 10,000 17,315 27,315

AEBEHR NGRS BER AN

Amortisation expenses of the Group were charged to the following

TEERIHAE - categories in the consolidated statement of profit or loss as follows:
BZE12A31BLFE

Year ended 31 December
2023 20224
2023 2022
AR¥T T AREFT
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
SHE KA Cost of sales 2,858 2,880
WM Research and development expenses 2,608 2,245
1TERBA Administrative expenses 343 299
5,809 5,424
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EHZE2023F12A31HILFE  For the year ended 31 December 2023

21 HERBEE 21 OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS
M12H31H
As at 31 December
2023 F 20224
2023 2022
AR%E T AR%TT
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
EEYE  HELRENTEMNKIE  Prepayment for purchase of property,
plant and equipment 59,882 169,772
AIEHIEE TR Deductible value-added tax input 4,048 4,056
63,930 173,828
22 BERNESNERMITA 22 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
®W12831H
As at 31 December
2023 F 20224
2023 2022
AR¥ET T ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
cREE Financial assets
REER AT ENSREE Financial assets at amortised cost
- Re RALEEY (3E28) - Cash and cash equivalents (Note 28) 604,715 718,183
- XBHIFES (HF28) — Restricted cash (Note 28) 203,302 =
— B oW E R EWEZE (f3E26) - Trade and bills receivables (Note 26) 1,543,022 1,163,232
— HAb YRR (F7E27) — Other receivables (Note 27) 14,718 13,050
BANBEAELMEERER Financial assets at fair value through other
S EEE (f45E23) comprehensive income (Note 23) 96,626 89,436
BRARBEFABRNEREE Financial assets at fair value through
(BizE24) profit or loss (Note 24) 910,945 =
3,373,328 1,983,901
cREE Financial liabilities
REERATENSRAR Financial liabilities at amortised cost
— &k (FiEE34) — Borrowings (Note 34) 304,131 280,300
—EoEMNFERENZE (H5E32) - Trade and bills payables (Note 32) 773,700 510,726
— BN FIERETER — Other payables and accruals
(T EEEEHERE) (excluding non-financial liabilities) 174,814 108,357
—HE&E (f:E19(b)) — Lease liabilities (Note 19(b)) 66,332 44,299
PTESmBT A (FiFE38) Derivative financial instruments (Note 38) - 38,950
1,318,977 982,632
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EZ2023F12A31HILFE  For the year ended 31 December 2023

23 BAARBEFAEMEEZER 23 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

ENEREE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME
M12A31H
As at 31 December
2023F 20224
2023 2022
AR®TT AREFT
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
FERE Non-current
R E Equity investments
— JEETRERE (a) — Unlisted equity investments (a) 88,636 88,636
B Current
ERRE Debt investments
— RITELIEZFE (D) - Bank acceptance notes (b) 7,990 800
96,626 89,436
(a) M2023%F12A318 @ L& BE (a) As at 31 December 2023, the above equity investments included
REEAEE EBEANKE - D5l investment in Chongging Yuhong and Shanghai Yixun, with equity
FFH19.09% K& 7.50% K fE - AR interest of 19.09% and 7.50% respectively. The Company had no
AEEMRMRAATEEATE significant influence on those two companies. Both companies were
71 o EHMR AR ER R RRE still under early development stage with no significant changes in
B - B E2023F12A31HLEFER fair value during the year ended 31 December 2023.
AREBEEERNEE -
(b) 20234 }2022%12A31H #4458 (b) As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the balances were bank
REREIFUARNRNRITEALESR - acceptance notes aged less than one year.
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HZE2023F12A31AILEE

24 BAREBEFABZHNESH
BE

For the year ended 31 December 2023

24 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

MW12H31H
As at 31 December
2023% 20224
2023 2022
AR¥ET T ARETFT
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
FRE Non-current
REBAE R Investment in wealth management products
—ARRELIEATHE() — Managed by investment manager A (i) 113,999 =
WE Current
REEMER Investment in wealth management products
—HRRELEBE (i) — Managed by investment manager B (ii) 128,504 =
—HRRELECEE() — Managed by investment manager C (i) 142,585 -
—HIRELEDER() — Managed by investment manager D (i) 142,585 -
—HRELIREEE() - Managed by investment manager E (i) 142,585 =
—HREKEFEER() - Managed by investment manager F (i) 142,585 -
—HRAELEGEE() — Managed by investment manager G (i) 98,102 -
796,946 -
910,945 -

(i)

ZERBEAANBTRANBELEE
BRASREES - REBEARRE
BekReSFEY  BEREMER
MHET A - H18R2024%F3 8 » A%
EEBRIHSZERE  SHAAR
#3,172,0007T °

ZREA—EEMER - BEBIEA
BELEMHS HEAESRETE
F o H{8M202443 8 + AEEBE &
M -

(M)

(if)

The investments represented six investment funds managed by
six different investment managers. Investment objectives were
to invest in cash or cash equivalents, national debts, and other
monetary market instruments. Subsequently in March 2024, the
Group has redeemed part of these investments with the amount of
RMB3,172,000.

The investment represented one wealth management product.
Investment objectives were to invest in listed securities, portfolio
funds and fixed coupon notes. Subsequently in March 2024, the
Group has redeemed the investment in full amount.

RERBERNEE Amounts recognised in profit or loss
BZE12A31BLLEE
Year ended 31 December
2023 20224
2023 2022
AR¥BT R ARETFT
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
RERERN AR EEKE Fair value gains recognised

(FfzE8) in profit or loss (Note 8) 2,245 =
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EZ2023F12A31HILFE  For the year ended 31 December 2023

25 INVENTORIES
MW12H31A
As at 31 December
20234 20224
2023 2022
AR®T ARBFT
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
JR# Raw materials 121,017 103,941
RS Work in progress 14,965 30,379
ZURK Finished goods 253,964 332,354
R FERERE Less: provision for impairment of inventories (108,192) (86,982)
281,754 379,692

FRATEL R FEM ~ R R B IR
AR ERFEMREDREEFIH
KABREEMH  EREATREE
LepIe R & R EEREER - RER
BRIEBEERNDE - AR
BFORESRAESEFEEE - B
BEFEZRAEMRREHRTNRE
E o ERBEER REBBRETLZ
fl it & BB b 5t ST AR AR R fil &t 52
FREHE BB R ©

HZE2023F12A31BILFE @ R
ARYNTFEERANGTABERAE - &
AR#518,451,0007T (20224 = A
R#566,678,0007T) °

HZE2023F 12 A31HILEE - &
BT ERT IR EE AR 21,210,000
7L (20224 : AKR¥ 43,307,000
TT) * BRFAGRAERERAMN SR
A (HIEE9) °

Raw materials and consumables, work in progress and finished
goods are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost comprises direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of variable and fixed overhead expenditure, the latter
being allocated on the basis of normal operating capacity. Costs
are assigned to individual items of inventories on the basis of
weighted average costs. Costs of purchased inventories are
determined after deducting rebates and discounts. Net realisable
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business less the estimated costs of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the cost of inventories
recognised as expenses was included in cost of sales, amounted
to RMB518,451,000 (2022: RMB566,678,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group
provided a provision for inventories of RMB21,210,000 (2022:
RMB43,307,000). These amounts have been included in “Cost of
sales” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss (Note 9).
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26 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

M12H31H
As at 31 December
2023 20224
2023 2022
ARET ARBTT
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
RE Current
Z 5 WA Trade receivables
- RBRE=F — due from third parties 1,927,473 1,362,012
B EEMEEEEEE Less: Allowance for expected credit
(FF5E3.1(b)) losses (Note 3.1(b)) (384,451) (215,105)
1,543,022 1,146,907
EWERE Bills receivables - 163
1,543,022 1,147,070
IETRE Non-current
B WA (a) Trade receivables (a)
—BWE=7 — due from third parties - 16,794
B THEME B AR Less: allowance for expected credit
(Fff3E3.1(b)) losses (Note 3.1(b)) - (632)
- 16,162
1,543,022 1,163,232

7N £ [ 5K A B B B 7 R A 2E RI BB 9 5%
e AR EE R RS
BETE B 5 ERFIEF R B HE
BEE - B2 2023F 220225612 8
N1BIFE - BEE S EUGIERE
RS EERGEERERSE R ] 26
Ffi3E3.1(b) °

MN2022%FE 12318 « REBHEK
ER AR 1 F AN RITARE

H

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide for

expected credit losses which was a lifetime expected loss

allowance for all trade receivable as prescribed by IFRS 9. For
the year ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, information about
the impairment of trade receivables and the Group is exposure to
credit risk can be found in Note 3.1(b).

As at 31 December 2022, bills receivables of the Group were
bank acceptance notes aged less than 1 year.
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(%)
R20234F K 20229F 12 A31H  ER
BZEAHNE FEIRRBRRE DT

26 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the ageing analysis of the
trade receivables based on the invoice date is as follows:

mE

A12A831H

As at 31 December

2023 20224
2023 2022
AR¥T ARETTT
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
1FE A Up to 1 year 778,983 816,856
124 1to 2 years 701,297 416,708
2FE3F 2 to 3 years 381,081 110,981
3E45F 3 to 4 years 66,112 34,261
1,927,473 1,378,806

(a)

ERBE S EKRIAREEES
BB 360 R E K F P #YFE UK

I8 o

B 7 FEMGROR K e IR R R e AR T
BEEERBEEABERAMNAL

BERE

BUARMEHE -

(a)

Non-current trade receivables represented the receivables
from a customer who signed a contract with a credit period
of more than 360 days.

The carrying values of trade and bills receivables

approximated their fair values as at the balance sheet dates
and were denominated in RMB.
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27 HibEWEIE R ENARIE

27 OTHER RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS

M12H31H
As at 31 December

2023 F 20224
2023 2022
ARET ARETTT
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
Hofth e Uk BE RS 5 508 (MifsE41(d))  Other receivables from related parties
(Note 41(d)) - 9,802
Be Deposits 12,170 11,779
R B 1Rt B Advances to employees - 427
HAfth Others 3,662 1,170
15,832 23,178
W At FEUGRIE R B B R Less: allowance for impairment of other
(FffsE3.1(b)) receivables (Note 3.1(b)) (1,114) (10,128)
14,718 13,050
TEAS B 75 3R (M EE41(d)) Prepayment to a related party
(Note 41(d)) - 3,850
RIS AT TR Deductible value-added tax input 34,890 50,264
TES BB R R IR Prepayment to suppliers 7,980 21,570
T LR Prepayment for listing expenses - 24,068
AR Prepaid expenses 8,040 7,863
HAh Others 3,630 4,942
54,540 112,557
5T Total 69,258 125,607

HERFARRREEEREER
EXRAMNRREEEE  AUAR

The carrying values of other receivables approximated their fair
values as at the balance sheet dates and were denominated in

®EE - RMB.
28 RERRESEYRIZIRF 28 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND
BE RESTRICTED CASH
M12H31H
As at 31 December
2023 20224
2023 2022
AR®TT ARETTT
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
RERFEEEY - Cash and cash equivalents:
— iRITE S — Cash at banks 808,017 718,183
A ZRAFIRE(a) Less: Restricted cash (a) (203,302) -
604,715 718,183
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EZ2023F12A31HILFE  For the year ended 31 December 2023

28 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND
RESTRICTED CASH (CONTINUED)

(a)

The breakdown of restricted cash by nature as at 31
December 2023 and 2022 is as follows:

M12A31H
As at 31 December

20234
2023
AR®TT
RMB’ 000

20224
2022
AREFT
RMB’000

RITIEFIZE ()
AR RBIR 2 (i)
SR BIFAR S

Deposit for bank borrowings (i)
Deposit for issuing bills payable (ii)
Restricted cash for litigation

110,000 =
92,678 =
624 =

203,302 =

(i) R2023%F12AH31H @ R17H%
A EHEREERES
(FzE34(d)) °

M2023F 12 A31H » R1THK
ERAEEEMNERZRS (H
F£32(a)) °

(if)

RITBEATINEREFHE

(i As at 31 December 2023, the bank deposit was placed for a
one-year letter of credit loan (Note 34(d)).

(i) As at 31 December 2023, the bank deposit was placed for

bills payable of the Group (Note 32(a)).

Cash at banks were denominated in the following currencies:

MW12A31H

As at 31 December
20234 20224
2023 2022
AR®TT ARET T
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
AR# RMB 320,323 715,954
EPI UsD 7,061 1,749
BT HKD 480,633 480
808,017 718,183
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EHZE2023F12A31HILFE  For the year ended 31 December 2023

29 BHEX BX 29 PAID-IN CAPITAL/SHARE CAPITAL
BEHERLRAIERII8 A RIEEER Paid-in capital or share capital represented founders’ and
EE o ARAIFIBMBARERLE investors’ capital injection. The excess of total consideration
BERLBRANET H T ARR A E received by the Company over paid-in capital or share capital
ARAEH D EE © was credited to the Company’s capital reserve or share premium.

SRARY
1.007TH
EERHA BEHER BRNR BA BB RE
Number of
ordinary
shares of
RMB1.00 Paid-in Capital Share Share
each capital reserve capital premium

ARBTR ARBTR ARBTT ARBTR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

#2022%1A1H As at 1 January 2022 R NJA 375600 1479928  FEEANA  FEE NA
Wl ARHERAR (@)  Conversion into a joint stock
company (a) 375,602,204 (375,622)  (1,479.928) 375600 1,357,400
— B3R (b) — Issue of new shares (b) 62,899,375 TER NIA TERA NIA 62,900 943,491
R2022512F31H As at 31 December 2022 and
%2023F1 8108 1 January 2023 438,521,669 FEA NA FEA NA 438,522 2,300,891
BRERDRAREET Issuance of shares by initial
Bty - MBEEME(C)  public offering, net of underwriting
commission (c) 79,520,000 FEA NA FEA NA 79,520 1,331,854
Hfty EAX AL - Capitalization of other listing
BERERI expenses, except for underwriting
commission FERANA  FEANA  FERANA  FTEANA (65,445)
WD B R Acquisition of minority shareholder
(WizE14) equity (Note 14) FEANA  TEANA  FEANA  TEANA (7,854)
SRRERENEE Vesting of shares granted under
FHMRR (M731()  Share Incentive Scheme (Note 31(a))  FEANA  FEANA  TEANA  FTEANA 98,381
R2023F12831H As at 31 December 2023 518,041,669 FEA NA FEA NA 518,042 3,657,827
(@) ARRNR2022F3 A22 B %8 (a) The Company changed the type of enterprise from a limited liability
ARERETAREEBRHAERA company to a joint stock company on 22 March 2022. The net
Al e ARRIRBMBHNEEFER assets of the Company as of the conversion date, amounting to
AR#1,679,022,2457C * 2EH A RMB1,679,022,245, were converted into 375,622,294 ordinary
375,622,294 R B AR AR ¥ 1.007THY shares of RMB1.00 each (Note (30)).

B o (FRE(30)) ©
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29 BRHER RE ()

(b)

HZ=2022F12A31HILLEFE -
RRBIERERARKE16.00THE
BRKREEEITE 62,899,375
RELEBR  BERBLTEARS
1,006,390,0007T ' £EF AR
62,900,000 T ARRA « 1 AR
943,491,000 CaF AR 58 ©

R2023F 12850 ' ARRABE
RARBEERTR19.66BTHE
AR EEEITE£79,520,000 8%
TER HReHEHASREERE
#%81,563,363,200/8 T (WAR
#1,422,910,6507T) * R ARK
79,520,000 LT ARA - T AR
1,331,854,000 L5t AR 3 (B

30 EERMERER At E

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EZ2023F12A31HILFE  For the year ended 31 December 2023

29 PAID-IN CAPITAL/SHARE CAPITAL
(CONTINUED)

(b)

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company issued
a total of 62,899,375 ordinary shares at the price of RMB16.00
per share to investors, and raised a total subscription amount of
RMB1,006,390,000, in which RMB62,900,000 was included in the
share capital, and RMB943,491,000 was included in the share

premium.

On 5 December 2023, the Company issued a total of 79,520,000
ordinary shares at the price of HKD19.66 per share by initial public
offering to investors, and raised a total subscription amount of
HKD1,563,363,200 (approximately RMB1,422,910,650),
underwriting commission, in which RMB79,520,000 was included in
the share capital, and RMB1,331,854,000 was included in the share
premium.

net of

30 TREASURY SHARES RESERVE AND OTHER

RESERVES
Hitv@ e
Other reserves
EF BRAX A
BB GE e EERE HitfiE EoH
Treasury Share-based
shares payment Statutory Other
reserve reserve reserves reserves Total
ARETRT ARETR AR®Tn AR%ETz ARET:R
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
R2022F1 515 As at 1 January 2022 (54,000) 664,332 6,888 752 671,972
Sl RRABRAR(a) Conversion into a joint stock
company (a) - (656,830) (6,888) - (663,718)
RS (MzE31) Share-based payment (Note 31) - 54,316 - - 54,316
ERHEER Currency translation differences - - - (318) (318)
R20225£12A31H As at 31 December 2022
%2023F1A16 and 1 January 2023 (54,000) 61,818 - 434 62,252
A s (MizEat) Share-based payment (Note 31) - 82,887 - - 82,887
ERHEER Currency translation differences - - - (332) (332)
FEBERENEERLNORND  Vesting of shares granted under
(FfzE31(a)) Share Incentive Scheme
(Note 31(a)) 54,000 (98,381) - - (98,381)
R2023F12831H As at 31 December 2023 - 46,324 - 102 46,426

(a) BEBRAQAAFEEBRBLBRE (a) The excess of net assets of the Company converted over nominal

B BEARTERKERND I EE
BERAE M R R Z A AR R AR
17]/fn1{?Bi

value of the ordinary shares, capital reserve and other reserves
resulted from share-based payments and statutory surplus was
credited to the Company’s share premium.
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HZE2023F12A31AILEE

31

B3 =14
DEEEENRD IR IEENH
a0

31

For the year ended 31 December 2023

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

Expenses arising from equity-settled share-based payment

transactions were as follows:

HZE12A31BLLEE
Year ended 31 December

2023 F 20224

2023 2022

AR¥T T ARETTT

RMB’ 000 RMB’000

— RFEREETE](a) — Share Incentive Scheme (a) 36,563 54,316
— EEBERETEI(b) — Employee Option Plan (b) 46,324 =
5T Total 82,887 54,316

HZE2023F 2022512 A31HIEF
B BERREESHENRDZHE

Share-based payment expense relating to employees recognised

for the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022 is as follows:

AT :
HZ=12A31HLLEE
Year ended 31 December
2023 20224
2023 2022
AR T ARET T
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
1TERRISZ Administrative expenses 62,559 39,987
R Research and development expenses 13,394 9,882
HEMX Selling expenses 6,934 4,447
82,887 54,316
(a) REZEE (a) Share Incentive Scheme
BiE B A202063H238 - Pursuant to the resolutions of shareholders dated 23

2020412 H29 A K% 2021411
A29 AR IRZESR - BRI
it 2 EHE - Rt - AAF
AARESBFEOFERTS
ZRABESRAREIT ([RE
B1) 2 BB 8RBT R
i 1,420,0004% * 11,456,000 8%
15,350,000 XA AR D + M
226,000 % %17 B & T st B 1 5%
R2021 FBHEMKRK - RER
BB E T A3 AR A LA
BeWBWRBEEBERARKE
54,000,0007T °

March 2020, 29 December 2020 and 29 November 2021,
Share Incentive Scheme was approved, under which
the Company issued and granted 1,420,000 shares,
11,456,000 shares and 5,350,000 shares of the Company,
respectively, to the recipients through the Shareholding
Platform of Share Incentive Scheme at a subscription
price of RMB3 per share (“Subscription Price”) and
226,000 shares were forfeited due to resignation of
certain recipients in 2021. Total subscription amounts
of RMB54,000,000 were received by the Group in cash
through the Shareholding Platform of Share Incentive
Scheme.
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(a)

R R =t &) (42)

B ARt B ORI F & B ACER
BEEHRAHAEELEER R
AAEAAEERE RIKE
B R B BB AR R SR A
FETHEHRONEHFAAR
Aty - MAKEEE B FRBE
BRSO BHE B R A A 3L
BzERODENOEEEAME
8 - @it - RIRHAHEETE
AEBHRONRESES B
TR A7 Rt | 4Bk o

bt TR R 2 AN T ASH
B IRISRIF IR IDA —BFE 58
P ¥ BN B S AR R 7R 0 TR AT 57 B
HMmR (TR MEEETR
stEmBHE) - ARBRADRIE
H B HER A A EE BB A EED
RBRAEEE @ WERATE
ZER - AEEAE LA AR
DERAIER AT BER
B RIKIE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EZ2023F12A31HILFE  For the year ended 31 December 2023

31 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

(a)

Share Incentive Scheme (Continued)

The Shareholding Platform of Share Incentive Scheme are
controlled and consolidated by the Group as structured
entities as it was designed, established and operated by the
Group for holding shares of the Company for the benefit of
the recipients under the Share Incentive Scheme during the
vesting period and the Group has obligation to repurchase
the shares of the resigned recipients at the subscription
price or reallocate these shares to other employees.
Accordingly, the subscription amount of the shares issued
but unvested on the grant date were debited to “Treasury
shares reserve”.

Service conditions are included in assumptions about the
number of equity instruments that are expected to vest. The
total share-based compensation expense was recognised
over the estimated vesting period, which is from the date
of issue to its expected listing day. The fair value of the
shares of the Company at grant dates were determined by
an independent valuer based on income approach with key
assumptions set out as below on the basis of allocation and
analysis of appropriate comparable companies, together
with evidence of public financial information.

REH B
2020 20204 20214
3A23H 12A29H 9A29H

As at

grant dates
23 March 29 December 29 November
2020 2020 2021
A EEIERE(%) Sustainable growth rate (%) 3.00 2.00 2.00
TEERAAR (%) Expected inflation rate (%) 3.00 2.00 2.00

INRETIGE AR Weighted average cost of

(ThEFHE AR ]) (%) capital (“WACC") (%) 16.00 15.50 15.00
FRAAEE(ARET) Fair value per share (RMB) 8.71 9.10 13.00
IFEE(ARBT) Exercise price (RMB) 3.00 3.00 3.00

FIRHR OO A R EEEREE

The difference between the fair value of the shares granted

ZERZER S A [ D
it ARR - MARRERY [ D
o s ) AN IR ER AR o

and the subscription price were recorded in “share-based
payment reserve” within equity with the corresponding
“share-based compensation expenses” in profit or loss.
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HZE2023F12A31AILEE

31 R (8])

(a)

(b)

B8 ()

BB BRI A A
B B RAD AR R 20236
125 R EEBBAR DER
ARERAY LT 2 AGE -
ARARBBBEZERANE
B - B B L R -
FRAREH AR S RO R A
R #98,381,000 7T 3t AR 15

()

ARRERHRHEE KX B0
BFHREBRARAEENED
W

For the year ended 31 December 2023

31 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

()

Share Incentive Scheme (Continued)

The shares held by the Shareholding Platform of Share
Incentive Scheme were vested at the date of the Company’s
successful listing on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited on 5 December 2023. The Company’s
obligation to repurchase those shares was released and
the Treasury shares reserve was reversed accordingly.
The amount previously recorded in “Share-based payment
reserve” of RMB 98,381,000 was credited to “Share
premium”.

Movements in the number of shares of the Company
granted and the respective weighted average grant date
fair value were as follows:

1R 55 I AR B
FTRIR K PR H
RO E HHEAAEE
Number of
shares granted Weighted
under the  average grant

Share Incentive date fair value

Scheme per share
AR¥ T
RMB
1K2022F1A1H As at 1 January 2022 18,000,000 10.21
HRDR I Forfeited during the period (190,000) 13.00
BN Granted during the period 190,000 13.00
M2022F12 4318 & Outstanding as at 31 December 2022
202341 A 18 i FTE and 1 January 2023 18,000,000 10.21
BRI Forfeited during the period (195,000) 11.00
BRAREEH Cancelled during the period (45,000) 13.00
HA Granted during the period 240,000 16.00
HNER B Vested during the period (18,000,000) 10.27
1202312 A31Hi®AKTT{E  Outstanding as at 31 December 2023 TERA
= N/A

EEEREE

2022F10R ' X RRIEEE R
RE KRG HEE BB RS 2
(FZer8l]) BT - LAR3| - &
B RBLRERETEERE
£ - R2023F6 8 ' ARAE
EeREZTENRLEBHA
202346 H208 -

(b)

Employee Option Plan

In October 2022, the Board of Directors of the Company
and the general meeting of shareholders approved the
proposal of the Employee Option Plan (“the Plan”) with the
purpose of attracting, motivating, retaining and rewarding
certain employees and directors. In June 2023, the Board of
Directors of the Company determined that the grant date of
the Plan is 20 June 2023.
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31 B (8])

(b)

EEBRESS (7))

ZETEINTTR G RIEA AR
EEAT AR B EE R EA
BB IR WA EFEEAR
NGIEESER NS S=d a1
B SR AN B AR e R 2K
ARRHRBZETFINHRE @ &
HAEHRIAENTTRESE B
Pt ) B A 8 SR 2 sl B AN R R A
—&EHH ©

a%aT &M & K HR I ER AR B B AR AT
BT(10)F - ZaHENEBE R
M={EREER AR - FI15WT

e REMETFEAHEMNI2
MABRNE—ERXZEH
Rk L A8 R6
B ATTRA0% KRB - Uit
Hh + REEE 2022 F LT
ST AZE D FE R2021 F 45
EET AR 1,515 ©

e HXRAITTEBZM12MEA
AHE—EAXZENKRE
REx EmERAFEHR
FRA I TE B HTEA30%
WEE - o AEER
2023 F K EANMAE D IE
£2021 FLEE T IR AR M

f& o

e BHRAMTHEAEMN24H
ARKNE—EX S HBHR
PREK EMEARNRAE
ZIRFIRM B FE A HATEAK
30%MERE o Lo + A&
B 2024 FEBFTWAZE
DIER2021 FEEFT WA
#2.5fF o

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EZ2023F12A31HILFE  For the year ended 31 December 2023

31 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b)

Employee Option Plan (Continued)

The exercise conditions of the Plan include the performance
assessment conditions of the Company and the individual
appraisal conditions of the incentive recipients. If the
performance assessment conditions of the Company are not
met in the assessment year, or the incentive recipients do
not meet the corresponding assessment requirements, the
Company will, in accordance with the provisions of the Plan,
cancel the corresponding exercise amount of the incentive
recipients, and the shares of the options will be null and
void or uniformly canceled by the Company.

Such Plan has a contractual term of ten (10) years from the
adoption date, and grants under the Plan vest over a period
of three phases of continuous service, as follows:

®  40% vesting upon the earlier of the first trading day 12
months after the option grant date or 6 months after
the listing day. At the same time, the Group’s audited
revenue for 2022 should be at least 1.5 times of that
for 2021.

e  30% vesting upon the earlier of the first trading day 12
months after the first exercise date or the disclosure
date of the Group’s first annual report after listing. At
the same time, the Group’s audited revenue for 2023
should be at least 2.0 times of that for 2021.

e  30% vesting upon the earlier of the first trading day 24
months after the first exercise date or the disclosure
date of the Group’s second annual report after listing.
At the same time, the Group’s audited revenue for
2024 should be at least 2.5 times of that for 2021.
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31 RO (&) 31 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) EERRETE (&) (b) Employee Option Plan (Continued)
ZETEIE TE L EREN B ZH Set out below are summaries of options granted under the
PR - plan:
SHRBRE
FHTEE BREE
Average
exercise price Number of
per share option options
AR T
RMB
720231 A1H As at 1 January 2023 - -
FAEH Granted during the year 8.00 12,065,000
F AR Forfeited during the year 8.00 (3,619,500)
2023412 A31H As at 31 December 2023 8.00 8,445,500
M2023%12 31 H Vested and exercisable at
BB RAITTE 31 December 2023 8.00 =
FREAITHEERENIHAE X Share options outstanding at the end of the year have the
TEEWT : following expiry dates and exercise prices:
i IR HE
RHBH |8 A TEEE 2023512H31H
Share options
Grant date Expiry date Exercise price 31 December 2023
202346 H20H 203346 H20H
20 June 2023 20 June 2033 8.00 8,445,500
FARNTEBBAZD I F TR A L H 9.48 %
Weighted average remaining contractual life of options outstanding
at the end of the year 9.48 years
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31 RS (&)
(b) EEBKRESE(Z)

AEEER_—BAAEEERLUETE
BREREH AN RAREE -
TERRLOT :

31 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Employee Option Plan (Continued)

The Group has used Binomial option-pricing model to

determine the fair value of the share option as of the grant

date. Key assumptions are set as below:

RERHBH
202366 H20H
As at grant date
20 June 2023

A FF B R (%)

TE BRI AR 2 (%)

NI E AR A ([ I T E AR
BXA ) (%)

% B IR 2R (%)

BRI (%)

TEERIE B (%)

BRANEE(ARETT)

TER (ARBT)

Sustainable growth rate (%)

Expected inflation rate (%)

Weighted average cost of capital
(“WACC") (%)

Dividend yield (%)

Risk-free rate (%)

Expected volatility (%)

Fair value per share (RMB)

Exercise price (RMB)

2.00
2.00

14.00
2.64~2.67
61.06
12.88
8.00
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32 TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

M12H31H
As at 31 December
2023 F 20224
2023 2022
AR¥T T ARETFT
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
B SR RIE Trade payables
- ENE=7A — due to third parties 635,442 509,780
— FEfSTRAESE 77 (BtsE41(d)) — due to related parties (Note 41(d)) - 946
B E=IE(a) Bills payables (a) 138,258 =
773,700 510,726

REEABERAH  BHENFHIEAER
BNRENREEEEDNAEER
o WAARKEEHE -

H20234F K 2022F 12 A31H » A&
B/ E 5 e3R8 RN 2R R

The carrying amounts of trade and bills payables approximated
their fair values as at the balance sheet dates and were

denominated in RMB.

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the ageing analysis of trade
and bills payables of the Group based on invoice date was as

AT (EREZEAH) 0T : follows:
M12H31H

As at 31 December
20234 20224
2023 2022
AR¥T T ARETTT
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
1E AR Within 1 year 598,540 446,377
1E:24F 1-2 years 174,181 63,365
2Z34E 2-3 years 789 925
3FEME Over 3 years 190 59
773,700 510,726

(a) M2023412A318 ' R1T7&EE
AR#92,678,0007T (HizE28)
BFRNEMNZEESD -

(a) As at 31 December 2023, the bank deposit amount of
RMB92,678,000 (Note 28) is placed to the bills payables.
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33 HhERRIEREFTEH 33 OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS
M12H31H
As at 31 December
2023 F 20224
2023 2022
AR%E T ARETTT
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
o fth < BB 5 5108 (FfsE41(d))  Other payables due to related parties
(Note 41(d)) 8,347 10,360
BEYE  MEMEENENKIE Payables for purchases of property,
plant and equipment 112,938 77,503
AR B At B A A B R S Payables arising from Share Incentive
KIE (FzE31) Scheme (Note 31) - 54,000
JEBBIE Tax payables 23,417 16,642
1B BaF e RIE Employee benefits payables 14,542 8,823
EETE A Accrued expenses 46,157 12,453
e Payables for deposits 2,075 2,094
R FI S Interest payables 429 538
EAth Others 4,868 5,409
212,773 187,822
34 & 34 BORROWINGS
M12A31H
As at 31 December
2023F 20224
2023 2022
ART ARETT
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
FERE Non-current
RERITER - BEM(a) Long-term bank borrowings, secured (a) 30,000 67,100
RHERITER - EEA(c) Long-term bank borrowings, unsecured (c) 8,500 15,800
38,500 82,900
RE Current
RHESRITRERARE D - 3 (a) Current portion of long-term bank
borrowings, secured (a) 2,000 15,000
RERSRATIE XA REN DD + K3 (c) Current portion of long-term bank
borrowings, unsecured (c) 27,290 4,400
REE=FHER - HHEM(b) Loans from third parties, secured (b) - 50,000
RERSRITIE R © BIKM(d) Short-term bank borrowings, secured (d) 107,142 =
RERSRTITIE R - A Short-term bank borrowings, unsecured 129,199 128,000
265,631 197,400
e B Total borrowings 304,131 280,300
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34 & (&)

34 BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

(a) RESBITER BEHF (a) Long-term bank borrowings, secured
M2023F12A31H ' &% At 31 December 2023, the Group’s long-term bank
BENRHARTERBARE borrowings of RMB32,000,000, was secured by the Group’s

32,000,0007T * AAREEERE
FEBARY53,105,0007TH)
T AR (MsE19(a)) 1B
oo ZRBBITERTHEAR
AIREER - BERIRER TS
HREF R (LPR) 015 (@ E 225
ROZEN ARG B - AEEER
20244 + 20254 2026 F 5
Bl{EE AR 2 000,0007T *
AR®2 000,000t kAR
28,000,0007T °

MR2022F 128318 ' &%
ENRARTERAARE
82,100,0007T * A AEEERE
FEAARE27,341,0007TH
s AR VE KR (B EE19(a))
EUAREBERFEAARE
102,374,000 70 7% 3 T2 4K 7
(FizE18(b)) ° R EARITIERK
AR#66,850,000 7T 75 5 87
BB H AR R BIRE S BN ERE
SRR IR B R o BB RUR
LPR 0100 fE &% 2 1) )% &) F1| &
B o ZERER2023F 12 A
EEEE -

land use rights with net book value of RMB53,105,000
(Note 19(a)). The long-term bank borrowings were also
guaranteed by the Company. The borrowings bear interest
at floating rate of Loan Prime Rate (‘LPR”) markup 15 basis
point. The Group will repay RMB2,000,000, RMB2,000,000
and RMB28,000,000 in 2024, 2025 and 2026, respectively.

At 31 December 2022, the Group’'s long-term bank
borrowings of RMB82,100,000, were secured by the Group'’s
land use rights with net book value of RMB27,341,000 (Note
19(a)) and the Group’s construction in progress with net
book value of RMB102,374,000 (Note 18(b)). The long-term
bank borrowings of RMB66,850,000 was also guaranteed
by the shareholders of Meijin Guohong according to
their respective shareholdings in Meijin Guohong. The
borrowings bear interest at floating rate of LPR markup 100
basis point. The borrowings were fully repaid in December
2023.
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34 &R (&)

(b)

(c)

REE=FHWER  FER

R2022F12A318 » A&EEA
—BBE=F (BFE) RBED
RHPAEFEE E’Jé%ﬁf—%/\i
#50,000,0007T © AR
EFHE (ZF LA IEE Hﬁﬁx
R)REER  ZEREZ 8
EZ - ERHE ARFREZE
EpEFLEREREXRK
RS EXE(CBEBET L HT
FIREWEMEE Bt - =
ERMEREZEZEETIEARK
50,000,0007T * & #4A2018
#£12 A31HE202046 A30
H  EF@MEZHE1.50%0F
EEEHRE - fxms&E R
HN2020FE 12 A 11 BEE - #
It EXEEREZLERKEH
Z2023F6A30H © FEEE
HERRFEHEE1.50% 0 EFphER
BESZRONKTZLERE &
NaE|R2023F6 AMEZFES
 AR¥33,000,0007T @ &R
66% HI B Lt I A s AR () o
HRZERH  AEEERRE -

REBRTER  BEA

M2023F12H31H » &"&
BENRHARTERABARE
7,800,0007T (2022412 A 31
B : AR%10,200,0007T) © &
LPR AN 155 & 5 % B 5 %7 B F1| =
B - AEEBR2024FEiE
ZEMBRK

MR2023F12H31H » &
ENRHERTERBARYE
8,000,0007t (20224 12 A 31
B : AK%10,000,0007T) @ #%
BF4.25%MEEFEGTE o K
BB 2024 FERBZERRK ©

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EZ2023F12A31HILFE  For the year ended 31 December 2023

34 BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

(b)

(c)

Loans from third parties, secured

At 31 December 2022,
loan from a third party, namely Yunfu Rongda amounting
to RMB50,000,000, was guaranteed by the Company and
Yunfu Foyun, a non-controlling shareholder of Yunfu Puhui.

the Group’s long-term secured

Such loan was arising from a quadripartite investment
agreement in relation to an incubation project of hydrogen
energy industry and equipment manufacturing industry of
Yunfu Puhui entered into between Yunfu Rongda, Yunfu
Foyun, the Company and Yunfu Puhui, pursuant to which
Yunfu Rongda made capital injection of RMB50,000,000 in
Yunfu Puhui for an investment period from 31 December
2018 to 30 June 2020. Yunfu Rongda was entitled to the
fixed rate of return at 1.50% per annum. The supplemental
quadripartite investment agreement was signed on 11
December 2020 pursuant to which Yunfu Rongda agreed
to extend the investment period to 30 June 2023 with the
same rate of return at 1.50% per annum. Yunfu Rongda
chose to transfer shares to exit from its investment in Yunfu
Puhui, the Company paid RMB33,000,000 to Yunfu Rongda
to undertake the transferred shares in proportion to the
shareholding of 66% in June 2023. As a result of these
arrangements, the liability was released.

Long-term bank borrowings, unsecured

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s long-term bank
borrowings of RMB7,800,000 (31 December 2022:
RMB10,200,000) bear interest at floating rate of LPR markup
155 basis point. The Group will repay the borrowing in
2024.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s long-term bank
borrowing of RMB8,000,000 (31 December 2022:
RMB10,000,000) bears interest at fixed rate of 4.25% per
annum. The Group will repay the borrowing in 2024.
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34 &K (&)
()

(d)

(e)

34 BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

REISRITER  8EHR (&) (c) Long-term bank borrowings, unsecured (Continued)
M2023F12H31H + A& As at 31 December 2023, the Group's long-term bank
BENRHARTERBARE borrowing of RMB9,990,000 bears interest at fixed rate of
9,990,000t ' EHEF4.25% 4.25% per annum. The Group will repay the borrowing in
CONET R e N SE TS S 2024,
2024 FEBHERBK °
M2023F12A31H ' &% As at 31 December 2023, the Group's long-term bank
MRBRITERAARK borrowing of RMB10,000,000 bears interest at floating rate
10,000,000t * ¥ZLPRIFE 101E of LPR markdown 10 basis point. The Group will repay
EEHMFENEGE o AE RMB1,500,000 and RMB8,500,000 in 2024 and 2025,
B 151722024 4 K 2025 F 5 RllfE respectively.
BEARY1,500,000T 7 AR
8,500,0007T °
EHRITIER > BEKE (d) Short-term bank borrowings, secured
M2023F12H31H ' A& As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s short-term bank
MEBERITERARE borrowings of RMB107,142,000 were guaranteed by a bank
107,142,000 T R 1T IF 2 IR & deposit of RMB110,000,000 (Note 28(a)).
AR #110,000,0007C R (B
#£28(a)) °
EXH (e) Repayment periods
R 20234 202212 A31H - As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group’s borrowings
RNEE M EFHER AT BHEE were repayable as follows:
=
#W12B831H
As at 31 December
20234 20224
2023 2022
AR¥ T ARBTT
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
1EUR Within 1 year 265,631 197,400
1224 Between 1 and 2 years 4,000 50,800
2FE5GF Between 2 and 5 years 34,500 32,100
st Total 304,131 280,300
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EZ2023F12A31HILFE  For the year ended 31 December 2023

34 BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

(e)

Repayment periods (Continued)

The Group’s borrowings were denominated in RMB. The
weighted average effective interest rates were as follows:

BZE12A31BLEEE
Year ended 31 December

2023 F 20224
2023 2022
RITIEN Bank borrowings 4.39% 4.61%
BE=HER Loans from third parties - 1.67%
Hithi & (f) Other disclosures
(i) RAAEE (i)  Fair values
AR AE D ERIEZEF The carrying amounts for the majority of the borrowings
KB MEBRmMESEE approximated their fair values as they were carried at
NABEEBE floating interest rates.
(i) EBEEE (i)  Risk exposures
7N £ [ A 7 B) K JE R B e Details of the Group’s exposure to risks arising from
3K i T B B B B 5 1B R current and non-current borrowings are set out in Note
BMiFES.1 ° 3.1.
BEREHE (g) Loan covenants

RIRE TIRITEHEE AR
o 2K”ﬁ&$'§lﬁ’9“:f:fﬁﬂ§
AR (fERMEHRA) BB TS
ik o

EZ% MRk B - Efxfﬁm

ABERETSERERFR
&*iﬁﬁﬁ*éé%@fﬁﬁ‘ﬂ%?ﬁn
g, ©

2023 K 2022 F & F 3/ K H
WK - AEEDETHEE
ERRB M B R o

According to the respective terms of certain bank borrowing
facilities, the Company and certain subsidiaries of Group,
as the borrowers, are required to comply with the financial
covenants.

These financial covenants included, for each of the
borrower, the total liabilities must not be more than certain
percentage of the total assets at the end of each annual
and interim reporting period.

The Group had complied with all of the financial covenants
of its borrowing facilities at the end of each annual and
interim reporting period of 2023 and 2022.
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35 EIEFTEH
(a) BEFEBHAE

35 DEFERRED INCOME TAX

(a) Deferred income tax assets

A12A831H
As at 31 December
2023 F 20224F
2023 2022
AR¥T R ARET T
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
ERBIEEBRATSEZ The balance comprises temporary
TR = differences attributable to:
TEH(EE BB EE Provision for expected credit losses 35,497 15,357
R fE Provisions 3,054 1,777
FERE Impairment of inventories 132 131
HEARE Lease liabilities 7,908 7,104
EEWA Deferred income 8,110 =
RIETRIBE A ERE Total deferred tax assets 54,701 24,369
BRIETRIA B EHE Net-off with deferred tax liabilities (7,565) (7,979)
RIERIEE ERE Net deferred tax assets 47,136 16,390
(i) BEAMSHEAERSH (i) Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and
REBHELG LC B laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted
WHEEBELERESEHEE by the end of the reporting period and are expected
HIRSRIEF ST B EE to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is
GrETE g e E R X realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.
(RFE) MEETE °

TIETH IR A B A R AR
B BRRTREEAIE
BHZ SR Z RN E R
B THER

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be available
to utilise those temporary differences and losses.
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35 EAEFTSH (&) 35 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)
(a) EEFEBHEE (&) (a) Deferred income tax assets (Continued)
(iy (#&) (i) (Continued)
RIEFTS R IRB A EE Deferred income taxes are calculated in full on
FATEHN RO YRS temporary differences under the liability method using
KA AR =g the tax rates at which are expected to be applied at
EHEDYEE o BEMS the time of reversal of the temporary differences. The
MEENITAT : analysis of deferred income tax assets are as follows:
M12831H
As at 31 December
2023 F 20224
2023 2022
ARBT T AREBTFT
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
BEEMGREE : Deferred income tax assets:
~-12M&8 A& E — to be recovered after 12 months 51,373 21,109
— #1218 A AYE — to be recovered within 12 months 3,328 3,260
54,701 24,369
KRR S EENEEE The gross movements on the deferred income tax assets
B before offsetting are as follows:
BHEE
BREE BB FERE HEEE ETHA -
Provision
for expected
credit Impairment of Lease  Deferred
losses  Provisions inventories liabilities income Total
AR¥ETR AR%TR ARETR AR%Tn AR%TR ARETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000
1®2023F151A At 1 January 2023 15,357 1,777 131 7,104 - 24,369
BB &G (f3E15) Charged to profit or loss (Note 15) 20,140 1,277 1 804 8,110 30,332
12023125318 At 31 December 2023 35,497 3,054 132 7,908 8,110 54,701
®2022F151A At 1 January 2022 487 125 28 8,319 - 8,959
BEEHB /(31 \) B2 (H Charged/(credited) to profit or loss
#15) (Note 15) 14,870 1,652 103 (1,215) - 15,410
#2022F12831H At 31 December 2022 15,357 1,777 131 7,104 - 24,369
M2023F12H31H - A&H As at 31 December 2023, the Group did not recognise
WERA QB RETH B QA deferred tax assets of the Company and certain subsidiaries
EEMRFATEEEARYE in respect of their respective cumulative tax losses of
458,103,000t (2022412 A 31 RMB453,103,000 (31 December 2022: RMB231,558,000)
H : AR¥231,558,0007T) (K (Note 15) as it is not probable that future taxable profits
E15) ERARNR RE THEB A against which the losses can be utilised will be available
AR IEE E - RERER in the relevant tax jurisdiction of the Company and certain
A A R T B R e AR B E 7% 7 subsidiaries.

EEERE N KA B2 R R FE R
i A AT A DA SR & 48 o
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HZE2023F12A31AILEE

35 JEEFTISH (M)
(b) MEEFEBAM

For the year ended 31 December 2023

35 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

(b) Deferred income tax liabilities

M12A31H
As at 31 December
2023 F 20224
2023 2022
AR¥T ARETFT
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
ERPERBBRATEEZ The balance comprises temporary
TR differences attributable to:
FREEE Right-of-use assets 7,565 7,104
EHEEBERE Provision for expected credit losses - 875
BEENIA R AR Total deferred tax liabilities 7,565 7.979
HRAER TH & A R 8H Net-off of deferred tax assets (7,565) (7,979)

BREHIA S EFER

Net deferred tax liabilities - -

BIES B TIRR B EAE AT
AP 12 [0 B M 22 R A A O B
R ERIEEREEGTE o BRI
PIsHABEMATIT -

Deferred income taxes are calculated in full on temporary
differences under the liability method using the tax rates at
which are expected to be applied at the time of reversal of
the temporary differences. The analysis of deferred income
tax liabilities is as follows:

M12A318

As at 31 December
2023 20224
2023 2022
AR%TT ARETTT
RMB’ 000 RMB’000

BEEMEHRARS : Deferred income tax liabilities:

— 1218 A& Y El — to be recovered after 12 months 4,316 3,975
- 124E A ALk E — to be recovered within 12 months 3,249 4,004
7,565 7,979

HIEAIREMSHAENES A

The gross movements on the deferred income tax liabilities

BUOR ¢ before offsetting are as follows:
HES
EREEE BiERE st
Provision
Right-of-use of loss
assets allowance Total
AR® T AR®TT ARBTT
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’000
"2023F181H At 1 January 2023 7,104 875 7,979
(5t N) i B8 HIBR (Credited)/charged to
(PBF3E15) profit or loss (Note 15) 461 (875) (414)
7A2023%12H31H At 31 December 2023 7,565 - 7,565
"2022F181H At 1 January 2022 8,319 - 8,319
(5t A) Bz 8 B=kk (Credited)/charged to
(FzE15) profit or loss (Note 15) (1,215) 875 (340)
72022%F12A31H At 31 December 2022 7,104 875 7,979
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36 EZWA 36 DEFERRED INCOME
M12H31H
As at 31 December
2023 F 20224
2023 2022
AR¥T T AREFT
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
BB Government Grants
& ENRAF B (a) Asset-related grants (a) 85,937 18,636
RRF S {E (b) Reimbursement of future expenses (b) 5,814 9,311
91,751 27,947
B mENE D Less: current portion (5,156) (4,301)
ERBE S Non-current portion 86,595 23,646
(a) EEEBIRED (a) Asset-related grants

BEEHRBEMPARAEEYE
I 55 K2 stk B R W BR B # B o

(b) RIRBAZFME

TERARRFASHENR TS
4 /88 S 2 [ ¢ 2R SR B 20 B U EX

The asset-related grants were the subsidies received from

the government in relation to the Group’s property, plant and

equipment.

(b) Reimbursement of future expenses

Government grants as reimbursement of future expenses

were subsidies received in relation to the Group's future

BYAE AL © research and development activities.
37 B 37 PROVISIONS
M12A31H
As at 31 December
2023 F 20224
2023 2022
AR% T ARETT
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
IR E Non-current
EmiRiE(a) Product warranties (a) 12,834 15,018
E Current
EmiRiE(a) Product warranties (a) 8,150 2,671
ERREE (D) Legal claims (b) 559 =
8,709 2,671
21,543 17,689
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HZE2023F12A31AILEE

37 &BE (#\)

(a)

(b)

EmRE

E RN R E R IDERE B AR
BEEEmMNEFHREREEH R
- REREBTE MG BIRH
EE KRR T ARRR

o

RERE

R2023%F58 - —BEFERARD
AR RMEFARA - BH
TREE(E A R#559,0007T &
B 20237 A — | mARIEL
HiR o RBEERER EFBF
R - URBE S ARRFD
Al EAE R RAEMET o

38 {THE€mMIT A
AEEAITESBMIA  SRKEL
THIBE A TR -

For the year ended 31 December 2023

37 PROVISIONS (CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

Product warranties

Provision was made for estimated warranty claims in respect
of products sold which were still under warranty at the end
of the reporting period. These claims are normally expected
to be settled according to the terms of sales contract.

Legal claims

In May 2023, a litigation claim was initiated by a vendor
against the Company due to delay in payment of purchase
amount by the Company. The vendor demanded a
compensation of RMB559,000 which is pending the outcome
of the court judgement after the first hearing in July 2023.
Based on the legal advice, the directors make a provision
which reflects the directors’ best estimate of the most likely
outcome of the pending litigation.

38 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Group has the derivative financial instruments with the

obligation to buy back the shares of the following associate:

MW12H31H

As at 31 December
2023 F 20224
2023 2022
AR T ARKET T
RMB’ 000 RMB’000

IR E Current

—BBEE — Guohong Refire - 38,950

Z B EBENR2023F6 ARG - &

e

EE 2 E13(a)

EHRRAREEMETANAREEN
TERBRRER - F2HME3.3(b)

The financial obligation was released in June 2023. See Note
13(a) for further details.

For information about the methods and assumptions used in

determining the fair value of derivatives, please refer to Note
3.3(b).
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39 REREEHR 39 CASH FLOW INFORMATION

(a) KEFARSE (a) Cash used in operations
BZ12H31HLEE
Year ended 31 December
20234 20224
2023 2022
AR¥T R AREFT
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
R TS B Al 5 18 Loss before income tax (436,417) (293,679)
HE Adjustments for
— B (WA), /B — Finance (income)/costs — net (Note 11)
— 558 (MHeE11) (2,542) 6,791
— W%  BEEXEITE - Depreciation of property, plant and
(FfizE18) equipment (Note 18) 56,606 27,877
—TESBMIAQREE - Fair value changes of derivative
2% (ff:E8) financial instruments (Note 8) (38,950) 20,484
—EREEERE — Depreciation of right-of-use assets
(FH5E19) (Note 19) 16,605 14,427
— EAE S (i3E20) - Amortisation of intangible assets
(Note 20) 5,809 5,424
—SREENAREERN - Net impairment losses on
BIEEEFRE financial assets and contract assets
(FftsE3.1(b)) (Note 3.1(b)) 164,395 98,144
— Y% - BENMZENR - Net impairment losses on property,
BEEEFRE (f5E18) plant and equipment (Note 18) - 15,437
— FERERME (5E25) - Provisions for impairment of
inventories (Note 25) 21,210 43,307
— FE(h{EREREARA - Share of net losses of associates and
/N NG XN joint ventures accounted for
BB HEFEE (fd5E12) using the equity method (Note 12) 40,094 19,986
- REVE BERXE — Losses/(Gains) on disposal of
mER (W) property, plant and equipment
(PfFzE8) (Note 8) 13 (24)
- REGRAEEERR — Gains on disposal of right-of-use
(Ff7E8) assets (Note 8) (20) (764)
— EHZFEFE (MEs) — Net exchange difference (Note 8) (3,424) (344)
— IEAE WA (P EET) — Amortisation of deferred income
(Note 7) (11,090) (12,857)
— B2 (MI5E31) — Share — based payment (Note 31) 82,887 54,316
— AAREEAIEZMN - Net fair value gains on financial
TRIEENANEE assets at fair value through profit
Was 558 (fiEEs) or loss (Note 8) (2,245) =
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HZE2023F12A31AILEE

39 REREEH (F)
(a) REFARE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023

39 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(a) Cash used in operations (Continued)

BZ12A31BLLEE
Year ended 31 December

2023F 20224
2023 2022
AR¥T AREFT
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
EEECEBAINLE Operating cash flows before movements
WEME - in working capital: (107,069) (1,475)
EEESE Changes in working capital:
— B — Provisions 3,854 3,660
—aRakE — Contract liabilities (3,036) 915
— B S ENRIERER — Trade and bills payables, other
i HibER payables and accruals
AN fERTE B 306,306 416,354
—cREE - Contract assets (15,655) (26,309)
— B A — Deferred income 4,477 10,587
— B S EWGRIE R EK — Trade and bills receivables, other
& - HibEWIE receivables and prepayments
SEENEC] (517,896) (640,248)
- =EF8 — Inventories 76,728 (34,520)
RETEARS Cash used in operating activities (252,291) (271,036)
(b) EEYXE - BERREMERE (b) Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and
equipment
BZ12A31HLEE
Year ended 31 December
2023F 20224
2023 2022
AR¥T R AREFT
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
BREF(E (MIFE18) Net book value (Note 18) 72 224
BREME  BERZREDN Losses on disposal of property,
&8 (FfizEs) plant and equipment (Note 8) (13) 24
BB FIHMS A Proceeds from the disposal 59 248
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(c)
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HZE2023F12A31AILEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023

39 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

REETHELENEERD (c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing
activities
®E
F=H
BITEX MEM HESE EFIE @zt
Loans
Bank  from third Lease Interest
borrowings parties liabilities payables Total
ARBTR AR®TR AR%Tn ARETr AR®Txn
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
H2022F1A1HI Total debt as at 1 January
BERARE 2022 335,000 198,800 44,632 284 578,716
Reng Cash flows
—RBEBRA ~ Inflow from financing
activities 195,300 - - - 195,300
—REEER — Qutflows from financing
activities (300,000) (148,800 (7,604) (14777)  (471,181)
FRe# Non-cash changes
—HEaEEM — Addition of lease liabilities - - 13,889 = 13,889
— Ear R ERE — Accrued interest expenses - - 2,080 15,031 17,111
— RRAIARIE — Early termination - - (8,698) - (8,698)
#2022%12831HK Total debt as at
2023F1A18MH 31 December 2022
i §.7:L and 1 January 2023 230,300 50,000 44,299 538 325,137
RemE Cash flows
—REEBRA — Inflow from financing
activities 339,000 - - - 339,000
— REEER ~ Outflows from financing
activities (265,169)  (50,000) (8,480)  (14,670) (338,319
R EE) Non-cash changes
—HEAEEM — Addition of lease liabilities - - 29,638 - 29,638
— EEFERS — Accrued interest expenses - - 954 14,561 15,515
-REMEAE - Disposal of lease liabilities - - (79) - (79)
202312831 AK  Total debt as at
BERAE 31 December 2023 304,131 - 66,332 429 370,892
FRESEHREHEAELM Non-cash changes included addition of lease liabilities,

FEAT M BRI - ABITAR AR
PR EE - BER R
Kbepl iR EHE 28k -

accrued interest expenses, settlement through issuance of

shares of the Company, offset with bills receivables and

early termination of lease arrangements.
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H20234F K 2022912 A31 HHE KA
BRI AEDNT

40 COMMITMENTS

Significant capital expenditure commitments as at 31 December
2023 and 2022 were analysed as below:

M12A31H
As at 31 December
2023%F 20224
2023 2022
ARETR ARETFT
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
BRI ERERBAE Contracted but not recognised as
liabilities
— BB - BB RERE — Acquisition of property, plant and
equipment 109,614 252,154

M BBERS

BAR T AR R T - KEES S
—ARAHEEMNERTENNZ
77 FSER & 7 i 1S R 2 B 3
A B ik O SR o B R EHR R A
THENZEREEDRSENR
7y o IR B RE A 1280 % 77 TR
WAR A RAEE DT © BEEEDD AT AR B A
HiERE -

41 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related parties are those parties that have the ability to control,
jointly control or exert significant influence over the other party
in holding power over the investee; exposure, or rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and the
ability to use its power over the investee to affect the amount of
the investor’s returns. Parties are also considered to be related
if they are subject to common control or joint control. Related
parties may be individuals or other entities.
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M BBAEXRS (&) 41 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(CONTINUED)

(a) FEEESHMERER (a) Name and relationship with related parties

Name of related

)b Tt parties oS Relationship

BlsEE Guohong Refire N5 B w N A Associate of the Group

SRR Yunfu Jinhong REBH) B L A R Associate of the Group

SYEBMAR Yikongtong 202249 AR AZAS%E  Joint venture of the Group until

Aerospace V& &R September 2022
ERTER Yunfu Industrial Park ~ ARNEEEZ/E Major shareholder of the Group
Ballard Power Ballard Power AEE—HE WJ;""ﬂE’U Parent company of non-controlling
Systems Inc. * Systems Inc.* IR RO E A shareholder of a subsidiary of
the Group

BRAELE Mr. Ma Dongsheng 20224 1 A BHER Director of the Company who
ZAN/NE] -3 resigned in January 2022

BEELE Mr. Yang Zeyun VNN = Director of the Company

ERE SR & Mr. Hu Muzhou iN/NC] o Supervisor of the Company

BR % A& Mr. Chen RARESZR Chairman of Board of Directors,
HITEERRR Executive Director and

Shareholder of the Company

* MR2023FE6 H28H * KA A
SERK T #€Ballard Hong Kong
Limited (E3Ballard Power
Systems Inc.2&ZER) BE

ERESEDRNES

B HBER

ARI0%H) Mk - B itkBallard
Power Systems Inc. NE A

S EHRIHE T

AT AREEEEBETREE
20234 }2022F 12 A31 H IEF
EEBEXEGREREPETHNEKN
RHME  UEREZEEBRER
HHAREEE 5 R HELEMEERR ©

* On 28 June 2023, the Company completed the purchase of

10% equity interest in Guangdong Synergy Ballard Hydrogen
Power Co. Ltd. from Ballard Hong Kong Limited, which was

wholly controlled by Ballard Power Systems Inc. Since then,

Ballard Power Systems Inc. was no longer a related party to

the Group.

The following is a summary of the significant transactions

carried out between the Group and its related parties in

the ordinary course of business during the years ended 31

December 2023 and 2022, and balances arising from related

party transactions as at the respective balance sheet dates.
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M BABAERS (&) 41 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(b) BEEBTNXS

NEBREE 20234 K 20224
124318 I-FZ BRI A A

(CONTINUED)

(b) Transactions with related parties

The Group had the following transactions with related

parties during the years ended 31 December 2023 and

TRE 2022:
BZ12831ALEE
Years ended 31 December
2023 % 20224
2023 2022
ARET T ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
(i) BEERRERH (i)  Purchases of goods and services
Ballard Power Systems Inc. Ballard Power Systems Inc. 10,408 10,114
(i) BEWFE  BER&E (i) Purchase of property, plant and
equipment
H5EE Guohong Refire - 2,212
(i) RE—LEBEHHHAELKA (i)  Sub - lease rental income from a
related party
H5E%2 Guohong Refire - 1,334
(iv) REBAZAEEHAS (iv)  Rental expense paid to a related party
EFTXE Yunfu Industrial Park 46 116
(v) ERTHEERFAENEMHA (v)  Interest income from on loan to a
related party
SERMA Yikongtong Aerospace - 107
(vi) B—REET T AMBR (vi)  Advances paid by a related party
EZTXE Yunfu Industrial Park 264 147
(vii) EXTHE A (vii)  Loans to related parties
B4 Mr. Chen 400 -
AR & Mr. Hu Muzhou 105 100
505 100
(viii) BBt H BB ER (viii) Repayments of loans from related
parties
BREE Mr. Chen 400 -
SERMAR Yikongtong Aerospace - 5,000
BEEEE Mr. Yang Zeyun = -
AL E Mr. Hu Muzhou 105 100
BRELE Mr. Ma Dongsheng 12 -
517 5,100
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(c)

TREEASTMH
IREBABFHEEASEE
= ATERERT)  BEERER
ERE - BiEERBE MK
FRERABNFMIIRMOT

HZE2023F12A31AILEE

mEMBmRME
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2023

41 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

(c)

Key management compensation

Key management compensation includes directors
(executive and non-executive), supervisors and senior
management of the Group. The compensation paid or
payable to key management for employee services is shown
below:

HZ12A831BLEE
Year ended 31 December

2023F 20224
2023 2022
AR¥T R ARETFTT
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
e TERIEL Salaries, wages and bonuses 7,481 7,364

BEEKAE — AEHZETE Pension costs-defined contribution
plans 223 59

FEAES BERRK Housing fund, medical insurance

Hibi 2R and other social insurance 249 166
B& 15 Fr i sz Share-based compensation expense 46,555 5,040
54,508 12,629

EXABEBRAES TEREL
BIEIRIR A A AR ST B R 0T
4T AR#554,0007T (20224 :
AR¥534,00070) @ ZER
B IR 18 R 32 ASF A 5 A EL il FE A5F 3R
B - MEZEEABREHKRN
SMHNRBIEAESEENE
PR I ZIRBIARZE « B2 BN
31¢

The Salaries, wages and bonuses disclosed above include
RMB554,000 (2022: RMB534,000) of bonuses payable
under a short-term incentive scheme which were unpaid as
at year end and are included in other payables. The share-
based payments provided to key management personnel
consist of options and restricted stocks which are both
equity-settled, see Note 31.
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(d) EERAMETT B9 &SRR

(#&) 41 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)
(d) Balances with related parties
M12A31H
As at 31 December
2023F 20224
2023 2022
ARETR AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(iy EfbpEdom (i)  Other receivables
BlIRE Guohong Refire - 9,790
ERERE Mr. Ma Dongsheng - 12
- 9,802
o BREEEEAE Less: allowance for expected
(Fi7£3.1(b)) credit losses (Note 3.1(b)) - (9,790)
- 12
(i) TEAFIR (i)  Prepayment
Ballard Power Systems Inc. Ballard Power Systems Inc. - 3,850
(i) BHERFE (i) Trade payables
Ballard Power
Systems Inc. Ballard Power Systems Inc. - 946
(iv) HbERFIERETER (iv)  Other payables and accruals
EREE Guohong Refire - 1,250
TFRE Yunfu Jinhong* 8,250 9,000
EFTEE Yunfu Industrial Park 97 110
8,347 10,360
* 1B E T 8B A /E A * According to the articles of association of Yunfu

ER2MA - RARA
M20194 4 A30H 7
TNRBELEBEARKE
9,000,0007T » A
AENMFE  BHER
BaBEEM - AAFR
2023F9RFEARY
750,0007C ©

B E2023%F 20224 12
A318 ' Ef RN 5 58
AERE RERARE

k&

IR ©

Jinhong, the Company shall pay the subscribed capital
contribution of RMB9,000,000 before 30 April 2019. As
the payment has not been made, the relevant liability
obligations were recognised. The Company made capital
injection of RMB 750,000 in September 2023.

As of 31 December 2023 and 2022, the amounts due
to related parties were unsecured, non-interest bearing
and repayable on demand.
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Bx
(a) FATHHMRRE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EZ2023F12A31HILFE  For the year ended 31 December 2023

42 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

(a) Statement of financial position of the Company

M12A318
As at 31 December

2023F 20224
2023 2022
AR¥T R ARETFTT
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
BE Assets
ERENEE Non-current assets
M - BRERZE Property, plant and equipment 128,429 149,630
EREEE Right-of-use assets 20,181 15,210
EmREAE Intangible assets 15,798 10,403
AEREE Contract assets 18,736 18,342
DARE R A BRAVIR A Investments accounted for using
the equity method 38,626 8,626
KRB RRINIEE Investment in subsidiaries 952,774 866,426
HMIEme&EE Other non-current assets 14,435 15,949
LAREBEFABZNERMEE  Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss 113,999 -
AARBEFAREMEAENEZERN  Financial assets at fair value
TRVEE through other comprehensive
income 88,636 88,636
B 5 EGRIE R R E R Trade and bills receivables - 16,162
FRBEELE Total non-current assets 1,391,614 1,189,384
REBEE Current assets
& Inventories 181,179 158,360
H 5 e GRIE & e = iR Trade and bills receivables 1,892,280 1,408,040
H fth & W R I8 R B 3R IE Other receivables and prepayments 557,318 347,875
LA AREEF ABREREY Financial assets at fair value
PRVEE through profit or loss 796,946 =
DARBEFAREMEEYZRN  Financial assets at fair value through
TREE other comprehensive income 6,534 800
R HIIRE Restricted cash 175,413 =
HeRBESEEY Cash and cash equivalents 521,269 633,910
RBEEHAE Total current assets 4,130,939 2,548,985
EEHAE Total assets 5,522,553 3,738,369
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Bk (18) RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
(CONTINUED)
(a) ARQBHBMRRE (E) (a) Statement of financial position of the Company
(Continued)
M12A831H
As at 31 December
2023%F 20224
2023 2022
AR¥T T ARET T
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
Em Equity
f& s Share capital 518,042 438,522
&5 i@ E Share premium 3,665,682 2,300,891
H bt Other reserves 46,324 61,818
EFRDEE Treasury shares reserve - (54,000)
25 &R Accumulated losses (289,649) (211,706)
S Total equity 3,940,399 2,535,525
a8fE Liabilities
kRBEE Non-current liabilities
ERN Borrowings = 7,800
HEEaE Lease liabilities 10,456 5,787
EIEW A Deferred income 13,163 13,174
BiE Provisions 1,141 3,289
ERBEEEE Total non-current liabilities 24,760 30,050

42 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
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EZ2023F12A31HILFE  For the year ended 31 December 2023

42 QT BIIRR R R AR 42 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND

B3R (&) RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
(CONTINUED)
(a) AAFBBARRE(Z) (a) Statement of financial position of the Company
(Continued)
M12831H
As at 31 December
2023 % 20224
2023 2022
AR%T ARETTT
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
REAE Current liabilities
2 2 ER I8 Trade payables 1,024,882 714,604
H A RIE R EE A Other payables and accruals 249,557 236,098
& Borrowings 254,131 130,400
aRBE Contract liabilities 21,765 24,888
HEEaE Lease liabilities 2,746 2,039
TESmIA Derivative financial instruments - 58,478
EEWA Deferred income 3,616 3,616
B Provisions 697 2,671
HREEEAE Total current liabilities 1,557,394 1,172,794
EEH8E Total liabilities 1,582,154 1,202,844
BERkAEHESE Total equity and liabilities 5,522,553 3,738,369
RARMBIRAREAR DR ES The statement of financial position of the Company was approved
2R2024F3 426 B LA - I by the Board of Directors of the Company on 26 March 2024 and
ATIATRAEZEE - was signed on its behalf by:
PR B2 % BEE
£ EE
Director Director
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HZE2023F12A31AILEE

42 KRB BEMRRERRBES

B (&)

(b) ADFHEED

For the year ended 31 December 2023

42 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND

RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
(CONTINUED)

(b) Reserve movements of the Company

Hit %%
Other reserves
R 43
XA

EERE ERERORE

B8R

Share-based Treasury
payment Statutory shares Accumulated
reserve reserves reserve losses
ARETR AR%TRT ARBTr AR®TxR
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB’ 000
M202251H1H As at 1 January 2022 664,332 6,888 (54,000) (878,487)
2EEE Comprehensive loss
FREE Loss for the year - - = (657,090)
2EHERAR Total comprehensive loss - - = (657,090)
HERANRS Transactions with owners
Kl BRHEBRAF Conversion into a joint stock
company (656,830) (6,888) - 1,323,871
A A+ Share-based payment 54,316 - - =
HEBANR 5B Total transactions with owners (602,514) (6,888) 1,323,871
7202212831 As at 31 December 2022 61,818 - (54,0000  (211,706)
202351518 As at 1 January 2023 61,818 - (54,0000  (211,706)
2HEBE Comprehensive loss
FREHE Loss for the year - - - (77,943)
2EERAR Total comprehensive loss - - - (77,943)
BREBANRS Transactions with owners
BAZ AT Share-based payment 82,887 - - -
HRRERES 2 Vesting of shares granted
BRI (R under Share Incentive Scheme (98,381) - 54,000 -
HERANRZEE Total transactions with owners (15,494) - 54,000 -
2023512831 H As at 31 December 2023 46,324 - - (289,649)
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EZ2023F12A31HILFE  For the year ended 31 December 2023

43 EEEN R ER 43 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(a) ESBREZEMHS (a) Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments

B E2023F &2022% 12 A 31 The remuneration of each director/supervisor of the
BIEFE  AXEEBBEN ER Company paid/payable by the Group (including emoluments
RARSES ESHEH (2 for services as employees of the Group entities prior to
BERKAEAARES EEA becoming the directors/supervisors of the Company) for the
EREEEEE B RHRBH B years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022 was as follows:
&) FHANWT :

BAOBR  REdAE
e ¢ 1% BEEL  REMER Btz Rit%fd it
Welfare, ~ Employer's

medical  contribution Share -
Salaries,  Discretionary and other to pension based
3.5 Name of Directors Fees wages honuses expenses scheme payment Total

ARETR  ARWTR AERTR  AR®TR  ARBTR  ARWTR  ARETR
RMB' 000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’ 000 RMB'000 RMB'’000 RMB’ 000

HZ2023%12831A Year ended 31 December

l2:3:5 2023

g2 Directors

REA() Mr. Chen (i) - - - - - 19,509 19,509

ﬁ%ﬂ%(n) M. Yang Zeyun (i) - 759 199 Y 38 6,768 7,806
BRI Mr. Ye Jiaje (ii) - 457 83 2% 2% 1,060 1,651

R () Mir. Zhan Zhaniin (iv) - = > - - - -

ERTA() Mir. Huang Jiao (ii = = - - - - -

EFET(x) Dr. Wan Yu (x) - = > o - - -

Sl () Mr. Liu Xin (ix) 13 - - = = - 13

TREL () Dr. Xing Wei (ix) 13 - = = = - 13

EELL (i) Ms. Wong Yan Ki, Angel (ix) 13 - = = - - 13

3 1,216 282 67 64 21,337 29,005

BE023%12831A Year ended 31 December

LEE 2023
CEfESERES Directors and Supervisors
who resigned
FRERE(v) Ms. Xiong Jin (v) - = = = - - -
SREFE() Mr. Ma Dongsheng (vi) - = S = - - -
BB () Mr. Tang Zheng (xi) = = > = - - -
FFFRL(vii) Ms. Zhang Yuyu (vii) - = 5 - - - -
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EHZE2023F12A31HILFE  For the year ended 31 December 2023

43 EEFANRER (E) 43 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)
(a) EBSKES=M< (&) (a) Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments (Continued)

BAOBR RS
e #e I¥ BERA  REMEX B RERH it
Welfare, ~ Employer's

medical  contribution Share -
Salaries, Discretionary  and other  to pension based
3.5 Name of Directors Fees wages bonuses  expenses scheme  payment Total

ARRTR  ARBTR  ARETR  ARRTZ ARBTR ARWTR ARRTR
RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

HE2023F12831ALEE  Year ended 31 December 2023

gz Supervisors
BB (vil Ms. Lin Minting (vil - = > = - - -
FIRET A (vi) Mr. Hu Muzhou (vi) - 172 2% 14 15 10 3%
BAR % (vil M. Liao Han (vii) = = = - - - -
- 172 25 14 15 110 336
H2202F12831ALLFE  Year ended 31 December 2022
3 Directors
REA() Mr. Chen (i) = - - - ; _ i
%*ié(ll) Mr. Yang Zeyun (i - 654 17 17 11 3,096 3,795
B i Mr. Ye Jiae (i) - 460 3 % 7 960 1,491
EM%C{(W) Mr. Zhan Zhaniin (iv) - = - . - . -
BRITAE(i) Mr. Huang Jiao (ii - = - - - - -
EFEL() Dr. Wan Yu (x) = = - - - - -
TREL () Dr. Xing Wei (ix) = = - - - - _
EERL (i) Ms. Wong Yan Ki, Angel (ix) = . - - - - ,
- 1,114 5 43 18 4,056 5,286
H220251283181LEE  Year ended 31 December 2022
CRESERES Directors and Supervisor
who resigned
R L(v) Ms. Xiong Jin (v) = - - - - _ -
BREFEM) Mr. Ma Dongsheng (vi) - = - . - . i
BB () Mr. Tang Zheng (xi) = = - - - - _
FFFRL(vil) Ms. Zhang Yuyu (vii) = - - - . _ ,
BE2020512831ALEE  Year ended 31 December 2022 - = - - - - _
Bz Supervisors
TGS L (vil Ms. Lin Minting (vil = = - - - _ _
RS (vi) Mr. Hu Muzhou (vi) - 179 14 11 7 249 460
BR K (vi) M. Liao Han (i) - = - . . i i
- 179 14 11 7 249 460

294 o SINO-SYNERGY HYDROGEN ENERGY TECHNOLOGY (JIAXING) CO., LTD. Annual Report 2023



43 EEENRER (&)

(a)

ESREEME (F)

M E

(i)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(i)

BREAENR2015F6 AEZ TR
RRRESE - RN2021F12 A
BRI AREEER - HR20224
10 AATEBARNRANITES °

52T kA RER K AR 2022
FI1ABZARARAIEEE
R2022F 10 AH RlFAFE AR
RAMITESRIERITES °

ERERER2020F4 AEEL
FAARRBIESEHRN20224F
10 AEBARARNITES -

R AR 202048 RS
TARARIEEAN2022F10
ARATARARIFERITES -

AR T 12020 F8 A EE
RARBMITES - 120225
1 ABHE °

ERAELER2022F1H26H
BHT o

ME B+ - HARE S E R
BEEEDRINR2020568A
202043 A K& 202243 AL
ERBARBES -

RFEFLEHR2020F 12 A%
ZEANATIESE - WH2022
FIAFHE -

&S+ R =R L L7 2022
F10 AEZE AR A BB
HITEE - ZIF AR 20234F
SAEZTAARRRBILIEH
TEE -
EFHLTR2022F 108 EZ
ERARRIEATES °

BRACENR202068 AEZR (T
BARRESE  R2022F8AH
BEARFES -

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EZ2023F12A31HILFE  For the year ended 31 December 2023

43 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)

(a) Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments (Continued)

Notes

(i Mr. Chen was appointed as a director of the Company in
June 2015, was appointed as the chairman of the Board
in December 2021, and was redesignated as an executive
director of the Company in October 2022.

(i) Mr. Yang Zeyun and Mr. Huang Jiao were appointed as
directors of the Company in January 2022, and were
redesignated as an executive director and a non-executive
director of the Company in October 2022, respectively.

(iii)  Mr. Ye Jiajie was appointed as a director of the Company in
April 2020, and was redesignated as an executive director of
the Company in October 2022.

(iv)  Mr. Zhan Zhanlin was appointed as a director of the Company
in August 2020, and was redesignated as a non-executive
director of the Company in October 2022.

(v) Ms. Xiong Jin was appointed as an executive director of the
Company in August 2020 and resigned in January 2022.

(vi) Mr. Ma Dongsheng resigned on 26 January 2022.

(vii)  Ms. Lin Minting, Mr. Hu Muzhou and Mr. Liao Han were
appointed as supervisors of the Company in August 2020,
March 2020, and March 2022, respectively.

(viii) Ms. Zhang Yuyu was appointed as a supervisor of the
Company in December 2020 and resigned in March 2022.

(ix) Dr. Xing Wei and Ms. Wong Yan Ki, Angel were appointed
as the Company’s independent non-executive directors in
October 2022. Mr. Liu Xin was appointed as the Company’s
independent non-executive director in March 2023.

(x) Dr. Wan Yu was appointed as a non-executive director of the
Company in October 2022.
(xi)  Mr. Tang Zheng was appointed as a director of the Company

in August 2020, and resigned as a director of the Company in
August 2022.
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EHZE2023F12A31HILFE  For the year ended 31 December 2023

43 EEENRER (&)

(b) EHRIKEF

HZE 20234 2022512 A31 1
LEFE - BRTREPEAERK
AR 7 T ERAT B 1 RIEE
RERFRIKRGT BRI - E
ERAR KB BN RIRETF

(c) E=BRERN

HZE2023F K% 2022912H31H
IEEE  BEEESEL )
PR BB AR o

(d) BRHUHESBEBERE=GFRHEN
HE

H ZE2023%F 2022412 H31H
IHFE  MEE=AniEREES
R 7% T 215 Sk R UL 23 4E -

(e) EFRANEZERAZIZANER %
ERREMGRZNER
BROIGEE41(D)FTEBEESN - B E
20234 [ 2022F 12 A31 B IEF
B AEBEEEWEAE
ERAXBnANER EERERHE
5 °

(f) EBERRZ  ZEISHZEK
e

REKRKE E20234F K 20224F
12A31 AL FEEMER - &K
NGILAE R RV RN Y Sl
BARRAAIESNEREESEE
BEEAEZNEARS « &5
REH -

44 HAEE

R2023F 2022612 A31 8 - fr#z
BMBHRAANERBERRME (M
FE37) 5 AEEBEAMERNLR
=l

43

44

BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Directors’ retirement benefits

During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022,
there were no additional retirement benefits received by
the directors except for the contribution to the defined
contribution retirement scheme administered and operated
by the local municipal government in accordance with the
rules and regulations in the PRC.

(c) Directors’ termination benefits

There were no termination benefits paid to or receivable by
any director during the years ended 31 December 2023 and
2022.

(d) Consideration provided to third parties for making
available Directors’ services

During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, no
consideration was provided to or receivable by third parties
for making available director’s services.

(e) Information about loans, quasi-loans and other dealings
in favour of Directors

Other than those disclosed in Note 41(b), there were no
loans, quasi-loans and other dealings entered into between
the Group and the directors and in favour of the directors
during the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

(f) Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

There were no significant transactions, arrangements and
contracts in relation to the Group’s business to which
the Company was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

CONTINGENCIES

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, save as disclosed in the
Consolidated Financial Statements in respect of legal claims
(Note 37), the Group did not have other significant contingencies.
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EZ2023F12A31HILFE  For the year ended 31 December 2023

45 HiZ=EI18 45 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
BRABREEMBOAEEEIN R Other than disclosed elsewhere in this report, there was no
202312 A31 AR REEAREH significant subsequent event after 31 December 2023 and up to
HptmE NEIEEIE - the date of this report.

46 HW B EE XS T REHRE 46 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

46.1 GO RERETREA 46.1 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting
(i) HELRE (i) Subsidiaries

MEAREAREESZ
BN A EE - fWAE
ER2EEBZEMES
&ﬁ%?ﬁﬁT“@%'
BEERENBBREHERTE
PrrIERyEZEOR
B AR EZEHZE
B o B AR BEEE
BEAKEEREZEA
BFARR TR I AR LE
ZAREESHAR -

B2k RIE ST 8 ¥ A O
Sh - AEEHAKBE S
EHEBAHAR (2B
££46.2) o

SERARRHERS - &
REBRRAHERZZHRE
U TALHE - RER
BRI T LAY BRIER
SEBBERNTEREE
HIRBE - B RARNE
ARRERFTEMELE
A] 0 DARE R B 7K £ B AT R
ARV BR — 2 »

MR R MRS XA R
a8 A SEE AR M 21 0 Bl R
REBRRX Ke2ER
mi - BAEREPHRRK
REMBRARTERS
5l o

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has
control. The Group controls an entity where the Group
is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power to direct the activities
of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from
the date on which control is transferred to the Group.
They are deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for business combinations by the Group
except for business combination under common
control (refer to Note 46.2).

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between Group companies
are eliminated. Unrealized losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of
subsidiaries are shown separately in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, consolidated statement
of changes in equity and consolidated statement of
financial positions respectively.
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HZE2023F12A31AILEE

Ht B EERE T BREE

(%)

46.1 GOt REZ SRR (£)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

SN AR A AR E Y
ﬁi FE B
%Q%A THMEEE - B
BB AE20%E50%1%
ERMRE - REBZER

7%&§W VA B 7
R 1% DARE =05 ABR (BT 5
46.1(iv)) °

EELE
Eé“?%%&ﬁ“*ﬁ
AEEERAELE
FTEHEREENE 7%ﬂ
REBmME - AEEEGT

HEAELHNME I
BEEBRELE - XA
EEERNEDVIRIAK
ARG BB R P
ERE - AEEER (M
46.1(iv)) ABK ©

V-

BREZET  REWMR
AR AN FERR - B & (EH
B UREBEEFERNE
EREGEREHROKER

MBS EE - AR HEAD
2P ERANEERE

EHREHROEM2ER
mEE) o Bk EIE S
ARAIREERENRETS
ERRIERAEZRD o

For the year ended 31 December 2023

46 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

46.1 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting
(Continued)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group
has significant influence but not control or joint
control. This is generally the case where the Group
holds between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investments in associates are accounted for using
the equity method of accounting (Note 46.1(iv)), after

initially being recognised at cost.

Joint ventures

Investments in joint arrangements are classified as
either joint operations or joint ventures depending
on the contractual rights and obligations of each
investor. The Group has assessed the nature of its
joint arrangements and determined them to be joint
ventures. Interests in joint ventures are accounted for
using the equity method (Note 46.1(iv)), after initially
being recognised at cost in the consolidated statement

of financial position.

Equity method

Under the equity method of accounting, the
investments are initially recognised at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of
the post-acquisition profits or losses of the investee
in profit or loss, and the Group’s share of movements
in other comprehensive income of the investee in
other comprehensive income. Dividends received
or receivable from associates and joint ventures are
recognised as a reduction in the carrying amount of
the investment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HZE2023F12A31AILEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023

46 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

46.1 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting
(Continued)

(iv) Equity method (Continued)

v)

Where the Group’s share of losses in an equity-
accounted investment equals or exceeds its interest
in the entity, including any other unsecured long-term
receivables, the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made

payments on behalf of the other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its associates and joint ventures are eliminated
to the extent of the Group’s interest in these entities.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of
the asset transferred. Accounting policies of equity
— accounted investees have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted investments
is tested for impairment in accordance with the policy
described in Note 46.8.

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries without
change of control

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling
interests that do not result in a loss of control as
transactions with equity owners of the Group. A
change in ownership interest results in an adjustment
between the carrying amounts of the controlling
and non-controlling interests to reflect their relative
interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between the
amount of the adjustment to non-controlling interests
and any consideration paid or received is recognised
in a separate reserve within equity attributable to
owners of the Company.
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46 HtBEE RS BERHE 46 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY

(4&) MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
46.2 EB 50 46.2 Business combinations
EReSWEER TASAHE The acquisition method of accounting is used to account
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for all business combinations, regardless of whether equity
instruments or other assets are acquired. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the:

- fair values of the assets transferred

- liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquired

business

- equity interests issued by the Group

- fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement, and

- fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the
subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are, with
limited exceptions, measured initially at their fair values
at the acquisition date. The Group recognises any non-
controlling interest in the acquired entity on an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interest’s proportionate share of the acquired
entity’s net identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The excess of the consideration transferred, amount of
any non-controlling interest in the acquired entity, and
acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in
the acquired entity over the fair value of the net identifiable
assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If those amounts
are less than the fair value of the net identifiable assets of
the business acquired, the difference is recognised directly
in profit or loss as a bargain purchase.
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46 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

46.2 Business combinations (Continued)

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is
deferred, the amounts payable in the future are discounted
to their present value as at the date of exchange. The
discount rate used is the entity’'s incremental borrowing
rate, being the rate at which a similar borrowing could be
obtained from an independent financier under comparable
terms and conditions. Contingent consideration is classified
either as equity or a financial liability. Amounts classified
as a financial liability are subsequently remeasured to fair
value, with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously
held equity interest in the acquire is remeasured to fair
value at the acquisition date. Any gains or losses arising
from such remeasurement are recognised in profit or loss.

46.3 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable. Investments in joint ventures and associates
are initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter for
the post-acquisition change in the investor’'s share of the
investee’s net assets. The investor’s profit or loss includes
its share of the investee’s profit or loss and the investor’s
other comprehensive income includes its share of the
investee’'s other comprehensive income.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving dividend from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of
the investment in the period the dividend is declared or if
the carry amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial information of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.
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46 HtBEE RS BERHE 46 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY

(4&) MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
46.4 7 WHRE 46.4 Segment reporting
Ky E ) 2T A E A E B Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
ERREEEANT 2RO FRXE with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
B—3 - decision maker.
ARBEFSDLEBBARE The board of the Company has appointed a strategic
Bg  HARFEASEUKE steering committee which assesses the financial
48 R AR 1 S B RS 1R SR o R performance and position of the Group and makes strategic
REBEEHREARAZELER decisions. The steering committee, which has been
RE - BTTBEH  aRUBE identified as being the chief operating decision maker,
R ZEAR B TRAERK © consists of the chief executive officer, the chief financial

officer and the manager for corporate planning.

46.5 B E 46.5 Foreign currency translation
() HEERZZIEH (i) Functional and presentation currency
RNEEEEEOMB®EK Items included in the financial statements of each of
Fr3|IE B AZ BB K the Group’s entities are measured using the currency
FENEELERRENE of the primary economic environment in which the
A2 ([Thee g ]) - # entity operates (“the functional currency”). Since the
EREE XN D & E R majority of the assets and operations of the Group
SRR - ZERE R are located in the PRC, the consolidated financial
BHRERAARKZS - A statements are presented in RMB, which is the
REARNRG N EEE Company’s functional and the Group’s presentation
EAREEHNZSEE - currency.
(i) XZRAEE (i) Transactions and balances

INBERZ FIRR 5 A R E X Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
BmEREER. - FAbiZ functional currency using the exchange rates at the
E R 5 04 E DA KA BASN dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains
BAERUHWNEBEERS and losses resulting from the settlement of such
BRFRERETREM transactions and from the translation of monetary
EAEME N W R EE— assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
BREBERPER - B%%F at year end exchange rates are generally recognised
R WEREREESER in profit or loss. They are deferred in equity if they
ReREeHAPREERF relate to qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying
REHHBHAIEBERE net investment hedges or are attributable to part of the
INETEFIRE —F 5 - Al net investment in a foreign operation.

A IRAE ©
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46 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

46.5 Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(i)  Transactions and balances (Continued)

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate
to borrowings are presented in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, within finance costs. All
other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on a net
basis within other gains/(losses).

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in
a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value was determined.
Translation differences on assets and liabilities carried
at fair value are reported as part of the fair value gain
or loss. For example, translation differences on non-
monetary assets and liabilities such as equities held
at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
in profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss
and translation differences on non-monetary assets
such as equities classified as fair value through
other comprehensive income are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

46.6 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost
less depreciation and accumulated impairment.

Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.
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HibBEERSHBRREE 46 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY

(4&) MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
46.6 Y% - BEKRZE (&) 46.6 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
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Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of any component accounted for as a separate
asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss during the periods in which they are incurred.

The depreciation methods and periods used by the Group
are disclosed in Note 18(c).

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 46.8).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Construction in progress (the “CIP”) mainly represents
buildings, machinery, furniture, fittings and equipment
under construction and is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Cost includes the costs of
construction and acquisition and capitalised borrowing
costs. No provision for depreciation is made on CIP until
such time as the relevant assets are completed and ready
for intended use. When the assets concerned are available
for use, the cost are transferred to relevant categories
of property, plant and equipment and depreciated in
accordance with the policy as stated above.
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46 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

46.7 Intangible assets
Software, Patents and Licences

Acquired software, patents and licences are initially
capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and
bring to use the specific software, patents and licences.
Costs associated with maintaining computer software
programmes are recognised as an expense as incurred.
Software, patents and licences are stated at historical cost
less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses, if
any.

Amortisation are calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate the cost over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Software 10 years
Patents 10 years
Licences 10 years

The length of useful life of an intangible asset is determined
in accordance to the shortest of period among the three,
the period during which such assets is expected to bring
economic benefits to the Group, the beneficial life specified
in the contract and the legal life for software, patents and
licences laws and regulations of the PRC.

The amortisation period and amortisation method of
intangible assets are reviewed at each reporting period.
The effects of any revision are recognised as profit or loss
when the changes arise.
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46 HMBEEEREHBREE

46 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY

(&) MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

46.7 B EE (&)

46.7 Intangible assets (Continued)
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Research and development

The Group incurs significant costs and efforts on research
and development activities, which include expenditures on
hydrogen fuel cell stacks and hydrogen fuel cell system
technology. Research expenditures are charged to the
profit or loss as an expense in the period the expenditures
are incurred. Development costs are recognised as assets
if they can be directly attributable to a newly developed
hydrogen fuel cell stacks and hydrogen fuel cell system
products and all the following can be demonstrated (if
applicable):

- it is technically feasible to complete the intangible
assets so that it will be available for use;

- management intends to complete the intangible assets
and use or sell it;

- there is an ability to use or sell the intangible assets;

- it can be demonstrated how the intangible assets will
generate probable future economic benefits;

- adequate technical, financial and other resources
to complete the development and to use or sell the
intangible assets are available, and

- the expenditure attributable to the intangible assets
during its development can be reliably measured.

Research expenditures and development expenditures that
do not meet these criteria are recognised as an expense as
incurred. Development costs previously recognized as an
expense are not recognized as an asset in a subsequent
period. No development costs met these criteria and
therefore, were capitalised as intangible assets during the
years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.
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46 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

46.8 Impairment of non-financial assets

46 flgﬂ%)’é&ik%%‘fﬁ%ﬁ%
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Assets that are subject to amortisation or depreciation
are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised in profit
or loss for the amount by which the carrying amount of an
R AIREEEREEANE asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
BEREEXARFERAEEZRS amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of
& o disposal and value in use.
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For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of
the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cash
generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill
that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal
of the impairment at the end of each reporting period.

46.9 RERHAMEBMEE

46.9 Investments and other financial assets

(i) oX (i) Classification

REBEEEMEEDF The Group classifies its financial assets in the following

RBATE =585 categories:

- HEBEAAEBAES -  those to be measured subsequently at fair value
2 (BAREEA (either through other comprehensive income, or
Hfth 2 2= sk 1B through profit or loss), and
=) &

— R E - - those to be measured at amortised cost.
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The classification depends on the Group’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and
losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or
other comprehensive income. For investments in
equity instruments that are not held for trading, this
will depend on whether the Group has made an
irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to
account for the equity investment at FVOCI.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023

46 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

46.9 Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

(M)

(ii)

(iii)

Classification (Continued)

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and
only when its business model for managing those
assets changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on trade date, being the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the financial assets have
expired or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of

ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at FVPL, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.
Transaction costs of financial assets carried at FVPL
are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining whether
their cash flows are solely payment of principal and
interest.
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46 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

46.9 Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

(iii) Measurement (Continued)

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments

depends on the Group’s business model for managing

the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the

asset. There are three measurement categories into

which the Group classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash
flows represent solely payments of principal and
interest are measured at amortised cost. Interest
income from these financial assets is included in
finance income using the effective interest rate
method. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
is recognised directly in profit or loss and
presented in other gains/(losses) together with
foreign exchange gains and losses. Impairment
losses are presented as separate line item in the

consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023

46 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

46.9 Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

(iii) Measurement (Continued)

Debt instruments (Continued)

FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for sale, where the
assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest, are measured at FVOCI.
Movements in the carrying amount are taken
through other comprehensive income (OCI),
except for the recognition of impairment gains or
losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange
gains and losses which are recognised in profit
or loss. When the financial asset is derecognised,
the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised
in OCI is reclassified from equity to profit or loss
and recognised in other gains/(losses). Interest
income from these financial assets is included in
finance income using the effective interest rate
method. Foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented in other gains/(losses) and impairment
expenses are presented as separate line item in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for
amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at FVPL.
A gain or loss on a debt investment that is
subsequently measured at FVPL is recognised
in profit or loss and presented net within other
gains/(losses) in the period in which it arises.

310 e SINO-SYNERGY HYDROGEN ENERGY TECHNOLOGY (JIAXING) CO., LTD. Annual Report 2023



46 HBEBE XS BORME

(&)

469 RERHEMESBEE (&)

(iii)  F1E (&)

#Em LA

REEURABES
FRERREREETR
B E - MAKEE
EEEEREER
B R EEYE K
BEA AR M2 E K
#@ 0 RIE R TR Z
HRER - TEEAQ
AEEREREEE
DHEERRE - EXE
% 2 e 7 YR AR B Y
M - ZFRED
REBENRIER R

2 o

HRARABEA
BaremEE B
ARBEZLHNEER
BaRmEMRE
(B8) (AER)
R HRURABME
FHAE fth 2 TE W
BmiE - HRER
1B (A R B 5 18
|) NEHE bR o E
BB EEIH -

REMBRRMEE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HZE2023F12A31AILEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023

46 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

46.9 Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

(iii) Measurement (Continued)

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group’s
management has elected to present fair value
gains and losses on equity investments in OCI,
there is no subsequent reclassification of fair
value gains and losses to profit or loss following
the derecognition of the investment. Dividends
from such investments continue to be recognised
in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive
payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets
measured at FVPL are recognised in other
gains/(losses) in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss as applicable. Impairment losses
(and reversal of impairment losses) on equity
investments measured at FVOCI are not reported
separately from other changes in fair value.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023

46 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

46.9 Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
(iv) Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis
the expected credit loss associated with its debt
instruments carried at amortised cost and FVOCI. The
impairment methodology applied depends on whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified
approach permitted by IFRS 9, which requires lifetime
expected credit losses to be recognised from initial
recognition of the receivables.

Impairment of other receivables and due from related
parties are measured as either 12-month expected
credit losses or lifetime expected credit loss,
depending on whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition. If a
significant increase in credit risk of a receivable has
occurred since initial recognition, then impairment is
measured as lifetime expected credit losses.

See Note 3.1 (b) for further details on how the Group
determines whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk.
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46 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

46.10 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the consolidated statement of financial position
where the Group currently has a legally enforceable right
to offset the recognised amounts, and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must
not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable
in the normal course of business and in the event of default,
insolvency or bankruptcy of the relevant company or the
counterparty.

46.11Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are recognised as a financial
liability at the time the guarantee is issued. The liability
is initially measured at fair value and subsequently at the
higher of

- the amount determined in accordance with the
expected credit loss model under IFRS 9 Financial
Instruments;

- the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate,
the cumulative amount of income recognised in
accordance with the principles of IFRS 15 Revenue
from Contracts with Customers.
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46 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

HBEROAABERBERT
AERME NN REEERIER
THBENRCEHNRERERLZ
BE  REBRAERTMEN
RE=ZTT 2 SBEE

fi LGk 2 X B & R EL A A 3K
ARENERLEME BRI
EEARINERRALER SRE
BXAH)— 88

46.12{EEE A

(i) BIKEHEH

WP BUERER A&
EEFEMESESMA
FEAEEE - TERAT AR
) 2% T8 7E R8 SR IR AE 7
T E - BIEZETE A&
EREREEAKRAMNZS
ArEltR (SB|EETH
EMEDLE  BF—
TEHER) o & - T
HE e ARERE sl
FEfT RO R B3R B R oK 2R T
BRKREB ITHRKEFZE
%o BRERAEIN  AE
BirEigE— PR NEER
R R E iR 1K 18 18 7 /9
B ZEFEMAER
AEEHEESH - T
Rz A\ REFIE KT E =R
MBUYESIE - A5H
HZ ST RN RN L
Bt AZEH -

46.11Financial guarantee contracts (Continued)

The fair value of financial guarantees is determined

based on the present value of the difference in cash flows

between the contractual payments required under the debt

instrument and the payments that would be required without

the guarantee, or the estimated amount that would be

payable to a third party for assuming the obligations.

Where guarantees in relation to loans or other payables

of associates are provided for no compensation, the fair

values are accounted for as contributions and recognised

as part of the cost of the investment.

46.12Employee benefits

(1)

Pension obligations

In accordance with the rules and regulations in the
PRC, the employees of the Group based in the PRC
participate in various defined contribution retirement
benefit plans organised by the relevant municipal
and provincial governments in the PRC under which
the Group and the employees are required to make
monthly contributions to these plans calculated as
a percentage of the employees’ salaries, subject
to certain ceiling. The municipal and provincial
governments undertake to assume the retirement
benefit obligations of all existing and future retired
employees based in the PRC payable under the plans
described above. Other than the monthly contributions,
the Group has no further obligation for the payment
of retirement and other post-retirement benefits of
its employees. The assets of these plans are held
separately from those of the Group in an independent
fund managed by the PRC government. The Group's
contributions to these plans are expensed as incurred.
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46 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

46.12Employee benefits (Continued)

(ii)  Housing funds, medical insurances and other social
insurances

The employees of the Group based in the PRC
are entitled to participate in various government —
supervised housing funds, medical insurance and
other employee social insurance plan. The Group
contributes on a monthly basis to these funds
based on certain percentages of the salaries of the
employees, subject to certain ceiling. The Group’s
liability in respect of these funds is limited to the
contributions payable in each year. Contributions to
these funds are expensed as incurred.

(iii)  Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-
monetary benefits and accumulated sick leave that
are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months
after the end of the period in which the employees
rendered the related service are recognised in respect
of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting
period and are measured at the amounts expected to
be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities
are presented as current employee benefit payables in
the consolidated statement of financial position.

(iv) Employee leave entitlement

Employee entitlement to annual leave is recognised
when they have accrued to employees. A provision is
made for the estimated liability for annual leave as a
result of services rendered by employees up to each
reporting date. Employees entitlement to sick leave
and maternity leave are not recognised until the time
of leave.
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(v) Bonus plan

The expected cost of bonuses is recognised as
a liability when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation for payment of bonus as a
result of services rendered by employees and a
reliable estimate of the obligation can be made.
Liabilities for bonus plans are expected to be settled
within 1 year and are measured at the amounts
expected to be paid when they are settled.

46.13Inventories

The accounting policies for the Group’s inventories are
explained in Note 25.

46.14 Contract assets and contract liabilities

When either party to a contract has performed, the Group
presents the contract in the balance sheet as a contract
asset or a contract liability, depending on the relationship
between the Group’s performance and the customer’s
payment.

A contract asset is the Group’s right to consideration in
exchange for goods and services that the Group has
transferred to a customer. Contract assets of the Group
represented retention receivables that are consideration
withheld by customers which are unsecured, interest-free
and recoverable after the completion of warranty period
of the relevant contracts. The warranty period is generally
the shorter of 5 years or when the vehicle that carries the
Group’s product travels for 200,000 kilometres after the
control of goods transferred to the customers.
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46 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

46.14Contract assets and contract liabilities (Continued)

If a customer pays consideration or the Group has a right
to an amount of consideration that is unconditional, before
the Group transfers a good or service to the customer,
the Group presents the contract as a contract liability
when the payment is received, or a receivable is recorded
(whichever is earlier). A contract liability is the Group’s
obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for
which the Group has received consideration (or an amount
of consideration is due) from the customer.

See Note 3.1(b) for a description of the Group’s impairment
policies for contract assets.

46.15Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
products sold or services performed in the ordinary course
of business, other receivables mainly include loan due
from a third party and advances to employees. If collection
of trade and other receivables is expected in one year or
less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if
longer), they are classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
the amount of consideration that is unconditional unless
they contain significant financing components, when they
are recognised at fair value. The Group holds the trade
and other receivables with the objective of collecting
the contractual cash flows and therefore measures them
subsequently at amortized cost using the effective interest
method. See Note 3.1(b) for a description of the Group’'s
impairment policies for trade and other receivables.
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For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand,
deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-
term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of
three months or less that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts. Bank
overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities
in the statement of financial position.

46.17Paid-in capital and share capital and treasury shares
reserve

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from
the proceeds.

Where the Company issued shares at a premium, whether
for cash or otherwise, a sum equal to the aggregate amount
of the value of the premiums over share capital shall be
classified as share premium.

Where any company purchases the company’s equity
instruments, for example as the result of a share buy-back
or a share-based payment plan, the consideration paid,
including any directly attributable incremental costs (net of
income taxes) is deducted from equity attributable to the
owners of the Company as treasury shares until the shares
are cancelled or reissued. Where such ordinary shares are
subsequently reissued, any consideration received, net
of any directly attributable incremental transaction costs
and the related income tax effects, is included in equity
attributable to the owners of the Company.
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46 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

46.18 Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services
that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business
from suppliers. Trade payables are classified as current
liabilities if payment is due within one year (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are
presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

46.19Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees paid
on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn-down. In this
case, the fee is deferred until the draw down occurs. To the
extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or
all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised
as a prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over
the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the consolidated statement
of financial position when the obligation specified in the
contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference
between the carrying amount of a financial liability that
has been extinguished or transferred to another party and
the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets
transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or
loss as other income or finance costs.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the

Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the reporting year.
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time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred.

46.21Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax
payable on the current period’s taxable income based on
the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted
by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable
to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis
of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting dates in the countries where the Company and
its subsidiaries operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulation is subject to interpretation and considers
whether it is probable that a taxation authority will accept
an uncertain tax treatment. The Group measures its tax
balances either based on the most likely amount or the
expected value, depending on which method provides a
better prediction of the resolution of the uncertainty.
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46 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

46.21 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)
Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
in the consolidated financial statements. However, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the initial
recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss and does not give rise to equal
taxable and deductible temporary differences. See Note
35(a)(i) for further details about deferred tax assets.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised for
temporary differences between the carrying amount and
tax bases of investments in foreign operations where the
company is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where there is
a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and
liabilities and where the deferred tax balances relate to the
same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities
are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right
to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this
case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.
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46 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

46.22 Share-based payment
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The Group operates an equity-settled share-based
payment plan, under which the Group receives
service from its employees in exchange for the equity
instruments of the Group. As disclosed in Note 31,
certain shares were granted to certain directors,
senior management and employees. The fair value of
the employee service received in exchange for the
grant of shares is recognised as an expense. The total
amount to be expensed is determined by reference to
the fair value of the equity instruments granted:

- including any market performance conditions
(e.g. the entity’s share price)

- excluding the impact of any service and non-
market performance vesting conditions (e.g.
profitability, sales growth targets and remaining
an employee of the entity over a specified time
period), and

- including the impact of any non-vesting
conditions (e.g. the requirement for employees to
save or hold shares for a specific period of time).

Nonmarket performance and service conditions are included

in assumptions about the number of equity instruments

that are expected to vest. The total expense is recognised

over the vesting period, in which all of the specified vesting
conditions are to be satisfied.

At the end of each period, the Group revises its estimates

of the number of shares that are expected to vest based on

the non-market vesting and service conditions. It recognises

the impact of the revision to original estimates, if any, in

profit or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.
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46 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

46.22 Share-based payment (Continued)

The grant by the Company of its equity instruments to
the employees of its subsidiaries is treated as a capital
contribution. The fair value of employee services received,
measured by reference to the grant date fair value, is
recognised over the vesting period as an increase to
investments in subsidiaries, with a corresponding credit to
equity.

46.23Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events,
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation, and the amount can be reliably
estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future
operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an
outflow with respect to any one item included in the same
class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of
management’'s best estimate of the expenditure required
to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting
period. The discount rate used to determine the present
value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to
the passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

46.24 Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at
fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into
and are subsequently remeasured to their fair value at
the end of each reporting period. Changes in fair value of
derivative financial instruments are recognised in profit or
loss.
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46 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

46.25Earnings per share

(i) Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

The profit attributable to owners of the Company,
excluding any costs of servicing equity other than
ordinary shares

by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding during the financial year,
adjusted for bonus elements in ordinary shares
issued during the year and excluding treasury
shares.

(i) Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in
the determination of basic earnings per share to take
into account:

the after-income tax effect of interest and other
financing costs associated with dilutive potential
ordinary shares, and

the weighted average number of additional
ordinary shares that would have been outstanding
assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential
ordinary shares.

46.26 Revenue recognition

The accounting policies for the Group’s revenue from
contracts with customers are explained in Note 6(c).
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46 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

46.27 Interest income

Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost and
financial assets at FVOCI calculated using the effective
interest method is recognised in profit or loss as part of
other income. Interest income is presented as finance
income where it is earned from financial assets that are held
for cash management purposes. Any other interest income
is included in other income.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset except for financial assets that subsequently become
credit-impaired. For credit-impaired financial assets the
effective interest rate is applied to the net carrying amount
of the financial asset (after deduction of the loss allowance).

46.28 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received, and the Group will comply with all attached
conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the profit or loss over the period necessary
to match them with the costs that they are intended to
compensate.

Government grants relating to the purchase of property,
plant and equipment are included in non-current liabilities
as deferred revenue and are credited to profit or loss on
a straight-line basis over the expected lives of the related
assets.
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46 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

46.29 Leases

The Group mainly leases land, office, and warehouse as
lessee. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis
and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include
the net present value of the following lease payments:

- fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable

- variable lease payments that are based on an index or
a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at
the commencement date

- amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees

- the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise that option, and

- payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain
extension options are also included in the measurement of
the liability.
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46 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

46.29 Leases (Continued)

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease, if that rate can be determined, or
the Group’s incremental borrowing rate. To determine the
incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

- where possible, uses recent third-party financing
received by the individual lessee as a starting point,
adjusted to reflect changes in financing conditions
since third party financing was received

- uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free
interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held
by the Group, which does not have recent third-party
financing, and

- makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term,
country, currency and security.

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss
over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for
each period.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain

extension options are also included in the measurement of
the liability.
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Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
following:

- the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability

- any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives

received

- any initial direct costs, and

- restoration costs.

The right-of-use asset is depreciated over the shorter of
the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line
basis.

Payments associated with short-term leases and all leases
of low-value assets are recognised on a straight-line basis
as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases
with a lease term of 12 months or less without a purchase
option. Low-value assets comprise small items of office
furniture.

Lease income from operating leases where the Group is a
lessor is recognised in other income on a straight-line basis
over the lease term. Initial direct costs incurred in obtaining
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
underlying asset and recognised as expense over the lease
term on the same basis as lease income. The respective
leased assets are included in the balance sheet based on
their nature.

46.30 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s financial statements
in the period in which the dividends are approved by the
Company’s shareholders or directors, where appropriate.
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